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GROUP REVENUE

2020

e 6551.4m

2019: £488.5m 2018: £470.3m 2017: £45%.1m 2016: £388.3m

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX*

£71.0m

2019: £61.0m 2018: £58.5m 2017: £56.4m 2016: £49.7m
FREE CASH FLOW?
201%: £10.0m 2018: £24.3m. 2017: £25.4m 2016: £15.7m

1 Adjusted results are the Alternstive Petformance
Measures {‘APMST) used by the Board (o monitor
underlying performance at @ Greup and operating
segment level, which are applied consistently
throughout. These APMs should be considered
in addition to, and not as » substitute for or as
superior o statutory meaasures. For more
intprmation op APM3, seethe APM Glossary,
Constant turrency percentsge movements are

“tatculated by restating the results for the year
ended 30 June 2020 at the average exchange rates
apptied to adjusted operating profit for the year
snded 30 June 205,

»
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STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£5.m

2019: £9.9m 2018: £7.8m 2017:£40,7m  2016: £60.9m

v

v

ADJUSTED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE!

85.4p

2019:73.2p 2018: 75.9p 2017:69.4p 2016: 60.7p

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

29.1p

- 2019:27.7p 2018: 26.0p 2017 23.6p 2016: 21.4p

STRONG REVENUE GROWTH OF 13% IN ACTUAL

AND CONSTANT CURRENCY?

Excellent performance in PIC, our porcine genetics business,

with revenue up 17%7 royalty revenues grew 11%? with growth

in all regions

High breeding stock sales and royalties in China drove PIC volume
growth of 13%, 696 excluding China

Strong revenue growth in ABS, our bovine genetics business, of 9%7,
driven by Sexcel®, our sexed product

ABS volume growth of 8%, with sexed volumes up 47% and
beelup 17%

VERY STRONG ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX
{‘PBT’), UP 22% IN CONSTANT CURRENCY {UP 16%
IN ACTUAL CURRENCY); STATUTORY PBT AT £51.5M

Adjusted operating profitincluding joint ventures and excluding
gene editing! up 17%?

Double digit adjusted operating profit growth! in PIC (up 25%?)

and ABS {up 129%%); R&D investment increased 17%?

Statutery PBT includes a £15.8m uplift in net IAS 41 biological asset
valuation and £19.2m of exceptional costs, compared with a reduced
asset valuation and higher exceptional costs in the prior year
Foreign currency translation impact on adjusted PBT of £3.4m
primarily reflecting weakness in LATAM currencies

STRONG CASH GENERATION, EARNINGS
AND DIVIDENDS, AND NEW REVOLVING CREDIT
FACILITY {*RCF’)

Strong free cash flow* of £35.2m, net debt? of £102.6m (inc £24.7m
IFRS 16 adoption), net debt to EBITDA! of 0.9x

New enlarged credit facility completed 24 August 2020; £150m
multicurrency RCF, a USD125m RCF and a USD20m bond and

_ guarantee facility for a three-year term with two one-year

extension options

Very strong financial position with high operating cash flows and
significant borrowings headroom enables flexibility to invest further
in growth

Statutory earnings per share increased to 62.4p from 12.4pin

the prior period; adjusted earnings per share® up 23% in constant
currency (up 17% in actual currency}; dividend up 5% with 2.9x
adjusted earnings cover®

GOOD STRATEGIC PROGRESS DESPITE COVID-19

During the COVID-19 pandemic Genus has been committed to

the health and safety of its people, customers and communities
throughout its global markets

More than doubled size of PIC China's supply chain to capture
opportunity of re-stocking post African Swine Fever (ASF')

PIC’s collaboration with Beijing Capital Agribusiness Co. Ltd ('BCA’)
is progressing well with receipt of the first milestone payment of
USDTm {net income £3.2m) received in January 2020

Expanded sexed product capacity including new sites, and driving
performance through continued technology improvements
Completed a twa year trial of NuEra®, our beef-on-dairy genetics
demonstrating a material value proposition for the beef industry
Continued progress as planned with the Porcine Reproductive
Respiratory Syndrome virus (‘PRRSv’) development programme,
first Food and Drug Administration ['FDA) filing completed

Market leading genetic portfolio across the Group enabling broad
based market share gains
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GENUS AT A GLANCE

Producing genetically
superior breeding animals

What we do

Genus is a world-leading
animal genetics company.

We partner with farmers to transform how
we nourish the world - a mission thatis
important to a sustainable future.

We do this by breeding better pigs and
cattle, so farmers can produce high-quality
meat and milk more efficientiy and
sustainably. We accurately select animals
with desirable characteristics and use
them to breed subsequent generations.

Examples of desirable characteristics include
feed efficiency, disease resistance, growth
rate, protein and fat content, and fertility.

How we d_o it

We analyse animals’ DNA

and look for markers that we
know are linked to desirable
characteristics, which help
tarmers to raise healthler and
more productive animals.

We then select animals with the strongest
genetic profile from our proprietary and
partner herds and breed them to produce
even better offspring, in a continuous
cycle, We distribute these genetically
superior animals to our customers in

the form of breeding animals, semen
orembryos.

We also gwn technology that enables us
to screen and process semen for desirabie
traits, such as fernale gender for the dairy
market, and license-in technology to make
precise, desirable gene edits to animals’
DNA, which we are employing in our
product development programmes.

Our focus is on progressive, sustainable
farmers, who are best placed torealise
the benefit that superior genetics and
technologies can have.

Seep.38

£124.3m
£32.5m

£298.8m
£237.6m

INVESTING TO STRENGTHEN OUR POSITION

‘£119m

in FY20

1 Revenue and Adjusted Operating Profitincluding Joint Ventures exciude RAD revenues and casts.
2 Formare Inf APMS Y.

3 Inchides intelll pitatised d

4 includes g asset cash

s and finance jease p:
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1 Including bwough
franchises, distributors
" andJeint ventures,
MPEs refers ta market
pig equivalents, 8
standardised measure
ofour customers
production of slaughter
animals that contain
our genaties,
3 Including through
distributars,
4 Dairy, Beel and sorted ,
units of setnen and
embryas delivered or

~

produced for customers.

Serving pork, dairy and beef farmers globally

PORK

PIC, our global porcine genetics business, sells
genetically superior sows, boars and semen to
farmers, so they can breed pigs with desirable
characteristics for pork production. We also
provide technical services and advice to farmers,
to maximise the performance of our breeding
animals in their farms.

PIC Ov.\rns. over 10 elite pure-bred pig lines,
housed in strategically located facilities around the

_ world. These herds are bred out into much larger

breeding herds in over 300 predominantly
sub-contracted ‘multiplication’ farms around

the world. PIC boars are also housed in about 400
boar studs globally, where semen is collected for
distribution to customers and muitiplication herds.
PIC genetics are sold under the PIC brand through
direct sales channels and strategic partners.

D Seep.18

40.

Countries with sales presence?

171m

MPEs?

2,500+

Customers

STRATEGIC REPORT

Genus’s leading porcine and bovine animal breeding divisions, PIC and ABS,
deliver leading genetics to tens of thousands of farmers giobally.

DAIRY AND BEEF

ABS, our global bovine genetics business, sells bull
semen and embryos so farmers can use artificial
insemination to breed calves with desirable
characteristics for milk and beef production, ABS's
highest-quality semen is often sold in sexed form,
which greatly increases the probability of a female
calf. ABS also provides technical services to
farmers, to maximise the performance of their
animals bred with our genetics.

ABS breeds genetically elite bulls in the US, Europe
and Latin America. The best bulls come to one of
ABS’s six production studs, where their semen is
collected for distribution as a frozen 'straw’ of
semen or used to create embrycs for sale.

ABS genetics are sold through direct sales
channels 2nd strategic partners under the ABS

brand. In the UK and France, they are sold under
long-established Genys and Bovec brands.

) seep.22

75+

Countries with sales presence’

21m

Cattle inseminations and embryo transfers*

50,000+

Customers

5
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

A business in
excellent shape

BOb Lawson This Is my final report to you as Chairman

of Genus, as | will be retiring from the Board
at the conclusion of the Company’s Annua)
General Meeting in November. | have been
proud to play a part in the transformation
of this outstanding business and to see first-
hand its evolution into the world leading
antmat genetics company that it is today.

1.am pleased to be
handmg over to my The need Genus meets is fundamentally the
successor with the same as when | joined the Board in 2010: our
. genetics help farmers to produce animal protein
Group in excellent miore efficiently and sustainably and in doing
shape. 50, we help to nourish the world. The successful

execution of our strategy, including significant
investment in ground-breaking research and
innavative technologies over many years, means
that our portfolio of genctic products and
services has never been in better shape. This

is allawing us to support progressive livestock
farmers more effectively than ever before. We
have also successfully adjusted our business
mode| over time, to enable Genus to share

in the value we create for our customers,

Refiecting over the last ten years, | have

been pleased to obiserve the evolution of

the Company and highlight three areas.

The first is the culture which has transitiored
from operating in silos focused on species
and/or country to a unified, cooperative and
universal approach focused on providing
anunequalled service to customers.

The second has been the transformation

and effectiveness of R&D. It now operates
atthe forefront of our chosen areas and the
combination of our relationships with leading
uaiversities and our much enhanced in-house
expertise will deliver sustainable benefits that
will continue to secure our global leadership.
The third and final observation is again
assaciated with culture. Genus has transitioned
from a UK centric view of the world to a true
global business with significant activitiesin the
important major and emerging economies of the
world. As you will note on page 50 the leadership
team is not only cohesive but now embraces
multiple nationalities and backgrounds.
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All of these factors have contributed to this
year's strong financial performance, despite
volatile markets caused by African Swine Fever
and COVID-19. Demand from China meant

that PIC had an excellent year and was the
primary driver of our growth. ABS performed
well, maintaining its growth trend, with strong
demand for sexed genetics and higher beef
volumes. Overall, the Group’s adjusted profit
before tax increased by 16% in constant
currency (13% in actual currency) and reached
anew record of £71.0m. Statutory PBT was
£51.5m (2019: £9.9m). While COVID-15 presented
some operational challenges to us in the second
haif of FY20. we have responded well and the
business has continued to operate safely.

| am therefore pleased to be handing over to

my successor, lain Ferguson, with the Group in
excellent shape. lain joined us.on 1 July 2020

as 2 Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Designate, His substantial Board experience, as
well as his commercial, science and agribusiness
expertise, make him the ideal person to
maintain the growth momentum the business
has generated and to lead the Board through
the next chapter of Genus's development.

tain will be ably supported by our executive
team. As | noted in my report to you last year,
Stephen Wilson became Chief Executivein
September 2019 and-we continue to benefit
from his deep knowledge of the business
and its strategy, built up during more than
sixyears as Group Finance Director. Alison
Henriksen joined the Board in January

2020 to take vp Stephen’s former role.
Hercommercial and financial expertiseis
already proving invaluable to the Group.

The Board plays a key role in challenging arid
approving the Group's strategy and overseeing
itsimplementation. During the year, we

once again held our annual strategy session,
focusing on the strategic direction and goals
for the Group and its business units (see page
56 for more information), The Board also
pays careful attention to the Group's culture
and the employee Your Voice survey results,
since we know that it is the employees that
are at the heart of the Company's successes
(see page 36). Genus has a long-standing

set of values and | am pleased that our
people continue to live by them each day.

Genus now employs over 3,100 people
worldwide, each of whom has played their
part in our performance this year. On behalf
of the Board, | want to thank them for their
commitment and dedication to serving our
customers, and to wish them all every success
on the next stage of the Group’s journey.

The Group continues to invest for the future,
in particular in our leading genetics and our
R&D platform innovations, Atthe same time,
we recognise the needs of our shareholders,
and having paid an interim dividend of 9.4p
pershare, an increase of 69 over the prior
year, the Board is now recommending a
final dividend of 19.7p per share. This will
give a total dividend of 28.1p. up 5% from
the 27.7p paid in respect of FY19. The final
dividend will be paid on 11 December
2020, to shareholders on the register at the
close of business on 20 November 2020. ’

t
While the Group has been able to successfully
adapt to COVID-19, the full impact of the
pandemic on Qur customers and end consumers
is not yet clear, Even 5o, 1 am confident that
Genus has transformed into'an agile and
responsive business that will adapt and prosper
in years to come. It has been a privilege to
lead the Board and to work with the Genus
team for over a decade. The quality of the
people, genetics, technology, services and
R&D inngvation pipeline position the Company
for future success. | leave Genus with a degree
of personal sadness but with the knowledge
that | have been extremely fortunate to have
been part of a great organisation which
has an exciting future. That future will be
delivered by an exceptional Board under lain’s
leadership and a magnificent global team.

Bob Lawson
Chair of the Board
7 September 2020

STRATEGIC REPORT
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

A successful strategy

and consistent vision

Stephen Wilson

Performance in the year
was strong, with record
adjusted profit before
tox.

This is my first report to you as the Chief
Executive of Genus, having taken up the
position in September 2019, after more
than six years as Group Finance Director,
and it is a true privilege to lead this
Company. G provides a vital service to
an essential industry and in doing so plays
a key role in helping to nourish the world,
We have 2 fantastic team of talented, expert
and passionate people and our portfolio

of elite animal g ics is the strong

it has ever been.

Our current position reflects the success of

our ongoing strategy over recent years , which
is to increase genetic control and product
differentiation, deliver value in key markets and
seghenLs, and share in the value delivered. Qur
consistent vision of ‘Pioneering animal genetic
improvement to help nourish the world' and aur
strong core values drive all that we do. At the
same time, we must continue to adapt to a
changing world, so we are placing even greater
emphasis on environmenta! sustainability, both
in the way we run the business and in the
benefits our genetics deliver in enabling more
sustainable production of high-quality animal
protein. Innovation is another important area
of focus. Genus has always been an innovative
coempany but the biological sciences move
quickly and we need to ensure we remain at the
forefront of applying new ideas in our industry
to the benefit of our customers.

The Group showed it resilience foltowing

the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. This
disrupted protein supply chains and sorne of our
customers experienced unprecedented market
price and demand volatility.

| am proud of the way our people responded

to the many challenges and we have been able
to keep operating essentially uninterrupted
throughout the crisis, while continualty focusing
on pratecting the health of our employees and
other stakeholders.

GROUP PERFORMANCE

Performance in the year was strong, with
revenue increasing by 13%, and adjusted
profit before tax growing 16% (22% in
constant currency, to a record £71.0m.
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Genus PIC was the major contributor to that
growth, as it benefited as expected from strong
demand in China as large producers expanded
to fili the supply shortfall caused by African
Swine Fever in 2019. Europe and Latin America
also contributed strong growth, resulting in
PIC's adjusted operating profit including joint
ventures being 25% higher in constant currency.
Strategically important porcine royalty revenue
was up 11% in constant currency, with growth in
ail regions, contributing to total porcine revenue
increasing by 179 in constant currency.

Genus ABS achieved volume growth of 8% and
adjusted operating profit growth of 129 in
constant currency, This was driven mainty by the
growth in sexed product, with sexed volumes up
47%, and continued growth in the use of beef
genetics in dairy herds, with global beef volumes
up 17%. ABS benefited from our investment in
sales capability and the shift to long-term
partnership accounts, particularly in the US.
Performance was also particularly strong in
Brazil, Russia, india and China.

R&D is the lifebtood of our business and we
increased netinvestment by 19% (179 in
constant currency} as planned, largely driven
by increased investment in porcine product
development as we look to further strengthen
our proprietary genetics and bulld capacity for
future growth. We will continue to increase
investment in gene editing and IntelliGen®
production capacity, as well as further
developing our R&O pipeline.

CONTINUED STRATEGIC PROGRESS

QOur strategic investments in our proprietary
pork, dairy and beef breeding programmes and
our leading sexing technology continue to reap
rewards and we advanced our strategyon a
number of fronts during the year. Our PRRSv
resistance programme made progress as
planned and we received our first milestone
payment from BCA, our collaboration partner
on PRRSv in China. Alsa in China, we were able to
more than double PIC's supply chain capacity,
primarily by using our customers’ systems

and joint ventures to multiply our genetics,
positioning Genus to provide elite genetics to
more large commercial farms in the country.
Meanwhile, our porcine R&D is delivering
historically high rates of genetic improvement,
supporting business growth and market

share gains.

In ABS, we opened further production capacity
in Wisconsin'to support the ongoing growth in
sexed semen volumes, which continue to
outperform. In addition, we opened further new
state of the art barns to house our elite genetics.

- Our bovine product development is expanding
its industry leading position in Holstein dairy
genetics and we used a two year long product
trial through the commercial beef supply chain
to validate the superior growth, feed efficiency
and yields provided by our beef genetics
programme, The results of this trial showed the
significant benefits of our genetics.

The implementation of Genus One, our new
enterprise system, is progressing well. We
achieved our first major ‘go live’ in PIC North
America and are well progressed on roltouts

.o

19.7p

Final dividend per share

29.1p

Total dividend for the year per share

5 %

Total dividend increase

INSPIRING INNOVATION

FORAMORE SUSTAINABLE WORLD

Qur consistent vision of ‘Pioneering animal
genetic improvement to help nourish the
world” and our strong core values drive all
that we do. At the same time, we must
continue to adapt to a changing world, 5o we
are placing even greater emphasis on
environmental sustainability, both in the way
we run the business and in the benefits our
genetics deliverin enabling more sustainable
production of high-guality animal protein.

Driving genetic improvernent p.38

Reducing our carbon footprint p.41

Energy efficiency p.42

STRATEGIC REPORT 9

to further business areas over the coming year.
Ultimately when fully implemented we will reap
benelits through leveraging one global system |
in our operations.

PEOPLE

As announced on 29 lune 2020, Bob Lawson’
will be standing down as Chairman at the AGM

in November 2020. On behalf of the Board and
all of my Genus colleagues, | want to thank him
warmly for his wise counsel and great leadership
during his ten years on the Board. He has played
an integral role in Genus's transformation into
the world-leading company it is today. | also
want to welcome lain Ferguson, who joined the
Board in July 2020 and will become Chairman
after the AGM. We are already benefiting from his
very relevant experience and counsel.

The other change to the 8oard of Directors

and membership of GELT during the year was
the agpointment of Alison Henriksen as Chief -
Financial Officer. Alison joined usin January
2020 and her comrmercial and financial expertise
is already proving highly valuable to us. 1 also
want to thank Janet Duane, our Financial
Controller, who very ably stepped up tobe

, acting CFQ in the period before Alison joined us.

As previously reported, Dr Elena Rice joined us
as Chief Scientific Officer and Head of Research
and Develdpment in July 2019,

Genus employs mare than 3,100 people around
the world. Iwant te thank them all for their
contribution to our success this year, particularly
so in the environment resulting from COVID-19.
Wae are fortunate that our people could continue
to carry out their roles during the pandemic and
no government aid for wages was sought. While
our business is anima| genetic improvement,
we only succeed because of thetalents and
dedication of our people. The global Your Voice
survey we conducted in November showed that
employee engagement remains high and we
continue to nurture our positive and inclusive
culture and to attract new talent to support our
strategic objectives.

‘OUTLOOK

The full impact of COVID-19 on the world
economy and consumer incomes remains
unclear atthough economic forecasts suggest
that many sectors will be heavily impacted

for some time, Creating economic recession in
many countries. The pandemic has also caused
operational challenges for elements of the
animal protein value chain, most notably meat
processorsin the US which are likely to continue
for some time, ieading to challenging conditions
for some of our customers through at least the
remainder of 2020, Greater Currency headwinds
are also anticipated in FY21. However, Genus's
business model and strategy has again
demonitrated its robustness and we anticipate
further growth in constant currency in the
business in the coming year and to perform in
line with cur expectations,

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive
T September 2020
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BUSINESS MODEL

Producing and delivering
superior animals to farmers

LINK TO STRATEGY

Create differentiated and
sustainable proprietary genetic
solutions

Serve progressive protein
producers effectively

Share in the vaiue defivered

Seep.16

CREATE DIFFERENTIATED AND SUS

Produce genetically superior

breeding animals

QURSTRENGTHS
AND RESOURCES

GLOBAL POSITION

Genusis uniquely placed 25 a global player,
with leading brands and market positions,
which strengthen through acquisitions and
partnerships

ELITE ANIMALS

We own elite porcine and bovine herds, which
produce animal proteins more efficiently, with
traitsfarmers value

PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY

We are a technology leader in our field.
We harness leading genetic and breeding
technologies, which we develop in-house
and through strategic partnerships

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

We serve aver 50,000 customers glebally,
including world-leading meat and milk
producers

EXPERT PEOPLE

We have over 100 PhD qualified employees
and relationships with leading research
institutions

SUPPLY CHAIN AND DISTRIBUTION

We have production facilities in ey locations
worldwide, coupled with sales forces and
agents in over 80 countries

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

Our cash generative businesses and strong
financial position allow us to invest for =
thefuture . -

SHARED PROPRIETARY
TECHNOLOGY PLATFORM

GENOME SCIENCE

We understand the links between DNA
and animals’ observable characteristics,
and how we can influence them

GENOMIC SELECTION

We breed successive generations of
animals by using DNA analysis to select
superior parents in our breeding herds

BIOSYSTEMS ENGINEERING

We use technolegy tointerrogate and
setect cells, such asin our semen sexing
technology

GENE EDITING

We are devetoping more sustainable,
disease-resistant breeding animals by
making precise changes to their genes

REPRODUCTIVE BIOLOGY

We perform IVF matings to select both
fernale and male parents for superior
offspring, and we have active R&D
workstreamsin muttiple advanced
reproductive technologies
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SHARE IN THE VALUE DELIVERED

Deliver improved breeding
animals to farmers

We have a global supply chain that efficiently delivers genetics to
customers while mitigating risk for us, for example through our use of
third-party multipliers, Qur technica! teams then help our customers
1o realise genetic improvement on-farm.

GENETICS PRIMARILY SOLD ON MULTI-YEAR

ROYALTY AGREEMENTS

Superior pigs with traits farmers value

BOARS IN STUD

40,000+

boars producing semen

EXPANSION HERDS

¢.500,000

GGP/GP animals with our genetics

under genetic management'
1 GGP/GP refersto great grandparent/grandparent
of acommerctal slsughter pig.

GENETICS PRICED ACCORDING
TO INDICES OF GENETIC MERIT

STUDS AND LABS

21m

semen straws and
embryos delivered or

‘produced for customers

800+

superior dairy and
beef bulls with traits
farmers value

STRATEGIC REPORT 11

Price according to
the value delivered

CUSTOMER

171m

MPEs produced

CUSTOMER

7-8m

dairy and beef
calves barn

DELIVERING FOR
OUR STAKEHOLDERS

CUSTOMERS .

We help our customers to breed animals
that are healthier and more productive,
sathey produce better meat and milk,
more efficiently and sustainably. Pricing
according to the value we deliver on-farm
helps to build trust with our customers

CONSUMERS

We make safe, healthy and nutritious
animal protein more affordable to help
feed the world

COMMUNITIES & ENVIRONMENT

We make farming more sustainable

by reducing the use of feed and other
resources required to produce the same
amount of meat and milk, reducing
greenhouse gas emissions over time

PEOPLE

We employ over 3,100 pecpie globally,
who all help to deliver our vision of
nourishing the world

INVESTORS

" Bysharingin the value we deliver to

customers, we generate returns for
ourinvestors
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT .

Engaging with
our stakeholders

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Customers &
Consumers

Board representative:
All Directors

WHY WE ENGAGE

HOW WE ENGAGE

Qur customers depend on
our genetics to improve
their businesses and their
profitability. We look to
understand theirneeds
and to help them make
the most of gur products
and services.

We look to better
understand end-consumer
requirements and
preferences.

>

The Board typically visits key customers when Board meetings are held
outside the UK, although this year’s visit ta Brazil was cancelled due to
COVID-19

Regular Board updates on targeted customers and customer wins
Regular customes visits as part of cur service offering, enabling our
teams to work closely with customers to better understand their needs

Board engagement with different levels of the supply chain {albeit
limited by COVID-19), including meeting with meat packers and
processors to understand what they look for in genetics to meet
consumer demands, such as lean animal weight

Keeping under review growth of alternative non-animal proteins,
in light of consumer preference

Employees
Board representatives:
Lesley Knox

Lykele van der Broek

Owur people play a crucial
role in helping us pursue
our strategic goals and
uphold the core values that
underpin our organisation.

Direct engagement by Workforce Engagement Directors at town hall
meetings

Employee Your Voice survey

Chief Execultive video update, manager-led updates and updates via
intranet foliowing results announcements

We engage, equip and > Leadership calls and quarterly manager briefings
support them to achieve > Regular internal communications from management
their full potential while > Launch of new employee-led resource group (AWAKE ~ Advancing
building our business Women's Advocacy, Knowledge & Empowerment) to empower women
‘ to contribute to their full potential
> Health and safety training programme and regular updates/briefings
VWe maintéiﬁ strong > Investor roadshows.rlred by the Ch|efExecut|veandChnefFlnanCIal o
SharEhOlderS relationships with Officer
Board representative: shareholders, ensuring they > Results announcements, presentations and live webcasts
Bob Lawson understand our strategy, > AGM and trading update in November 2019
progress and performance > Annual Report )
and that we understand > Regular news flow on key developmentsin the business
how they view our business. > Engagement with investors regarding new executive Remuneration
Policy and the appointment of the Chairman Designate
Y We look to be aresponsible > Arange of placement and employment opportunities offered for
Comm unities & citizen within our students and apprentices
H communities, offering local > Support for charities close to local businesses
EnV iron ment recruitment, :-esponding > Providing educational support for agriculture and animal science
Board representative; to crises and supporting programmes .
charities. We also look to > Investing in activities designed to reduce greenhouse gas emissions,

Lysanne Gray

minimise our impact on the
environment,

conisistent with our Climate Change Policy
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The Group actively engages with its stakeholders, to keep them updated and ensure we understand
their priorities. The Board carries out some engagement directly, while other engagement occurs during
the running of the business, with the Board being kept informed through reports from management.
The table below describes our key stakeholders and examples of engagement during the year and

actions which arose.
KEY ISSUES IDENTIFIED ACTIONS ARISING
> Need for new ways of working to support customers during COVID-19 l > Introduced virtual sales and advicguf;r customers during the

> Bespoke Customer Genetics advice

pandemic

Worked with customers to manage the impacts on their operations
due to COVID-19

Providing bespoke Customer Genetics advice designed to improve
phenotypic and genotypic characteristics of the herd

> HKey points raised from town halls included:

- How best to share knowledge across businesses

- implementation of IT infrastructure and how best to utilise it
- 'Dialogue around understanding customers

- Strategic priorities

> Improvement areas raised in the Your Voice survey:

- Learning and development

- Reward and recognition

> Qverseeing how management deals with the impact of COVID-19
on employees

> Shareholder interest in environmental performance {see below}

action plans tasked to GELT members to deliver outcomes from the
survey, with the plans forming part of GELT performance objectives
Board 1o continue monitoring progress against key points raised
Ensuring safe working environments, in fine with local governmental
advice across all facilities

Introduced global jobs framework structure enabling local salary
benchmarking

introduced bespoke management development programmes for
first time pecple managers and senior leaders

New Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders, and made
effective from, November 2019

> Potential impact of climate change on the business and our
communities '
> Need torespond as required to local emargencies

The Board scrutinised management’s plans to achieve climate

change targets and approved Climate Change Policy, targets, strategy
and actions to deliver targets

The Board will monitor implementation of the ciimate change plan
and progress against targets

Lysanne Gray appointed as the Board's Sustainability Sponsor (see
page 43)

Supported India flood response (see page 38}

Supported local charities including food banks in short supply of
meat proteins, as a resuit of the economic impact of COVID-19
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Feeding the world
more sustainably

Drivers

CONSUMPTION OF ANIMAL PROTEIN
continues to grow as the giobal population
expands and urbanises, and seeks a more
varied and nutritious diet. Pork, milk and beef
consumption are forecast to grow by 1-2% p.a.
inthe next decade.

INCREASING COMPEYITION FOR RESOURCES
such as land and water puts pressure on farmers
to become more efficient. including through

the use of genetically superior animals and new
technologies.

GROWING CONSUMER AWARENESS

is driving demand for high-quality, healthier and
maore sustainable products, which are produced
with fewer drugs . This increases farmers'
demand for genetically superior breeding
znimals, which are more efficient ang resilient. in
the future, gene editing and other breakthrough
technologies may provide farmers with breeding
animals that are fully resistant to some of the
most devastating diseases globally.

FARMS ARE BECOMING LARGER AND
MORE TECHNIFIED

Progressive farmers typically measure
performance in more detail. This means they
better understand and can benefit from the
efficiency benefits of genatically superior
breeding animals and optimised breeding
strategies, such as combining the use of sexed
dairy and beef semen on dairy herds to
maximise profit.

Each generation of farmers has
developed innovative breeding
methods to raise animals more
efficiently and humanely. The'
continued adoption of selective
breeding and adoption of new
technologies will help farmers
to meet the growing global
demand for food.

Trends

CONSOLIDATION OF ELITE BREEDING HERDS
Elite breeding bulls and pigs are bred from
genetically elite breeding herds. The increasing
use of costly technology and the scale required
to keep pace with industry leaders is driving
consplidation of these herds. As genetics
consolidate, some breeders are choosing to
form strategic alliances with competitors, so
they can offer their customers superior genetics

ADOPTION OF SEXING TECHNOLOGY

Using sexed semen is a more efficient and
sustainable use of dairy animal genetics.
Adoption of semen sexing technology with elite
ABS germplasm is growing fast across dairy
herds, as it enables farmers to efficiently
produce more productive heifers. The
production of female offspring with sexed
semen means the rest of the herd can be bred
with beef semen, to maximise the meat guality
of the resulting calf.

BREAKTHROUGH TECHNOLOGY AND DATA
The animal genetics industry is pursuing
innovative solutions to improve productivity and
to tackle animal disease and suffering. These
include using data and health-focused breeding
indices, as well as breakthrough technologies
such as gene editing and advanced reproductive
biology techniques. Progressive farmers are also
increasingly looking to digital technologies,
which provide data and insight to support
decision making.

1 Source: Genus US Holsteln breed:

Position

Genus is a world leader in animal genetic
improvement. We have a global commercial
platform with critical mass. We are also the
only listed porcine and bovine genetics
company globally, giving us strategic access
to finance. Qur competitors are largely private
companies and farmer-owned cooperatives,
many of which are regionally focused.

ted n the Tep 200 NMS rankings by birth year; 2020 data based on Top 200

Hoisteins active using August 2020 data from the Coundl on Dairy Cattle Breeding.

Gengs Market shares represent the estimated

2 Source: Government ag tocat ind dent pork org
share of pig production in top pig production markets,

Genus Markel shares rop the

3 Source: Government agencies, local bovine genetics and
d share of combined dairy and b

In ABS's Top 29 target markets for dairy and Top & target markets for beef.
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STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Creating, delivering

and sharing in the value

We harness innovative
technologies to create
genetically superior animals
for progressive farmers,

and link our pricing to

the performance of our
products on-farm,

KEY TO RISKS

Developing products

with competitive advantage
Continuing to successfully
develop IntelliGen technology
Developing and commerclalising
gene editing technologies

-

Capturing value through acquisitions
Growing in emerging markets

Protecting IP

Ensuring biosecurity
and continuity of supply

Hiring and retaining talenied people

Managing agricultural market .
and commodity prices volatility

-
o

Fundihg‘p'er-!slons

Strategic priorities

What does
success look like?

CREATE DIFFERENTIATED AND
SUSTAINABLE PROPRIETARY GENETIC
SOLUTIONS

We harness the latest technologies and talent to
continuously improve the genetics of our own
herds and resulting product offering. We protect
our unique position by carefully selecting who
we sell our genetics and technology to, and on
what terms.

GENETIC GAIN

Creating better breeding animals
for farmers, measured against
indices comprising economic
traits that help to drive farmers'
productivity and sustainability.

Seep.17

SERVE PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN PRODYLERS
EFFECTIVELY

we focus our offering on progressive livestock
farmers, who are data driven and results
focused. We tailor our products and services

ta maximise their performance on their farms.
we serve different markets in different ways

to manage cost and risk effectively.

VOLUME GROWTH
Growing volumes, particularly with
progressive livestock farmers.

See p.17

SHARE IN THE VALVE DELIVERED

We aim to capture an appropriate share of the
vatue we deliver to customers, aligning our
interests with theirs. We demonstrate the value
aof our genetics on farm through validation trials
and data, and link our pricing to genetic indices
and our customers’ productivity.

PROFITABILITY

Generating profit resulting from
the performance of our products
in customers’ systems,

See p.17
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DIVISIONAL REVIEW / GENUS PIC

Accelerating

growth

DR BILL CHRISTIANSON
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
Genys PIC

Business Priorities

SHORT TERM >

MARKET

Throughout FY20 ASF caused volatility and
fundamental shifts in global supply and derand
for pork and porcine genetics. The occurrence of
the COVID-19 pandemic in the second haif of the
year also significantly disrupted the supply chain
dynamics for pork producers, most notably in

MEDIUM TERM > LONG TERM

Successfully bring
PRRSv-resistant
animals to market.

Enhance resilience of supply
and distributien in China,
through our partnership
and joint venture
arrangements.

Expand and strengthen our
range of elite genetic
facilities around the world.

Strategic Progress in 2019/20

the us.

In Asia, ASF continued to spread. China had
previously housed around half the world’s sow
herd but ASF reduced China‘s sow herd by more
thar 509, causing a pork supply gap of 17-23
million tons in Asia. In response, China increased

CREATE SERVE SHARE IN potkimports from all major exporting regions
DIFFERENTIATED PROGRESSIVE THE VALUE and is expected to account for 40% of global
AND SUSTAINABLE PROYEIN DELIVERED imports in 2020 (source: USDA). Local pig and
PROPRIETARY PRODUCERS park prices have risen strongly, with Chinese pig
GENETIC EFFECTIVELY prices more than 3.5 times LIS prices in May 2020,
SOLUTIONS High prices and goverament policies incentivised

Accelerated rates of
genetic gain for all
traits, including our
focus on piglet
survivability and total
carcass value.
Established our PICB0O
boar, which integrates

Agreed a joint venture
with Shanxi Daxiang to
expand and strengthen
our supply chain in
China.

Grew revenue in North
America by 3%, through
increased sales of both

>

Continued to increase
the use of royalty
contracts, with notable
progress in China, where
25% of our businessis
now conducted on this
basis.

Launched CBV Max, the

Chinese producers Lo expaikd productivn and
re-stock farms. Despite this, Chinese pork
production is expected to decline 15-20% in 2020.
In Vietnam, the spread of ASF has largely
stabilised but pork production is around 19%
lower than the prigr year. in the Philippines, pork
production is estimated to be 9% lower, with ASF
spreading within backyard farms.

the best Duroc genetics male (PICBOC) and programme providing Increased Chinese demand and US-China trade
from PIC and Mellevang, female (Camborough) our most elite genetics, disputes had made US pork markets volatile
as the world's leading products. in Europe. before the onset of COVID-19. US meat processing

Duroc terminal sire,
Expanded our range of

Increased volume
growth in Europe by

Conducted afurther 36
product trials, involving

plants emerged as COMID-19 hotspots, with
shutdowns sharply reducing pork production.

elite genetic facilities to 10%, aided by offering over 76,500 pigs, to With more pigs than slaughter capacity, US pig
enhance resilience of complementary PIC and demonstrate the prices fell steeply. US producers' responses
supply for customers Mallevang product lines superior performance of included sow herd reductions. Although US pork
around the world. to customers acrossthe PIC products in exports have beenvery stiong, with Q1 2020 up
Began our strategic region. customer production 40% versus the prior year, driven by China,

collaboration with BCA
ta research, develop and
commercialise PRRSy-
resistant pigs in China.

Grew profitsin Latin
America by 23% aswe
continued to capture
more genetic value per
pig and won more
accounts.

Increased profits in Asia
by 225%, aided by

resurgence of demand in

China following the
impact of African Swine
Fever ('ASF’).

systems.

political tensions with China over the origin of
COVID-19, coupled with a sluggish food-service
recovery and higher retail pricing. have depressed
overall pork demand and producer margins in Q2.
In July 2020 there were 5.89% more market pigs in
the US thanin the previous year due to the
backlog from processing ptants not operating at
capacity, which suggests that trading conditions
for pig farmers will be challenging for at least the
remainder of 2020.

in Latin America, Brazil had benefited from
increased exports to China before COVID-19
occurred. In Q2 2020, Brazil saw a high increase of
COVID-19 cases and experienced similar meat
processing difficulties as the US. However, export
demand remains robust, with pork production
forecast to increase 4% in 2020 versus 2019.
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Our long term strategy is
delivering significant competitive
advantages.

Europe was an early beneficiary of Chinese
demand foltowing ASF, with EU pork exports
expected to rise nearly 10% in 2020, However,
slaughter plants became COVID-19 hotspots in
Q2 2020, leading to higher volatility in the
market. ASF is an additional risk and it has been
reported in Poland, 10km from the German
border, Germany is a top European producer and
exporter and if ASF spreads in Germany this
could affect neighbouring tountriesin the
instance that exports might be prohibited.

China has seen strang demand for breeding
stock as producers repopulate. Many producers
have used slaughter pigs to restock, thereby
reducing their productivity. This will create a
longer term demand for elite genetics. COVID-19
has not led to a major reduc:tion in demand for
porcine genetics, but if sow herds in the
Americas or Europe do decline this will impact
breeding stock demand and royalties.

PERFORMANCE R

Genus PIC delivered very strong results, despite
volatile market conditions far its customers in
certain markets. Adjusted operating profits
including joint ventures ware £124.3m, up 25%in
constant currency. Volumes were up 13%, with all
regions contributing. Revenye was 179 higher in
constant currency, primarily due to stronger
breeding stock sates and royalty revenue.

In North America, adjusted operating profits were
flat for the year in constant currency, after

recording 5% growth inthe first half, The closure of |

some processing ptants during the second half, in
response to COVID-19 outbreaks, resultedin a
backlog of pigs awaiting slaughter and a moderate
reductionin customer investment in breeding
herds. Second half adjusted operating profits were

also affected by customer credits in relation to an
historical issue arising from a few contractfarm,
locations. Rovalty revenue saw modest growth |
during the year of 19 and sireline market share also
grew, underpinned by the intreduction of the
Duroc PiC800, which is demonstrating strong
results in customer systems, New damline
customer wins in the year will lead to further
marketshare growth in future periods.

Latin American adjusted operating profits
improved by 23% inconstant currency, with
double digit growthin nearly all countries, Growth
was particularly strong in Brazit during the period,
as 3 result of market share gains assisted by strong
industry exports to China. Royalty revenues and
volumes across the region were up 9%.

Adjusted operating profit in Europe was up by
279 and revenues rose by 29% in constant
currency, Strong market prices helped fund
customer breeding projects and the business
has continued to benefit from its proven steategy
to focus-on key custamers and expand royalty
sales. The highest growth in the period was in
Russia, Spain and Germany, with Russia having
now grown into PIC Eurcpe's largest market, led
by high share in large key accounts. PIC's
partnerships with Hermitage Genetics and
Mallevang continue to add significant value to
PIC's global business. '

Asia's performance improved significantly by
225% in constant currency over the prior year,
primarily due to a sharp increase in customer
breeding projects in China, with positive
conditions in that country as described in the
market section above. n addition, royalty
revenue grew strongly in China {up 168%) and
accounted for 25% of volume there. PIC China

Constant
Actual currency currancy change
2020 9 Change
Yearended 30 June £m Em L] %
Revenue 298.8 2537 18 17
Adjusted operating profitexe IV 1133 911 2 2
Adjusted operating profiting Jv - 124.3 1006 24 25
Adjusted Sperating margin exc JV 37.9% 36.7% Lipts 1.2pts

STRATEGIC REPORT 19

substantially increased multiplication capacity
during the year and also expanded its supply
chain through its joint venture relationship with
New Hope, and a new joint venture initiated with
Shanxi Xin Daxiang Animal Husbandry Co., Ltd.
Theseinvestments will aid further growth in the
future. Adjusted operating profits in franchises
across Asia were up by 43% in constant currency.
However, these growth areas were partially
offset by an adjusted operating profit decline of
76% in the Philippines, due to the outbreak of
ASFin 1H and the impact of CCVID-18in 2H. The
swine industry in many parts of the Philippines
remains unstable.

Qverall, PIC's long-term giobal strategy of
ongoing investments in product supply and
differentiation is generating significant
competitive advantages, enabling Genus PIC to
better serve customers, mitigate global market
risks and support future growth.
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CASE STUDY / GENUS PIC

> Growing our
presence in Europe

Our partnership with Mallevang
is delivering real benefits and we
look forward to further progress
in Europe.

Bill Christianson
Chief Operating Officer, Genus PC
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Our strategic partnership with Mellevang,
one of Denmark’s leading pig breeding
companies, began in 2018. The relationship
has been highly successful, helpingus

to target and support new European
customers for PIC.

in March 2020, PIC announced a strategic
relationship with Otrada, Russia's largest
independent porcine genetics distributor.

The relationship makes Otrada the exclusive
distributor of PIC Mallevang lines in Russia,
Kazakhstan and Belarus. Otrada chose PIC as
its partner based on our demonstrably superior
global genetics programme, the strength of
our genetic and technical services and the
ability to implement a royalty programme that
would turn Qtrada’s customers inta partners.
The first animals using Mellevang semen were
born in August 2020.

PIC’s relationship with Gesing Tierzucht is also
going from strength to strength. Gesing is a
nationwide distributor in Germany, which has
historically been a key market for Danish
genetics. PIC's attractions as a partner to Gesing
included our ability to meet specific customer
needs through our outstanding global genetic
programme, our long-term investrnents in R&D
and our flexible approach to working with

- distribution partners, Since PIC's distribution

agreement with Gesing began in July 2018,
Gesing has doubled its sajes volumes.

"PIC’s genetic and technological leadership as
well as its global scale are a complementary fit
for Otrada’s deep understanding and experience
of the Russian market,” says Patrick Hoffmann,
CEQ and main shareholder of Otrada. “Together,
we can offer our customers access to new PIC
lines with world-class genetic potential and
support them locally in turning this potential
into actual performance.”
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DIVISIONAL REVIEW / GENUS ABS

Partnering with
producers

CREATE
DIFFERENTIATED
AND SUSTAINABLE
PROPRIETARY
GENETIC
SOLUTIONS

> Established our

strongest-ever ling-yp
of industry-leading dairy
genetics, including
record numbers of |con
Sires™, with a strong
pipeline of new sires and
elite females coming
through our genetic
nuclews.

" Continued to strengthen
NuEra Genetics, our
proprietary beef range,
increasing the number
of bulls with high
genetic merit moving
into production.

Grew global sales
volume of sexed
genetics (including
Sexcel, our proprietary
product) by 479,
proprietary NuEra beef
genetics by 58% ang
Beef InFocus (our global
beef-on-dairy brand)
by 21%.

SERVE
PROGRESSIVE
PROTEIN
PRODUCERS
EFFECTIVELY

Increased the number
of customers who work
exclusively with ABS by
taitoring packages of
products and services
to meet the needs of
producers in different
ceuntries.

Continued to build
presence with North
America customers
through our whole-herd
genetic strategy, based
on sexed dairy and beef
genetics. Sales volumes
‘of sexed genetics and
Beef InFocus grew by
42% and 30%
respectively.
Developed digital
platforms as a more
effective and efficient
way of serving small and
medium customersin
Latin America, securing
hundreds of new
customers.

Launched new Beef
InFocus proprietary
indices in North America
and Latin America.

SHARE IN
THE VALUE
DELIVERED

Beganintroducing a
new contractual model
for key account
partners, aligning their
interests with ours
through pricing based
on results achieved
through comprehensive
genetic programmes
developed to meet
their goals.

Continued to validate
the ecanomic benefits
delivered by NuEra Beef
Genetics, demonstrating
significant added value
for players across the
beef supply chain in
head-to-head
competitor trials.

JERRY THOMPSON
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
Genus ABS Beel

Business Priorities

SHORT TERM ST MEDIUMTERM > LONGTERM

Drive further growthin sales  Complete Leeds facility in Secure more compréhensive

of sexed dairy and beef US, with new bull housing genetic programmes with

genetics to dairiesin target to ieverage our leading performance-based pricing

markets around the world product development aligned with customer

and continue to validate programme. goals. DR NATE ZWALD

value created. - CHIEF GPERATING OFFICER
Ganus ABS Dairy

Strategic Progress in 2019/20 MARKET

Both dairy and beef markats have been affected
by government lockdowns around the world, to
manage the COVID-19 pandemic. In Europe,
dairy prices dropped throughout March and
April 2020, although they have started to show
signs of recovery as foodservice channels
recpen. In North America dairy prices also saw
significant volatility, as they fell to around 40%
below the July 2019 peak by May 2020, before
recovering sharply in June. Global volatility is
expected to continue as countries and their
economies continue to react to the aftermath

- of COVID-19 impacts.

Milk production in the U.S., Europe and Australia
was slightly above prior year levels in the first
quarter of 2020, with output across the seasonal
period in New Zealand consistent with the prior
year. Output was down moderately in Brazil,

as currency fluctuations compressed

producer margins.

Despite global economic challenges, the
Chinese Government has encouraged all
Chinese citizens to consume 300g of dairy
products per day, more than triple the current
average consumption. However, the country’s
high inventories of whole milk powder will likely
lead to a decline inimports in the immediate
future. In India, the unregulated dairy sector was
significantly affected by COVID-18, forcing further
consolidation. Growth in liquid mitk has
supported the expansion of packaged dairy
products in the regulated sector,

Inthe U.S., beef processing facilities capacity
were affected by COVID-19 shut-downs,
increasing prices for beef being processed,
but reducing cattle prices. Austratian beef
production saw an overall reduction in supply,
leading to fewer exports and prices that were
stable and then rose moderately through Q2
of 2020. Lower beef production in Brazil was
mirrored by lower demand.
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By providing industry-leading
genetics and services

we help progressive producers
maximise profitability.

In Europe, beef prices have fallen moderately
since the onset of the global pandemic,
underpinned by disruption in trade from export
markets such as Ireland and Poland. By the end
of June 2020, these prices had largely recovered
in line with the prior year as demand of food -
service and retail normalised.

Consolidation within the bovine genetics
segment was less prevatent than in the prior
year but anincreasing number of partnerships
have been develaping between dairy genetic
companies as growing and progressive
profit-focused customers demand access to
elite dairy, beef and sexed semen.

PERFORMANCE

ABS adjusted operating profits increased by
129, with volumes up 8% and revenues up 9%
in constant currency, as customers continued
the shift from conventional to sexed and beef
genetics. Sexed volumes grew by 47%, reflecting
Sexcel’s continued success. Increased use of
beef genetics in dairy herds supported 179
growth in global beef volumes, Globally,
COVID-19 has created dynamic and chatlenging
market conditions for our customers but overall
demand for ABS product has been resilient.
This has been aided by the salesforce focus

on obtaining 100% of customers’ business and
the introduction of new partnership based
contract structures.

In North America, revenue grew by 10%

and adjusted operating profit increased by
12% in constant currency. Previous strategic
investments to streagthen key account
management gained traction, with new
customer wins. Volumes were up by 7%,

gaining market share, and sexed volumes were
up 42% as the high growth of Sexcel continued.
Beef volumes rose 209, supported by
proprietary NuEra genetics selected for
cross-bred beef-an-dairy performance. Embryo
volumes increased slightly, as a new dedicated
IVB laboratory for a key customer account
became fully operational.

Europe achieved volume growth of 886 and -
revenue growth of 29, with adjusted operating
profit flat against prior year in constant currency.
Business conditions in Italy and France were
particularly challenging, as COVID-i9 lockdowns
reduced salesforce mobility and customer
access. Sexed semen volumes grew 42%, with
the UK, Ireland and the European distributor
business seeing the strongest growth. The trend
of dairy customers using sexed genetics,
coupled with beef genetics for a portion of the
herd, led to beef volumes increasing by 109%.

In Latin America, revenues grew by 20% and
adjusted operating profitincreased by 35%in
constant currency, with Brazil and Argentina
particularly strong. In a challenging environment
from COVID-19, Brazil achieved good success
through innovative digital sales campaigns
whilst robust pricing policies and cash collection
in Argentina helped to mitigate the impacts of
inflation and currency devaluation. volumesin
Latin America overall increased by'129h, as
customers embraced digital technologies to

engage and transact with ABS' sales team. Sexed -

volumes in¢reased by 24% and beef volumes by
18%, utilising NuEra genetics, selected for
cross-bred performance of North American
sires with tropical cows. :

Constant
Actual eurrency eurrency change
2020 019 Change
Year ended 30 June £m £m % ®
Revenue 316 2226 T 9
Adjusted operating profit 325 299 9 12
Adjusted operating margin’ -13.7% 13.4% 0.3pts 04pts
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In Asia, adjusted operating profit was up 59%
and volumes by 5%, with trading activity
increasing in China foliowing a period of vertical
integration among customers, as dairy
processors acquired farms. Sexed volumes were
up 989, with India achieving record results up
133% after a new IntelliGen production facility
for the State of Uttar Pradesh started operation,
more than offsetting disruption early inthe

year caused by flooding of the Genus India
Brahma facility. .

Overall, the increasing customer adoption of
Sexcel, along with our leading dairy genetics
portfolio and our NuEra proprietary beef
offering, mean we anticipate continued positive
progress into next year.
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CASE STUDY / GENUS ABS

> Expanding
production to meet
growing customer
demand

We are well positioned to support
rising customer demand for our
elite sexed genetics.

Nate Zwald
Chief Operating Officer; ABS Dairy




(Page 27 of 189)

STRATEGIC REPORT 25

Our sexed semen product Sexcel has been
an outstanding success, with strong and
rapidly growing customer demand.

By June 2019, it became apparent that demand
for Sexcel would soon outstrip the ability of our
IntelliGen business to supply it. IntelliGen guickly
put together a team to address the issue and
developed a comprehensive proposal to
increase capacity.

The plan added new stations to IntelliGen’s
existing facilities and accelerated completion

of the new production facility in Dekorra, USA, |
By bringing in seasoned employees from other
operations and implementing lessons from past
deployments, we halved the time from first
production to full capacity. We also employed.
improved technology and leveraged our supply
chain to deploy advancements as quickly as
possible and with the highest guality. Finally,
we enhanced our existing process through our
focus on relentless improvement, reducing
changeover times between bulls and improving
production methods.

The result was a step change in production
capacity. Between December 2019 and June
2020, we grew cutput by over 559, to effectively
support the next stage of Sexcel’s growth.
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Pioneering
technology for

: ° (?:EEIS-CEI?N"\I'IFF:ICCOEFFI CER AND HEAD OF R&D
protein production ==
Business Priorities

SHORT TERM >  MEDIUM TERM T

Net research and development investment
increased by 179% in constant currency, as Genus
pursued key strategic initiatives to further
strengthen its proprietary differentiated
offerings. The Group will continue to increase

its investment in the following areas: gene

Harness data and advanced
reproductive technology to
produce new health traits

and accelerate genetic gain.

Gain regulatory acceptance
of PRRSv-resistant pigsin
target markets around the
world.

Continue to improve our
proprietary sexing
technology, withemphasis °
on enhancing fertility,
efficiency and accuracy.

Strategic Progress in 2019/20

GENE
EDITING

Produced gene-edited
pigs that demonstrate
resistance to PRRS5v
and made our first
submissions for
regulatery approval {in
China and the U.S.}.
Commenced knowledge
transfer with BCA, our
strategic partners, to
inform their work to
develop PRRSv-resistant
pigs in China.
Expanded our scope of
work with Kansas State
University to explore
whether gene editing
can hetp to combat
other diseases in pigs,
particularly swine
influenza.

Produced live beef
calves from embryos
containing edits
intended to improve
resitience to Bovine
Respiratory Disease,
with testing to come

in FY21.

GENDER
SKEW

> Increased IntelliGen
(sexed semen
technology) production
capacity to help ABS
meet global demand for
Sexcel and introduced
a new microfluidic chip,
to improve the
performance of our
industry-leading
technology.

> Continued to expand
our network of
IntelliGen Technologies
laboratories, which now
number eight owned
and licensed facilities
across four continents,

REPRODUCTIVE
BIOLOGY

> Established a new
programme to
strengthen our current
capabilities and embryo
manipulation
techniques while
developing new
technology, with initial
emphasis on bovinein
vitro fertilization.

PATA
STRATEGY

> Enhanced the
management,
integration and
advanced analytics of
internal and external
scientific data, to
accelerate product
development and
enhance the service we
provide to custamers.

editing, primarily under the PRRSv programme;
genome science and specifically scientific data
capabilities; biosystems engineering; and
reproductive biology where new initiatives are
being taken.

Porcine product development expenditure
increased by 55%, as a result of the incremental
costs of grawing our elite nucleus farm network,
costs to address a disease cutbreak in a Canada
farm and the substantial deterioration of the
North American lean hog market, which
impacted by-product margins compared to the
prior year. The underlying growth was 32%
excluding costs of £4.4m of a non-repetitive
nature. We continue to deliver historically high
rates of genetic improvement, as we focus on
improving technical processes for genomic
evaluation, crossbred performance testing and
expanded elite nucleus populations. The
integration of germplasm from the Maltevang
acquisition continued as planned and the
expansion of our nucleus farm network has
improved access to elite animals across our
global customer base.

Bovine product development expenditure
increased by 29, as Genus continues {o produce
anindustry leading Holstein dairy bull portfolio,
driving strong volume growth in ABS, The De
Novo joint venture is producing more than S0%
of these animals and the strong pipeline of
young bulls and pregnancies will heip sustain
our leadership position. Beef praduct
devetopment further strengthened our portfolio
of proprietary NuEra genetics, by enhancing
genomic evaiuation and increasing testing and
validation to demonstrate differentiated value to
customers. The initial results of commercial fult
cycle trials of NuEra genetics are encouraging.
The NuEra Genetics programme produced more
than 209% of the total global beef units sold.
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We are helping customers to
produce animal protein more
efficiently, profitably and
sustainably
than ever before.

During the period we continued to invest in
IntelliGen technology and expanded our Sexcel
praduction manufacturing capacity to meet
increasing demand and to provide differentiated
genetic offerings globally. We also successfully
brought into production our second external
customer site in India and further expanded the
global IntelliGen footprint, through technology
ticensing with customers and external customer
service. IntelliGen production sites around the
world, both Genus's and customer owned, now
total eight, compared with six in the priar year.

Net gene editing expenditure decreased by 309
in the period, mainly due to netincome of £3.2m
recognised for a milestone payment received
from our Chinese partner, BCA. Excluding BCA

© income, gene editing expenditures grew by 14%
due to investment in the PRRSv resistance
project. We internalised our capability for
producing gene edited animals, to increase
efficiency and timeliness for both the PRRSv
resistance programme and other potential
future projects. We have been working well

with the FDA and completed the first submission

inthe approval process, and initiated
conversations on regulatory and market
acceptance in other key plobal markets. Active
communication and planning with BCA has
meant we have made progress in the initial
steps of working together in China.

Other research and development expenditure
remained in line with the prior year. This
included work on our bioinformatics platform,
genome science, external collaborations and
intellectual property protection in a variety of
discovery areas, We are planning to increase our
investment in discovery areas as well as gene
editing as we move closer towards
commercialisation.

Constant
- Actual currency currency change
2020 2019 Change
Year ended 30 June £m £m % %
Porcine product development 289 " 184 57 55
Bovine product development 20.9 20.0 4 2
Gene editing 5.2 7.3 (29) (30)
Other research and development 10.2 9.0 13 10
Net expenditure in R&D? 652 . 547 . ‘. R o 17"'_ '

1 Excluding prolit attributable to non-controlling Interest.
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CASE STUDY / GENUS R&D

> Progressing the
development
of PRRSv-

resistant pigs

Developing pigs that are resistant
to this devastating disease will
make the Chinese pork industry

- more sustainable.

Dr Elena Rice
Chief Scientific Officer and Head of R&D
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We are applying pround-breaking gene
editing technology to develop pigs resistant
to PRRSv, a devastating and incurable
porcine disease.

in May 2019, we announced a strategic
collabeoration with BCA in China, to research,
develop, register and market PRRSv-resistant
pigs. BCA owns a leading Chinese animal protein
genetics business and has a deep understanding
of the country's porcine sector. Pork is the single
most important source of animal protein for
Chinese people. Obtaining regulatory approval
in China for PRRSv-resistant pigs will help to
create a more sustainable Chinese porkindustry
and enable future imports from other countries
where production and consumption of
PRRSv-resistant pigs may also be approved by
the regulators.

In the last 12 months, we have made substantial
progressin our venture with BCA. This includes
building the team in China and designing and
planning cutting-edge animal production and
laboratory facilities that will enable the research
and testing needed to support the regulatory
approval process in China. We were able to make
significant progress during this initial phase,
even during the COVID-19 outbreak, byusing a
combination of remote information exchange
and the joint efforts of our North American
research and PtC China team to support the BCA
group. In addition, we held initial discussions
with the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs,
to understand the pathway for approval and to
begin dialogue and information sharing.

These exciting developments further support
Genus in our continuing efforts to validate the
technology, achieve regulatory apptoval in
the US and other countries, and gain market
acceptance by the food chain and consumers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Strong performance from

a resilient business

Alison Henriksen

We achieved strong
profit growth,
supporting a significant
increase in R&D
investment,

In the year ended 30 June 2020, Genus achieved
a strong financial performance whilst operating
in unique circumstances during the second half
of the financial year caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

The resilience of cur operations was reflected in
revenue growth of 13% in both constant and actual
currency. Adjusted operating profit growth including
joint ventures was 2296 in constant currency (17%in
actual currency). Notably, this was after a significant
planned increase in RED investrnent of 17% in constant
currency {19% in actual currency to £65.2m) prirnarily
1o fund expansion in our percine nucleus herds.
Excluding gene editing costs, adjusted operating profit
including joint ventures increased by 17% in constant
currency and adjusted profit before tax was up 229%
{16% in actual currency).

On a statutory basis, profit before tax was £51.5m
(2019: £9.9m). The difference between statutory and
adjusted profit before tax principally reflected the
uplift in the non-cash fair value net IAS 41 biological
asset movement versus a decrease last year.

Basic earnings per share on a statutory basis were
€2.4 pence (2019: 12.4 pence).

Genus continues to report adjusted results as
Alternative Performance Méasures [APMS) used by
the Board to monitor underlying performance at a
Group and operating segment level, which are
applied consistently throughout. These APMs should
be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute
for or as superior to statutory measures, For more
information on Genus's APMs, see the Glossary.

The effect of exchange rate movements on the
translation of our overseas profits was to reduce the
Group's adjusted profit before tax for the year by £3.4m
compared with 2019, primarily from weakness in Latin
American currencies. All growth rates quoted are in
constant currency unless otherwise stated. Constant
currency percentage movements are calculated by
restating the results for the year ended 30 June 2020

at the average exchange rates applied to adjusted
aperating profit for the year ended 30 June 2018.

REVENUE

Revenue increased by 13% in both constant and
actuai currencies to £551.4m (2019: £488.5m}. PIC
achieved strong revenue growth of 17%in constant
currency (up 18% in actual currency), underpinnéd
by high breeding stock sales and royalties in China as
customers replenished ASF impacted herds, Our
strategically important royalty revenue was up 119,
with growth in all regions. In ABS, revenue was up 9%
inconstant currency (7% in actual currency), with
growth in all regions. Sexed product revenue growth
of 35% was ahead of our expectations due to
continued strong uptake of Sexcel, our high-fertility
sexed genetics product.
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Adjusted results Statutoryresults
Actual currency Constant Actual currency
currency
2020 2019 Change change 2020 2009 Change
Year ended 30 June £m Em % % (1] £m %
Revenue 5514 488.5 13 13 551.4 488.5 13
Operating profit exc Jvs €5.3 57.7 13 16 471.6 8.7 447
Operating profitinc JVs exc gene editing 81.2 72.2 12 17 nja nfa nfa
Profit before tax 71.0 61.0 16 2 51.5 99 420
Free cash flow 35.2 10.0 252 n/m*
Basic earnings per share {pence) 85.4 732 17 23 62.4 124 403
Dividend per share (pence} 29.1 217 5
1 njrm =net meaningfol
ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT INCLUDING JVS
Constant
currency
Actual currency change
Year ended 30 fune 2020 W9 Change
Adjusted Profit Before Taxt £m £m % %
Genus PIC 124.3 1006 24 25
Genus ABS ns 299 9 12
R&D (65.2) (54.7) (19} (1M
Central costs {15.6) {109) (43) (41)
Adjusted operating profit
incl. Jvs ' 76.0 £4.9 17 22
Net finance costs (5.0} (39 (28) 28 PIC performed very strongly with adjusted operating profit including joint
Adjusted profit befare tax 71.0 61.0 16 2 ventures up 25% in constant currency, benefiting from strong demand in

1 Indudes share of adjusted pre-tax profits of joint ventures and removes share of adjusted profits
of non-controlling interests.

Average Closing
Exchange rates 2020 201{9 2020 2009
Us bollar/t 1.26 129 1.24 127
Euro/f 1.14 113 1.10 1.12
Brazilian Real/f 574 499 6.77 489
Mexican Peso/f 26.08 25.04 28.52 24.40
Chinese Yuan/t 8.89 883 B.75 872
Russian Rouble/t 85.17 8493 88.19 B0.30

Adjusted operating profitincluding joint ventures was £76.0m (2019:
£64.9m), reftecting a high growth rate of 22% in constant currency as
mentioned above. Within this, Genus's share of adjusted joint venture
operating profits was higher at £11.3m (20019 £7.6m), primarily due to
strong results in the PIC Agroceres JV in Brazil and our JVin China. Amounts
attributable to non-controlling interests remained broadly consistent at
£0.6m {2019: £0.4m). Qur gene editing investment, which is primarily .
focused on creating resistance in pigs against the devastating PRRSv
disease, increased £1.1m as planned to £8.4m, however the ngtinvestment
reported is £5.2m (2019: £7.3m) as itincludes recognition of net income of
£3.2m in relation to the first milestone payment received from our BCA
collaboration in China. Excluding our gene editing investment, adjusted
operating profit including joint ventures increased by 17% in constant
currency to £81.2m (2019: £72.2m}, which exceeded our medium-term
objective to,achieve growth of 10%. . .

China, despite volatile conditions for our customers in sorne markets, most
notably the US. Velumes were up 13% (6% excluding China) with all regions
contributing. Brazil had particularly strong growth, whilst Russia has now
grown to become cur largest European market.

ABS also had a strong year with adjusted operating profit increasing 129%,
and volume growth of 8%. Sexcel continued to demonstrate that itis the
sexed product of choice for progressive dairy farmers, driving overall sexed
volume growth of 476%6. Despite the challenging market conditions brought by
the COVID-19 pandemic, strong adjusted operating profit growth was
achieved in all regions except Europe. Latin America benefited from
innovative digital sales campaigns and in Asia growth was notable in India
where aur IntelliGen third party production facilities are performing strongly.

Central costs increased by 419 in constant currency reflecting recruitment

. Gosts associated with key board and leadership positions, a fall in the value

of a listed investment, and increased bonuses following the strong financiat
performance in the year ended 30 June 2020, The majority of the increase
in central costs is not expected to recur annually.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The table below reconciles adjusted profit before tax to statutory profit
before tax:

2020 018
£m fm

Adjusted Profit Before Tax 71.0 61.0
Operating profit attributabie to non-controlling
interest 0.6 0.4
Net JAS 41 valuation movement on biological
assetsin JVs and associates (0.1) 1.1
Tax on JVs and associates {2.3) {1.4)
Adjusting items:
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical
assets 15.8 (14.7)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets {8.5) (95
Share-based payment expense (5.8} {300
Exceptional items (19.2} (218
Statutory Profit Before Tax 515 99

Our statutory profit before tax was £51.5m (2019: £8.9m), reflecting the
increase in the underlying trading performance and the upliftin the
non-cash fair value net 1AS 41 biological asset mavement. Within this, there
was a £13.2m uplift (2019: £1.9m reduction} in porcine biological assets and
3 £2.6m uplift {2019: £12.8m reduction) in bovine biological assets, due to
certain fair value mode! estimate charges. Share-based payment expense
was £5.8m (2019: £3.0m). These reconciling items tend to be non-cash, can
be volatile and do not correlate to the underlying trading performance in
the period.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

There was a £19.2m net exceptional expense in the year (2019: £21 8m
expense), which included a charge of £16.4m (2019: £5.0m) reflecting legal
fees of £5.6m (2019; £5.0m) and £10.8m for damages and costs in relation
to Genus ABS's litigation with STGenetics {'ST). A provision of £10.5m has
been recognised in the year ended 30 June 2020 in respect of these
damages, see note 3 to the financial statements for more details. Also
included are charges of £2.1m (2019: £0.7m) in relation to acquisition
activities and other items which include £0.8m of fees relating to cur
strategic porcine collaboration in China with BCA and an insurance receipt
from a legacy environmental claim. 1n the prior year the majority of the
exceptional expense was a net charge of £15.2m in respect of legacy
pension schemes related to GMP equalisation.

NET FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs of £5.0m (2019; £3.9m), included £2.9m (2019: £3.3m) of
interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts. This was favourable to the
prior year due to lower average borrowing levels as the share placementin
the previous year tock place mid-way through that year. Interest rates were
broadly comparable at 2.56% {2019: 2.50%). Pension interest was also
lower in the year at £0.4m (2019: £0.9m) due to the decreased pension
deficit at 30 June 2019,

These gains were outweighed by £1.0m of interest payable on leases mainly
as aresult of the impact of IFRS 16 adoption and £0.5m in relation to the
discounting on the Group’s put options over the equity of De Novo and PiC
Italia, which were originally recognised as financial liabiities on a present
value basis.

TAXATION

The tax charge on adjusted profits for the period is £15.6m (2019: £14.8m),
which represents an adjusted effective tax rate of 22.09 (2019: 24.3%). The
decrease in the rate from griar year reflects a greater weighting of profit
from China benefiting from an effective tax rate {ETR"}) of 11.7%, which
reduced the Group ETR from prior year by ¢3%. The adjusted effective tax
rate of 22.09% is greater than the underlying UK tax rate of 19% mainly due
to the application of higher overseas tax rates which uplifts the Group tax
rate by 2.9%, net of the benefit from operations in China and also due to
higher withholding taxes incurred when dividends ase remitted between
group companies and higher provision of deferred tax on undistributed
earnings. The current year adjusted tax rate also benefits by 1.7% from
changes in tax rates during the period reflected in the revaluation of the
UK deferred tax assets. The outlook for the Group ETR is in the range of
23%-249 consistent with the current year excluding this one-off change
of rate benefit. ’

The tax charge for the period of £12.9m on the statutory profit {2019: £4.6m)
represents an effective tax rate of 24.0% (2019: 40.7%). The high statutory
tax charge in the previcus period was a consequence of the exceptional UK
pension expense relating to Guaranteed Minimum Pension equalisation
and the IAS 4] fair value expense which reguced statutory profitin the prior
pericd by c£30m, increasing the effective charge for fixed items such as
withholding tax expenses as a percentage (12%) of the remaining profit.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Adjusted basic earnings per share increased by 17% (23% in constant
currency) to 85.4 pence (2019: 73.2 pence) as a result of the strong trading
performance and lower tax rate. Basic earnings per share on a statutory
basis were 62.4 pence (2019: 12.4 pence), reflecting the strong trading
performance and an uplift in the non-cash fair value net 1AS 41 biological
asset movement.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Afeature of the Group's net assets is its substantial investment in biological
assets, which under IAS 41 are stated at fair value. At 30 June 2020 the
carrying value of biclogical assets was £370.2m (2019: £346.2m restated), as
set outin the table below:

{Restated)
2020 M9
Em £m
Non-curent assets 201 2871
Current assets 35.8 40.1
Inventory 20.3 190
370.2 346.2

Represented by:
Porcine 242.7 2285
Dairy and beef 127.5 1177
370.2 3462

The balance sheet comparatives for the years ended 30 June 2019 and

30 June 2018 have bean restated by £20.5m to update an input used in

the valuation of our porcine biclogical assets that was not in line with
operational data. There has been no effect on the Group Income Statement
or the Group Statement of Cash Flows. Further information is provided

in note 2 to the financial statements.

The movement in the overall balance sheet carrying value of biological

assets of £24.0m includes the effect of exchange rate translation increases

of £5.4m. Excluding the translation effect there was:

> af9.3mincreasein the carrying value of porcine biological assets,
due principally to anincrease in the pure-line valuation (driven by an
increase in the percentage of animals going for breeding sales and
a reduction in the Pure line risk adjusted discount rate); and

> af%3mincrease inthe bovine biological assets carrying value,
primarily dye to current estimates of projected sales volumes.

The historical cost of these assets, less depreciatian, was £57.5m at 30 June
2020 (2019: £58.2m), which is the basis used for the adjusted results, The
historical cost depreciation of these assets included in adjusted results
was £11.0m (2019: £9.4m).
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group's retirement benefit obligations at 30 June 2020 were £18.1m
(2019: £24.2m) before tax and £14.6m (2019: £19.8m) net of related deferred
tax. The largest element of this liability relates to the multi-employer Milk
Pension Fund, which we account for on the basis of Genus being
responsible for 86% of the scheme {2019: 86%).

During the year, contributions payable in respect of the Group’s defined
benefit schemes amounted to £8.4m (2019: £7.6m).

Despite the impact of COVID-19 on asset valuations and lower bond yields
during the year, robust investment strategies for our two main defined
benefit obligation schemes have limited the current financial impact. Both
the Dalgety Pension Fund {'DPF’} and our share of the Milk Pension fund
("MPF’) reported I1AS 19 surpluses, prior to any IFRIC 14 amendments.

CASHFLOW

Cash generated by operations of £82.9m (2019: £48.4m) represented cash
cenversion of 12796 (2019: 84%) of adjusted operating profit excluding joint
ventures, or 115% excluding the impact of adopting IFRS 16, The strong
conversion of adjusted operating profit to cash is aligned to our medium
term objective tc achieve conversion of at least 90%. The increase was
primarily due to the strong trading performance and a continued fogus
onworking capital management.

Capital expenditure cash Flows of £35.4m (2019: £28.3m) included higher
IntelliGen capital expenditure for the new production locations in
wisconsin as well asinvestment in state-of-the-art new bull housing

and in Genus Cne, a single global enterprise system, where the rolloutis
progressing well. Cash inflows from joint ventures were higher at £3.7m
(2019: £3.4m). ARer interest and tax paid, total free cash flow was £35.2m
(2019; £10.0m),

The cash outflow from investments was £0.1m (2019: £22.7m), with deferred
consideration payments being offset by net return of capital from one of our
Chinese joint ventures {Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Technology Co. Ltd).

The net cash inflow alter investments and dividends was £16.9m (2019:
£37.0m) with the prior year benefiting fram a 5% equity placement of 3.1m
shares which raised proceeds of £66.5m net of fees to provide flexibility to
pursue future growth opportunities.

2020 2019

Cash flow {before debt repayments} £m £m
_ Cash generated by operations ) 82.9 43.4
Interest and tax paid {111} (15.0)
Capitatexpenditure {35.4) (28.3)
Cash received from JVs 37 34
Other : 11 15
Free cashflow 35.2 100
Acquisitions and investments {0.1) (227)
Dividends ' {18.3) (16.8)
Share placement . 0.1 66.5
Net cash flow (before debt repayments) 16.9 70

NET DEBT AND NEW CREDIT FACILITY
Netdebt increased to £102.6m at 30 June 2020 (2019: £79.6m), primarily due
to the £24.7m impact of adopting IFRS 16

At the end of Jline 2020 there was substantial headroom of £125.4m under
the Group's credit Facilities of £228m, Of the Group's facilities as at 30 June
2020, £47m was due to expire in February 2021, with the remainder expiring
in February 2022,
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A new and enlarged credit facility agreement with a syndicate of eight
banks was signed post year end on 24 August 2020. The new facility
consists of 3 £150m multi-currency RCF, a USD125m RCF and a USD20m
bond and guarantee facility. The term of the new facility is for three years
with an option to extend the maturity date before the first and second
anniversaries of the signing date for a further year. The facility also includes
an uncomitted £100m accerdion optien which can be requested on a
maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the
Group's business development plans.

The Group's financial position and borrowing ratios remain very strong.
with sufficient cash flows available to fund internal investments and debt
finance available to pursue external acquisition opportunities. At the end
of June 2020 interest cover was at 32 times (2019: 34 times). EBITDA, as
calculated under our financing facilities includes cash received from joint
ventures and historical cost depreciation of biological assets. The ratio of
net debt to EBITDA on this basis improved {0 0.9 times (2019: 1.0 times) with
both lower net debt on a frozen GAAP basis and an increased ESITDA. This
tevel of leverage is just below our medium term objective of having a ratio
of net debt to EBITDA of between 1.0-2.0 times.

The Group has adopted the IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ standard from 1 July 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach and has recognised the cumulative
effect of applying IFRS 16 at the 1 July 2019 transitional date and the prior
period will not be restated.

The impact on the opening balance sheet as at 1 July 2019 was to recognise
aright of use asset and corresponding lease liability of £26.6m. Profit
before tax has not changed materially, however operating profitin £Y20 has
increased by £0.7m {due to the depreciation expense being lower than the
operating lease expense it replaces) offset by increased finance chargeson
the higher liability. IFRS 16 also requires a reclassification of cash outflow
from operations of £7.6m to net cash used in financing activities, however
the overall impact to the Group is cash flow neutral, )

RETURN ON ADJUSTED INVESTED CAPITAL

We measure the Group's return on adjusted invested capital on the basis of
adjusted operating profitincluding joint ventures after tax, divided by the
operating net assets of the business, stated on the basis of historical cost,
excluding net debt and pension liability. This removes the impact of IAS 41 fair
value accounting, the related deferred tax and goodwill. The return on adjusted
invested capital was higher at 21.0% after tax (2019: 18 9%), reflecting the
strong profit growth and lower tax rate, partially offset by an increased asset
base from the right of use asset adjustment under IFRS 16 mentioned above.
Excluding the impact of IFRS 16 adoption the return on adjusted invested
capital would have been 22.8%.

DIVIDEND .

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 19.7 pence per ordinary
share, an increase of 5% over the prior year final dividend. When combined
with the interim dividend increase of 69, this will result in 2 totai dividend
for the year of 29.1 pence per ordinary share, an increase of 5% for the year.
Dividend cover from adjusted earnings remains strong at 2.9 times (2019:
2.6 times) and is in line with our Board's intention to maintain a progressive
dividend within a target adjusted earnings cover range of 2.5-3.0 times.

Itis proposed that the final dividend wiil be paid on 11 December 2620 to the
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 20 November 2020,

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
7 September 2020
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Attracting and
retaining top talent

Angelle Rosata
GROUP HR DIRECTOR

Having the right people, working in a positive
#nd supportive culture, is key to success.

ADIVERSE AND DEDICATED TEAM

We employ more than 3,100 people in 25 countries, We are
anincreasingly diverse team, united by commitment to our
Company vision and core values.

We nurture a positive and inciusive culture, built on mutual
respect and equal opportunity. This is underpinned by our
five core values, which inform behaviours expected of all
Genus employees. Our performance management process
explores what employees contribute and how they have
done so, to ensure alignment with our values.

We have made further progress on enhancing diversity.

For example, our Women's Leadership Forum has evolved
intG a global, employee-led group called AWAKE (Advancing
Women's Advocacy, Knowledge and Empowerment). This

is developing initiatives that help female employees to
network, mentor each other and participate in professional
development programmes.

A CLEAR FRAMEWORK

We have completed a global job framework, in collaboration
with leaders and managers across the Company. This
Eroups similar jobs and skills, helping us to map how they fit
together and identify potential development paths within
roles and through the business. The {ramework brings
benefit in many areas, from talent development to
succession planning, and is helping us enhance worklorce
sustainability.

ATTRACTING AND DEVELOPING TALENT

We have continued to attract new talent to strengthen our
capabilities in areas of strategic importance to the business.
We have also redeployed talent where needed, for example
in Asia, where our Global HR Director for PIC undertook an
assignment in China, helping us to recruit new |oca!
leadership talent.

In parallel, we have continued to invest in developing
existing employees. For example, we now offer four bespoke
programmes for people managers, praviding training and
support at different career stages. We have also established
2 global Genws CEQ Scholarship, which offers funding for a
part-time, Master's-level business programma. The quality
of this year's applicants was so high that we made two
awards, to colleagues in the UK and Russia.

More widely, we have invested in a new learning
management system to give all employees access to
multi-media and multi-lingual content, at any time,
on multiple devices. -

ENGAGING EMPLOYEES

In Novemnber 2019, we ran our third global engagement
survey, Your Voice, to seek employee views on working at
Genus and ideas for improvernent. We explain more in the
case study overleal. This showed a further improvement in
the already high levels of engagement at Genus.

Among other engagement initiatives, our two non-executive
waorkforce engagement directors - Lesley Knox and Lykele
van der Broek - held breakfast discussions with employees
atsites in the UK and the U.S. These involved open
conversations about the company, working practices and
future plans. The feedback received gave Board members
valuable insight into employee views and Company culture.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The health and safety of our employees is paramount and
we haveintroduced a range of measures to help protect
them from the spread of coronavirus (COVID-19). These have
included social distancing measures, personal hygiene
protocols, the provision of relevant personal protective
equipment {'PPE’) by role, staggered work and break times
at our facilities and remote working from home wherever
possible.

More widely, we continue to improve health and safety in
other areas. During the year, we reduced recordable injuries
by 5% and reduced vehicte incident rates by 59, in line with
our aim of enhancing the quality of hazard identification

in some of our higher risk areas.

GLOBAL POLICIES .

We publish and regutarly review a comprehensive set of
policies for our global employees, which range from our
Anti-Harassment and Diversity and Inclusion palicy to
avariety of health and safety policies. These cover the
complete life cycle of an employee’s time at Genus, ensuring
alt our pecple are treated consistently and equitably.

We support the policies with training where needed

and evaluation indicates they are being implemented
consistently. There are many ways inwhich employees can
raise any concerns, including a formal grievance procedure,
Any concerns reported are immediately referred to the
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary. They are
investigated and discussed with the Group HR Director,
Head of Risk Management and Internal Audit and the
Company’s Audit & Risk Committee. This process is regularly
reviewed as part of our annual Audit & Risk Committee
activity. There were no issues reported during the year,

ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTICN

Qur Anti-Bribery and Corruption policy, which is available to
employees on the Company's intranet site, explains how we
act professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business
dealings. All employees undertake mandatory annual
training on this policy and must achieve 100% in a
post-training test.
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The training is supported by our Whistleblowing
policy, which allows employees to ancnymously
report any concerns about unethical behaviour
and explains the process for doing 50. Any
concerns are immediately investigated through
the same procedure outlined above. There were
no issues reported during the year.

HUMAN RIGHTS

Genus is committed to respecting the human
rights of workers throughout our value chain
and the local communities in which we operate.
We aim to ensure that anyone who might be
affected by Genus can enjoy the human rights
described in the International Bill of Human
Rights and the ILO Declaration on Fundamental
Principles and Rights at Work.

We monitor this through the same process used
for the policies outlined earlier and there were
no issues identified during the year,
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OUR VALUES

> Customer Centric .

We are one team, dedicated to helpin
customers thrive, We anticipate theirneeds
and help them seize opportunities, acting as
partners to improve quality, efficiency and
output. if we're not adding value for our
customers, we stop and think again.

> Results Driven

We are proactive, determined to be the bestwe
can be and to exceed expectations. We redefine
standards for curselves, ourcustomers and
aurindustry, Every one of us takes pridein
delivering the highest level of performance.

If something can be improved, we find a simpler,
betterwaytodao it. '

> Pioneering

we are aninnovative, forward-thinking company.
We have the courage and confidence to explore
new ideas and the energy and enthusiasm to
deliver them, We are creative, tenacious and
resourceful in every area of our work.

> People Focused

We are a business rooted in science but built
around our people. We inspire, challenge and
suppart everyone to perform, develop and
grow. We treat others with respect and we
invite views and feedback to help us improve,

> Responsible

We are ethical to our core. We feel a deep sense
of responsibility to our customers, colleagues,
animals, communities and shareholders. We
are honest, reliable and trustworthy. We mean
what we say and do what we say.
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Your Voice survey

Our global engagement survey, Your

Voice, enables employees to give their
views of working at Genus and ideas

for improvement. The latest survey, in
November 2019, attracted a record number
of responses and gave us valuable insight
that has informaed practical action plans.

Nearly 80% of our workforce gave us views, with
improved overall results on an already strong,
base. There was positive feedback on areas such
as our strategic direction, Company culture-and
management effectiveness. We also identified
areas for improvement, including learning &
development, and reward & recognition.

Each of our business units and functions
examined feedback from its employees and
developed an action plan to address prigarities,
gaining input and ideas from employees as

they did so. Members of the Genus Executive
Leadership Team {'GELT') have taken ownership
of the plan for their business/tunction. Thisis
reflected in their annual performance objectives
and cascaded through local leadership teams.

GELT also identified two consistent themes -
development of people managers and reward
& recognition practices - and we are focusing
on these across the Company.

All action plans are now being implemented
and GELT is regularly reviewing progress.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Pursuing our

Purpose

Sustainability lies at the heart of our

business. it informs our vision of pioneering

animal genetic improvement to help nourish

the world and infuses the core values that
.shape our work, every day.

Inspired and guided by our purpose, we take
along-term view that balances pursuit of
commercial interests with a commitment to

- make a positive contribution to the world
arpund us: We care for employees, contribute to’
our communities, respect the environment and
protect animal well-being We also ensure we
are a well-run and profitable business, enabling
us to meet commitments to shareholders while
continuing {o invest in areas of importance
to other stakeholders (ranging from health
& safety to climate thange mitigatian),

Environmental sustainability is particularly
relevant to our operations and our genetic
improvement work. We help farmers produce
meat and milk more efficiently and sustainably,

INSTALLATION OF NEW ANIMAL HOUSING
AND SOLAR PANELS AT DEKORRA
ANIMAL WELFARE AND ENVIRONMENT

As part of a long term plan to increase
production capacity in North America, ABS
has commenced construction of new animal
housing facilities at iocations in Dekarra and
Leeds; Wisconsin. Utilising the latest building
technigues the facilities are being built to
_house, clean, bed, feed and collect bulls in a low
stress environment. Following the successful
roll out of a 4GkW solar array at Dekorrain
2018, furtherinvestment has been approved
for the construction of new solar panel
systems af these sites which, when completed,
aim to generate electricity equivalent to
100% of the sites’ current power usage,

increasing the availability of high-quality,
affordable animal protein around the world.
As a result of bovine and porcine genetic
improvement, our customers use far less
land, water and other natural resources

to produce more milk or meat than they

did some decades ago. We are therefore
helping to reduce the impact agriculture has
on the environment and we will continue

to accelerate our genetic improvement
programmes as we aim to lead the market
in sustainable animal protein production.

In parallel, we wiil continue to reduce the
environmental impact of our own operations,
guided by our Climate Change Policy. This
policy, which is available on the Company's
website, commits us to @ 25% reduction

in greenhouse gas (GRG') emissions by

2030 and becomipg a net-zero emissions
business by 2050. We will use the primary
intensity ratio to report emission reductions,
and we have a range of practical activities
already underway to help us achieve this.

COMMUNITY RESPONSE TO INDIA FLOGDS
COMMUNITY

In August, severe flocding affected the region

of Maharashtra, including at our Brahma
production facility, displacing more than 1.5
million people. The Genus team and its partners
worked tirelessly to evacuate people and
animals from the facility, and also recovered
relief materials {including medicine, dry food,

- utensils and toiletries) and shared them with

the neighbouring village to help with the
rescue operation. ABS India helped a number
of families to re-build homes swept away in
the floods and provided replacement school
supplies for 300 students. Genus thensetup

a relief fund to support the local community,
matching 1009 of employee donations.
Combined contributions to the relief effort
from the wider Genus family totalled $52,000.

We fulfil our commitment by challenging
ourselves and those around us to think
differently. From small improvements

in working practices to innovations )
that address stakeholder needs, we
constantly develop and explore new
ideas for enhancing our contribution and
delivering positive, sustainable change.

We transiate our boid thinking into policies
and practices that underpin our operations
around the world. From core principleson
protecting animal well-being to guidelines
on supporting community Causes, we
articulate expectations, provide information
and deliver training where needed to ingrain
responsible business practices across our
organisation and the people we work with,

We set and continually monitar progress using
key performance indicators (see pages 16to 17}.
We also ensure employees have multiple routes
to raise any concerns {including the independent
whistleblowing hotline explained earlier). No
material issues were reported during the year.

VEHICLE TELEMATICS
OPERATE SAFELY

We have been partnered with Lightfoot inthe

UK for over a year as our focus on safer and

more sustainable driving continues, Lightfoot
uses advanced, real-time engine analytics to
provide five, in-cab coaching to help drivers
improve both efficiency and safety.- this year

we have seen a drop in the severity of road
accidents and now have a greater understanding
of driver behaviour through improved data.

FY20 also saw the introduction of a new First
Notice of Loss (FNOL'} service which sends
notifications to fleet management within
minutes of an incident with the necessary details -
needed to provide effective and timely response.
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Sustaina bility Our sustainability framework touches all aspects
. of our supply chain.
FOOD QUALITY, ANIMAL WELL-BEING ENVIRONMENT RESPONSIBLE COMMUNITY
TRACEABILITY Continuously improving Reducing the EMPLOYER OF CHOICE Proactively engage
& SECURITY animal well-being environmental impact Seek to ensure a safe in communities where

Advancing genetic
improvement in food-

across our businesses
worldwide.

of protein production.

and inclusive working
environment for cur

Genus operates,

producing animals,
through technology
and innovation.

CUSTOMERS AND
CONSUMERS
We deliver genetic
improvement
ta benefit customers,
by disseminating
the genes rapidly

SUPPLY CHAIN
We are rooted in
the communities we
work in, operating to globat
health and safety standards
for our staff and global animal
well-being standards

colleagues.

R&LD AND INNOVATION
Cur scientists use
leading-edge research
and analysis to drive

genetic improvement
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
Wereplicate
desirable traits through
our breeding programmes,
delivering benefits for
animal well-being, custorner
productivity and sustainable
HOW protein production
SUSTAINABILITY
TOUCHES OUR
SUPPLY CHAIN

PRODUCT VALIDATION
We evaluate and validate
our genetics in customer

operations, seeking to

deliver the next generation
of genetic improvement
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

Progressing our
sustainability strategy

Our Sustainahility Committee

contains experts from around our
global Company. The Committee
sets our sustainability strategy,
articulates annual objectives and

monitors progress.

Our progress with our sustainability strategy,

including key performance indicators where
relevant, is summarised opposite,

For more information on our work,
progress and Sustainability Committee,
please visit our dedicated website:
www.genusplc.com/fresponsibility.

What wedo

Highlightsin the year

What we plan to do next

FOOD QUALITY,
TRACEABILITY AND
SECURITY
Advancing genetic
improvement in
food-producing
animals, through
technology and
innovation

> Drove further genetic
improvement in both porcine
and bovine species

> Continued our work to
combat PRRSv in pigs and
signed a major collaboration
agreementin China

> Increased the availability of
Sexcel in target markets
around the world

> Continue driving porcine and bovine
genetic improvement and rapidly
disseminate the genetics to customers
globally )

> Continue responsible development of
gene editing technology, to 2id disease
resistance and animal well-being

> Explore oppeortunities for technology
partnerships to enhance traceability of
Genus genetics

ANIMAL WELL-BEING
Continuously improve
animal wellbeing
practices across our
business worldwide

» Continued to investin PIC and
ABS animal housing facilities

> Continued aligning standard
operating procedures across
the PIC supply chain

> Maintained our focus on
reducing bovine stress, o
improve maternal health

> Ensure employees with animal care
responsibilities are routinely trained on
current animal care standards

> Continue investement in animal housing
facilities

> Keep reviewing and updating animat
care standards and pperating
procedures, to maintain alignment with
best practice

ENVIRONMENT
Reducethe
environmental
impact of protein
production

> Audited 87.4% of PIC-owned
production sites

> Improved feed efficiency by
0.045 kg of feed per kg of pork

> Approved Climate Change
Policy

» Increase porcine genetic improvement
index by 19 points .

> Continue to select beef genetics that
improve feed efficiency and reduce
greenhouse gas ('GHG') emissions

> Launch envirgnmental sustainability
initiatives across the Company
consistent with Climate Change Policy
targets for GHG emission reductions

> £xecute and explore opportunities for
wider deployment of renewable energy
solutions across ABS and PIC sites

> Work to address slurry and manure
management challenges by exploring
technological innovations

> Conductenvironmental audits of
material facilities

> Maintain scope and measures of PIC
audits on owned production, including
80% of owned sites

RESPONSIBLE
EMPLOYER OF
CHOICE

Seek to ensure a safe
and inclusive working
environment for our
colleagues

» Vehicle incident rates fell
by 5% ‘

» Recordable incidenis dropped
by 5%

> Reduce occupational road risk
> Reduce recordable injury frequency
rate!

1 Recordable tnjury Frequency: the number of work
related Incidents that result In injury or Hiness, ifplk
arregqulre it other than first aid,

COMMUNITY
Proactively engage in

communities where
Genus operates

> Recruited 103 staff into our PIC
and ABS production sites

> Enhanced our range of
placement and employment
opportunities for students
and apprentices

> Continue to respond to local community
crises, recruitinto local farms and -
encourage support for charities close to
the lotal businesses and aligned with
_our mission
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Greenhouse Gas (‘GHG’) Reporting

In November 2019 the Board approved a Group
Climate Change Policy which, among ather
things, acknowledges the reality of climate
change and recognises the lasting negative
impact it will have on our business and our
communities. We support the outcomes of the
Paris Agreement and the long-term goal to limit
the global average temperature fiseto 1.5°C.
Genus has committed ta take action on climate
change in 2 number of ways, including:
> Driving porcine and bovine genetic
improvements which support productivity
gains and improve feed efficiency, enabling
a reduction in the praduction of GHG
emissions per unit of milk or meat produced;
> Reduting the carbon foatprint of cur own
operations through developing a better
understanding of how energy is used in our
business, We are committed to the
sustainable development of new facilities and
are evaluating the use of renewable power
solutions on a number of our farms; and
> Partner and advocate for policies that
advance positive climate goals and identified
United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals ('SDGs’).

The Group's GHG emissions have been reported
since 2013 in line with the requirements of The
Companies Act 2006.

OUR REPORTING APPROACH

During the year we have worked to refine our
methods to measure GHG emissions and
develop a Tier 2 FY19 emission baseline {FY19
Baseline). The FY19 Baseline will be used to
measure future improvements. The Tier 2
mathodology analyses lecational animal
management and transport in more detail
than the Tier 1 analysis previously used.

We are committed to reducing GHG emissions
inour operations and will use the 'primary
intensity ratio’ to report emission reductions. We
aim to reduce the primary intensity ratio by 25%
by 2030. As an organisation, we also aim to have
net zero GHG emissions by 2050. This means that
even as our business grows, we are seeking to
ensure that our GHG emissions shrink.

We use operational control as our reporting
approach, We have determined and reported
the emissions we are responsible for within this
boundary and believe there are no material
omissions. As part of the review of Tier 2
methodology we now inciude our share of joint
venture emissions and omit some livestock held
by third parties, due to our limited authority to
introduce and implement operating policies.

GHG EMISSIONS REPORTING OUTCOMES
Our GHG emissions are primarily imethane
produced by our animals, carbon dioxide from
consuming fuel and other materials, and from
transport.

Our total GHG emissions decreased by 0.1%
driven by small decreases in Scope 2 and 3
emissions, offset by increases in animal
emissions {driven by an increase in animal
numbers and weight per animal).

Qur primary intensity ratio decreased by 3.7%
due to changes in the mix between porcine and
bovine and change in the mix of animal weights.
This measure is largely unaffected by the impact
aof COVID-19.

The impact of the change in methodology and
adoption of revised IPCC factors on the 2019
emissions is as follows:.

Tonnesol LOye

As reported FY19 95,655 ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Tier 2 changes

IPCC changes to emission

World Resources Institute/World Business
Council for Sustainable Development. The
Greenhouse Gos Protocel: A Corporate Accounting

41

calculation methadology 7,840 ond Reporting Stondard”
Veh'd‘? emissians Lt DEFRA ‘Guidonce on how to measure and report
Inclusion of share of Jvs 8,106 your greenhouse gas emissions’
Slurry and P . L
R 3
manure analysis B.441 DEFRA ‘Environmentel Reporting Guidelines:

FY19 restated Tier 2 emissions 121,819 reporting guidance’

EMISSIONS FACTOR DATA SOURCE
\PCC ‘Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas

Inventories’

including mandatery greenhouse gos emissions

DEFRA/DECC ‘Conversion Factors for Compony

Reporting’
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

Climate Change Policy and

Greenhouse Gas (‘GHG’) Reporting continued

ENERGY EFFICIENCY

We continually invest in improving energy
efficiency and are focused on driving cperational
change to reduce energy consumption. Our
Sustainability Committee has developed a road
map which included energy conservation and
reduction and has commitment at an Executive
level. Over the course of the last year we have
invested in energy efficiency and generation
technologies. These capital schemes include
investment in renewable energy generation
schemes, replacing coal fired boilers in China,
and improving energy efficiency measures in our
UK offices with improved contrals to reduce
energy use, We use our half hourly meter data,

. regular internal communication and '
performance reporting to understand energy
efficiency and drive behaviour, minimise waste
and identify oppartunities. We are building
online learning for 2!l staff to understand the
importance of sustainability. We are pifoting 1he
use of electric vehicles in our fleet, along with
dedicated site charging points.

GENUS PLC ENERGY DATA

In line with the latest government energy

and carbon reporting requirements, further
information on our energy cansumption for
the last two years across Genus plcis set out
opposite. This is sourced from data for the
carbon data reported in this section and is
tracked internally on a quarterly basis. All data
is collected from metered data for electricity.
Biogas combustion information is calculated
using assumptions based on records in China
and Brazil. Fuel use is reported based on
financial records of fuel purchased. We have
applied assumnptions on standard calorific
values to convert alf liquid and gas fuel types -
to @ comman engrgy metric (kwh) and data is
reported for the period 1 July 2019 to 30th
June 2020. :

7019
1018 {restated} % change

Emissions fram © Tonnesof (O« TonnesolCO.e
Scope 1 - combustion of fuel, own transport and livestock

emissions 98,740 92,896 63
Scope 2 - purchased electricity, steam, heat and cooling 6,812 7.439 8.4)
Total Scopeland 2 105,552 100,335 52
Scope 3 - material usage and waste, third party distribution

and business travel 16,123 21,485 {25.0)
Total emissions 121,675 121,819 {0.1)
Primary intensity measure - animal weight {tonne) 10,481 9,591 93
Secaendary intensity measure - Turnover {Em) 551.4 488.5 128
Primary intensity ratio - Scope 1 and 2

{tCO,eftonne animal weight) 10.07 10.46 (3.7
Secendary intensity ratio - Scope1,2and 3

{tCO,e/turnover) 221 249 (11.2)

Annual emissions figures have been calculated based on actual nipe-month data for July to March for travel and distribution and

ten-month data for July 1o April, with both extrapolated to full year,

Energy Type Source Units (kwh} 2020 2019
Eiectri:iiy Electricity imported kwh 20,156,010 17,595,380

Electricity Generated from

Renewable Sources and Used on Site kwh 683,000 620,000

Electricity Generated from

Renewables Sources and Exported kwh 13,000 0
Gas Fuels Gas Imported from the Grid kwh 9,617,802 4.4%1,962
Liquid Fuels Fuel used by Plant {gas oil and diesel} kwh 18,268,089 15,003,380
Total Total Energy Used (i.e. Annual

quantity of energy consumed from

activities for which the Company is

responsible, including combustion of

fuel and operation of facilities) kwh 48,724,901 40,714,722

Total Energy Imported (i.e. Annual

quantity of energy consumed

resulting from the purchase of

electricity and gas. No imparts of

heat, steam or cooling) kwh 29,773,812 22,091,342

Proportion of energy use (UK} kwh 1,142,815 1,264,280

Proportion of energy use (RoW) kwh 47,582,086 39450442




(Page 44

of 189)

STRATEGIC REPORT .= 43

NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

The table below, and the informationit refers to, is intended to help stakeholders understand our position on key non-financial matters in line with the
non-financial reporting requirements contained in Sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006.

Reporting Policies and standards Rizsk management and

requirement which govern our spproach additional information

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS Sustainability Framework See page 40

EMPLOYEES Global Employee Handbook; Seepages 34035
Whistleblower Policy

HUMAN RIGHTS Global Employee Randbook; Seepage 35 ;
Whistleblower Policy 1

SOCIAL MATTERS Charitable Donations Policy See page 40

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND ANTI-BRIBERY Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy Seepage 34

POLICY EMBEDDING, DUE DILIGENCE AND OUTCOMES

Global Employee Handbook See Strategic Report on pages 1 to 47

DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND IMPACT OF N/A See Principal Risks and Uncertainties

BUSINESS ACTIVITY On pages 44 to 46

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS MODEL N/A See Business Model on pages 10to 11 ‘
NON-FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS Sustainability Framework See page 40

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 1741} of the Companies Act 2006

impases a general duty on every company

director to act, in good faith, in the way they

consider would be most likely to promote the

success of the company far the benefitof its

shareholders. In doing $o, directors must take

into account a list of factors that inciude:

> the likely long-term consequences of Board
decisions;

> how the Company's actions and behaviours
affect customers, employees, suppliers, the
community and the environment;

> the desirability of maintaining a reputation
for high standards of business conduct; and

> the need to act fairly between shareholders.

This statement explains how the Board complies
with its obligations under section 172.

MANAGING OUR STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIPS

Ta effectively consider the impact of
decisions on our stakeholders, we must have
a good understanding of their needs and
issues. We therefore actively listen to our
stakeholders at all levels of the organisation,
1o ensure we take account of and respond

to their interests. Infarmation on how we
engage with our stakeholders, including the
Board's direct and indirect engagement with
them, can be found on pages 1210 13.

STANDARDS OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Board is aware of the need to maintain
high standards of business conduct. The Group
has a strong ethical culture, underpinned by
aur values and policies, which are endorsed

by the Board. The Group also has specific
policies and procedures to prevent bribery
and corcuption, as described on page 34.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
. Information on the Group's environmental
impact can be found on pages 38 to 42.

TREATING SHAREHOLDERS FAIRLY

The Company’s shares are owned by a

wide range of institutional and individual
sharehoiders, with na shareholder having a
majority holding or significant influence over
the Group. As a result, no situations arise
inwhich any shareholders can be treated
differently, ensuring fair treatment for all.

KEY BOARD DECISIONS |
Examples of key Board decisions during the '
year, including how the Board considered the

interests of relevant stakeholders, are set

out below.

DEFERRING ROYALTY PAYMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS IMPACTED BY COVID-19

Overview

COVID-19 has caused significant volatility in pork markets, leading to reduced capacity at meat
processing plants in North America during the year.

Long-Term Consequences

Customers are a critical stakeholder group for Genus. The impact of COVID-19 on reduction of meat
processing capacity has led to customers having to euthanise weaned pigs, sows and market pigs,
which has a direct impacton the viability of their businesses in both the near and lang term. The
Board is committed to our customers' success and has supported actions taken to secure the supply
of semen and breeding stock to minimise the impact of the pandemic on our customers.

Actions Taken

PIC offered customers in North America the oppaortunity to defer 50% of royalty payments for a
period of three months, collectable over the following year, which was positively received and widely
adopted in the industry.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Overview

The Board recognises that without significant thought and action, climate change will have a lasting,
negative impacton our business, our communities and the world. Climate change is important

to all of the Group's stakeholders, including sharehalders who are increas ingly interested in our
environmental performance. The Board therefore decided to set out the Company’s approach to
managing its operations in view of climate change and to introduce a Climate Change Policy,
including realistic but stretching targets for emission reductions over the next decade.

Long-Term Consequences

By implementing the new Climate Change Policy, which is available on the Company’s website,

we aim to reduce our GHG emissions by 259 by 2030, against a restated 2019 baseline, Longer term,
aur aim s to be carbon neutral by 2050. More information on the Group’s environRmental
performance can be found on pages 38 to 42,

Actions Taken

The Board has appointed tysanne Gray as its Sustainability Sponsor. As Chair of the Audit & Risk
Committee, she will receive regular updates from our Sustainability Committee, which will moniter
our progress against the actions identified in the Climate Change Policy.

The Board has also approved investment in renewable energy at the Dekorra site in the U5, which
hopes to run exclusively on solar energy (see page 38).
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Principal risks
and uncertainties

Genus is exposed to a wide range
of risks and uncertainties as it
fulfils its purpose of providing
farmers with superior genetics
to fulfil its vision.

Some of these risks relate to the current
business operations in our global agricultural
markets, while others relate to future
‘comrercial exploitation of our leading-edge
R&D programmes. We are also exposed to global
economic and political risks such as trade
restrictions and Brexit. Qur assessment is that
Brexit is not a principal risk for Genus.
Additionally, we also monitor emerging new
risks such as changing consumption patterns,

environmental sustainability and the emergence |

of alternative proteins such as lab-based meat.

In considering our risks, we performed 2 detailed
assessment of the impact of the global outbreak
of COVID-19 during the second half of our
financial year. The assessment covered COVID-19
impact on our people, our customers and our
supply chain. We also assessed the short and
long term risks associated with the expected
global economic discuption affecting our
industry and the markets where we operate.

Out of this broad risk univierse we have identified
ten pringipa! risks, which we periodically
evaluate based on an assessment of the
likelihgod of occurrence and magnitude of
potential impact, togetherwith the effectiveness
of our risk mitigation controls.

The table below outlines these principal risks
and uncertainties and how we manage them.
We also identified those principal risks which are
more likely to have a short to medium-term
impact for the evaluation of our going concern
ang viability assessment. This is discussed in
detail within our viability statement.

The Directors confirm that they have undertaken
arobust assessment of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. More information
on our risk management framework can be
found in the Corporate Governance Statement
on page 68. .

LINK TO STRATEGY/VIABILITY ASSESSMENT

Increasing Genetic Control
and Preduct Differentiation

Targeting Key Markets
and Segments

Sharing in the
vatue Delivered

Considered for Viability
Assessment
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Risk Risk description How we manage risk Risk changein 2026
Strategic Risks
DEVELOPING > Development programmes fail to Dedicated teams align our product No change.
PRODUCTS WITH produce best genetics for development to customer requirements. We
COMPETITIVE customers, use large-scale data and advanced genomic
ADVANTAGE = increased competition to secure analysis 10 ensure we meet our breeding

STRATEGIC LINK

elite genetics.

goals. We frequently measure our
performance against competitors in
customers’ systems, to ensure the value
added by our genetics remains competitive.

CONTINUING TO
SUCCESSFULLY
DEVELOP
INTELLIGEN
TECHNOLOGY

STRATEGIC LINK

>

Failure to manage the technical,
production and financial risks
associated with the rapid
development of the intelliGen
business.

Our continued development of the technology
and its deployment to new markets is
supported by dedicated internal resources
and agreements with suppliers.

Further patent infringement proceedings
initiated by ST in the US are being vigorously
defended.

No change. We continue to see strong
demand for Sexcel and continue to
implement improvements and
innovation into our technology,
improving fertility outcomes and
processing efficiency. We continue
toincrease inteliiGen's global
deployment, securing new
third-party customers.

We continue to experience patent
infringement filings as well as seeing
the progression of existing filings
during the year (see note 7).

DEVELOPING AND
COMMERCIALISING
GENE EDITING AND
OTHER NEW
TECHNOLOGIES

STRATEGIC LINK

>

Failure to develop successfully and
commercialise gene-editing
technologies due to technical,
intellectual property {'IP’}, market,
regulatory or financial barriers.
Competitors secure 'game-
changing' new technology.

We stay aware of new technology
opportunities through a wide network of
academic and industry contacts. Our Genus
Portfolio Steering Committee (‘(GPSC')}
oversees our own research, ensures we
correctly prioritise our R&D investments and
assesses the adequacy of resources and the
relevant IP landscapes, We have formal
collaboration agreements with key partners,
to ensure responsible exploration and
development of technologies and the
protection of IP, The Board is updated
regularly on key devetopment projects.

No change. Key initiatives continue to
progress through the R&D life cycle
and we maintain the high level of
investment needed to bring the end
products to market.

CAPTURING VALUE
THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS

STRATEGIC LINK

Failure to identify appropriate
investment opportunities or to
perform seund due diligence.
Failure to successfully integrate an
acquired business.

We have a rigorous acquisition analysis and
due diligence process, with the Board
reviewing and signing off all material projects.
We also have a structured post-acquisition
integraticn planning and execution process.

No change, We continue to work
diligently to identify areas of
opportunity consistent with our
strategic plans and our aim to
accelerate growth and create value
for our shareholders.

Qur experiences with post-
acquisition integration provide
a platform for integrating newly
acquired businesses.

GROWING IN
EMERGING
MARKETS

STRATEGIC LINK

Failure to appropriately develop our
business in China and other
emerging markets.

Qur organisation, blends local and expatriate
executives, supported by the global species
teams, to allow us to grow our business in key
markets, while managing risks and ensuring
we comply with our global standards. We also
establish local partnerships where
appropriate to increase market access,

No change,

Operational Risks

PROYECTING IP

STRATEGIC LINK

>

Failure to protect our IP could mean
Genus-developed genetic material,
methods, systems and technology
become freely available to third
parties.

We have a globa!, cross-functional process

to identify and protect our 1P, Qur customer
contracts and our selection of multiptiers and
joint venture partners include appropriate
measures to protect our iF. We maintain (P
landscape watches and where necessary
conduct robust 'freedom to operate’ searches,
to identify third-party rights to technolagy.

Nochange,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk Risk deseription

How we manage risk

Risk change In 2020

Operational Risks continued

ENSURING >
BIOSECURITY AND
CONTINUITY OF >
SUPPLY

STRATEGIC LINK

Loss of key livestock, owing to
disease outbreak.

Losgs of ability to move animals or
semen freely {including across
borders) due to disease outbreak,
environmental incident or
international trade sanctions and
disputes.

Lower demand for cur products,
due to industry-wide disease
outbreaks.

We have stringent biosecurity standards, with
independent reviews throughout the year to
ensure compliance. We investigate bicsecurity

incidents, to ensure learning across the
organisation. We regularly review the

geographical diversity of our production
facilities, to avoid over-reliance on single sites.

Increased. This is due to the global
supply chain challenges imposed by
the COVID-19 outbreak as welt as the
rising geo-political tension and
escalation of trade wars. Qur
geographically diverse production
{acilities and the expert knowledge of
our supply chain and commercial
teams allowed for a swift and
comprehensive respanse to these
challenges, which helped to reduce
their impact.

HIRING AND >
RETAINING
TALENTED PEOPLE

STRATEGIC LINK

Failure 1o attract, recruit, develop
ang retain the global talent needed

- 10 deliver our growth plans and R&D

programmes.

We have a robust talent and succession
planning process, including annual

assessments of our global talent pool and
active leadership development programmes.
The Group's reward and remuneration policies

are reviewed regularly, to ensure their

competitiveness. We work closety with a
number of specialist recruitment agencies, to
identify candidates with the skills we need.

Reduced. The Group's Finance
Director took the role of the Chief
Executive in September 2019 and we
appainted our new Chief Financial
OFicer in January 2020. To date,

we have been largely successful in
recruiting and retaining the
appropriate skills at all levels to
meet our business growth pians.

Financial Risks

Flyctuations in agricultural markets
affect customer profitability and
therefore demand for our preducts
and services.

Increase in our operating costs, due

- 10 commodity pricing volatility.

The COVIO-19 outbreak in 2019
increased volatility and introduced
significant new financial and
Operational pressure across
agricultural markets. ,

We continuously monitor markets and seek to
balance our costs and resources in response
to market demand. We actively monitor and
update our hedging strategy to manage our
exposure. Qur porcine royalty model and

extensive use of third-party multipliers

mitigates the impact of cyclical price and/or

cost changes in pig production.

Increased. The full impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak on our customers
and the global econemy remains to
be seen. We have implemented
additional measures to strengthen
our monitoring processes and
continue to work very closely with
our customers to-enhance our
response to both short and long
term impact.

MANAGING >
AGRICULTURAL
MARKET AND
COMMODITY

PRICES VOLATILITY >
STRATEGIC LINK >
FUNDING >

PENSIONS

Exposure to costs associated with
failire of third-party members of
joint and several liabilities pension
scheme.

Exposure to costs because of
external factors (such as GMP
equalisation, RPI reform proposals,
morstality rates, interest rates or
investment values) affecting the size
of the pension deficit.

We are the principal employer for the Milk
Pension Fund ('MPF'} and chair the group of
participating employers. The fund is closed to

future service and has an agreed deficit

recovery plan, based on the 2018 actuarial
valuation. We also monitor the strength of
other employers in the fund and have retained
external cansultants to provide expert advice,

Increased. The Trustee formalised an
investment de-risking strategy in line
with the principles agreed in the
memorandum of understanding
signed with the employers’ group in
2019. COVID-19 outbreak impacted
the financial markets and net
adverse impacton funding levels

of recent market movementsis

2.6% (£13m).

Developments in RPI reform are
being monitored closely to assess
likely impacts but the actual shape of
the refarm is uncertain at this point.




(Page 48

of 189)

GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

In assessing the appropriateness of adopting the

going concern basis of preparing the financial

statements as well as in assessing viability, the

Board have taken into account:

> The uncertainty resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic, in the initial 2 year period to
June 2022, and its impact on our people,
our customers and our critical business
processes as well as the additional
mitigation actions we implemented to
reduce our exposure and eninimise any
medium or long-term impact. We also
assessed those risks associated with the
expected global economic disruption which
may negatively affect our industry and the
markets where we opérate.

> Genus's results at 30 June 2020 whereby the
Group recorded adjusted profit before tax
growth of 229 in constant currency, despite
the challenges we have seenin the second
half of the 2020 fiscal year.

> Genus's strong cash position at 30 June 2020
with free cash flow of £35.2m (2019: £10m)
and net debt of £77.9m (2019: £79.6m),
excluding an impact of £24.7m from IFRS 16
adoption, and had substantial headroom of
£125m (2019: £125.6m) under the Group’s
credit facilities of £228m.

> Anew credit facility agreement with a
syndicate of eight banks was signed post
year end on 24 August 2020. The new facility
consists of a £150m multi-currency RCF, a
USD125m RCF and a USD20m bond and
guarantee facility. The term of the new
facility is for three years with an option to
extend the maturity date before the first and
second anniversaries of the signing date for a
further year. The facility also includes an
uncommitted £100m accordion option which
can be requested on a maximum of three
occasions over the lifetime of the facility to
fund the Group's business development
plans.

> The potential use of mitigating actions
including reduction in dividends and
postponing certain capital spend and
investments.

GOING CONCERN

As part of the Directors’ consideration of the
appropriateness of adopting the going concern
basis in preparing the financisl statements,
given the uncertainty arising from COVID-19, our
cash flow and net debt projections to December
2021 have been overlaid with a number of
sensitivities ta ensure we capture a severe
downside scenario ‘a COVID-19 scenarie’ impact
on our profit, headroom and covenants over the
going concern period. In addition, we have
overiaid these sensitivities with reverse stress
tests on both our headroom and banking
covenants to ensure the range ahove and
beyond the severe downside scenario is

fully assessed.

The COVID-19 scenario sensitivities include 5%
reductions in PIC revenue, 109% reduction in ABS
volumes, 209 reduction in ABS average selling
prices, £8m working capital impact and offset by
mitigating actions including savings in costs,
reduction in dividends and postponing certain
capital spend and investments. Our mitigating
actions are all within management control

and would not impact our ability to serve

ouf customers.

Our headroom under these sensitivities and
reverse stress tests, including our mitigating
actions, remain adequate. Based on this
assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue its operational existence
for the foreseeable future and for a period of at
least 12 months from the date of this report.
Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt and
consider appropriate the going concern basis in
preparing the Annuzl Report.
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VIABILITY

As part of the Directors’ assessment of the

Group'sviability the Board considered a number

of key factors, including our business model (see

page 10}, our strategic framework (see page 16)

and carried out a robust assessment of the

principal risks facing Genus (see pages 44 to 46).

Qur cash flow and net debt projections ta June

2023 have been overlaid with the above

COVID-19 scenario sensitivities in the initial 2

year period 10 June 2022 and subsequently with

the potential impact, in severe but plausible

scenarios of selected principal risks, and in ,
particular the impacts of biosecurity,
agricultural markets downturn, border closures,
intelliGen uptake, continuity of supply, customer
consolidation and increased competition,

We have considered the position if each of the
identified principal risks materialised
individually and where multiple risks occur

in paraliel.

In their assessment of the Group's viability, the
Directars have determined that a three-year
time horizon, t¢ June 2023, is an appropriate
period to adopt. This was based on the Group’s
visibiity of its product development pipeline, for
example, as a result of the genetic lag of
approximately three years between the porcine
nucleus herds and customers’ production
systems and the pipeline of young bulls,

The Board also considered the nature of the
principal risks affecting Genus, including the
agricultural markets in which it aperates.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have
areasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue in operation'and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period to
June 2023.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board
of Directors on 7 September 2020 and signed on
its behalf by:

Stephen Wilsen
Chief Executive
7 September 2020

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
7 September 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Providing leadershnp
and oversight

Bob Lawson

Genus has long been
a purpose-driven
Company, with a robust
culture.

Dear Shareholder

Strong corporate governance is the
foundation for any successful business
and | am pleased to report that my final
Board evaluation shows that governance
standards at Genus remain high.
High-quality governance is even more
important during periods of turbulence
and the Board has continued to operate
successfully during the COVID-19
pandemic, while ensuring that our
internal controls and governance
framework remain robust in the light

of changes to working practices.
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Over the last year or 50, many companies have
found themselves considering their purpose for
the first time. Genus has long been a purpose-
driven company, as shown by our vision of
pioneering animal genetic improvement to help
nourish the world. We have 2 robust culture that
supports this vision and you can read more
about the Board's oversight of our culture on
page 59. The Board’s direct engagement with
our people, via our designated Warkforce
Engagement Directors, is an important part

of this oversight.

As described in my statement on page 6 of the
Strategic Report, there were importantchanges
to the Board during the year. Stephen Wilson's
appointment as Chief Executive demonstrated
the value of our succession planning, while we
were delighted to recruit a Chief Financial Officer
with Alison Henriksen's skills and experience,
with the additional benefit of further enhancing
gender diversity on the Board. Lesley Knox, as
our Senior Independent Director, led the
recruitment process for fain Ferguson, who

will be my successor as Chairman,

This Annual Report includes our first Section 172
Statement on pages 12 to 13 and page 43.
While the requirement to reporton the Board’s
engagement and decision making is new, the
Directors have always been highly engaged

and aware of their responsibilities in this regard
and have looked to balance the interests of all
stakeholders in ous discussions. | am sure that
the Board will continue to develop Genus’s
governance under lain Ferguson’s leadersship,
10 support the delivery of further value for alt
our stakeholders.

Bob Lawsen
Chair of the Board
7 September 2020

Genus camplied in Full with the 2018 edilion ul
the UK Corporate Governance Code, which was
the applicable standard for

this year.
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LEADERSHIP

Board of Directors and
Company Secretary

BOB LAWSON
Non-Executive Chairman

STEPHEN WILSON
Chief Executive

ALISON HENRIKSEN
Chief Financial Officer

LYSANNE GRAY
Non-Executive Director

COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP

:g::grm:m November 2010 January 2013 January 2020 Agpril 2016‘

::LL:;:::; > Significant experience of > Sixyears as Group > Over 25years of > Significant experience of
leading international Finance Director at Genus international experience risk management, audit,
businesses, including with wide-ranging infinance, operating business operations,
through operational and operational, strategic and across Europe, Australia, acquisitions and

" culturalchanges © business development Asia, the US and South disposals, and corporate
> Deep understanding of responsibitities - Africa. governance, gained
listed companies and > Extensiveexperiencecver > Proven track record of within the food sector
-Corporate governance 30 years in technology driving performancein > Chartered accountant
: businesses, including pubtic and privately held
finance, mergers and organisations, both
acquisitions, IT business to business and
transformation and business te consumer
investor relations > Qualified as Chartered
> International experience Accountant with Ernst&
living and working in Young
Europe and the US
> Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Management
Accountants
CURRENT Non-Executive Chairman of None None Financial Controller at

APPOINTMENTS

Eurocell plc.

Unilever pic and Unilever NV,

PAST |
APPOINTMENTS

Chief Executive of
Electrocomponents plc;
Managing Director of Vitec
Group plc; Chairman of the
Federation of Groundwork
Teusts; Chairman of Hays pic;
and Non-Executive
Chairman of Barratt
Developments plc.

Group Finance Director of

Genus plc; Executive Vice
President and Chief
Financial Officer of Misys plc;
finance and business
development roles at IBM;
and Non-Executive Director
and Audit Committee Chair -
of Xchanging plc.

Chief Financial Qfficer of
V.Group, a global leaderin
ship management; Finance
Director, UK & Ireland and
Finance Director, Australia,
atCompass Groug plc: and
Chief Financial Officer of
Specialty Fashion Group Ltd,
aformer ASK listed cornpany.

Chief Auditor of Unilever,
Chief Financial Officer of
Unilever's global food

- service business; and 2

number of other senior
operational and financial
positions within Unilever.
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KEY TO COMMITTEES

Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Audit & Risk Committee
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Committee Chair
LYKELE VAN DER BROEK LESLEY KNOX PROFESSOR IAIN FERGUSON DAN HARTLEY
Non-Executive Director; Senior Independent IAN CHARLES Non-Executive Director Group General Counsel
workforce Engagement Director; Workforce Non-Executive Director Chairman Designate and Company Secretary
Director Engagement Director
July 2014 June 2018 July 2018 July 2020 June 2014
> Vast experience of > Broad international, > Entrepreneurial scientist, > Extensive Board, > Significant experience in
growing companies and strategic and financial with deep scientific governance and multi-jurisdictional
waorking in agricuttural services experience, both expertise leadership experience patent litigation, mergers
businesses throughout through executive and > More than 30 years' > Stropg commercial, and acquisitions, patent

the world, including in

non-executive roles

experience in academic

science and agribusiness

and technology licensing

Development at Unilever.

emerging markets > Has advised nurnerous and commercial research expertise across arange and managing product
companies including institutions of industries, with a life cycles
manufacturers and > Cusrent research focus is particular focus on > Degrees in science
distributors of food infectious diseases, the consumer goods and law
products, encompassing microbiome and its and food
poultry and poultry impacton healthand > Deep appreciation of
breeding companies well-being capital markets and
investor sentiment
Chair of Eden Research plc. Non Executive Director, Co-founder and Board Chairman of Crest Nicholson None
voice of the Employee Director of Longas Holdings pic, Non-Executive
Director and Remuneration Yechnologies Pty Ltd. Director of Personal Assets
Committee Chair of Legal & Trustplc; Non-Executive
General ple and Chairman of Director of Hallmarq
Legal & General Investment veterinary imaging Ltd;
Management Holdings. Pro-Chancellor of Cranfield
University.
Member of the Board of Founder Director of British Co-founder and Board Senior Independent Director Senior Vice President and
Management of Bayer Linen Advisers; Governor of Director of Auspherix; of Sygen International pic; {atemnational Counsel of
- CropScience, a division British Linen Bank Group; Director of the ithree Chairman of Berendsen plc; Shire plc; and senior and
of Bayer AG;senior sentor roles as Dresdner institute, University of Chairman of Stobart Group global roles in private
international rotes including Kleinwort Benson; selicitor Technology, Sydney; Ltd; Senior independent practice, in the UK and
the Head of Bayer at Slaughter & May; and co-founder and Chief Director of Balfour Beatty plc; the US.
CropScience's BioScience numerous non-executive Scientific Officerof Arrow Non-Executive Director of
division; and President ofthe roles, including Centrica, Therapeutics; founder Greggs pl¢; Lead
Bayer HealthCare Animal SAB Miller, Alliance Trust, member of The Wolfson Independent Director at the
Health division. Hays, Scottish Provident, Institute for BioMedical Department for Environment,
Bank of Scotland, Grosvenor Research at University Food and Rurat Affairs; Chief
Group and Thomas Cook. College London; and various Executive of Tate & Lyle plc;
roles at Glaxo Wellcome and General Manager of Unilever
Sheffield, Cambridge and AgriBusiness; Chair, Unilever
Leicester Universities. Plantations and Plant
Sciences Group; and Senior
Vice President, Corporate
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LEADERSHIP CONTINUED

Genus Executive Leadership
Team (‘GELT’)

STEPHEN WILSON -
Chief Executive

ALISON HENRIKSEN
Chief Financial Officer

DAN HARTLEY
Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary

ANGELLE ROSATA
Group HR Director

SKILLS AND

pitriryl > See pages 50 and 51 for

Stephen's, Alison's and
Dan's biographies.

>

v

v

Deep and broad expertise
spanning resaurcing,
talent management,
SUCCESSIoN planning,
leadership development
and health and safety
Extensive HR strategic
planning skifls and
commercial acumen
Masters in Human
Resource Development
from Vanderhilt
University

CAREER

v

v

Joined Genusin
September 2013,
following more than 20
yearsin the healthcare
sector

Developed and delivered
PIC's people strategy,
before becoming HR
Director for ABS and then
Group HR Director on

1 July 2017
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DR BILL CHRISTIANSON JERRY THOMPSON DR NATE ZWALD DR ELENARICE

Chief Operating Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Scientific Officer and

Genus PIC Genus ABS Beef Genus ABS Dairy Head of R&D

> Deep understanding of > Anatural entreprengur > Deep expertise and > Deep expertise in running
agriculture and with deep industry experience of dairy R&D programmes,

biotechnology, with
broad industry
knowledge and extensive
commercial and global
experience

> DvMand PhD in
veterinary Medicine from
the University of
Minnesota

know!ledge, commercial
skills and international
experience

Has helped Genus
establish and grow
businesses in countries
as diverse astha UK,
Russia, India and China
Holds adegreein
Agriculture from the
University of Plymouth
andis a graduate of
Harvord Business
School's Advanced
Management Program

v

v

genetics, strong
commercial focus and
passion for people
development

Board member of the
Council on Dairy Cattle
Breeding and Vice
President of the National
Association of Animal
Breeders

Degree in Dairy Science,
MBA and PhD in Dairy
Cattle Genetics from the
University of Wisconsin

v

v

regulatory science and
portlolio management
who has led the
development and
introguction of new
genetic improvement
technologies and
nurtured a portfolio of
gene editing projects
BSc and MScin Biology
from Moscow State
University, and PhDin
Plant Physiology and
Biochemistry from the
Timiryazev institute of
Plant Physiology in
Moscow

v

> Joined Genus in 1993 and
subsequently worked in
operational roles
spanning Europe, South
America and the US,
before becoming General
Manager of PIC North
America in 2007

> Led the combined ABS
and PiC business across
the Americas from 2010,
befare becoming COO of
GenusPICin 2012

v

Jained PIC in 1992,
waorking initially in the UK
and then Siberia and
Romania, before leading
PIC in Central and Eastern
Europe arkl then Europe
as awhole

Led PIC and ABS in Russia
and Asia Pacific, before
becoming COO for Genus
Asiain 2012 and then
COO for Genus ABS Beef
in July 2016

v

v

Joined Genus in January
2017 after 15 years at Alta
Genetics, including ten
years a5 General Manager
of its US business and
more than two years as
Global Marketing Director
Remains involved in his
family’s commercial dairy
aperation, Bomaz farmin
the US, which has
produced high-ranking
industry and ABS sires

v

v

Joined Genus as Chief
Scientific Officer and
appointed to GELT on
15 July 2019

Spent 18 yearsin
increasingly senior roles
within Bayer, leading
teams using pioneering
science ang cutting-edge
technology to help
farmers grow fcod more
sustainably

v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board

THE BOARD'S ROLE
The Board is responsible for ensuring our long-term success.

" 1t approves our strategy and corporate goals and monitors

our performance against them; determines that we have the
necessary resources, systems and controls to achieve our
objectives; and sets the culture and standards of behaviour
we wantto see throughout Genus.

The Board is also responsible for other critical decisions.
These include approving the corporate budget; stress-
testing our scenario planning to ensuring we have the right
funding; approving material contracts, acquisitions, licences
and investments; and reporting to shareholders.

THE BOARD'S COMPOSITION

At the year end, the Board comprised five independent
Non-Executive Directors {NEDs'} {including the Chairman},
and two Executive Directors - the Chief Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer. This gives a majority of independent
Directors on the Board. The appoiatment of lain Ferguson as
aNED andg Chairman Designateon 1 July 2020 increases the
proportion of independent Directors on the Board, until Bob
Lawson'’s retirement at the AGM in November 2020.

The Board comprises both well-established and newer
NEDs, as we have broadened the Board's skills and
experience through Non-Executive appointments over
recent years. As a result, the Board has an appropriate blend
of different ar¢as of expertise, long-standing knowledge of
the Group and its markets, and fresher perspectives. This
helps to ensure the Board provides even-handed oversight,
warks in & constructive and focused manner and has the
capabilities to manage the challenges of a complex and
evolving global business environment.

Title tdividual

Rezponsibilities

Almost all of our Directors have held leadership positions in
international companies, with several having run businesses
overseas. Several of our Directors, including the Chair of-
the Audit & Risk Committee, have significant financial
experience, while others have strong backgrounds in
scientific research or in leading science-based businesses.

The Board believes that all of the NEDs are independent

in character and judgement, and that there are no
relationships or circumstances that are likely to affect

for could appear to affect) their judgement. Following the
performance evaluation described on page 58, the Board
also confirms that all the Directors continue to be effective
in their roles.

As required by the Code, all the Directors except Bob
Lawson will offer themselves for election at the next AGM.
Details can be found in the Notice of AGM.

BOARD ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Yo ensure we have clear responsibilities at the top of

the Company, the Board has set out well-defined roles for
the Chairman and Chief Executive. These, along with the
responsibilities of our other Directors, are summarised
inthe table below. o

CHAIRMAN BOBLAWSON

Bob's primary responsibility is to lead the Board and ensure it operates

effectively. He achieves this in part through promoting an open culture,

which allows people te chalienge the status quo, and holding meetings

with the NEDs without the Executives present. Bob also communicates |
. directly with shareholders. .

CHIEF EXECUTIVE STEPHEN WILSON Stephen is responsible for devising and implementing our strategy and for
managing our day-to-day operations. He is accountable to the Board far
the Group's development, in line with its strategy, taking into account the
risks, objectives and policies set out by the Board and its Committees.

CHIEF FINANCIAL ALISON HENRIKSEN  Alison is responsible for helping the Chief Executive to devise and

QFFICER

implement the strategy, and for managing the Group's financial and

operationat performance.

SENIOR INDEPENDENT  LESLEY KNOX

Lesley provides a2 sounding board for the Chair and is an alternative ling,

NED of communication between the Chair and other Directors. She leads
meetings of the NEDs, without the Chair present, to appraise the Chair's
performance, and consults with shareholders in the absence of the Chair
and Chief Executive.

NEDs LYSANNE GRAY,
LYKELE VAN DER

The NEDs constructively chatlenge, oversee and help to progress the
execution of our strategy, the management of the Group and the

BROEK, IAN CHARLES, management of our governance structures, within the risk and control

IAIN FERGUSON

framework set by the Board.
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The diagram below shows the Board and the Committees that report to it:

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

Ensures the integrity of our financial

reporting. evaluates our risk
management and internal control
system, and oversees the internal
and external auditors.

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Provides direction and oversight for
continuous Improvement in our
envirocnmental sustainability, health
and safety, animal well-being and
community engagement.

COMMITTEE REPORTING TO
THE AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

BOARD COMMITTEES
The tabie below shows Board Committee membership at
the year end:

teads our strategic delivery and
ensures organisational alignment,
engagement and efficient execution.

BOARD COMMITTEES

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Determines remuneration for our
Executive Directors and senior
management, to support our
growth strategy and deliver value
for stakehalders.

GENUS PLCBOARD

GPsC
Gives us a comprehensive view of
our R0 programme and involves
our business unitsin prioritising our
R&D initiatives.

GELT

OTHER TEAMS REPORTING TO THE BOARD

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The tabte below shows how many Board and Committee
meetings each Director attended during the year.

Committee Audit &
Directer Audit & Rizsk  Nominati n, Director Board MNomination Risk Remuneration
Bob Lawson - M M Non-Executive
- Chairman
Stephen Wilson - M _ oo Laweon - - P -
Alison Henriksen - - - -
2 = Executive Directors
Lysanne Gra c M M -
ik 4 Karim Bitar (stepped
Lykele van der Broek M M M down 13 September
1 1 1
Lesley Knox M ¢ c 2019) 2 4 2 3
i L 1
lan Charles M M M Stephen Wilson 8 10 5 3
Alison Henriksen
M=Commitiesmember  C = Committee chalc {appointed
13 January 2020) 4 41 2 »n
lain Ferguson was appointed to the Nomination and .
Remuneration Committees on 1 July 2020 and will become ~ Non-Executive
Chair of the Nomination Committee on Bob tawson's Directors
retirement. Lysanne Gray P o : n
The Committee Chairs pversee and iead the Committees’ Lykele van der Broek a 10 s '3
activities, within their terms of reference, and are Lestey Knox s o p e

responsible for their effective operation. Mare information
about the rales and work of the Board Committees can be
found in their statements on pages 60 to 91, and in their
terms of reference on our website at www.genusplc.com.

{NFORMATION FLOW TO THE BOARD

The diagram opposite sets out our process for providing
information to the Directors, ahead of scheduled Board
meetings. This ensures our Board is well informed and the
Directors can contribute effectively to discussions.

Ouring the yl-ar, we continued to (ook at how to imprave the quality of
the papers going to the Board. Enhancementsincluded changes to the
Board agenda, toindi 172 cor against each item.

1 2 3 4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Reviews the Board's structure,
size and compoesition and
propeses candidates for
appointment to the Board.

Note: The maximum
number of meetings that
Directors could have
attended during the year:
Board 8, Nomination
Committee 10, Audit & Risk
Committee 5 and
Remuneration

Committee §.

1 Bylnviiation.

2 BobLawsondid not
attend Nomination
Commitiee meetings
dealing with hls
succession,

5

TheChairmansets  Aweekbeforethe  Board meetings Decisions and The updated list
the agenda for the maeting, the take place at actions agreedat  of actions
meeting, with agendaand Board  leasteight times the meeting are becomes part of
input from the papers are $&nlto per year. monitored by the the agendafor
Chief Executive the Directors Group Generaf the next 8oard
and the Group using & secure Counsel, meeting.
General Counsel. elegtronicsystem.
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THE BOARD’S YEAR IN REVIEW

Board

The Board held eight scheduled meetings during the
year. At gach scheduled meeting, the Board receives
updates on:

Cne Board meeting each year is usually heid outside
the UK. However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Board's planned visit to Brazit in June 2020 could not

activities > business performance, business development, take place. In addition to the Board meetings, the
talent development and competitive landscape Board also holds an annual strategy session, focusing
developments from the Chief Executive; on the strategic direction and goals of the Group and
> financial performance of the business and forecasts  its business units, This 100k place in January 2020.
from the Chief Financial Officer; and
> corporate governance and legal issues from the The table below prevides more detail of the Board's
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, discussions and activities, and the outcomes
and external advisers. from them:
Tople and link
to our strategy Activity Actions arlsing Pragress
LEADERSHIP AND  Monitor Board effectiveness Internal evaluation undertaken during the year. Focus areas identified
EFFECTIVENESS {see page 59}

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders:E, 5 -

Monitor pipeline of senior
talent

Updated on talent initiatives and management outcomes.

Internal appointment of new
Chief Executive Officer

New Chief Financial Officer and
Chairman Designate appointed

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT
& STRATEGY

LINK TQ DUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders: S, C,
sC

Monitor progress againstour  Held strategy meeting with GELT and other business leaders. See above
strategic objectives

Review and approve business  Approved: See pages 20to 29
activities > Genus PiC's contract with BCA to accelerate the use of PIC

genetics in China through the phased integration into BCA'S

facilities and their ptanned major expansion.

> the construction of a new PIC elite nucleus farm in Canada.
> the construction of new barns at our ABS facilities in Madison,

Wisconsin,

> Ongoing investment in our IntelliGen technology.

Monitor strategic Received updates on:
developments >

See pages 20t0 29, 4}

taunch ofthe new PIC 800 Duroc sireline.

> US litigation relating to intelliGen technology.
> Rapid growth of Sexcel sales, ABS's high-fertility sexed

genetics.

> Continued progress with the PRRSv development programme

v

Competitor activities.

> Material business development opportunities, including

summavies of due diligence.

> Sustainability strategy and the Company’s Climate Change

Policy.

> GenusDne enterprise management system transition.
> Integration of COVID-19 business adjustments and the impact

on employees and customers.

RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT

LINK TO QUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders: S, C

Monitor R&D progress Received updates on:

See pages 26 to 29

> R&D programmes and material investments.

> TheR&D stage gate review process for research programmes.
> The progress of material patent portfolio filings.

> The progress of PRRSv development programme and

IntelliGen improvements.

> New injtiatives in the areas of reproductive technologies and

scientific data.
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Toplc and link
to our stratagy Activity Actions arising Progress
EMPLOYEES Review recruitment pipeline  Received updates on: See pages 34 to 37

> Key vacancies and hires including changes to the PIC China
leadership team and the Chief Financial Officer.

> Talentdevelopment in leadership below GELT level,

> Your Voice employee survey.

LIKK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders: E Update on employee feedback  Held town hall meetings with employees and designated workforce Engagement
Non-Executive Directors, Directors met with employees
over breakfast at Genus UK
Head Office ang ABS sites
SHAREHOLDERS Monitor investor attitudes Updated on meetings with shareholders, potential investors and  Seepages 12to 13
towards Genus analysts.
LINK TO OUR STRAYEGY undertook sharehn|dereng_agement in conngction with new See pages 701091
remuneration policy and Climate Change Policy.
Stakeholders: S
COMPANY Monitor performance against  Received updates on: See pages 3010 33
PERFORMANCE plan > The operational periormance of the business.
AND FINANCE > Marketconditions for each division.
LINK TO OUR STRATEGY > ::é‘éﬁ’::;;zsl?ul’ s performance against its strategy,
> Scenario planning for COVID-19 and the possible impact on
financial performance.
Stakeholders: Review past and projected Approved the annual and interim results and dividends.
financial performance Approved the FY21 budget.
Monitor key financial issues Received tax and treasury updates. See pages 30to 33
Monitor performance against  Received pension updates.
plan Reviewed the Group's financing needs and considered
fundraising options.
Reviewed and approved the refinancing of the corporate facility,
EXECUTIVE/GELT Monitor business unit Received monthly financial and aperational performance
UPDATES performance and plans updates.
LINX T0 OUR STRATEGY Received regular presentations from each business unit.
Conducted strategy session comparing performance of each
business unit against previously presented strategic goals.
Stakeholders: E, S, C,
sC
HEALTH & SAFETY  Ensure strongcultureof health  Reviewed FY20 targets for health and safety and reviewed Seepages 34t040
and safety progress throughout the year.
LINKTO GUR STRATESY Recelved updates from the Head of Heaith & Safety, including
progress against relevant KPIs.
Stakeholders: E
RISK Monitor risk managementand  Received regular updates on COVID-19 implications and risk See pages 44 to 46

MANAGEMENT controt management.
' Manitored the Group's risk register.

Received updates on the whistleblowing hotline reports and
investigations.

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders: S

Key to stakeholders: £ = Employees, 5 = Sharehalders, C =Custamers, $C = Supply Chain
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THE BOARD'S YEAR IN REVIEW CONTINUED

Assessing the
Board’s effectiveness

To ensure the Board provides effective leadership to the Group, we have a three-year
evaluation cycle, using a mixture of internal and external evaluations.

YEAR 1
An external Board
effectiveness review produces
an action plan for the areas of
focus identified by the review.

YEAR 3
An internal review using
questionnaires and interviews with
the Chair of the Board.

This was the second year of the current three-year cycle.
However, given the important changes to the composition
of the Board, with Stephen Wilson’s transition to Chief
Executive Officer, the onboarding of Alison Henriksen as
Chief Financial Officer and the search for a new NED who

The evaluation’s conclusions

The review showed that the Board is effective in most areas,
is well led, and the Directors challenge constructively and
effectively. The review highlighted the following key
strengths:
> adiverse, inclusive and respectful culture;
> 2 high level of trust and confidence in each other;
> 3 culture that encourages constructive debate, whilst
remaining collegiate; and
> genuine interest in and passion for the business and
its suCCess.

YEAR 2
A follow-up questionnaire by the
same external consultant enables
us to Monitor our progress with
the focus areas.

could succeed the Chairman, the Board decided to perform
an internal review of the type described in year three of the
cycle. Once the new Chairman is in place after the 2020 AGM
the Board will consider whether it will begin a new cycle
inFY21.

The evaluation also identified the following priorities for the

Board in FY21:

> successfully transitioning to the new Chairman and
ongoing Board succession;

N obtaining greater insight into local and regional

operating environments and markets, as a result of
COVID-1%;

> retaining the focus on leveraging value from R&D;

> ensuring sufficient time is available to consider
short- and long-term strategic topics and ‘out of
the box’ thinking.
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The outcomes of last year’s externally facilitated review, and the Board's progress with addressing these

focus areas, are set out below:

Focus area

Progress

The Board will seek to nurture strategic over opetational discussions,
through better management of Board agendas and presentation materials.

The Board has reviewed its annual schedule of meetings to understand
better the balance of strategic, operational and governance topics
allocated to each meeting. Agendas for each meeting clearly identify topics
relating to each element of the Group's strategy, as well as relevant
stakeholder groups impacted by each discussion topic.

The Board will ensure greater focus on the Group’s research and
development pipefine and strategy during the year.

The Board has received detailed updates on the research and development
pipetine and strategy twice during the year, as well as periodic updates

on key R&D arogrammes such as the PRRSv programme. in addition,
lanCharles has attended meetings of management’s Global Portfolic
Steering Commistee and provided feedback to the Board on discussions

at those meetings.

The Audit & Risk Committee’s risk management focus will increase from
oversight of operational and financial risks to incfude risks associated with
innovation and future opportunities.

Reler to the Audit & Risk Committee Report on pages 64 to 69.

The Nomination Committee will focus on the transition to the new Chief
Executive, and consider the skills an the Board, ensuring that the Board has
the right balance of skilis to service its future strategic direction, including
with respect to future markets and seeking regulatory approval for, and
consumer acceptance of, the commercialisation of gene-edited animals.

Given the need to address the succession plan for the Chairman following
the transition to the new Chief Executive, the Chair of the Nomination
Committee will change to the Senior Independent Director,

Refer to the Nomination Committee Report on pages 6010 63.

The Board will review its governance procedures to ensure a detailed
after-action review Is carried out akter each Board meeting, and make
sure Board papers are clear, calling out progress against key topics
and alignment with strategy.

Facilitated by the Chairman, feedback has been solicited from Directors
at the conclusion of each meeting regarding the quality of paperss and
presentations to ensure that they have addressed relevant strategic
topics and enabled meaningful discussion.

WORKFORCE ENGAGEMENT

In FY19, the Board appointed Lykele van der Broek and Lesley Knox as the
designated Workforce Engagement Directors. They continued to engage
with employees this year, holding a face-to-face meeting with head office
employees in early 2020, followed by a video conference with UK ABS and
Promar staff. The key points employees raised at the town hall meetings
are setoutin the stakeholder engagement section on pages 12to 13 o the
Strategic Report. The Board will continue to monitor progress made
against these points.

Looking forward, the intention is for the Workforce Engagement Directors
to work around the Group's different sites to collect feedback and
specifically to hold face-to-face meetings with employees as part of the
Board's programme of annual visits. While the ability to meet face-to-face
will depend on the state of the COVIO-19 pandemic at the time, virtual
meetings have proven effective if site visits are not possible

CULTURE

The Board pays careful attention to the Group's culture, recognising that
having the right cuiture is crucial for achieving cur strategic plans and
creating value for stakeholders.

The Board has a number of ways of understanding and monitoring the
culture around the business. In particulas, these include the results of

the Group's Your Voice employee survey and the Workforce Engagemant
Directors’ interactions with employees during the year, as described above.
The Board believes that health and safety performance is another
important indicator of culture and the Directors monitor performance on

a regular basis. The Directors alsa meet numerous people from around the
Grouyp during the course of the year, including members of management
who present at Board meetings and through site visits, giving them further
insight into the cuttyre across the Group.

More broadly, the Group’s performance management process has a strong
focus on behaviours that are aligned to our values, while succession
planning at hoth Board level and below ensures that talent pipelines are
diverse. The Board also ensures its own culture is aligned to the culture
across the Group through the annual evaluations of the Board ang its
Committees.

The Board is therefore satisfied that the Group's culture is aligned with its
purpose, values and strategy and that our workplace policies and gractices
are consistent with them,
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Lesley Knox
GHAIR OF THE NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder

This was a busy year for the Committee, as we focused on
succession for the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman,
and the recruitment of a new Chief Financial Officer.

The Committee also continued its broader work on
succession planning, diversity and the mix of skills and
experience on the Board.

Lesiey Knox
Chais of the Nomination Committee
7 September 2020

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

Chair Members

Lesley Knox Karim Bitar (stepped down

13 September 2019)

lan Charles

Lysanne Gray

Bob Lawson

Lykele van der Broek

Stephen Wilson (from September
2019}

The Committee members’ biographies, along with
information on Genus's other Boargd members, can be found
on pages 50to 51.

COMMITTEE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee is responsible for:

> making recommendations to the Board on the structure,
size and composition of the Board and its Committees;

> evaluating the balance of skills, experience,
independence, knowledge and diversity on the Board;

> succession planning for the Non-Executive and
Executive Directors and other senior executives; and

> identifying and recommending suitable candidates to
become Directors, based an merit.

The Committee has written term§ of reference, which set
out the authority delegated to it by the Board. These are
available from our website: www.genusplc.com.

FOCUS AREAS FORFY20

The Board evaluation process in FY19 identified a nurber

of important areas for focus for FY20. These included:

> arobust pracess for the recruitment and transition to
the new Chief Executive;

> the identification of a new Chief Financial Officer; and

> subsequent consideration of the succession of the
Chairman of the Board.

The Committee successiully concluded its work in all three
of these areas, while continuing its ongoing reviews of
diversity.

THE COMMITTEE'S MAIN ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR
APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Following the announcement in March 2019 that Karim Bitar
would be stepping down as Chief Executive, the Committee
began an executive recruitment search, through consultants
Egon Zehnder. Egon Zehnder has no other connections with
the Group or with individual Directors.

The search process was based on existing specifications for

the role, with key criteria including:

> experience of leading a research and development
focused organisation; :

> experience of running international businesses;

> successful development and implementation of
corporate strategy;

> strong leadership, integrity and people-development
skills;

> apurpose and vaiues-led approach; and

> atrack record of operational delivery.

The search process demonstrated that Stephen Wilson was
by far the strongest candidate. Having been on the Board
since 2013, he has a deep understanding of the operations
of Genus, its market and competitors. In addition, he was
integral to the devetopment and execution of the
Company’s strategic and operational plans. The Committee
was therefore pleased to recommend to the Board that
Stephen should be appointed to the role.
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APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The tecruitment process for a new Chief Firancial Officer to

replace Stephen Wilson was carried out through Spencer

Stuart, which has no ather cannection to the Group o/ to

individual Directors. Key criteria ysed in the search

process included:

> aproven CFO of a listed group, ideally with exposure to
research and development intensive industries and with
international experience;

> experience in 2 matrixstructure and an ability to drive
results and seize new business opportunities,

> strong people management and collaboration skills;

> acommercial orientation; and

> anenergetic, resilient and purpose-driven approach.

The search process identified Alison Henriksen as the
outstanding candidate, based on her track record of driving
performance improvements, proven ability to transfer her
financial skilis between industries, experience of operating
at scalein isted international businesses and strong
personal qualities. The Committee was therefore pleased to
recommend to the Board that alison should be appointed
as Chief Financial Officer,

APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTCR AND
CHAIRMAN DESIGNATE

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code's stipylation
that the Chair of the Board should not remain in post
beyond nine years from the date of their appaintment to the
Board, except to facilitate effective succession, the
Committee undertook a search for a new NED who could
take on the role of Chair of the Board on Bob Lawson's
retirerment at the AGM in November 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The search process was led by Lesley Knox, as Senior

independent Director, with the supgort of executive search firm

Russell Reynolds, which has no other connection to the Group

arindividual Directars. Key criteria for the search included:

= listed board and corporate governance experience;

> experience ininternational businesses and technology
sectors, including sectorswith significant research and
development investment; .

> ability to bring independent expertise to discussion of
agribusiness, biotechnology, regulation, supply chain
and other areas;

> strong commercial and business acumen;

> experience of advising on corporate strategy and
business development; and

> ability to manage complexity.

12in Ferguson emerged as the outstanding candidate, based
on his background as a public company chair and NED, and
2s a former FTSE 100 chief executive. He has a unique blend
of Board and business leadership expertise, 3cross a range
of industries, with extensive international experience and
strong commercial acumen, The Committee was therefore
pleased to recommend to the Board that lain should be
appointed as a NED and Chairman Designate. The Board
considered in detail lain's other time commitments and was
satisfied that he will be able to commit sufficient time to
Genus in fulfilling his duties.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Committee has a formal three-phase succession planning process:

Assessmont Approach Exacution

The Committee reviews the Board's The Committee applies engagement The Commitiee identifies the desired

current skills and experiences across a  rules for succession planning,

skills for any new NED, for use in filling

range of relevant areas. including: any luture vacancies on the Board.
> ensuring succession planning is in

This results in a skills matrix (see page line with the Committee’s terms of  Potential internal candidates for

62}, which identifies the skills coverage reference; promotion to Executive Direcior are

across all Board members. > considering the need to replace the  identified.
skills of any departing NED; and
Potential skills gaps areidentified, so > filling any missing skills required for

they can beincorporated into future
succession planning at Board and
Executive level.

the Company's strategic direction.

Job specifications for the Non-

Executives and Executives are kept

Areas for ongoing Board upskilling are  up todate.
identified and discussed.

61
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

BOARD SKILLS MATRIX

The table below shows the key experience and skills the Committee has identified as desirable and indicates their depth on

the Genus Board.

General experiance
and skills

Majonity of Directory with
medium to high axperience

Board and corporate governance

Strategy

Finance, banking and capital markets

Risk, culture change and change management

Politics and pubtic affairs

Stakeholder ang customer communications

Human resources

IT systems, transformation and data/cyber security

Specific exparlance and skills

Science and biotechnology

Food sector

FDA regutated products

International busingss

Us market

EMEA market

Asian market

Latin American market

DIVERSITY

Genus shares the aspirations of the Davies Review and the
Hampton-Alexander Review to promote greater
representaticn of females and people from a minority
ethnic background on company boards. Following the
recruitment of Alison Henriksen, at the year end three of the
seven Directars were fernale {43%), ahead of the 33% target
set by the Hampton-Alexander Review, There were also
three fernale members of GELT, comprising 38% of the total.
The gender balance of the direct reports to GELT, excluding
support staff, were 25% female and 759 male. -

Our Board diversity policy aims to ensure that we consider
diversity in its broadest sense. A diverse Board has
members with different skills, backgrounds, regional and
industry experiences, races, genders and other qualities.
The different viewpaints represented on a diverse Board can
help Genus ta maintain its competitive advantage. The
Board is comritted to building recruitment and leadership
development programmes that capture inclusivity in our
succession planning and talent development, including a
fotus on appropriate representation from female and
minority ethnic candidates. The Group has a Women's
Leadership Forum, which was setup in FY19to bring
together fermale leaders and a cross-section of other women

. todevelop ideas for. increasing diversity and improving

woarking practices.”

Diversity also links to our values, by being people-focused
and responsible, and by encouraging new ideas which
deliver for our customers and uitimately drive our results.

The Board, with the support of the Nomination Committee:

> considers candidates against objective criteria and with
regard to the benefits of Board diversity;

> encourages the development of high-calibre employees,
to create a pipeline of potential Executive Directors;

> considers a wide pool of candidates for appointment as
NEDs, including those with little company board

- experientce; )

> ensures a significant portion of the long list far NED
positions are women and candidates from a minority
ethnic background; ang

> only engages executive search firms which have signed
up to the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender and
ethnic diversity and best practice.

The Board complied with thé policy throughout the periog.

A copy of the policy can be found on our website:

www.genusplc.com, . :

The Committed reviewed the policy during the year and
concluded thiat it remained appropriate. More information
about diversity across Genus can be found in the Strategic
Report an pages 34 to 35.
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BOARD INDUCTION AND TRAINING
A good induction is 2 key part of ensuring new Board
members can fully contribute, so we get the most benefit
“from their experience. During the year, the pandemic has
minimised travel, but the Company has sought to
supplement the induction programme with virtual
meetings, Once COVID-19 issues recede, we will review and
complement the induction programme which has already
been putin place. Dur induction programme has three
rmain elements:
> helping our Board members to conduct themselves
effactively, through a course run by Spencer Stuart, one
of the world's leading global executive search and
leadership consulting firms;
> ensuring our Directors understand the legal and
regulatory aspects of being a Board member; and
> anintroduction 1o our business, through site visits and
meetings with our management teams.

fNDUCTION FOR ALISON HENRIKSEN

Alison Henriksen's induction to date has incorporated a

wude range of meetings and visits. These have included:

meetings with all GELT members and global senior staff,

eitherin person or virtually;

meetings with all Doard members;

meetings with head office staff;

> meetings with investars, the external auditor, lenders
and corporate advisers; and

> visits to the Group's facilities at Stapetey, Cheshire,
and Ruthin, Wales.

*

v

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Alison was unable
to visit Group sites in the US and other parts of the world.
These will resume when possible, along with visits to
key customers.

INDUCTION FOR IAIN FERGUSON

Having joined the Board on 1 July 2020, lain Ferguson's

induction is ongoing. To date, he has:

> held introductory video calls with GELT members,

© attended a GELT meeting in person and held in person

meetings with the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer
and Group General Counsel and Company Secrétary;

> held introductory video calls with Board members and
attended the July Board meeting in person; and

> held calls with corporate advisers.

QOnce COVID-19 restrictions are lifted, 1ain will visit the Ruthin
and Stapeley facilities in the UK and the DeForest and
Hendersonville sites in the US, as well as holding meetings
with key customers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS AND FOCUS AREAS
FORFY21

Alongside the Board evaluation process described on

page 58, we reviewed the performance of the Nomination
Committee. This identified a number of important areas of
focus for the coming year, including the successful induction
of the new Chairman of the Board, and the continued need
for proactive succession planning for key executive rales.

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
Copies of service contracts and letters of appointment
between the Directors and the Company will be availabie
for inspection at the Company's registered office Guring
normal business hours until the conclusion of the AGM on
25 Novemnber 2020, and at the AGM from at least 15 minutes
prior to the meeting until its conclusion.
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Lysanne Gray
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT &
RISK COMMITTEE

Dear Sharehoider

The Audit & Risk Committee acts on behalf of the Board and
shareholders, to ensure the integrity of the Group's financial
reporting, evaluate its system of risk management and
internal control, and oversee the performance of the
internal and external auditors. We have an annual work
programme that is designed to deliver these commitments,
which we followed during the year.

There was no change to the Committee's membership this
year and | am happy to report that the membership
continues to comply with the UK Corporate Governance
Code and related guidance. All members are independent
NEDs, who bring a sound range of financial, commercial and
scientific expertise to the Committee.

All members received regular updates from the external
auditor, to ensure they continue to have current knowledge
of the accounting and financial reporting standards relevant
to the Group and the regulatory changes relevant to the
pr0v15|on of external audit services. .

Risk management requires continuous focus and was
proven to be criticat this year with the ongoing outbreak of
COVID-19. During the year we discussed the Group's existing
and emerging risks and ensured that the Committee and the
Board received and discussed detailed input from
management on key risks and mitigation plans. We further
discussed management’s assessment of the COVID-19
impact on internal financial controls and were satisfied
these controls continued to operate as designed. We also
received an update on the implementation of the first phase
of a Group-wide enterprise system which will further
strengthen the control envirenment and support control
standardisation across the Group, and continued to monitor
the development of next phases.

We have carefully considered the critical accounting policies:

and judgements, the quality of disclosures and compliance
with financial reporting standards, including the adoption
of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ and the relevant changes in Corporate
Governance Code and Companies Act requirements, and
reviewed the half-year and Annual Report, together with the
related management and external audit reports. We also
supported the Board in reviewing the going concern and
viability statements and supporting analysis and disclosure.

In May 2020 the Company received a request for information
from the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) concerning the
Annual Report and Accounts to 30 June 2019. The
Committee reviewed all correspondence in this regard. The
Company received a finat fetter from the FRC in August 2020,
confirming their satisfaction with the responses provided
and closure of their enquiries. As a result of these enquiries
an enhanced set of disclosures have been included in the

. 2020 Annual Report. The review conducted by the FRC was

based solely on the Group’s published Annual Report and
does not provide any assurance that the Annual Report is
carrectin all material respects; the FRC's role is not to verify
the information provided but to consudercompha nce with
reporting requlrements .

Based on assessments of the effectiveness of internal

and external audit, the Committee was satisfied with the
performance of both the internal and external auditors,
while taking opportunities to further enhance the audit
services provided during the year. We also reviewed the
changes made to the internal and external audit plans, due
to COVID-19, to ensure the appropriateness of the risk
assessment and scope of work.

LYSANNE GRAY

Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

7 September 2020

COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

Chair Membars

Lysanne Gray 1an Charles
Lesley Knox

Lykele van der Braek

The Committee members’ biographies, along with
infarmation on Genus's other Board members, can be found
on pages 50to 51.

The Board has confirmed thatit is satisfied that Committee
members possess an appropriate level of independence
and relevant financial and commercial experience across
various industries relevant to the Company.

The Committee has formal terms of reference, approved by
the Board, that comply with the UK Corporate Governance
Code. These are available from our website:
www.genuspic.com, The Committee’s annual review of
these terms took place during the year.

COMMITTEE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee's role and responsibilities include reviewing

and monitoring:

» thefinancial reporting process and any significant
financial reporting judgements;

> theintegrity of the Group's financial statements and
any formal announcements relating to financial
performance;

> the Annual Report, to ensure it is fair, balanced and
understandable;
the Company’s reporting to shareholders;

> the effectiveness of the Group’s accounting systems
and control environment, inciuding risk management
and the internal audit function; and

> the effectiveness, independence and cbjectivity of the
Group's external auditor, including any non-audit
services it provides to the Group.
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The Committee also:

> ensures that the Grniip maintains suitable confidential
arrangements for employees to raise concerns; and

> reviews the Group’s systems and controls for preventing
bribery,

The Committee reports its findings to the Board, identifying
any matters that require action or impeovement, and
making recommendations about the steps to be taken.

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

Every three years the Board 2ppoints an external consultant
to independently evaluate its performance, and thatof its
Committees, The last review was performed in 2019 and
conciuded that the Committee was eflective in meeting its

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

conciuded that it was effective, The Committee agreed to
wotitinue 1o enhance its eflectiveness by further broadening
its members’ knowledge of relevant financial reporting
standards.

THE COMMITTEE'S MAIN ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR
During the year, the Committee held five meetings and
invited the Company’s Chairman, Chief Executive, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Group Financial Controller, the Head
of Risk Management and Internal Audit, and senior
representatives of the external auditor to attend these
meetings. The Committee also held separate private
sessions during the year with the Head of Risk Management
and Internal Audit and the external audit lead partner, Atits
meetings, the Commitiee focused on the following topics:
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objectives. In 2020, the Committee assessed its own
effectiveness, through a structured questionnaire, and

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The main areas of focus and matters where the Committee specifically considered management’s judgements are set
out below:

Financial reporting area

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS VALUATION

Judgement and assumptions considered

In compliance with IAS 41, Genus records its biological assets at fair value in the

Group balance sheet (£370.2m), with the net valuation movement shown in the
income statement. During the year management identified a data extraction errorin
connection with the valuation of our porcine Pureline herd, whereby certain of oyr
records incorrectly ¢lassified some male animals going to slaughter as female. The
error dates back to inception of the herd in 2012. This in turn increased the percentage
of animals going to breeding sales which resulted in an overstatement in the valuation
of our Pureline berd. The Committee reviewed the related processes and controlsin
detail and are satisfied that the root cause of the error has been identified and
resolved. The Committee is satisfied with the proposed accounting treatment and

the adjustments made to restate the FY19 and FY18 Balance Sheets. This adjustment
amounted 10 a £15.2m reduction in the FY18 net assets being a £20.5m reduction in
Biological assets, offset by a £5.3m decrease in deferred tax liabilities in FY18. We
consider the impact on the FY19 Income Statement and Other Comprehensive Income
to be immaterial, and these are therefore not restated. See note 2 Basis of Preparation
for additional detalls. :

The Committee has reviewed the methadology, which has remained unchanged, and
outcomes of the biological assets valuation. The Committee debated and considered
management's assumptions and astimates, through the current period, and
discussed and reviewed the external auditor’s report an this area, before concurring
with management's proposals. The Committee was satisfied with management's
accounting treatment, including the income statement increase of £13.2m in the
valuve of porcine biological assets and the increase of £2.6m in the value of bovine
biological assets. .

Genus has £105.6m of goodwill {tested annually for impairment) oa the Group balance
sheet, The Committee discussed management’s goodwitl impairment review, as well as
the external auditor's report on this area, including its assessment of management’s
models underpinning the estimates and judgements. After due challenge and debate,
the Committee was satisfied with management's assumptions and judgements.

GOODWILL
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Financial reporting ares

iud. 1t and 1

GOING CONCERN AND
VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Committee has reviewed the Group's assessment of going concern aver a period
of 12 months and viability over a period of three years.

In assessing viability, the Committee has considered the Group's budget and strategic
plan, its capital and funding plans, its principai risks, as detailed on pages 44 to 46,
and the liquidity and capital projections over the period. The assessment also
incorporated the uncertainty and potential impact arising from COVID-19. The
Cammittee has also reviewed the Group’s reverse stress tests and is satisfied that this
is appropriate in supporting the Group as a Going Concern,

The Committee has concluded that the assumptions are appropriate and that the
viability statement could be provided, and advised the Board that three years was a
suitable period of review. The Committee was alse satisfied with the disclosures in
relation to the appropriateness of the assessment period seiected, the assumptions
made and how the underlying analysis was performed. The going cancern and
viability statement is disciosed on page 47 of the report.

PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE
OF EXCEPTIONAL AND ADJUSTING
ITEMS

Genus had £27.6m of adjusting items, including £19.2m of exceptional items in the
Group income statement. The Committee considered the presentation of these items
in the financial staternents, due to the nature of these items and the guidelines on the
use of alternative performance measures, issued by the European Securities and
Markets Authaority. The Committee received detailed reports from management
outlining the judgements applied in relation to the disclosure of adjusting items,
which include net |1AS 41 valuation movement on biological assets, amortisation of
acquired intangible assets, share-based payment expense and exceptional iterns, For
adjusting items, the Committee took into consideration the improvements made
concerning APM disclosures, their volatility and lack of correlation to the underlying
progress and performance of the business. Specifically for exceptional items, the
Cammittee took into consideration the materiality, frequency and nature of the items.
Foltowing this detailed review and active discussion with management, the
Committee has concluded that the presentation of the financial statementsis
appropriate.
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MONITORING BUSINESS RISKS

The Committee discussed the principal risks identificd with

management and the external and internal auditors, along

with management’s plans to mitigate them, and received

regular detdiled updates from the risk owners and their

direct reports. In addition to reviewing the principal risks,

the Committee received detailed updates on the fallowing:

> COVID-19: the Committee considered the Company's
assessment of risks and uncertainties relating to the
outbreak and the impact on the Company’s principal
risks. The Committee reviewed the risk mitigation
strategy designed to prioritise the safety and well-being
of staff, customers and suppliers and ensure business
continuity.

> Enterprise system: the Committee received regular
updates on the project to implement a new Group-wide
business system. The Committee also considered the
results of the implementation of the first phase of this
project and discussed the key lessons to be applied 1o
future phases.

> Cyber security: the Committee requested and received
updates from the Chief information Officer on thecyber
security risk faced by the Group and the actions being
taken to strengthen infrastructure and systemns security.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Qur risk management process and system of internal control
are described in detail on page 68, The Committee reviewed
the approach to standardising financial reporting controls
and the results of the key financial controls self-assessment
process, whichis performed every six months. The
Committee received an update on the impact of COVIG-19
on the control environment and was satisfied that all key
controls continued to be in place throughout the financial
period. The Committee also reviewed internal audit’s findings
at each scheduled meeting and received updates on the
implementation of management's remedial actions.

The Committee further reviewed the Group's whistleblowing
policy and bribery prevention procedures.

The Committee conducted its annual review of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and
disclosures. The review did not identify any significant
controf failings. However, Genus routinely identifies and
implements control improvement opporiunities and the
Committee discussed with management various
opportunities to further strengthen the Group’s system of
internal control,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

OVERSIGHT OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND EXTERNAL AUDIT
INTERNAL AUDIT

The Committee reviewed and approved the internal audit
function's scope, terms of reference, resources and
activities. The Head of Risk Management and Internal Audit
provided regular reports to the Committee on the work
undertaken and management'’s responses to proposals
made in the internal audit reports issued during the year,
The Committee continued to meet the Head of Risk
Management and Internal Audit without management being
present. The Committee reviewed and was satisfied with the
internal audit function’s performance.

EXTERNAL AVDIT

Deloitte LLP was first appointed as the Company’s externat
auditor for the period ended 30 June 2006. Following a
formal tender process, Deloitte was reappointed for the
audit of the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

The Committee considers that it would be appropriate to
conduct an external audit tender by no tater than 2025,
The Company has complied with the Statutory Audit
Services Order for the financial year under review.

The Committee reviewed and agreed the external auditor's
scope of work and fees, held detailed discussions of the
results of its audit and continued to meet the external
auditor without management being present. The
Committee reviewed the external auditor's objectivity

and independence and the Group’s policy on engaging

the external auditor to supply non-audit services, The
Committee obtained confirmation that the Revised Ethical
Standard has been complied with and received the details
of the external auditer's non-audit services to the Group,
reviewed the nature and monetary levels of these services,
which stood at 28% of audit fees, and reviewed compliance
with the Group’s Non-Audit Services by Auditor Policy [see
note 8 to the financial statements for further details). The
Committee was satisfied that using Deloitte for such
services did not impair its independence as the Group's
external auditor,

The Committee assessed the external auditor’s
performance in conducting the audit for the June 2019
year end, based on discussions with key finance staff and
Committee members. The questionnaires covered the
external auditor's fulfilment of the audit plan, the auditor's
robustness and perceptiveness in its handling of key
accounting and audit judgements, the content of the
external auditor's reports, and cost effectiveness. The
Committee also considered any regulatory reviews
performed on the external auditor. While noting some
opportunities for further improvement, the Committee
concluded that the external auditor was effective and was
satisfied with the plan put forward by the external auditor
to respond to the op portunities for improvement identified.
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AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board Is responsible for our risk management system,
which is designed to identify, evaluate and pricritise the
risks and uncertainties we face. The Board sets our risk
appetite, monitors the Group's risk exposure for our

principal risks and ensures appropriate executive ownership

for all rigks. This ongoing risk management process for the
Group's significant risks was in place for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts. Our principal risks and how we mitigate them
are summarised on pages 44 to 46.

To further assist its understanding of risk, the Board
continued its programeme of visits to our local operations,
prior to being interrupted by the COVID-19 travel
restrictions. The Board received regular political, economic
and industry risk updates from the relevant business
groups, The Board performed its annual risk review in May
2020. This involved a fresh review of the types and tevels
of risk facing Genus as it executes its strategy and was
designed to identify and evaluate any new or emerging
risks and ascertain whether the risk register covered all
“relevant risks. ‘

The Board also performed detailed reviews of the COVID-19
risks and received regular updates in relation to management's
mitigation plans, both in the short and long terms.

INTERRAL CONTROL

The key elements of our internal éontrol system are set out
below. An internal control system cannot completely
eliminate the risks we face or ensure we do not have a
material misstatement or loss.

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Board sets formal authorisation levels and other
controls that allow it to delegate autharity to run our
businesses to the Chief Executive, GELT and their
-management teams. Our management supplements these
controls by setting the operating standards that each
subsidiary needs for its business and location.

GELT regularly reviews our performance against strategy,
budget and a defined set of operational key performance
indicators. The Chief Executive, Group Finance Director,
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary, and Groug
Financial Controller also hold monthly reviews with each
business unit,

QUALITY AND INTEGRITY OF DUR PEOPLE

We strive to operate with high integrity in everything we do.’
Our control environment depends on high-quality people
who maintain our ethical standards. We ensure our people's
ability and integrity through our recruitment standards,
training and consistent performance management. The
Board is informed of appointments to our most senior
management positions.

INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEMS
we create detailed operational budgets for the year ahead,
along with five-year strategic plans, which the Board reviews
and approves. We then monitor our performance
throughout the year, so we can address any issues. The
information we consider inciudes our monthly financial
results, key performance indicators and variances, updated
full-year forecasts and key business risks.

The main internal control and risk management processes
relating to our preparation of consolidated accounts are our
Group-wide accounting policies and procedures,
segregation of duties, system access contrals, a robust
consolidation and reporting system, various levels of
management review and centrally defined process control
points and reconciliation processes.

INVESTMENT APPRAISAL

We control our capital expenditure through our budget:
process and by having clear authorisation levels, above
which our businesses must submit detailed written
proposals to the Board for approval,

We carry out due diligence for business acquisitions and
material licences, and conduct post-completion reviews of
major projects, to ensure we identify areas far improvernent
and correct any areas of underperformance or overspend.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

Our internal audit activities ace provided by in-hniise and
external resources, under the leadership of our Head of Risk
Management and Internal Audit. During the year, Internai
Audit completed a risk-based audit programme agreed by
the Audit & Risk Committee. The Committee reviews the
results of these audits and the subsequent actions we take,
which we also communicate to the external auditor.

All business units complete risk and control seff-
assessments twice a year. Internal Audit, as part of its

work programme, performs independent reviews of these
assessments to identify any deficiencies in our controls and
how we should address them. The external auditor also
provides observations on the control environrnent as part
of its audit work. The results are communicated to senior
managerment and the Audit& Risk Committee.

The Board, with the help of the Audit & Risk Committee,
reviewed the effectiveness of our internal control system, as
well as our financial, operatianal and compliance controls
and our risk management. The review considered our
internal control self-assessment process, which is designed
10 assess compliance with our minimum control standards,
the independent internal audit programme, and the reports
management prepared when the Board appraved the
interim and final results and financial statements. It also
assessed;
> whether we had identified, evaluated, managed and
controlled significant risks, and .
> whether any significant weaknesses had arisen, and if so,
whether we had addressed them.

The assessment also took inta account any risk ar control
issues we identified through our divisional business reviews,
Board and GELT meetings, and insurers’ reviews,

We have an internal control continvous improvement work

_ programme and routinely identify opportunities to

strengthen our control envirgnmeant and impiove our risk
management capabilities. However, the Board has not
identified or been told of any significant failings in our
internal controls.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Section A ~ Annual statement

Strong financial performance and continued progress
against strategic priorities

Lesiey Knox

SENIOR INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIREC TOR ANG
CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION
AND NOMINATION COMMITTEES

This Remuneration Reporthas
been prepared $0t complies with
the provislons of the Large and
Medlum-sized Campanies and
Groups {Accounts & Reports)
(Amendmaent) Regutations 2013,
which set sut the disclosures
required tor Directors'
femunatation as a1 the reporting
date. The Report Is also In
accordance with the
requirements af the Anancia!
Conguck Authority's Listing Rules,

The Independent Auditor’s
Report statas whethey, in the
auditor's opinlon, the parts of
the Reportthat e subject to
audit have baen praperly
prepared in secordance with the
laglslation, We have highlighted
the partsof thisReport which
have been audited, ’

AIMS OF OUR REMUNERATION POLICY

ES

Continued transformation into a global agricultural
biotechneology pioneer

Pursuit of leading-edge technology and focus on long
term innovation and opportunity to enable future
value creation for shareholders

Sustainable robust short-term delivery of financiat
performance as we invest in the future

Ability to recognise innovation and progress, which
are crucial to securing long-term bottom-tine
performance

Ability to attract and motivate a high-quality
leadership team and drive facus and behaviours on
long term achievement in a global market for talent
Recognise expectations of shareholders on reward
and governance

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 2020. This year the Group has
delivered strong performance across all its businesses and
continued to advance against our strategic priorities.

We were pleased with the investor response to our new
Remuneration Policy which was approved by over 93% of
our shareholders at the 2019 AGM on 14 November 2019.
The changes were designed to ensure continued alignment
with our strategy and to reflect evolving expectations from
shareholders. in this report we focus on the alignment with
the shareholder experience and how the metrics used
within reward plans act as a robustindicator of
organisational progress.

Stephen Wilson was appointed as Chief Executive in
September 2019 and his contribution has evolved further
as he has successfully established himself in the CEO role.
We also welcomed Alison Henriksen to the Board as Chief
Financial Officer and full details of her remuneration are
contained within this report.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND INSIGHT

Further details on our people and culture are described
within the Annual Report. Our latest all employee survey,
Your Voice, was carvied out at the end of 2019 and as a
Committee (and wider Board) we discussed the responses
from employees noting their overall satisfaction with
working in the business, and the actions planned within
the business to address key findings or any concerns raised.
Lykele van der Broek and | additionally held a number of
face-to-face or virtual sessions with employees across
several locations to discuss their averali employrnent
experience, including the way that reward structures
cascade through the business,

All Board Directors have engaged with the wider workforce
through visits during the year and we look forward to more
of these in the future. We also considered the gender pay
position within Genus Breeding Limited, our largest UK
subsidiary, and the overall demographics and reward of
our employees across the Group.

COVID-19

Through the course of 2020 we have seen the impact of
COVID-19 and the effects of a widespread global pandemlc
on societies across the world.

Qur industry is an essential part of the food chain and Genus
employees have continued to perform their roles. In some
instances, this has been in the normal way at defined
company locations, but many employees have had to adapt
to alternative working arrangements from home and they
have been successfully able to provide continuity of
operations, interact with customers and ultimately realise
robust financial performance over the period. Genus has not
utilised any government schemes to provide support or
protection for employees unable to work, and has not made
any employees redundant or made changes to employee
compensation as a result of the pandemic, It is testament to
all employees that we have been able to deliver high levels
of business performance against this backdrop.
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We have also considered theimpact of COVID-13 on

the future application of our Policy. We have agreed that
the existing Policy continues to be appropriate for the
organisation and will look to operate this unchanged in
the year ahead. Opportunity levels will be unchanged
under our variable plans and we have been able to set
robust performance targets against which future awards
will be assessed.

DETERMINING REWARD OUTCOMES FOR 2020

As is highlighted throughout the Annual Report, the year
has resulted in very strong financial achievement for the
business. In finalising reward outcomes, as well as the
performance metrics, we considered two overarching
themes: the experience of the wider workforce across Genus
during the yeac, and the experience of our sharehoiders.

We have always considered this read-across, but this year
we have considered in detail the impact of COVID-19 against
these stakeholder groups.

Most of our employees participate in types of variable
reward plans across the Group, often drawing upon the
same periormance metrics as that used for Executive
Directors or other GELT members {or more localised
metrics reflecting the scope of responsibility of the
specific individuals). We have seen a range of performance
outcomes across different individual business units (as
would normally be the case) and we are comfartable both
that: i) there is alignment beiween pay and performance;
and ii) COVID-19 has not led to groups of our workforce
having material reductions or changes in reward levels from
prior years.

A key driver of our future success is making strategic
progress now in order to enable growth in the future.

As highlighted elsewnere within the report there are
numeroys examples of strategic progress achieved during
2020 that demonstrate Genus as @ global agricuttural
biotechnology pioneer. This is seen through the pursuit of
leading-edge technology and innovation to enable future
value creation for shareholders, such as the progressin
our strategic collaboration with BCA to develop and
commercialise PRRSv resistant pigs and innovative
impravemants in the technology and performance of our
IntelliGen technology to meet global demand for Sexcel.

Alongside this strategic progress and transformation, Genus
has managed to trade effectively and deliver strong financial
performance during the year. Our year end performance
shows profit growth for the year of over 16% alongside cash
generation and we have confirmed our intention to pay a
final dividend. At a me when many companies have seen
significant deterioration in their year on year performance,
we have demonstrated strong growth. This has been
reflected in our share price which has grown by 33% over
the year against a drop in the FTSE 250 of 10%.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

OUTCOMES FOR EXECUTIVES

It is against this background that we have determined the
reward outcomes for each of the Executive Directors and for
all members of GELT, as well as understanding the read
across to the wider workforce. We reviewed performance
achieved against targets set for the Annual Bonus for 2020
(for Stephen Wilson and Alisan Henriksenj and the
Performance Share Plan award made to Stephen Wilson

in 2017. The targets and respective levels of attainment

are disctosed in detai! within the report.

ANNUAL BONUS 2020

The Committee was comfortable that the formulaic
outcormne was representative of the strong underdying
performance of the business over the period and is a fair
reflection of achievement against the financial and
individual sbjectives that were set.

The Annual Bonus cutcome {based on a combination of
financial and non-financial metrics) means that 9196 of the
bonus opportunity is payable to Stephen, of which one third
15 made in shares under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan
{'DSBP’) which are deferred for three years. The award level
far Alison is also 919 of the opportunity, again with the
same delerral structure. Awards for Alison Henriksen have
been prorated, reflecting her start date midway through
the 2020 performance year.

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN

Awards under the Performance Share Plan {'PSP’} granted
to Stephen in Septernber 2017 will vest in September 2020
These awards were linked to our EPS pecformance over the
three-year period. Average annual EPS growth of 8.19%
means that 44.99 of these shares will vest, and this is
disclosed within the singte figure table. it is of note that the
share price between grant and vest shows an increase of
T1%, and this appreciation accounts for £211k of the total
PSP figure disciosed, Under our Policy, Stephen is obliged to
retain the post-tax number of shares for a further two years
post vesting.

SUMMARY

we have focused carefully over the past year inconsidering
aur overall business performance and the corresponding
reward outcomes across Genuys. This means undarstanding
the way pay for performance is seen across the business,
but additionally the alignment of that performance with the
shareholder experience. We hope that the accompanying
disclosure provides mare insight an our considerations 8s

a Committee, and how we are confident that the outcomes
demaonstrated here represent robust and appropriate
implementation of our Policy agreed in 2019.

I look forward to your support at our forthcoming AGM.
If you have any feedback, | can be contacted at
remunerationchair@genusplc.com.

Lesley Knox
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section B - At a Glance 2020 (year ending 30 June 2020)

{For more detail please see pages 72 to 91)

What Executive Directors were paid in 2020:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE: KARIM BITAR
{Resigned as Chlef Executive effective
13 September 2015)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE: STEPMEN WILSON
{Appointed as Chief Executive and ceased
to be Group Finance Director on

13 September 2019}

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
ALISOM HENRIKSEN
{Appointed on 13 January 2020}

1

BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

>

>

2

Salary was increased for Stephen
Wilson on appointment as CEQ
Benefits include a car allowance
for each Executive Director
Pension allowance for Stephen
Wilson was reduced to 109 of
salary on appointment to CEQ.
The allowance payable for Alison
Henriksen is 6% of salary

ANNUAL BONUS

>

Metrics used and weighting:
Adjusted profit before tax (S0%),
Cash generation {159), Strategic

* measures {3596)

3

Overall award 91% of maximum
for Stephen Wiison and 91% of
maximum for Alison Henriksen
33% of the total award under this
element made in shares deferred
for three years

PSP

>

Awards granted in September
2017 vested at 44.9% of maximum
based on average annual
adjusted earnings per share
growth achieved of 8.1%

1 REMUNERATION BREAKDOWN

No annual bonue was payabte ko Karimon
account of his notice to resign which was.
regeived in March 2014. In addition, no.
further shares vested under our
Perfarmance Share Flanon account of his
employment anding before the scheduted
wveslting date, Inling withtherulas of the
2014 PSP Plan,

_ Tk it In tina with the Remuneration Palicy .
agreed [n 2016 by shareholders.

1 Caleulated based on the average share price for the finat quarter of inancial year ended 30 June 2020 (3,381p).

CHIEF EXECUTIVE:
KARIM BITAR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE:
STEPHEN WILSON

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
ALISON HENRIKSEM
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Section B - At a Glance 2021 (year ending 30 June 2021)

{For more detail please see pages 72 to 91)
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What Executive Directors can earnin 2021 and how:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE: STEPHENWILSON

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: ALISON HENRIKSEN

> Salary increases of 2% effective
September 2020

> Nochange to benefit provision
for 2021

1 BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

ANNUAL BONUS
> Annual bonus opportunity of

175% of salary split between

profit, cash and strategic metrics

asshown

PSP (SEPTEMBER 2018 AWARDS)
3 > Thevesting of these awards

depends on the adjusted earnings
per share (excluding gene editing

costs) achieved inthe three
financial years ending
30 June 2021

PSP (SEPTEMBER 2020 AWARDS)
4 > The vesting of these awards will
be subject to an adjusted
earnings per share growth, with
the 2023 adjusted earnings per

share being compared to the 2020

adjusted earnings per shate

. {excluding gene editing costs)

= 5% annual growth threshotd -
20% vesting

> 15% annuat growth - 100%
vesting i

> vesting levels will be calculated
based on a straight-line basis
between the above values

STEPHEN WILEON: MAX)MUM OF 175% OF SALARY,
TARGET AWARD OF 87.5% OF SALARY

Awards over 29,613 Genus shares

AWARD TQ STEPHEN WILSON OF Z00% OF SALARY

ALISON HENRIKSEN: MAXIMUM DF 1759 OF SALARY,
TARGET AWARD OF 87.5% OF SALARY

N/A

AWARD TQ ALISON HENRIKSEN OF 175% OF SALARY

73
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section B - Wider Workforce Remuneration

The Commitlee developed the Remunerabon Policy agreed by sharehalders in 2018 having reviewed the wider framework for reward across the
organisation and the way that this dnves alignment of individuals towards orgamisational goals. It recenes updates annually en any matenal changes to
wider workfarce arrang angd addi lly consicers employee f on reward matters. This is from Group-wide mechanisms (such as our our
Vorce survey) but additionally from direct interaction b desi o Non-E Directars and employees.

Ourrewand pnnciples apply to all employees within the business and are designed to ensure we can attract, motivate and retain people fundamental to
achieving our vision, and be part of a global organisation. We want people within the business engaged and delivenng because they are excited by our visicn,
the part they tan play in this, and the difference they can make.

These principles are applied as consistently as we can, such that reward « standardised wherever possibie, and delivered in ling with ourvalues. While the

quantum may vary between roles, the principle of aligning reward outcomes with perf eis fund L 10 Lthe way e
Reward slomant Qur apgroath
BASE SALARY Pay rates are determined with reference 10 the skill set and experience of the indiidual. Most pay rates are reviewed annually

acioss the Group, with adjustments with reference 1 indwidual performance levels, market pay competitiveness and overall
business affordability.

BENEFITS The countries we aperate in display ddferent practices «n terms of benefit provision. Typical benefits inchude access to life
insurance, pensica o retirement provision and may include medical cover. Our approach is driven by local market factors
twhich may inchude legislative requirements; rather than 3 singte common benefit oflening globally.

VARIABLE PAY We operate a range of anaual variable reward schemes and most of our employees partiipate in one of these arrangements.
These include:

Annual benus

> Bases on acombination of financial perlosmance and non-financial metngs assessed through our performance
i proct {which ali k participaten)

> Financial metrics based around profitability and cash performance

> where metrics are consistent with those used for Executive Directors or GELY members, then the same target/
performandce scale Is used for everyone to drive alignment.

Production facilities - KP| plans
» Linked to the balanced scocecard of local KPIs for facility, covering metrics such as proguction cutput, health and safety,
and other defined KPIs.

Commissions
» Derived from ndeadual sales performance of the individual,

In addstion, we make discretianary awards of shares across the business anrwally, rellecting the contribution of the individual
ang te drive future alignment with our performance.
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Section B - CEO Pay Ratio

QUR CEO PAY RATIO FOR 2020

Our CEQ Pay ratio is shown below. The single figure for year ending 30 June 2020 reflects the change in CEO during the year. This means it includes salary
and benefits for Karim Bitar through to his resignation, and all applicable reward elements for Stephen Wilson from the date of his appo:ntment asCEQ
{13 September 2019) 10 30 June 2020.

CEOQ single Madian ratie vt
figure CEO target
£000 25th percentile Madian 75th percentile remunsration
Year ended FTE reward Ratio  FTEraward Ratio  FTEreward Ratio
30 June 2020 2,170 £25,230 86:1 £31,748 68:1 £42,426 481 51:1

No elepnents of pay liave been omitied o the calculation and pay quartiles determined as at 30 June 2020 and is calculated based on those employed at
this date. Where required, actual levels of remuneration were adjusted to create full time equivalentvalues by considering both the employees full time
equivalent hours and {where applicable) the propartion of the year that the individual was employed. The quartile values, split between salary and benefits
are as follows:

15th 75th
percentile Madian percentile
Salary (FTE) £23,087 £26,689 £34,747
Total pay and benefits £25230  £3L748 . £42426

The median ratio is consistent with pay and reward policies in operation within the business. Salaries are set with reference to market levels of pay, with
progression linked to experience and performance in role. The structure of reward in operation means that greater propartion of pay is linked to variable
pay in more senior roles, and will therefore fluctuate linked to business and individual performance outcomes against targets set,

OUR CEQ PAY RATIO HISTORY

To provide additional context we have also shown the ratio for the previous two years, The CEO 'single figure’ for year ending 2013 was lower than the prior
year. This reflected the decision of our previous CEO to resign from the business and forfeit any awards under Qur annual bonus or long-term incentive,
albeit he was still employed by Genus at the end of the financial year, For illustration we have also shown the ratios against the target level of reward we
disclased within our Remuneration Policies as agreed by shareholders.

Medianratiovs

CEO single target CEO
figure 25th parcentile Median 7Sthpercentile single Figure
Year ended CEO  FTE reward Ratio FTEreward Ratio  FTEreward Ratia Ratio
30 June 19 EB15% £24638 331 £31,867 261 £41,792 20:1 5Tk
30Juneld : £2,549k  £24,204 1051 £30,759 8x1  £40,203 63:1 58:1

METHOD OF CALCULATION AND RATIONALE

We have elected to use calculation Method A as outlined within the legislation. We have done this to get as accurate a picture as passible for the reward of
all our UK employees compared to the CEQ. This contrasts with cur disclosure on Gender Pay which focuses on our largest UK subsidiary (Genus Breeding
Limited) rather than alt employees in the UK a5 required by the respective legislation. It ensures that the calculation is done on 2 full-time equivalent basis
in comparing employee reward to the CEC position.

FACTORS THAT WILL INFLUENCE CHANGES IN FUTURE RATIOS
The ratio will be calculated each year and we will disclose the resultant ratio and provide commentary and explanation as required. Key identified reasons
for future change may include some or all of the following factors:

Share price change: recognising that a significant proportion of the CEQ expected remuneration is delivered in shares vesting at future dates.
>' Business performance: That the overall CEQ package is more highly geared towards variable pay than most other employees within the UK business.
> Role change: The transition of our former Group Finance Director into the CEO role, which will mean that future vesting

of PSP awards vesting in 2020 and 2021 will be based on award levels and associated salary while in the Group Finance Director role.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section C - Remuneration and Performance Statement

GENUS'S STRATEGY AND ITS LINK TO PERFORMANCE-RELATED PAY
Qurstrategy and the way this is linked to variable reward is shown below.

INCREASE GENETIC SUCCESS
CONTRCL AND MEASURED
PRODUCT

DIFFERENTIATION

TARGETING KEY
MARKETS AND
SEGMENTS

SHARINGIN
THE VALUE
DELIVERED

BY

R&D AND BUSINESS LINKTO
INNOVATION REMUNERATION
POLICY

.

PROPRIETARY GENETIC
IMPROVEMENT AND
DISSEMINATION

. POSITIONS

VOLUME GROWTH

OPERATING PROFIT

CASH CONVERSION

PERFORMANCE CO‘MPONENTS AND THEIR IMPACT ON REMUNERATION

Strategic measures within the annual bonus
focus on key activities in pursuit of our
defined longer-term strategy

Strategic objectives recognise wider
progress than financial measures alone

Measured through the profit element of the
annual bonus

Over the fonger term will flow into EPS, used
to determine vesting under the PSP

Measured through the cash element of the
annual bonus

Movement

2019 2020 % lmpacton remunesation
Adjusted results
Revenue £488.5m £551.4m 13 Inputte annual bonus profit and earnings pershare in PSP
Adjusted profit before tax £61.0m ET1.0m 16 Annual bonus measure
Generation of free cash flow £10.0m £35.2m 252 Annual bonus measure
Adjusted earnings per share 73.2p 85.4p 17 PSP performance condition
Dividend pershare 277p 29.1p 5 Executives rewarded via dividends on shares held post vesting
Share price at year end 264Bp 3,532p 33 Determines the value of deferred bonuses and PSP awards

Values in the table are in actual currency as shown in the Annual Report. A number of adjustments are made to these for the purposes of calculating awards
under our inCentive plans as described in this report and in line with our Remuneration Policy.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' ALIGNMENT TO SHARE PRICE
The table below shows the value of shares currently held by the Executive Directors and those awarded under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan ('DSBPY),

but not yet released {on a post-tax basis). It does not include those awards under the PSP which are scheduled to vest in the future subject to Company
earnings per share performance, which have the potential to significantly increase the alignment of the Executives, subject to the resulting level of vesting.

Consequence
Shares awarded Indicative valueon of a+f-£2 share
Shares under the DSBP Tota! share 30 June 2020 price change
owned (post-tax} expasure (E¥ (3] Conclusion
Stephen Wilson 73,330 13,332 86,662 2,936,029 173,323 CEQ s aligned to share price mavement
- - through ordinary shareholding. CFO was
Alison Henriksen 0 Nil o 0 appointed into role during 2020

1 value calculateg uslng the average share price for the final quartes of the financial year ended 30 June 2020 (3,381p).
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section O - Annuat Report on Remuneration

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report is subject to an advisory vote at the 2020 AGM. Rernuneration in respect of 2020 is determined by our
Remuneration Policy agreed by 93.4% of shareholders at the 2019 AGM. The detailed Policy, approved by shareholders at the 2019 AGM on 14 November
20189, can be found in oyr 2019 Annual Report which is available from our website at www genusplc.com.

We have split this section int0 the following chapters to balance our forma! disclosure obligations with our desire to have 2 clear and understandable report:

. What the Executive Directars Were Paid in 2620

. What the Executive Directors Can Earn in 2021

The Process the Committee Followed to Arrive at These Dacisions.

How the Chief Executive's Pay Compares to Shareholder Returns Over the Past Ten Years and to Employees’ Pay.
The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ Feas.

. Details of the Directors’ Shareholdings and Rights to Shares.

Details of the Executive Directors’ Contracts and Non-Executive Directors’ Letters of Appointment.

NOn s wN e

1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2020
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ SINGLE TOTAL REMUNERATION FIGURE {AUDITED}
The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration for the 2020 financial year for each of the Executive Directors and compares this figure to the

prior year,
Annual Annual Subtotal
Subtotal bonus? bonus for
Salary for fixad (Cere  (Company varlable
andiges Beneflts'  Pension? pay Bonus}  Milestane)* RSPE pay Totad
Year £000s £000s £000¢ £000s EQOOs £000s £000s £000s £000s
Karim Bitar 2020 131 B 40 183 Nil nfa Mil Nil 183
{resigned as CEQ effective 13 September 2019) 2019 626 33 156 B1S Nil Nil Nil Nil 815
Stephen Wilson 2020 550 13 59 622 945 nfa 508 1,453 2,075
{Ceased to be Group Finance Director and
appointed CEQ from 13 September 2019) 201% 390 13 S8 461 209 157 176 1,142 1,603
Alison Henriksen 2020 190 6 12 208 297 nfa - 297 565
{appointed 13 January 2020) 201% - - - - - - - - -
L Benef luded an annial car " of £20.000 for Karim Bitar and £12,000 for Stephen Wiison and Allson Henrlksen respactively. Insured benefits Include itfe assurance, private medical Insurance

and » medical screen.

2 Execulive Directors racelve a cash allowance in lieu of pension, which is shawn in the Pension column, The percentage contribution payable to Stephen wilson was reduced on appaintment to CEO
{from Grayp Finance Civector) from 15% of salary ta 109 of salary. Alison Renrlksen receives a pension contrlbution of 69 of satary.

3 Bonus earned includes the part of the sward which is deferred into Company shares.

8 Afl awasds made under tha Company Milestons slement of the borus for 2018 {under the previous Remuneration Policy) are made in shares delerred for thres years.

5 The value of the PSP is determined by the number of awards vestingin relation to performance In the perlod ended 30 June 2020, Dividend equivalents are not added to awards made under the PSF, The
value shown far 202015 based on 1he average share price for the linal three manghs of the 2020 financial year [which was 3,381p). This compares to the share price at grant of 1,973p (+T1%). Of the value
shown for the CEQ, €211k is attributable to share price appreciation between award and vesting,

& The 2019 values shown a5 estimatad in the previous Annuat Report have been restated to reflect the actual value 2t point of vesting. The share price was 2,850p on 16 September 2019 when awards
vestad l6r Stephen Wilson,

HOW THE BONUSES FOR 2020 WERE CALCULATED

ANNUAL BONUS

The 2020 bonuses for Executive Directors were calculated by reference to performance against a challenging sliding scate of profit, cash flow and strategic
measures, Targets were set by the Committee to exclude the costs of gene editing in line with our Remuneration Palicy, This was a decision by the
Committee (as was the case in prior years) to ensure that management's reward was not unfaurly affected by decisions to make the right long-term
investment decisions on behalf of the business.

The following results were achieved for each element of the annual benus incentive.

Proportian Exrent towhich

of salary Actyal 2020 Threshold Target Stratch targats were met

Bonus target! Strategic objective (maximum)  performance (0% award) {50% award) (foll award) {ab)

Adjusted profit before tax Year-on-year profit growth 87.50% £79.5m £68.3m £75.1m £78.5m 100%

Generation of free cashflow Generate cash for 26.25% £26.9m £16.7Tm £19.7m £227m 100%
reinvestment and dividend

Strategic measures To buitd the foundation 61.25%  Seetable Chief Executive T5%

: : for future growth Chief Financial Officer 75%

1 The financlal elements of the bonus are payable an a stralghtding basis between each thresheld, target and stretch level.
2 Prior to any proration of awards lor Alisen Hanriksen who felnad on 13 Januzry 2020,
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section D -~ Annual Report on Remuneration

1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID 1N 2020 CONTINUED

STRATEGIC MEASURES

The Corhmittee reviewed and discussed achievement against targets set for strategic measures for each Executive Director in determining overall award
levels. Performance against these targets is distlosed retrospectively, as follows:

THEME OBJECTVE

Strategy Development and Execution Expand the Company’s position as the leader in animal genetics

Innovation Continue strengthening R&D technalogy capabilities and commercial relevance and implement new IT technologies
to support Company performance

Leadership Demonstrate leadership skills and adding value and direction to the organisation whitst developing internal talent/
bench strength

Culture and Engagement Fostering a positive and inclusive culture and increasing employee engagement at all levels

Sustainability Make Genus an industry leader in sustainability ;

Performance against these targets is disclosed retrospectively, as follows:
Payout against

Executive Director Key achievements in the year maximum
StephenWilson  Strategy Development > Growthin PIC North America market share 5%
and Execution > Expansion of supply chain in PIC China

> Growth of Sexcel and IntelliGen business measured through both volume growth and
third-party customers
> Progress demonstrating value of proprietary NuEra beef genetics

Leadership and Culture > Recruitment of new CFC and induction of both CFO and €SO
> Improvement in people engagement scores {measured through the Your Voice survey)
> People Strategy presented to Board at Janvary strategy session and endorsed by Board

Innovation > Good progress on PRRSv resistance development
> Successful go-live of next stage of our enterprise system ‘GenusOne’ across PIC NorthAmerica.

Sustainability > Comprehensive plan reviewed and agreed with Board covering full scope of Genus activities
from genetics to operational delivery

. Payoutagalnst
Executive Director HKey achievemnents in the year maximum

Alison Henriksen  Strategy Development >  In light of COVID-19 shaped rapid approach to assess macro risks, monitor strategic and 5%
and Execution operationalimpacts providing regular updates to the Board
> Enhanced cost and cash focus across the Group, embedding in the FY21 Budget and
performance management processes a shift in areas of emphasis for reporting and reviews

Leadership and Culture > Completed virtual induction, connecting widely across the businesses, with the Board,
investors, lenders and advisers
> Led senior finance leadership through refresh of strategic vision for Finance and creation
of community, setting plan for ¢evelopment of new target operating model in FY21

innovation > Supported go live of Genus One in PIC North America
> Influenced proposals on way to support continued growth and efficiencies of IntelliGen
preduction

Sustainability > Reviewed and approved investments in sustainable enesgy

As a resuit of this performance, the total annual bonus awarded to the Executive Directors was:
: ) Aniyal bonus

Extent to which targets were met Annual Banus - Cash Annual Bonus - Deferred Shares®

Karim Bitar nfa Nil Nil
Stephen wilson . 91% £629,899 £314,949
Alison Henriksen? 91% £197,730 £98,865

1 Thenumber of shares awarded will be calculated i September 2020 when bonuses are paid. One-third of boaus payable isdelerred Into Genus shares for lmnyeals
2 Awards for Alison Henwiksen have been pro-rated to reflect her oining part-way through the 2020 performance year -

HOW THE PERFORMANCE SHARE PLAN FIGURE WAS CALCULATED IN THE SINGLE TOTAL REMUNERATION TABLE
Stephen Wilson's PSP award granted on 13 September 2017 was subject to a performance condition, based on the growth in adjusted earnings per share

from 2017 to 2020, The range of targets applicable to the award, which had a value of 175% of salary at grant was as follows: - .
. . 9% of swarg

_Average annuat growth in adjusted earnings per share? Vesting
Less than 5% per annum Nil
5% per annum : , 20%
159 per annum ‘ 100%

1 Stralght line vesting hetween the paints in the above table.
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1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2020 CONTINUED

The Committee set targets to calculate the long-term award after excluding gene editing costs incurred during the performance period, to avoid an
unintended impact on the Executives’ remuneration whilst making long-term decisions in support of value creation. This is consistent with the approach
previously communicated to shareholders within our Policy and as taken in each of the last three years.

The adjusted 2020 earnings per share afier the cost of share-based payments and adjusting for costs relating to gene editing was 84.6p. This represents
an average annual growth in adjusted earnings per share of 8.1% compared to the comparable 2017 adjusted earnings per share figure (aker the cost of
share-based payments). The resulting level of vesting is therefore 44.9% of maximum?, Stephen Witson's award was over a maximum of 33 443 shares,
so the actual level of vesting is 15,016 shares and these will vest on 13 September 2020.

The Company’s average share price for the period from L April 2020 t0 30 June 2020 was 3,381 p, meaning that the value shown for these awards within the
single figure tabie is £507.688 for Stephen Wilson.

1 The average annual earnings per share growth including gene aditing costs after share-based payments was 7.6% and the associated vesting level would have been 41.19% of masimum.

JOINING AWARD

Ajoining award over 22,435 Genus shares was rmade to Alison Henriksen on joining the business to bring her onto the in-flight cycle in line with our agreed
Remuneration Policy. These are shares that will vest in 2022 subject to EPS performance (with identical performance metrics to those awarded to the CEQ
on 11 September 2019). The share price used to calculate awards was based on that when Alison joined the business in January 2020. As with awards to the
CEOQ, any shares that vest as a result of Company performance achieved will be subject to a two-year additiona! holding period post vesting, subject to the
ability to sell shares to settle tax liabilities at the point of vesting,

MATERIAL CONTRACTS
There were no other contracts or arrangements during the financial year in which a Director of the Company was materialiy interested and/or which were
significant in relation to the Graup’s business.

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE AND PAYMENTS TO FORMER DIRECTORS (AURITED)
There were no payments far loss of office in the year or to any Former Birectors of the business.

DISCRETION .
Na discretion was applied by the Committee to outcomes under the variable plans and awards determined against targets set by the Committee.

2. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2021
Asummary of this chapter is given on page 73.

BASE SALARY
In line with other UK employees, the dateofsalary review is 1 September 2020. Any change is considered against changes made to the wider workforce.

BENEFITS
The Executive Directors receive benefits including a car allowance, life assurance, an annual medical screen and private medical insurance.

PENSION
On appointment to the CEO role in September 2019, the pension allowance payable to Stephen Wilson reduced to 103 of salary (from 159). Alison
Henriksen receives a pension allowance of 6% of salary, consistent with our stated policy to align rates for new hires to the wider workforce.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section D - Annual Report on Remuneration

2. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2021 CONTINUED
PERFORMANCE-RELATED ANNUAL BONUS
The structure for variable remuneration for Executive Directors for 2021 will be as follows:

ANNUAL BONUS

value of bonus A maximum of 175% of salary for the Chief Executive OFficer and Chief Financial Officer based on profit, cash
generation and strategic measures. On-target value of 87.5% of salary.

Performance measuyres Adjusted profit before tax 50% of opportuntity
Cash generation 15% of opportunity
Strategic Measures 35% of opportunity

Calibration of profit target No bonus is payable in respect of profit unless the prior year's result is exceeded. Thereafter, the bonus award is
determined on the following basis:

Pay-out

Grawth on prior yeac adjusted before tax (profit eiement}
0% %
1096 growth delivers 509
15% growth delivers 100%

Straight-line payout between performance points.

1 Inconstant currency and excluding gene editing costs.
Calipration of cash generation target The cash target is the budgeted figure, with a specific range of £3m below the target and £3m above. Specific

numbers were set {rather than a percentage range) to ensuse Executives are focused on actual cash generation.
The target set and resulting performance achieved will be disclosed in the Annual Report next year.

Calibration of strategic measures Specific measurable targets have been set against this category linked to our strategic priorities identified by the
Board for the year ahead. It would be commerciatly sensitive to disclose themin advance. We will retrospectively
disclose performance against these targets in the subsequent Annual Report.

Bonus deferral One-third of any bonus award will be deferred by way of shares for three years and will vest subject to continued
employment, other than in certain leaver circumstances.

Malus and Clawback The Committee can apply malus to deferred bonuses and clawback any element of paid bonuses that should not
have been awarded or pald, in the event of a material misstatement of the Group's annual results or other
substantive reason.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

Awards to be granted in September 2020 will be granted under the 2019 PSP Plan approved by shareholders on 14 November 2019. Stephen Wilson will be
granted an award over shares worth 200% of salary and Alison Henriksen an award over shares worth 175% of salary. Grants will be determined in line with
the Plan Rules, using annual salary as at the point of grant to determine awards. Awards granted will continue to require the Executive to retain the after-tax
number of shares vesting in September 2023 for two years. Enhanced ciawback and malus provisions will apply to these awards as outlined within our
Remuneration Policy, including for reputational damage and corporate failure.

The performance targets for the awards to be granted in September 2020 will relate to average annual growth in adjusted earnings per share, measured
over three years ang excluding gene editing costs. The range of targets for the 2021 awards (scheduled to be made in September 2020) is as follows:

~ Vesting
Average annuai grawth In adjusted earnings per share' {% award)
Less than 5% per arinum 0%
5% per annum 209
159 per annum ; 100%

Straight-line vesting between performance points.

1 Growth In adjusted eamings per share over the three-yew performance perlod will be calculated on a simple average annuat growth rate after the cost of share-based payments and excluding gene
editing costs.

The Committee continues to believe that using adjusted earnings per share is an appropriate measure of long-term performance of the business, andthisis
consistent with awards granted over the past few years, The Committee believes the above performance range is appropriately challenging, that they
incentivise Executives to deliver the Company’s growth strategy and are therefore afigned with shareholders’ interests. They also adhere to the principles of
transparency and simplicity, to maximise the incentive provided to participants by the 2019 PSP. .

The Committee will be able to scaie back vesting based on earnings per share performance if it does not consider the vesting result 1o be consistent with
the progress achieved against the Company's strategy during the performance period. This is considered appropriate to broaden the Executive team's
focus beyond financial performance. ’
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3. THE PROCESS THE COMMITTEE FOLLOWED TO ARRIVE AT THESE DECISIONS
The Committee complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code. It makes recommendations o the Board, within agreed terms of reference, on
remuneration for the Executive Directors and other members of GELT. The Committee’s full terms of reference are available on the Company's website

at www.genusplc.com.

During 2020, the Committee comprised:

. Atiendance
Oirector Independent atmeetings
Lesley Knox (Chair) Yes 6/6
Lykele van der Broek Yes 6/6
Lysanne Gray Yes 6/6
lan Charles Yes b/
Bob Lawson Yes 6/6

None of the Committee members bas any personal financial interest [other than as shareholders), conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships or
day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer attend meetings at the Committee’s invitation butare
not present when their own remuneration is being discussed. The Committee is supported by the Group HR Director, Group Reward Directer, Finance and
Company Secretariat functions.

During the year, the Committee continued to use PricewaterhouseCoopers {'PwC’) for advice it considers is of value, objective and independent. Pw('s
fees were £50,750 for its remuneration advice to the Committee. PwC were appointed by the Committee foliowing a competitive tender process and their
performance and independence as advisers is regularly reviewed. PwC is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and complies with its Code of
Conduct. Separate teamns within PwC provide ynrelated advisory service to the Group, including taxation, internatienal assignments and actuarial advice

to the Group.

During the year to 30 June 2020, the Committee met six times and considered the fotlowing matters:

JULY 2019
> Shareholder feedback from
cansultation process.

SEPTEMBER 2019

>

Approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report for 20i8.

NOVEMBER 2019

>

JUNE 2020
Discussion of shareholder voting >  Discuss approach to target
on the Annual Remuneration. setting for 2021.

» Finalisation of proposed new » Determination of Annual Bonus > Review of remuneration > AGM season review and update.
Policy and messaging to awards in respect of 2019. reporting and AGM season > Overview of wider reward
shareholders. > Testing of the performance insight. praciice acrgss the FTSE 250.

cenditions and approval of the > Determine remuneration details

JuLy 2019 vesting levels of long-term share for new CFO hire.

> Payreview for GELT members,

> Review of Directors’
Remuneration Report.

incentive awards granted in 2016.

Approval of long-term share
incentive awards under the

APRIL. 2020

>

Update on COVID-19 and

Company's PSP and the associated reward
assoclated performance targets. considerations.
> Review of shareholdings by > Discussion of CEO Pay Ratic

Executive Directors and GELT.
Approval of PSP for senior
leadership and review of share
dilution.

HOW SHAREHOLCERS' VIEWS ARE TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT
We consulted with shareholders ahead of proposing our existing Remuneration Policy to shareholders at our 2019 AGM which received high levels of
shareholder support. Fhe resuits of the most recent vote were as iollows:

reporting requirements and
indicative analysis for Genus.
Discussion of gender pay findings
within Genus Breeding Limited
and wider reward approach in
Genus.

vote on Directors' vote on [hrectors”
Remuneration Report {3dvisory) Remuneration Policy {binding)
Total number Seal Total number %of
gfvotes votes cast of votes votes ¢ast
For 44735774 98.4 42,801,233 934
Against . 714,612 16 3,046,755 6.6
Total number of shares in respect of which votes were validly made 45,450,386 100 . 45,847988 100
Votes withheld 409,312 1,170
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section D - Annual Report on Remuneration

3. THE PROCESS THE COMMITTEE FOLLOWED TO ARRIVE AT THESE DECISIONS CONTINUED

HOW EMPLOYEES' PAY IS TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT

While the Company does not consult employees on matters of Directors’ remuneration, the Committee does take account of the policy for employees
across the workforce when determining the Remuneration Policy for Directors.

The Group Reward Director facilitates this process, presenting 1o the Committee reward structures and approach across the organisation including the
way reward levels are set with reference to internal and external factors and how performance metrics align with those used for GELT members {including
Executive Directors). The process also includes sharing feedback received through staff engagement surveys that include questions on pay, as well as
consulting employaes informally on their views of the current overall Remuneration Policy. Additionally, discussions on reward have formed part of
dialogue between the nominated non-executive directors and employees as part of wider engagement activity as outtined elsewhere in the Annual Report.
This forms part of the feedback provided to the Committee and is used to assess the Remuneration Policy’s ongoing effectiveness and the changes that
should be made.

when setting the Executive Directors’ base salaries, the Committee compares the salary increases proposed for each Executive Director within those
proposed for employees in their geographical location, as well as considering the typical increase proposed across our UK business and the wider Group.

4, HOW THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PAY COMPARES TO SHAREHOLDER RETURNS OVER THE PAST TEN YEARS AND TO EMPLCYEES' PAY

TOTAL SHARERDLOER RETURN

The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by total sharehoiger return {'TSR'), compared with the TSR performance of the FTSE 250
Index. The FTSE 250 index was selected as it represents a broad equity market of which the Company is a member.

TEN YEARS OF TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
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—4— Genus - FTSE 250

As required under the reporting regulations, the table below shows the ‘single figure’ pay for the Chief Executive over the same period, to allow comparison
between variability in reward and the shareholder experience over the same period.

Year ended 30 June 202¢

Staphan

Richard wocd Karim Bltar Wilson
011t 012 2002 2013 014 20158 216 2047 018 2019 . 2010 2020
Total remuneration (€0005) £2,383 £231 £1,776 £868 £877 £1,622 £1,704 £2,856 £2,549 £815 £183 £2,075
Annual bonus (% of max} 94% 853% % 31% 2% 99% 7896 59062 6549 Nil* Nil* 219
Total PSP vesting (% of max) 88% - - - - 269 34% 9% 56% Nil* Nil* 44.9%

1 PSP vesting relates to all awards that were tested aarly on cessation of employment.

2 Includes payment (as previously disclosed) for 1035 of annual bonus (£163,000} and the value of restricted stock {£755,000} granted o compensate him for loss of value forleit on joining Genus.
3 indudes the award under the Company Milestone elementof the annual bonus under the previous Remuneration Policy.

4 No awards were payable following the: dedﬂan of Karim 1o resign from the business.

5 Vesting was nil as Karim's employ ion date was before scheduled vesting of PSP awards.
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4. HOW THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PAY COMPARES YO SHAREHOLDER RETURNS OVER THE PAST TEN YEARS AND TO EMPLOYEES' PAY CONTINUED

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION COMPARED TO GENUS EMPLOYEES
REMUNERATION RECEIVED (9% CHANGE FROM 2019 TO 2020}

Salary/faes Beneflts  Annual ponus

% % %

Stephen Wilson - Chief Executive % % 158%
Alison Henriksen - Chief Financial Officer n/a n/a nfa
Bob Lawson ~ Chalrman nfa
Lykele van der Broek nfa
Lysanne Gray nfa
lan Charles n/a
Lesley Knox nfa
UK comparators* 2.3% 0% 124%

1 This is desived by considering all employees of Genus pic on 30 June 2020 {excluding Cirectors) and calculaling on an FTE basis changes in salary, benefits and bonus compared Lo the previgus year,

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT

%
20i8 2010 change
Employee costs (Em) £157Tm £179m 14%,
Distributions to shareholders! £16.8m £18.3m 9%
1 Inciudes dividends and share buy-backs.
5. THE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' FEES
Fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors per annum are as follows:
: 2018 2019 2020
Position fees fees fees
Chairman £160,000 £160,000  £160,000

Audit & Risk Committee/Remuneration Committee Chairs

£60,000 £60.,000 £60,000

Adviser to Giobal Portfolio Steering Committee {'GPSC')

£65,000 £65,000 £65,000

Base Non-Executive Director fee

£55,000 £55,000 £55,000

The responsibilities of chairing the Audit & Risk and Remuneration Committees result in an additional fee of £5,000, giving the Chairs of these Committees a

total fee of £60,000, Fees will continue at this level for the coming year.

On 29 June we announced that Bob Lawson would retice Trom the business at the 2020 AGM and would be replaced by lain Ferguson. lain will receive a
pro-rated fee based on £55,000 for the period from appointment through to the 2020 AGM and will then receive a fee as Chairman of £230,000 per annum.
This fee was determined following a review of market data. The current Chairman’s fees have been at the same leve| since 2015.
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5. THE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES CONTINUED
TOTAL SINGLE FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (AUDITED) FOR 2019 AND 2020 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Taxable
Faes BrpeEnses Benefits Total
Non-Executive Directors £000s £000s £0005 £000s
Bob Lawson 2020 160 30 1 191
2019 160 11 - 171
Lykele van der Broek 2020 55 5 5 66
209 55 1 4 60
Lysanne Gray 2020 60 - - 60
2019 60 1 - 6l
Ian Charles 2020 72! - - 12
) 2019 55 - - 55
Lesley Knox 2020 63! - - 63
2019 55 2 - 5T
Total 2020 410 36 6 452
2019 385 15 4 404

) Inghudes back payments lor membership of respective Commitiees not received during 2029,

The Non-Executive Directors’ taxable expenses are travel expenses related to their role and have been grossed up for tax where applicable, in line with
HMRC rules.

6. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES
DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS (AUDITED)
At the year-end, the Directors had the following interests in the Company's shares:

Unvasted Unvaested
DSkP PSP awards
At % of awards at held at AL
30 Juna 2020 salary  Shareholding  30June2020 30 .June 2010 30 June 2019
Number | hald* guideling’ N _‘ Humb Number
Bob Lawson 8,557 nfa’ nja nfa nja 8,557
Stephen Witson 73,330 497% 200% 25,154 104,722 56,754
Alison Henriksen - 0% 200% 0 22,435 -
lan Charles - nfa nfa nfa nja -
Lykele van der Broek 3,750 nja nfa nfa nfa 3,750
Lysanne Gray - nfa nja nfa - nja -
Lesley Knox 2,000 nja nfa nfa nja 2,000
Total 81,637 25,154 127,157 71,061
1 Based on the combined number of benelicially held shares and the net of tax D58P awards held and the sverage closing share price aver the three months te 30 June 2020 of 3,381p.
2 Executive Dirgctors are expecied (o work {owards achieve a shareholding of 2009 of salary as set out in the Remuneration Folicy agreed by shareholders In 2049,
There were no changes in the Directors’ interests between 30 June 2020 and the date of this report,
COMPANY SHARE PRICE
The market price of the Company’s shares on 30 June 2020 was 3,532p and the lowest and highest share prices during the financial year were 3,672p and
2,506p respectively.
PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARDS GRANTED IN 2020 (AUDITED)
The awards granted under the 2019 PSP were as foliows:
Number of shares  Face/maximum vatue of awards 9 ol award . Perlormance
Executive comprising award at grant date {% salary}! vesting at threshold perlod
Stephen Wilson 41,666 E1,180,000 (2009t} 20 01.07.19-30.06.22
Alison Henriksen? 22435 £700,000 {175%})? 20 01.97.19-30.06.22

L The closing average shate price over the three days prior 1o ihe award being granted has been used to determine the maximum face valug of the awards. This was 2.832p for Stephen Wilson (award granted

on 11 September 2018).
2 tndine with Joining arrangements For Alison Henriksen, an award of 22,435 shares was granted on 7 April 2020, The price used was the prevailing price on the date of joining (3,120p}. The timing difference
‘Wwas due to market restrictions In place between [oining the buslress and April 2020.
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6. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES CONTINUED

The awards were granted as nif-cost share options and vesting wiii be subject to achieving a chatlenging siiding scale of adjusted earnings per share
growth target and a strategic underpin, consistent with our Remuneration Policy. The adjusted earnings per share growth performance target for the
above awards is: .

i vesting

Average annual growth In adjusted earnings per share! 9% award)
' Less than 5% per annum 0%
5% per annum 20%
15% per annum 100%

Straight-line vesting between performance points

1 Growth In adjusted earnings per share over the three-year performance perlod wil be calculated on a simple average annual growth rate alter the cost of share -based payments and adjusted for gene
editing costs in line with previous awards.

DEFERRED BONUS AWARDS GRANTED IN 2020 (AUDITED}
The following DSBP awards were granted in relation to the 2019 annual bonus:

Number of
shares Facevalue
comprising of awards at
Executive award grant date!
Stephen Wilson 7,382 £209,058

These awards are not subject to any further performance conditions and will normally vest in full on 11 September 2022, subject to continued service.

1 Theclosing average share price over the three days prior to the awsrd belng granted hias been used to determine the maximum lace value ol the awacds, This was 2.832p {award granted on
L1 Septembier 2019).

SUMMARY OF SCHEME INTERESTS (AUDITED)
At 30 June 2020, the Executive Directars had the following beneficial interests in share awards and share options:

KARIM BITAR
At Graned Lapsed Enerclsed At
Share price 30 June 20L% inyear inyear in year 30 June 2020
Grant date Award Vesting perlod argrant Number Numibser Number MNumber Number
14 September 2016 PSP 14 September 2016 t0 14 September 2019 1,884p 58,186 - {58,186} - -
14 September 2016  DSBP 14 September 2016 to 14 September 2019 1,884p 6,973 - {6973) - -
13 September 2017 PSP 13 September 2017 to 13 September 2020 1,973p 56,404 - {56,404) - -
13 September 2017 DSBP 13 September 2017 to 13 September 2020 1973p 20,629 - (20,629) - -
09 October 2018 PSP 8 October 2018 10 9 October 2021 2,317p 55,225 - {55,225) - -
09 October 2018 058P 9 Qctober 2018 10 9 October 2021 2,317 13,956 - (13,956} - -
Total 211,373 - {211,373) - -
STEPHEN WILSON
AL Granted Lapsed Exercised At
Share price 30 June 2018 Inyear - inyear Inyear 39 Junalelo
Grant date Awerd Vesling period atgrant Number Humber Number Mumber Humber
14 September 2016 PSP 14 September 2016 1o 14 September 2019 i,884p 34,500 - {7,280) {271,220) -
14 September 2016  DSBP 14 September 2016 (¢ 14 September 2019 1,884p 4,125 - - (4,725) -
13 September 2017 PSP 13 September 2017 to 13 September 2020 1,973p 33,443 - - - 33,443
13 September 2017 D5BP 13 September 2017 to 13 September 2020 1973p 10,213 - - - 16,213
09 October 2018 PSP 09 October 201810 09 October 2021 2,317 . 29613 - - - 29,613
09 October 2018 DSBP 09 0ctober 2018 to 09 October 2021 231 7.559 - - - 7,559
11 September 2019 PSP 11 September 2018 to 11 September 2022 2832p - 41,666 - - 41,666
11%eptember 2019  DSBP 11 September 2019 to 11 September 2022 2832 - 7382 - - 1,382
Total : 120,053 49,038 {7,280) (31,945) 129,876
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6. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES CONTINUED

ALISON HENRIKSEN
L Grantedin Lapsed Exercised At
Share price 30 June 2019 year inyear inyear 30 Juné 2020
Grant date Award vesting peviod atgrant Numb-er Number Numbe: Number Number
07 April 2020 PSP Q7 April 2019 to 11 September 2022 3,120p - 22,435 - - 22,435
Total - 22,435 - - 22,435

In relation to the share awards to Stephen Wilson granted on 11 September 2015, the closing average share price over the three days prior to 11 September 2019
{the grant date for the PSP awards) of 2,832p was used to determine the number of shares comprising individual awards. The award for Alison Henriksen was
made using the prevailing share price at the date when she joined the business in January 2020 of 3,120p.

The performance targets applying lo the PSP awards made during the year are as described above. An earnings per share range also applied to awards
made in 2018 and 2017 to Stephen Wilson. No further performance conditions apply to DSBP awards other than continued employment with the business.

DILUTION

The aggregate dilution of all relevant share incentives is 3.93% as at 30 June 2020, which is less than the permissible 10% in ten years dilution limit.

7. DETAILS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' LETTERS QF APPOINTMENT

Director Appoiniment date Current contract date Expiry date Notice perlod [manthsy
Executives

Stephen Wilson 12 December 2012 13 September 2019 nfa 12 (from Company), & (from Executive)
Alison Henriksen 13 January 2020 14 November 2019 nfa 12 (from Company), 6 (from Executive)
Nen-Executives

Bob Lawson 11 November 2010 4 September 2020 25November 2020 1
Lykele van der Broek 1 July 2014 4 September 2020 1July 2023 1
Lysanne Gray 1 Aprit 2016 1 April 2019 1 April 2022 1
Lesiey Knox 1 June 2018 1 June 2018 1 June 2021 1
lan Charles 1 July 2018 1 July 2018 1 July 2021 1
lain Ferguson 1 July 2020 1 July 2023 6

1 July 2020



{Page 88 of 189)

' ) : CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 87

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section E - Summary of Directors’ Remuneration Policy

KEY DESIGN/PHILOSOPHY OF QUR REMUNERATION POLICY APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 2019 AGM

WHAT WE ARE TRYING TO ACHIEVE HOW WE ARE LOOKING TO ACHIEVE T

> Continued transformation into a global agricultural biotechnology > Drawupon the aspects of our current policy that are already working
pioneer > include strategic measures within annual bonus assessment whilst

> Pursuit of leading-edge technology and focus on long term innovation increasing the focus on financial metrics
and opportunity to enable future value creation for shareholders > Reduction to pension contribution levels permitted within the policy

> Sustainable robust short-term delivery of financial parformance aswe >  Introduction of a post-Cessation shareholding requirement and enhanced
invest in the future malus and clawback provisions

> Ability to recognise innavation and progress, which are crucial to
securing long-term bottom-line performance

> Ability to attract and motivate a high-quality leadership team and drive
focus and behaviours on long term achievement in a globat market
for talent

> Recognise expectations of shareholders on reward and governance
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BELOW IS A SUMMARY OF THE REMUNERATICN POLICY APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 2019 AGM
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' POLICY TABLE

Penston *

Perlormance SharePlan

Base salary Benefits Annual bonus Shareholding

PURPOSE

To provide To provide 2 To provide 3 To motivate and incentivise  To incentivise To align Executives and
competitive fixed competitive range competitiveCompany  delivery of annual Executives to achieve  shareholders.
remuneration that  of benefits to drive contribution that performance targets superior returns to

will attract and retain  engagement and enables effective covering a combinationof  shareholders overa

employeeswith the

commitment to Genus,

retirement planning,

financial and strategic

three-year period, 1o
retain key individuals

experience . measures.
necessary to develop and align with
and execute our shareholder interests.
strategy.
OPERATION ) .
Payable incash. Benefits generally Directors may One third of the annual Awards scheduled to Executives are required
Reviewed annually  include acar allowance participatein the bonus is deferred into vest three years from to achieve a .
by the Committee = and insured benefits Company Pension Pian  Company shares for a grant, subject to shareholding of 200% of
with any change (e.g. life assuranceand  (a defined contribution  period of three years, continued employment  salary. It is expected that
effective from " private medical arrangement) or an subject to continued and satisfaction of this is achieved within
1 September. insurance). alternative pension service. The remaining challenging three-year five years of
saving vehicle thatthe  award is payable in cash. performance targets. appointment, and that
Factors considered  Where additional . Company may provide. this shareholding is
when reviewing benefits are offered in Malus and clawback Following vesting the . generated through
salary include: a particular location Alternatively, the provisions existfor awards  post-tax number of retention of at least half
> Salaryincreases  (or across the Group) Company may provide  made under the Annual vested shares mustbe  of the shares thatvest -
awarded to other Executive Directors are 3 cash supplement Bonus. held for atleast a under the Deferred
employeesinthe  typically eligible tor inlieu of pension further two-year period. Share Bonus Plan and
country where receive those benefits  contributions into Adividend equivalent Performance Share
the individualis  onsimilar terms. These a3 scheme. provision enables Adividend equivalent  Plans.

based

» Comparable
salaries when
benchmarked
againstrelevant
market
comparators
(both in the UK
and
internationally)

» Theexperience of
the individual and
the nature of the
contribution
they are making
and their
responsibilities

> OverallGroup
performance and
wider economic
conditions.

could include access 1o
employee discounts or
salary sacrifice benefits.

Directors may
participate in a Share
Incentive Plan ('SIP") or
any other all employee

« share scheme on the

same terms as other
employees.

Where Executive
Directors are recruited
from overseas or
required to relocate
{includingonan
international
assignment), benefits
such as travel and
relocation costs and tax
equalisation
arrangements may be
privided.

Only base salary is
pensionable,

dividends to be paid
{in cash or shares} on
deferred shares that vest.

See explanatory notes

for further details on the
operation including leaver
provisions.

provision enables
dividends to be paid
{in cash or shares) on
shares that vest.

Malus and clawback
provisions may apply
for a period of three
years.

See explanatory notes
for further details on
the operation including
leaver provisions.

QOnce met, individuals
are expected to maintain
at least this levet of
shareholding and it wiil
be reviewed by the
Committee annually.

A post cessation
shareholding policy will
apply for Executive
Directors that requires
100% of shareholding for
24 months following
cessation {or actwal
applicable shareholding
inplace at point of
leaving if tower).

" This will apply

considering shares
awarded in respect of
2020 and beyond
(including to any new
appointments), ang we
will not amend existing
conditions for current
awards. Malus and
clawback provisions
exist beyond cessation
of employment, and in
certain [eaver situations

. theexpected share

treatment would
continue to drive
ongoing alignment
between the individual
and share price
performance.’
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Base salary Benefits Pension Annual banus Perfarmance Share Plan Sharehoiding
MAXIMUM
There is no set The car allowance is An allowance will be Maximuym oppo-tunityof_ Maximum annual award n/fa
maximum, but capped under the made availableinline  200%. of 200% of salary (300%
changes are typically Policy at £20,000 per with the rate available of salary in exceptional
in line with the wider  annum. to the wider workforce. circumstances, such as
workforce. recruitment).

The value of insured Maximum perrmitted
individual changes benefits will vary each  under the Policy will be -
may be madeatthe year,based cnthecost 10%of salary.

discretion of the of the premiums paid,
Committee outside  and will be reflected
of these levels by within the respective

exception. This could  single figure table for
include the following  the year.
situations:
> Significant
changein
respansibility
> Changeinthe
Group's size and
complexity
> Toenablesalary
progression for
newly appointed
Directors as they
develop in role.
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Basesalary Benefits Peaslon Annual boaus Performance Share Plan Sharehalding
PERFORMANCE

CONDITIONS

nfa n/a nja Bonus awards are subject  Awardsvestbasedon  n/a

to achievement against a
sliding scale of challenging’
financial and strategic
objectives, which the
Committee sets each year
to reflect priorities for the
year ahead. |

The specific performance
measures are reviewed
every year to ensure they
continue to support the
Company’s strategy.

Financial measures govern
the majority of the bonus
and are typically linked to
key performance indicators
(e.g. profitand cash
generation).

Stratepic measures reflect
key areas of importance
identified by the
Committee in advance.

For financiat performance
targets are basedona
graduated scale. Thelevel
of payment at threshold is
setannually but witl not
exceed 25% of maximum,
Full awards are for
substantial outperformance
against targets set,

The Committee has
discretion to adjust the '
bonus gutcome in tight of
overall underlying
performance. Any
adjustment will be
disclosed within the
following Annual Report
on Remuneration.

Onceset, performance
measures and targets are
expected to remain
unaltered. The exception
would be if events wereto
occur which, in the opinion
of the Committee, made it
appropriate to make
adjustments to ensure that
the scheme operates as

_originally intended.

three-year performance
against a challenging
range of targets,
sligned with the
delivery of the
Company's long-term
strategy.

Financial targets

{including adjusted
earnings per share

growth} will determine
the vesting of a majority
of awards granted in
any year.

The threshold level of
vesting is 20% of the -
maximum. For
performance between
threshold and
maximum, awards vest
on a straight-line basis.

The Committae has
discretion to scale back
{but not scale up)
vesting, if the Group's
performance over the
pericd is not
considered to reflect
the progress made
against strategic
business targets.

The Committee will
review performance
conditions annually,
specifically the range of
earnings per share
targets and the metrics

- and weightings applied

to each element of the
PSP Any revisions to the
metrics andfor
weightings will only
take placeifitis
necessary because of
developments in the
Company’s strategy
and, where these are
material, following
dialogue with the
Company's major
shareholders.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The table below autlines the approach to remuneration for the Chairman and non-executive directors. Neither the Chairman nor other non-executive

directors participate in any bonus or share plans. All Non-Executive Directors have specific terms of engagement. Their appointment is for a fixed term of ‘
three years and is subject to one month's netice of termination by either the Company or the Nan-Executive Director, and to annual re-election at the 1
Company’s AGM in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code. i

Fees

PURPOSE To provide compensation that attracts high-calibre individuals and reflects their experience and knowledge.
OPERATION  Payablein cash.

The Committee determines the Chairman’s fee.
The Board periodically reviews Non-Executive Directors' fees.

Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors who chair a Board Committee or advise the GPSC and to the Senior Independent
Director ('SID').

Mo Directors take part in meetings where their own remuneration is discussed. |

Fees are based on the time commitments involved in each role and set with reference to the fees paid in other similarly sized UK listed
companies,

MAXIMUM Any increase in Non-Executive Director fees may be above the level awarded 1o employees, given that they are only reviewed periodically
and may need to reflect any changes to time commitments or responsibilities.

The periodic review may result in an increase beyond the fees currently payable.

Non-Executive Directors also receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in connection with Company business and the
Company may settle any tax incurred in relation to these. The fees payable for 2020 are stated on page 84,

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Lesley Knox
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
7 September 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The following information required to be includedin a
Directors’ Report is provided elsewhere in the Annual
Report 2nd is incorporated into the Directors’ Report
by cross reference.
Content Location
Directors Pages 50to 51

Dan Hartley Dividends Page 33

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND - -

COMPANY SECRETARY Financial results Pages 30te 33
Greenhouse gas emissions and energy Pages 4l to 42
consumption
Research and Development activities Pages26to 27
Financial risk management Pages 3010 33
Future developments in the business Pages 1410 29
Directors’ interests Pages Bato 86
Engagement with employees, Pages 12to 13
customers, suppliers and others
Post balance sheet events Note 41

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES/EMPLOYEES WITH
DISABILITIES

Genus values diversity and aims to make bestdse of .
everyone's gkills and abilities. We are therefore committed
to equal opportunities at every stage of our employees’
careers. Qur policy on employees with disabilittes is to fully
and fairly consider people with disabilities for ali vacancies.

We interview and recruit people with disabilities and
endeavour to retain employees if they become disabled
while they work for us. Where possible, we will retrain
employees who become disabled and agjust their working
environment, so they can maximise their potentiat,

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group does not make political contributions,

SHARE CAPITAL

Note 31 gives detaits of the Company's issued share capftal
and any movemenits in the issued share capital during

the year. -

The Directors may only issue shares to the extent authorised
by the shareholders in general meeting. The cusrent power
to allot shares was granted by shareholder resolution at the
2019 AGM and a new authority is being sought at the 2020
AGM within the limits set out in the notice of meeting, that
isup 10 3 nominal value of £4,339,585.33 (representing
two-thirds of the Company’s current issued share capital).

The Company has one class of ordinary share, with the
rights set put in the Articles of Association. All issued shares
arefully paid and each share has the right to one vote at the
Company’s general meetings. Yhere are no specific
restrictions either on the size of a holding or an the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by our Articles of
Association and prevailing legislation. No person has any
special rights of control over the Company's share capital.

Details of the Company's employee share schermnes are set
out in note 30, in connection with these schemes, the Genus
pl¢ Employee Benefit Trust holds shares in the Company
from time to time and abstains from voting in respect of

any such shares.

For additional information on capital risk management
including financial instruments, see note 26.

AUTHORITY TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S OWN SHARES
The Directors may only buy back shares to the extent
authorised by the shareholders in general meeting.

The current power to buy back shares was granted by
shareholder resolution at the 2019 AGM and a new authority
is being sought at the 2020 AGM within the limits set outin
the notice of meeting, that is up to a nominal value of
£650,937 (representing 109t of the Company’s current

issued share capital).

The Company did not buy back any shares under the
authority granted at the 2019 AGM, from the date of that
AGM up to the date of this report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
As at 1 September 2020, we were aware of the following
material interests in the Company’s ordinary shares:

Fund Manager Shareholding %
Baillie Gifford 5,365,801 8.24
Aberdeen Standard Investments 4,693,262 121
BlackRock 2,954,083 454
Columbia Threadneedle

Investments N 2,860,994 4.40
vanguard Group - 2,616,150 402
Lansdowne Partners 1,818,267 279

There have been no material changes in shareholding since
30 June 2020.

No other person has notified an interest in the Company’s
ordinary shares, which is required to be disclosed to us.

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO THE COMPANY’S

AUDITOR

Each of the Directors at the date of approval of this Annual

Reportconfirms that:
so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware;
and

> the Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought
to have taken as a Director in order to make himself or
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 Companies
Act 2006,
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APPOINTMENT OF AUMTOR

Deloitte LLP has expressed its willingness to continuein
office as auditor and a resolution to reappoint it will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity
provisions for the benefit of its Direc tors which wete made
during the year andg remain in force at the date of this report,

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Company has procedures for managing conflicts of
interest, If a Director becomes aware that they or any of
their connected parties have an interest in an existing or
proposed transaction with Genus, they should notify the
Chairman and the Company Secretary in writing or at the
next Board meeting. Controls are in place to ensure that any
related-party transactions involving Dirgctors, of their
connected parties, are conducted on an arm’s length basis.
Directors have an ongeing duty ta update the Board on

any changes to these conflicts.

REQUIREMENTS OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the Company’s long-term incentive schemes
can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages J010 9],

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by
Dan Hartley

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
7 September 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

,93 )
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for
eachfinancial year. Under that law, the Directors are required to prepare
the Group Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Evropean Union and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have chosen to prepare the Parent
Company Financial Statements in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disciosure Framework” Under company law, the
Directors must not approve the financial statermnents unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the Parent Company Financial Statements, the Directors are
required to:
> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

_» makejudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable

and prudent;

> state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced DlSClOSUI’E
Framework' has been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements; and

> prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis, unless it

is inappropriate 1o presume that the Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group Financial Statements, International Accountmg

Standard 1 requires that Directors:
properly sefect and apply accounting policies:

> present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information;

> provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the entity's financial position and financial performance; and

> make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them tg ensure that the Financial Statements comply
with the Cornpanies Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
pravention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Company's website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
Finarciz| Statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge;

> the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as awhole;

> the Strategic Reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they
face; and

> the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable, and provide the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Company's posmon performance,
business model and strategy.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive .
7 Septemnber 2020

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
7 September 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Genus plc

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Opinion

In our opinion:

= the financial statements of Genus plc {the ‘Parent Company’} and its subsidiaries (the 'Group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the Graup’s profit for the year then ended;

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as
adopted by the European Union; .

> the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'; and

> thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulaticon.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the Group income Statement;

the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income;

the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity,
the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets;

the Group Statement of Cash Flows; and

the related notes 1 to 41 and C1 to C20.

VYV VY YY

Ttie financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs {UK)) and applicable law. Our respensibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accardance with the ethical requirements that are relevant ta our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘'FRC’s’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to the Group and Parent Company for the
year are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, We confirm that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided
to the Group or the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for gur opinion,

3. Summary of cur audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the cutvent year were:
» valuation of Biological Assets under 1AS 41 ‘Agriculture’, and
> Valuation of Goodwill attributed 1o the ABS cash-generating unit,

Within this repart, key audit matters are identified as follows:

Newly identified
Increased level of risk
Similar level of risk

Decreased leve| of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £3.0m which was determined on the basis of Profit
before Tax ('PBT"), excluding the impact of exceptional items and the net I1AS 41 valuation movement on biological
assets.

Scoping Our audit scope covered 12 components. Of these, nine were subject to a full scope audit, and three were subject to

specified procedures. Qur testing achieved coverage of 76% of Revenue, 1% of Net Assets and 839 of PBT, excluding
the impact of exceptional items and the net)AS 4] valuation movement on biological assets.

Significant changesin our Qur key audit matters remain consistent with the prior year. In the current year we performed a full scope auditin
approach respect of PIC China (2019: specified procedures), reflecting a significant increase in the component’s contribution 1o
the Group. PIC Philippines was removed fram bur Group audit scape, reflecting an overall decline in the Component's
contributian te the Group. Specified procedures were no longer required in respect of the Irish component following
the unwind of the structure in the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
To the Members of Genus plc

4. Conclusions relating to going concern, principal risks and viability statement

4.1. Going concern

Going concern is the basis of preparation of

We have reviewed the Directors’ statement in note 2 to the financial statements about whether they the financial statements that assumes an
considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their entity will remain in operation for a period of
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group’s and Parent Comparty's ability to continue to do  at least 12 months fram the date of approval
s0 over a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. of the financial statements.

we considered as part of our risk assessment the nature of the Group, its business model and related We confirm that we have nothing material to

risks including where relevant the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and Brexit, the requirementsofthe  report, add or draw attention to in respect of
applicable financial reporting framewor k and the system of internal control. We evaluated the Directors’  these matters.

assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, including challenging the underlying

data and key assumptions used to make the assessment, and evaluated the Directors’ plans farfuture

actions in relation to their going concern assessment.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to that
statement required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) and report if the statement is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge obtained in the audit.

4.2, Principol risks and viability statement Viability means the ability of the Group to
Based solely on reading the Directors’ statements and considering whether they were consistent with the - continue over the time horizon considered
knawledge we obtained in the course of the audit, including the knowiedge obtained in the evaluation of  appropriate by the Directors.

the Directors’ assessment of the Group’s and the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, we

are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation to: We confirm that we have nothing material to
> thedisclosures on pages 44 - 46 that describe the principal risks, procedures to identify emerging report, add or draw attention Lo in respect of
risks, 2nd an explanation of how these are being managed or mitigated; these matters.

> the Directors’ confirmation on page 47 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
and emerging risks facing the Group, including thase that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity; or

> the Directors explanation on page 47 as 1o how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, aver
what period they have done so and why they cansider that period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

we are also required to report whether the Directors’ statement relating to the prospects of the Group
required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters inciuged
those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the aliocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as 2 whole, and in forming our epinion therean, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of Biological Assets under IAS 41 ‘Agricuiture’

Key audit matter
description

The Group carries biological assets at fair value in line with the requirements of 1AS 4L ‘Agriculture’. Discounted cash flow
analyses are performed in determining the valuation. As at 30 June 2020, the Group held total biclogical assets (exciuding
those recognised in inventory) of £349.9m (2019: £327.2m restated).

Certain of the assumptions included within management’s valuation models are subject to estimation uncertainty, and
accordingly, require the exercise of a significant degree of judgement. We deem these assumptions to represent potential
areas in which management could seek to fraudulently manipulate the financial statements.

In planning our auditwe identified the following management assumptions as being the most significant in the determination
of the valuation of each species:

Bovine: the future growth rates in semen sales; the Biological Asset Value discount factor; the forecast weighted average age
of bulls producing saleable semen; and the discount rate applied.

Porcine: the percentage of pureline offspring retained, sold or slaughtered and the discount rates applied to the forecast cash
flows.

In the course of our audit, management alerted us to a historic error in the extraction of the input data used to determine the
valuation of the Pureline herd (Porcine); management corrected this in the financial statements through a restatement of the
comparative information,

Details of the restatement recarded, the key source of estimation uncertainty identified, the Group's accounting policy, and
the biological assets held are disclosed in notes 2,4 and 16 to the financial statements. The Audit & Risk Committee has
included their assessment of the restatement and key audit matter on page 65.
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How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

In respanding to the identified key audit matter we completed the following audit procedures:

>
>

obtained an understanding of controls selevant to the review and approval of the valuation of biclogical assets;
assessed the appropriateness of the logic and mechanical accuracy of the valuation models prepared and the
methodology applied by management for compliance with the reguirernents of 1AS 41 ‘Agriculture’;

made enquiries of management to understand the rationale applied in the determination of key assumptions and any
changes year on year;

challenged the appropriateness of key assumptions applied within the underlying forecasts prepared by management,
with consideration given to historical forecasting accuracy, availability of third-party benchmarking data (where
appropriate);

substaatively tested the current sales age data and benchmarked forecast trends in the age of bulls producing saleable
semen (Bovine);

substantively tested the underlying transactional data underpinning third-party semen sales and inspected the related
contracts (Bovine);

substantively tested the reasonableness of management's forecasts with regard to the percentages of offspring to be
retained, sold or slaughtered with reference to historic transaction data, and further, considered the appropriateness of
the forward looking assumption appiied (Porcine);

involved our internal valuation specialists in our consideration as to the appropriateness of the discount rate applied by -
management in determining the fair value of biological assets;

understood the root cause of the data extraction error identified by management in respect of the Pureline herd and the
resultant restaternent recorded. Specifically, we reviewed the procedures undertaken by management in quantifying the
error and the reasonableness of conclusians made in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.’ Substantive audit procedures, including consideration of third-party
scientific evidence, were performed in respect of the underlying transactional data used to determine the accuracy and
completeness of the error; and

assessed the completeness and accuracy of disclosures made within the financial statements in accordance with JAS 41
‘Agriculture’, IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, and 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’.

Key observations

We are satisfied that the valuation of biological assets and the related disclosures are apprapriate.

Valuation of Goodwill attributed to the ABS cash-generating unit

Key audit matter
description

Management is required to assess the carrying value of goodwill and perform a full impairment review in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets’ on an annual basis, or more frequently if an indicator of impairment exists. As at
30 June 2020, the Group held goodwill of £105.6m (2019: £106.3m} with E31.5m (2019: £33.3m) attributable to ABS.

Certain of the assumptions included within management’s valuation models, principally the short-term future growth rate
and discount rate applied, are subject to estimation uncertainty, and accordingly, require the exercise of a significant degree
of judgement. We deem these assumptions to represent potential areas in which management could seek to fraudulently
maniputate the financial statements.

Details of the key source of estimation uncertainty identified, the Group's accounting policy; and the goodwill held are
disclosed in notes 2, 4 and 14 to the financial statements. The Audit & Risk Committee has included their assessment of the
key audit matteron page65.

How the scope of our
audit respended to the
key audit matter

In responding to the identified key audit matter we completed the following audit procedures:

>
>

obtained an understanding of controls relevant to the review and approval of the valuation of goodwill attributed to ABS;
assessed the appropriateness of the logic and mechanical accuracy of the valuation models prepared and the
methodoiogy applied by management for compliance with the requirements of IAS 36 ‘impairment of Assets’;

made enquiries of management to understand the rationale applied in the determination of key assumptions and any
changes year anyear,

challenged the appropriateness of assumptions applied in determining the short-term future growth rate within the
underlying forecast prepared by management; with consideration given to historical forecasting accuracy, availability of
third-party benchmarking data (where appropriate), and the reasonableness of management’s projections with regard to
relatively new revenue sireams;

involved our internal vaiuation specialists in our consideration as to the appropriateness of the discount rate applied by
management in determining the valuation of goodwill attributed to ABS;

reviewed the sensitivities modelled by management, and performed our own independent sensitivity analyses based on
the outcomes of the procedures identified above in order to consider the adequacy of disclosures made; and

assessed the completeness and accuracy of disclosures made within the financial statements in accordance with IAS 36
‘impairment of Assets’.

Key observations

We are satisfied that the assumptions applied by management in their assessment as to the valuation of goodwill attributed
to the ABS cash generating unit and the related disclosures made are appropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
To the Members of Genus plc

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

we define materiality as the magnitude of misstatemenit in the financial statements that makes it probabtle that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality bath in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
wark.

Based on gur professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality £3.0m (2019: £2.3m) £2.5m{2019: £1.8m)
Basis for determining materiality 59 {2019: 5%) of Profit before Tax excluding the | 13 (2019: 196) of net assets.
impact of exceptional items and the netI1AS 41 The increase in materiality is in line with the
valuation movement on biological assets. increase in Group materiality.

The increase in materiality reflects the improved
trading performance of the Group.

Rationale for the benchmark applied we have used an adjusted profit-based measure | Net assets was selected as an appropriate

on which to determine materiality. This is benchmark for determining materiality, as the
considered appropriate to avoid distortion that Company acts primaiily as a holding company.
could otherwise arise due to non-recurring items
and IAS 41 fair value movements.

6.2 Performance materiality

we set performance materiality at a level bower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncoirected and undetected misstatements
exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Group perfarmance materiality was set at 70% of Group materiality for the 2020 audit (2019:
70%}. In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

> our cumulative knowledge of the Group and its internal control environment;

> the extentof any changes in key management personnet including the transitioned Chief Executive and newly appointed Chief Financial Officer;

> the high degree of centralisation in the Group's financial reporting controls and processes; and

> thelow number of corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified in prior periods.

6.3 Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £150k (2019: £115k}, as well as
differences balow that threshald that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit & Risk Committee on disclosure
matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial staterments.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. identification ond scoping of components

Cur audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing the risks of material
misstaternent at the Group level.

Components were selected to provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the risks of material misstatement identified. Based on
that assessment, we identified 12 components of interest for the purposes of the Group audit (2019; 14), Of these components, nine were designated as
subject to full scope audit procedures (2019: nine), with the remaining three subject to specified procedures (2019: five). Excluding the Parent Company, our
component audits were performed using materiality between £1.0m and £1.4m {2019: £0.9m and £1.8m). These components represent the principal
business units and account for 76% of the Group’s Revenue (2019: 75%), 81% of the Group's Net Assets (2015: 79%)and 83% of the Group's PBT, excluding the
impact of exceptional items and the net I1AS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets {2019: 84%).

In the current year we performed a full scope audit in respect of PIC China {2019: specified procedures), reflecting a significant increase in the component's
contribution to the Group. PIC Philippines was removed from our Group audit scope (2019: full scope), reflecting an overall decling In the component’s
contribution to the Group. Specified procedures were no longer required in respect of the Irish component following the uawind of the structure in the year.

At the Group tevel we also tested the consalidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant
risks of material misstatement within the aggregated financial information of the remaining companents not subject to full scope audit or specified
procedures.
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| assets.
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L Excluding the Impact of exceptional iterns and the net IAS 41 r

7.2. Working with other ouditors

The Group audit team engaged component audit teams te perform the audit procedures 25 set out in section 7.3, The Group audit team held regular
communication with the component auditors in planning for, and throughout, the year-end audit process. Oversight of the component auditors included
attending internal planning and status meetings, attending virtual inventory counts (where applicable), attending close meetings held with local
management, and reviewing relevant audit documentation.

In light of the trave! restrictions and widespread lockdowns resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic we were not able to complete our normal programme of
planned visits. In response to these restrictions we enhanced our remote oversight through a number of measures, as appropriate to each component,
including more frequent dialogue and use of video conferencing and screen-sharing facilities. in the previous year, senior members of the Group audit team
visited component audit teams in the USA, Brazil, Chile, and in the UK.

8. Other information
The Directors are responsible for the ather information. The other information comprises the information included in Strategic Report and the Corporate
Governance sections of the Annual Report; all information other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we de not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatemnents, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information include where we

conclude that:

> Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report and financial statements taken as a
whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s position and performance,
business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

> Audit & Risk Committee reparting - the section describing the work of the Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us
to the Commitiee, or

> Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the Directors’ statement required under the Listing
Rules relating to the Company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code comtaining provisions spedified for review by the auditor in
accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R{2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company's ability to continue as a going
cancern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of acceunting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company o to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

12. Opinions on ather matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with

the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

> theinformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the finantiat statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and

> the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and their envir obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

13.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our 2udit; or )

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not .
visited by us; or

> the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to reportin respect of these matters. ,

13.2. Directors’ Remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors' Remuneration have not been made or the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,

We have nathing to reportin respect of these matters.

14, Other matters

14.1. Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointed by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2006 to audit the financial
statements for the year ending 30 June 2006 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals
and reappointments of the fiem is 15 years, covering the years ended 30 June 2006 ta 30 June 2020.

14.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Commattee we are required Lo provide in accordance with I15As (UK).

15. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditer's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body, for our audit wark, for this repart, or for the apinions we have formed.

. MARK TOLLEY FCA {SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
Reading, United Kingdom
T September 2020
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
Hote Em im
REVENUE 5,6 551.4 488.5
Adjusted Operating Profit 5 65.3 517
Adjusting items;
- Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets 16 15.8 (14.7)
- Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 15 {8.5} {9.5)
- Share-based payment expense - 30 (5.8) (3.0
1.5 (212
- Exceptional items: 7
- Litigation {16.4) {5.0)
- Acquisition and integration [2.1) o7
- Other 0.7) {09
- Pension related . - {15.2)
Total exceptional items (19.2} (21.8)
Total adjusting items (17.7) {49.0)
OFERATING PROFIT 8 47.6 87
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures and associates retained 18 8.9 5.1
Finance costs 10 (5.3) {4.7)
Finance income 10 0.3 08
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 51.5 99
Taxation 11 {10.6) {3.2)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 40.9 67
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company 40.5 T8
Non-controlling interest 0.4 {L1)
409 6.7
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share 12 62.4p 12.4p
Diluted earnings per share 12 61.9p 119p
Alternative Performance Measures
Adjusted operating profit €5.3 577
Adjusted operating profit attributable to non-controlling interest (0.6) (0.4)
Pre-tax share of profits from joint ventures and associates excluding net IAS 41 valuation movement 13 16
Gene editing costs 5.2 73
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates, excluding gene .
editing costs B1.2 722
Gene editing costs (5.2) {13)
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates 76.0 64.9
Net finance costs 10 {5.0) (3.9)
Adjusted Profit Before Tax 710 61.0
Adjusted Earnings Per Share
Basic adjusted earnings per share 12 85.4p 132p
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 12 84.7p " 10.7p

Adjusted results are the Alternative Performance Measures {{APMs’) used by the Board to monitor underlying performance at a Group and operating |
segment level, which are applied consistentiy throughout. These APMs should be considered in addition to statutory measures, and not as a substitute for
or as superior to them, For more information on APMs, see APM Glossary.
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»

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1024 2030 2019 riok:)
Note £m fm £m £m
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 40.9 6.7
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation differences (4.9) 187
Fair value movement on net investment hedges {0.1) (1.6)
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges {0.4) (2.2)
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 11 (1.4) (2.5}
{6.8) 13.4
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss
Actuarial loss on retirement benefit obligations : 29 {16.6) (5.4)
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction 29 10.4 {10.1)
Relepse of additional pension liability . 29 47T . 345
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive expense/(income) 11 0.8 (3.2)
{en 15.8
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE [EXPENSE)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR {1.5) 9.2
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 33.4 358
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company - 3311 371
Non-controlling interest 0.3 {1.2)

334 359
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2020

HNon-
Called up Share Trans- contrell.
share premium own lateen  Hedging Retained ing Total
capital  account shares reserve reserve  earnings Total  intersst wquity
Note £m £m £m £&m £m im £m £m im
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2018
(as previously reported) 6.2 1128 0.y 205 20 2152 416.6 25  4l9l
Prigr period restatement z - - - - (18.2} (152} - {15.2}
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2018 {restated) 6.2 1128 0.0 205 20 260.0 401.4 25 4039
Foreign exchange translation differences, net of tax - - - 16.6 - - 16.6 (0.1} 16.5
Fair value movement on net investment hedges, net of tax - - - (1.3) - - {13} - (1.3
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - 1.8} - {1.8} - {1.8)
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit obligations, net of tax - - - - - (4.6) (4.6} - {a.6)
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction, net of tax - - - - - 8.3) (8.3) - {8.3)
Recognition of additionat pension liability, net of tax - - - - - 287 287 - 287
Other comprehensive income/{expense) for the year - - - 153 {L8) 15.8 293 (0.1 29.2
Profit for the year - - - - - 18 8 (1.1} 6.7
Total comprehensive incame/{expense) for the year - - - 153 (L.8) 236 371 (1.2} 359
Recognition of share-based payments, net of tax - - - - - 0.2 0.2 - 02
Adjustment arising from change in non-controlling interest
and written put option - - - - - - - (2.6 (2.6)
Dividends i3 - - - - - {168) {16.8 -~  {16.8)
Issue of ordinary shares 03 66.2 - - - - 66.5 - &6.5
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2019 {restated) 6.5 179.0 (0.5} 358 0.2 2670 488.4 (L3} 4811
Foreign exchange translation differences, net of tax - - - (6.4} - - {6.4) (0.1}  (6.5)
Fair value movement on net investment hedges, net of tax - - - 0.1 - - 0.1 - 0.1
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - (0.4} - (0.4 - (0.4)
Actvaria! loss on retirement benefit obligations, net of tax - - - - - (104 (14 - (104)
Moverment on pension asset recognition restriction, netof tax - - - - - 6.8 6.8 - 6.8
Release of additional pension liability, net of tax - - - - - 29 2.9 - 29
Other comprehensive expense for the year - - - (6.3) (0.4 .7 (14 (03) (7.5)
Profit for the year - - - - - a&pr 405 0.4 409
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the year - - - (6.3) (0.4 98 331 0.3 334
Recognition of share-based payments, net of tax - - - - - 5.5 5.5 - 55
Dividends 13 - - - - - {18.3} (18.3) - {18.3)
Issue of ardinary shares - 0.1 - - - 0.1 - c.1
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2020 65 1791  (0.1) 205  r2l 2940 5084  (1.0) S07.8
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2020
(restatad)' (restated)’
2020 2019 2018
Note Em £m €m
ASSETS
Goodwill 14 105.6 106.3 102.0
Other intangible assets 15 76.2 80.1 78.7
Biclogical assets 16 310.1 287.1 285.3
Property, plant ang equipment 17 1re 86.0 6.9
Interests in joint ventures and associates 18 227 236 19.9
Other investments 19 6.9 74 59
Derivative financial assets 26 - ha 03
Other receivables 21 1.8 - -
Deferred tax assets 11 7 35 4.3
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS . 644.9 594.4 5733
Inventories 20 374 350 342
Biological assets 16 39.8 40.1 310
Trade and other receivables 21 100.8 980 810
Cash and cash equivalents . 22 413 305 29.1
Income tax receivable 3.1 33 14
Derivative financial assets 26 1.2 1.1 25
Asset held for sale 0.2 0.2 0.2
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 123.8 209.2 1954
TOTAL ASSETS 868.7 8036 768.7
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables px} (95.0) (87.7) (837}
rrt:;;?;:searms laans and barrowings 27 (9.2} (2.1 {13.4)
2! X . .
beferred consideration ' 3: }:g; gé; (gg;
(.I?ali:il?:;liﬁaz : nder leases 28 {10.0) (.2 (1.4
) 4.0 6.1 4.4,
Derivative financial liabilities 2% :0_5; gl,o{ ((0,3)}
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES {130.2) (104.2) (125.3}
Trade and other payables 23 (3.3) - -
|m.e_rest-bearing |gans ‘and‘borrowings 27 (103.6) (101.9) (120.7)
Retirement benefit obligations 29 (18.1) (24.2) (33.9)
Pravisions 25 (11.8) (5.7) {4.5)
Deferred consideration 8 (1.2) (4.2) (4.2)
Income tax liability - - {0.9)
Deferred tax Ilabi.lities 11 (65.5) 66.7) {69.5}
Derivative financial liabitities 26 {6.1) (5.7) (3.7}
Obligations under leases N 28 (21.1) (3.9) (2.1}
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (230.7) (212.3) (235.5)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {360.9) {316.5) (364.8)
NET ASSETS ) 507.8 4871 4039
EQUITY
Called up sh_are Capital 3l 6.5 6.5 62
Share premium account - 179.1 178.0 112.8
Own shares 31 {0.1) 0.1 0.1}
Trans_Lation reserve 31 29.5 358 ns
Hedglng reserye 31 . {0.2) 0.2 2.0
Retained earnings 294.0 2670 260.0
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 508.8 4884 401.4
Nan-controlling interest . 39 4.6 4.2 , 57
Put option over non-controlling interest 39 (5.6) (5.5 3.2
TOTAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST - {1.0) (1.3 25

TOTALEQUITY ’ : 507.8 4811 4039

1 Seenote2for details of the prior period restatement.

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directe. o September 2020,

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directars
STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN
“hief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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- GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1020 2019
Note £m tm

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32 65.8 334
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 18 2.5 7

Jointventure loan repayment 18 1.2 07

Bisposal of joint venture 18 3n -

Acquisition of joint venture 18 (2.2) -

Acquisition of trade and assets - {200
Disposal of subsidiary - 04

Payment of deferred consideration 38 {1.7) (21.1)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (24.6) {17.1)
Purchase of intangible assets (10.8) (1L2)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.1 15

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (30.7) (46.1)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Drawdown of borrowings 80.0 1048

Repayment of borrowings {73.8) (1389)
Payment of lease liabilities (11.1) {2.0)
Equity dividends paid (18.3) (16.8)
Issue of ordinary shares 0.1 66.5

NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (23.1) 136
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,0 09

Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year 305 29.1

12.0 09

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents {L.2)

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE 22 413 305

Q9.5




(Page 108

of 189)

Y 7 o FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 107

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Genus pic {the ‘Company’) is a public company limited by shares and incorporated in England, United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. Its company
number is 02972325 and its registered office is Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire RG21 4DZ. The Group Financiat Statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to asthe ‘Group’). We have used the equity method to account for the
Group's interests in jofnt ventures and associates. Gur business model on pages 16 and 11 explains the Group's operations and principal activities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

We have prepared the Group Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union and therefore compiy with Artice 4 of the IAS Regufation.

Unless otherwise stated, we have consistently applied the significant accounting policies set out below to ali periods presented in these Group Financial
Statements.

The going concern statemient has been included in the Strategic Report on page 47 and forms part of these statements.

Restatement in the 2019 and 2018 Group Balance Sheet
During the period, it was discovered that an input used in the valuation of biclogical assets in preceding periods was not in line with observable data.

Accordingly, the prior period balance sheets at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 have been restated in accordance with WAS 8, and, in accordance with IAS L
{revised). A balance sheet at 30 June 2018 is also presented together with related notes. The restatements involved are a reduction in biclogical assets at
30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 of £20.5m and a reduction in related deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 of £5.3m.

Impact on the Group’s Balance Sheet for year ended 30 June 2019

(asrepocted) Impact of {restated)
pll] restatement 2019
m &m m

Non-current assets
Biologicat assets 3078 {20.5) 2871

Current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (72.0) 53 {66.7)
Net assets 5023 (15.2) 487.1

For the year ended 30 June 2019, there has been no material effect on the Group Income Statement, Group Statement of Comprehensive Income and no
impact on the Group Statement of Cash Flows. Therefore, there has been no restatement of the Group Income Statement and there is no adjustmentto
earnings per share.

Functional and presentational currency
We present the Group Financial Statements in Sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentational currency. All inancialinformation presented
in Sterling has been rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

Use of estimates

Preparing financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect our application of accounting policies
and our reported assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Our actual resuits may differ from these estimates. We review our estimates and underiying
assumptians an an ongaing basis, and recognise revisions to accounting estimates in the period in which we revise the estimate and in any future periods
affected.

Note 4 provides information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and the critetal juagemeiils we made in applying aconinting poficies that
have the most effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

Alternative Performance Measures
In reporting financial information, the Group presents Alternative Performance Measures, {'APMs'), which are not defined or specified under the
requirements of IFRS and which are not considered to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures.

The Group believes that these APMs provide stakeholders with additional helpful information on the performance of the business. The APMs are consistent
with how we plan our business performance and report on it in ourinternal management reporting to the Board and the executive leadership team, Some
ofthese measures are also used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets.

For a full list of all APMs please see the Alternative Performance Measures section of the Annua) Report on pages 17610 184,
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS A WHOLE

This section sets out our significant accounting policies that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy is generally
applicable to a specific note to the Financial Statements, the policy has been described in that note. We have also detailed below the new accounting
pronouncements that we will adept in future years and our current view of the impact they will have on our financial reporting.

Accounting convention

We prepare the Group Financial Statements under the historical cost convention, except for our biological assets, share-based payment expense, pension
liabilities and derivative financial instsuments. In accordance with IFRS, we measure: bioclogical assets at fair value less point-of-sale costs, which represent
distribution costs and selling expenses, and share-based payment expense, pension liabilities, and certain financial instruments at fair value,

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities the Group controls. We have control of an entity when we are exposed, or have the rights, to variable returns from the entity and
have the ability to affect the returns through power over the entity. In assessing control, we take into account potential voting rights that we can currently
exercise or convert. We fully consolidate the results of subsidiaries we acquire from the date that control transfers to the Group. We cease consolidating the
results of subsidiaries that we cease to control from the date that control passes.

in preparing the Group Financial Statements, we eliminate intra-Group batances and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-Group
transactions. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment, to the extent of our
interest in the investee. We eliminalte unrealised losses in the same way as unrealised gains, but only 10 the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currencies

We record foreign currency transactions in the relevant Group entity's functional currency, at the exchange rate on the transaction date. At each balance
sheet date, we retransiate monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. We recognise
the foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation in the Group Income Statement.

When non-monetary assets and liabilities are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, we translate them at the exchange rate at the transaction
date. When non-monetary assets and liabilities are stated at fair value in a foreign currency, we translate them at the prevailing exchange rate on the date
we determined the fair value. We recognise the foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including gooawill arising on consclidation, are trans|ated into Sterling at the prevailing exchange rates at
the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are booked into foreign currency translation reserves and reported in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive income, We translate these operations’ revenues and expenses using an average rate for the period.

When exchange differences arise from the fair value movement of related effective hedges, we take them to the foreign currency transiation reserve. When
we dispose of a foreign operation, we release these differences ta the income statement. Exchange movements on inter-Company loans considered to be
permanent equity are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, together with any related taxation.

The principal exchange rates were as follows:

Average Clasing

. 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
VS Dollar/ 1.26 1.29 135 1.24 127 1.32
Euro/t 1.14 1.13 113 1.10 1.2 113
Brazilian Real/f 574 4.9% 451 677 4,89 5.12
Mexican Peso/f 26.08 2504 25.37 28.52 24.40 26.3
Chinese Yuan/t 8.89 8.83 8.7 B.7S 872 875
Russian Rouble/¢ 85.17 8493 79.66 88.19 80.30 8294

Research and development
We undertake research with the aim of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge, and recognise this expenditure in the income statement asitis
incurred.

The Group constantly monitors its research activities. When research projects achieve technical feasibility and are commercially viable, Gur poticy is to
capitalise further develop ment costs within intangible assets, in accordance with 1AS 38.

Cur development activities include developing and maintaining our porcine genetic nucleus herd and our bovine pre-stud herds. We do not capitalise
development expenditure separately for these herds, as their fair value is included in the Fair value of the Group's biological assets, in accordance with
1AS 41

We disclose the costs of research and development activities, as required by IAS 38 (see note 8).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AWHOLE CONTINUED

Other income and deferred income

In the prior year, the company entered into 2 strategic collaboration with Beijing Capital Agribusiness ('BCA’) under which 8CA will establish and fund a
collaboration specific entity {'BCA Future Bio-Tech’) which will use Genus' intellectuat property and know-now 1o pursut the PRRSv resistance regulatory
and devetopment work in China. Genus will receive consideration aler meeting certain milestones in the development programme.

Each milestone is considered to be either a separate performance obligation, or a set of groups of separate performance obligations, under this agreement
and are unbundled in the contractual arrangement as if they are distinct from one another.

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestone payments, and upon completion of those performance obligations recognise
the fair value of amounts earned in other income. Some performance obligations, such as the transfer of know-how, are recognised at a peint in time where
athers, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over time. We recognise any received but unearned consideration 25 deferred income,

we will apply the same acceunting policy to any other comparable agreements,

Reversals of impairment
We reverse an impairment loss in respect of assets other than geodwill when the impairment loss may no ionger exist and we have changed the estimates
we used to determine the recoverable amount.

We only reverse an impairment loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount itwould have had, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if we had not recognised the impairment loss.

New standards and interpretations

In the current period, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins after 1 January 2019 and have been implemented with effect from 1 July 2019. These are:
> IFRIC 23 - 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’;

> Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015-2017 Cycle;

> Amendments to JAS 28 - ‘Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures”;

=  Amendments (o IFRS 9 - 'Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’; and

> Amendments to IAS 19 - ‘Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’.

Their addition has not had any material impact on the disclosures, or amounts reported in the Group Financial Staterents.
In addition to the above the Group adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ from 1 July 2018,

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach with the value of the right-of-use asset being equal to the lease liability at the
date of adoption.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabllities for leases ol low-value assets (those with 8 purchase price of less than
£4,000), and lease payments associated with those assets wil! be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis. The Group has made use of the practica
expedient available on transition to4FRS 16 not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. Where the contracts have been modified on or after

1 July 2019 have been reassessed to determine if it contains a lease as defined by IFRS 16, The Group has not elected to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the
right-af-use asset would be recognised as anintangible asset.

In addition, the Group has utilised the following practical expedients, permitted by IFRS 16:

> theright-of-use assetfor each lease has been measured as the present value of the |ease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments
priorto application; h

for leases where the remaining term was less than 12 months at 1 July 2019 the Group has elected to treat these as short term,

for leases that were previously classified as an operating lease under IAS 17 ‘Leases’ the lease liability on 1 July 2019 was calculated as the present value
of the remaining lease payments using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019;

for existing leases that incurred initial direct costs, were excluded from the measurement of the right-of-use asset as at 1 July 2015;

the use of hindsight for existing leases has been applied in determining options to extend ar terminate the lease;

the Group has not elected to separate lease companents from non-lease components; and

the Group has elected to apply a single discount rate te a portfolic of leases with similar characteristics.

v v

v ¥ V¥

Financial impoct of IFRS 16
The impact of adopting IFRS 16 on the Group's Income Statement, Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows are presented in the following tables:

Impact on the Group's income Stotement
In the year, the adoption of IFRS 16 has had the following impact of the Group’s Incame Statement:

Diflerences
Year ended between Year ended
30 June 2020 IFRS 16 and 30 June 2020
{as reported) 1AS 17 {underiAS )7}
£m £m Em
Operating profit 476 o7 465
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures and associates retained K] - 89

Finance costs . . (5.3) 07 (4.6)
Finance income 0.3 -

Profit before tax . 51.5 - 5L.5
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AWHOLE CONTINUED
impact on the Group’s Bolonce Sheet

1 July 2018
priorte
adoption Recognised 1 July 2019
of iFRS 16 on adoption  post adopiion
{as reported} of IFRS 15 of IFRS 1§
£m im Em
Non-current assets
Property, plant, motor vehicles and equipment 86.0 268 1126
Current liabilities
Cbligations under leases (2.2} (7.5) (9.7
Mon-current liabilities
Cbligations under leases (3.9} {19.1} (23.0)

The following table shows a reconciliation between the operating lease obligations reported at 30 June 2019 and the amount recognised on adoption of
IFRS 16 using the weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 2.6% at the date of adoption.

£m

QOperating lease commitments {as at 30 June 2019} 327

Leases classified as low value or short term (0.9)

Software licences outside the scope of IFRS 15 {2.3)

Operating lease commitments to be capitalised under IFRS 16 29.5

Impact of discounting ) (2.9

Lease liability (1 July 2019) 26.6
Impact on the Group’s Statement of Cash Flows

Yearended Reclassilication Year ended

30June202¢  onadoptional 30 June 2020

{a8 reported) iFRS 16 {under 1A5.17)

£m £m £m

Net cash from operating activities 65.8 (7.6) 58.2

Net cash outflow from investing activities {30.7} - (30.7)

Net cash outflow from financing activities (23.1) 16 {15.5)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12.9 - 120

The reconciliation of the impact on net debt of adopting IFRS 16 can be found in the analysis of the net debt note 32.
Following adoption therewas no material impact to adjusted earnings per share, earnings per share or taxation,

Leases accounting policy under IFRS 16
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise 8s an expense any payments made in respect of short-term leases {those with 2 term of less than 12 months) and
leases for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use. Lease -
liabilities are measured at the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-lease components. Future lease
payments include fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives
receivable. Lease liabilities also take into account amounts payable under residual value guarantees and payments to exercise options to the extent that it
is reasonably certain that such payments will be made, The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be measured, at
an incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured initially at cost based on the value of the associated lease liability, adjusted for any payments made before inception,
initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition,
we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the term of the lease or, if shor ter, the useful
econornic (ife of the leased asset. The lease terrm shall include the period of an extension option where it is reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised. Where the tease contains a purchase option the asset is written-off over the useful life of the asset when it is reasonably certain that the purchase
option will be exercised.

We remeasure the lease liability (and make a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

> The lease term has changed or there is a thange in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

> The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is dueto a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease Biability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AWHOLE CONTINUED .

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of the Annual Report, the following stzndards and interpretations which have not been applied in the report were in issue but not yet effective
{and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU). The Group will continue to assess the impact of these amendments prior to their adoption.
These are:

> Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 - 'Definition of Material’;

Amendments to IFRS 3 - ‘Definition of a Business’;

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 - ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’;

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting: and

IFRS 16 ‘COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions'’.

L

4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements reguires the Group to make estimates and jJudgements that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts.

Critical judgements represent key decisions made by management in the application of the Group's accounting policies where a significant risk of
materially different outcomes exists due ta management assumptions or sources of estimation uncertainty. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual resufts may differ from these estimates.

The estimates which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next 12 months are
discussed below.

Critical accounting judgements

Adjusting ftems

The Directors believe that the adjusted profit and earnings per share measures provide additional information to shareholders on the performance of the
business. These measures are consistent with how business performance is measured internally by the Board and the executive leadership team.

The profit before tax and adjusting items measures are not recognised profit measures under IFRS and may not be directly comparable with adjusted profit
measures used by other companies. The classification of adjusting items requires significant judgement after considering the nature and intentions of a
transaction. The Group’s definitions of adjusting items are outlined within the Group accounting policies and have been applied consistently year on year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Determination of the fair volue of biclogical assets fnote 16)
Determining the fair values of our bovine and porcine biolagical assets requires the application of a number of estimates and assumptions.

Below is a list of these estimates and assumptions, showing whether we consider them to be observable or unobservable inputs to the fair valve
determination. In additicn, we identify those inputs that are ‘readily abtainable’ transactional data or ‘open market prices’.

Estimates and assumptions Observable/Uncbservabie Source

Bovine Long-term dairy volume growth rate Unobservable n/a
Short-term dairy volume growth rate Unobservable nfa
Value at point of production! Unobservable n/a
Unit prices Qbservatie Readily nbtainable
Animals’ useful lifespan Observable Readily obtainable
Percentage of new dairy bulls to be produced internally eachyead  Unohservable n/a
Age profile of bulls? Unobservabie n/a
Risk adjusted discount rate' Unobservable nfa

Porcine (non pure line herds) Animals’ useful lifespan Observable Readily obtainable
The proportion of animals that go to slaughter Ohservable Readily obtainable
The mix of boars and gilts Observable Readily obtainable
Risk adjusted giscount rate Unobservable n/a

Porcine (pure line herds} Number of future generations attributable to the current herds Observable Readily obtainable
Fairvalue prices achieved onsales Observable Open market prices
Animals” expected useful lifespan and productivity Observable Readily obtainable
The proportion of animals that go to breeding sales’ Qbservable Readily obtainable
Risk adjusted discount rate! Unobservable n/a

1 Key sources ol estimation unceriainty.
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5, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’ requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularty
reviewed by the Chief Executive and the Board to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance. The Group's operating and reporting
structure comprises three operating segments: Genus PIC, Genus ABS and Research and Development. These segments are the basis on which the Group
reports its segmental information. The principal activities of each segment are as follows:

> GenusPIC - our global porcine sales business;

> Genus ABS - our global bovine sales business; and

> Research and Development - our global spend on research and development.

A segmental analysis of revenue, operating profit, depreciation, amortisation, non-current asset additions, segment assets and liabilities and geographical
information is provided below. We do not include our adjusting items in the segments, as we believe these do not reflect the underiying performance of the
segments. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies, as described in the Financial Statements.

. 2020 2019
Revenue £m &m
Genus PIC 298.8 2537
Genus ABS 2316 2226
Research and Development
Parcine Product Development 117 9.4
Bovine Product Development 3.3 28
Gene Editing ) : - -
Other Research and Development - -
15.0 12.2
551.4 488.5

Adjusted operating profit by segment is set out below and reconcited to the Group's adjusted operating prafit. A reconciliation of adjusted operating profit
1o profit for the year is shown on face of the Group Income Statement.

2020 W19
Adjusted operating profit tm im
Genus PIC 113.3 93.1
Genus ABS 325 299
Research and Development
Porcine Product Development (28.9) (18.4)
Bovine Product Development (20.6) {18.7)
Gene Editing (5.2) {13
Other Research and Development (10.2) (2.0)
(64.9) (54.4)
Adjusted segment operating profit 80.9 68.6
Central (15.6} {10.9)
Adjusted operating profit 65.3 517

Our business is not highly seasonal and our customer base is diversified, with no individual customer generating more than 296 of revenue.

Exceptional items of £19.2m expense (2019: £21.8m expense), relate to Genus ABS (€18.4m expense), Genus PIC {£0.5m expense) and cur central segment
{£0.3m expense). Note 7 provides details of these exceptional items.

We consider share-based payment expenses on a Group-wide basis and do not alloc ate them to reportable segments.

Other segment information

Depraciation Amortisation Additions to non-current assets
2020 019 2020 219 2020 2019
Em £Em £m im £m Em
Genus PIC 4.5 (1 T6 T2 2.7 13
Genus ABS 11.4 23 3.2 24 24.7 6.8

Research and Development

Research 0.5 05 0.9 1.2 1.5 0.8
Porcine Product Development 2.4 23 - - 1.4 30
Bovine Product Development 1.5 34 02 | 29 4.2 11.5
4.4 6.2 . % § 4.1 L T 153
Segment total ‘ 20.3 9.2 11.9 137 . 34.5 234
Central . 7 34 L5 - 10.0 94

Total ’ ' " 240 126 13.4 137 a4.5 328
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

Segment assets Segment liabilities

{restatad]! {rastated)! {rastated)t {restated)

2020 2018 © 2008 2020 2019 2018

im £m £m £m £m £m

Genus PIC 2476 2621 235.9 (72.6} {51.6) {48.3}
Genys ABS 2013 157.1 1806 {52.9) (419} 412)

Research and Development

Research 7.2 74 125 (3.5 0.6} (L3
Percine Product Development R 226.3 180.0 189.0 (56.3) (50.8) (71.2)
Bovine Product Deveicpment ) 148.5 161.5 152.8 {33.6} {32.8) {3L.1)
386.0 34859 3543 (93.4) (84.2} (103.6)
Segment total 828.9 768.1 750.8 (218.9) (171.7) {193.1)
Central 39.8 355 119 (142.0) {132.8) (7L
Total ’ 868.7 8036 687 (360.9) (316.5) (364.8)

1 Sewnote 2ior details of the prior perlod restatement.

Geographical information
The Group's revenue by geographical segrment is analysed below. This analysis is stated on the basis of where the customer is located,

Revenue
a0 2019
Em £m
North America 226.4 2118
Latin America 81.8 BL.}
UK 94.4 837
Rest of Europe, Middle East, Russia and Africa 8.0 - 817
Asia 70.8 44.2
§51.4 488.5

Non-current assets {excluding deferred taxation and financial instruments)
The Group’s nan-current assets by geographical segment are analysed below and are stated on the basis of where the assets are located.

(restated) (restated)?
2020 2019 018
£m £m £m
North America 454.4 400.2 4237
Latin America 3713 457 374
UK 188 06 a0
Rest of Europe, Middle East, Russia and Africa 41.5 59.3 422
Asia 29.2 147 184
641.2 590.5 568.7

1 See note 2 for details of the priot period restatement.

6. REVENUE
Accounting policy
The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:

> sale of bovine and porcine semen, porcine breeding animals, embryos and ancillary products,
royslties;

consulting;

technicz! services and advice revenues;

installation and maintenance of IntelliGen technology;

licensing of IntelliGen technotogy;

slaughter animal sales; and

bovine partnership contracts,

¥ ¥ VYV VY

Revenue is measured based on the consideration the Group expects to be entitled to under a contract with 2 customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.
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6. REVENUE CONTINUED

The sale of bovine and porcine semen, porcine breeding animaols, embryos and ancillory products

Revenue from the sale of bovine and porcine semen, porcine breeding animals, embryos and anciltary products is recognised when the control of the
goods has transferred to the cystomer or distributor, This is either when we ship to customers or on delivery, depending on the terms of sale. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately, or within a short pericd of time, from the point the custormer or distributor controls the goods.

Royalties

Royalties are recognised when the performance obligation is met. We receive royalty payments from certain porcine customers based on key perfermance
variables, such as the number of pigs born per litter, the number of litters born per sow and the average slaughter weight of the animals born, This amount
is canfirmed directly to Genus by the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately from the customer, or within a short period of time,
once the performance obligation is satisfied.

Consulting

Revenue from consulting represents the amounts we charged for services we provided during the year, including recoverable expenses, We recognise
consulting services provided but not yet billed as revenue, based on a fair value assessment of the work we have delivered and our contractual right to
receive payment. Where unbilled revenue is contingent on a future event, we do not recognise any revenue until the event occurs.

Technical services and advice revenues

Revenue from technical services and advice revenues represents the amounts we charged for services we provided during the year, including recoverable
expenses. We recognise technical services and advice revenues provided but not yet billed as revenue, based on a fair value assessment of the work we
have delivered and our contractual right to receive payment. Where unbilled revenue is contingent on a future event, we do not recognise any revenue until
the event occurs. Technical services and advice revenues are presented in ancillary services in the following table.

instollation and maintenance of IntelliGen technology

Revenue from the installation of IntelliGen technology is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the instaliation and is based on milestones
being met. Maintenance is provided as a distinct service to customers and is recognised over the period of the service agreement. These revenues are
presented in anciltary services in the following table,

Licensing of intelliGen technology

Revenue from the licensing of IntelliGen technology is recognised at a pointin time when the licence is granted. In determining the transaction price any
minimum royalties due under the contracts are included in the value apportioned to the grant of the licence, excluding aay royalties that arise on units
produced in excess of the guaranteed minimums. These additional royalties have been determined to be a usage-based royalty and ace recognised as
revenue at the pointin time that the units are produced. These revenues are presented in ancillary services in the following table.

Staughter of animols

Revenue from the slaughter of animals is recognised when control of the goods has transferred ta the slaughterhouse, which is generally on the delivery of
animals to the slaughterhouse. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately, or within a short pericd of time, fromn the point the slaughterhouse
controls the goods. .

Bovine partnership contracts

Partnership contracts include the provision of multiple bovine products and services for a single price. The contract price is allocated to the individual
performance obligations base on their standalone selling prices. The revenue is recognised for the products and services once the individual performance
obligation has been satisfied, Revenues from partnership contracis are presented in sale of animals, semen, embryos, products and ancillary services.

2020 2019
£m im
Sale of animals, semen, embryos, products and ancillary services 408.1 3589
Royaities 136.2 1229
Consulting services 7.1 76
551.4 488.5
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group's revenue is analysed below and stated by the timing at which itis recognised.
2020 2018
&m £m
Genus PIC 295.5 2513
Genus ABS 07 2003
Research and Development 14.9 12.2
Recognised at a pointintime 528.1 463.8
Genus PIC ’ 3.3 24
Genus ABS 19.9 223
Research and Development 0,1 T -
Recognised over time . 23.3 H1
Total revenue 551.4 488.5

An analysis of contract assets and contract liabilities is provided in note 24.
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7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Accounting policy
We present exceptional items separately, as we believe it helps to improve the understanding of the Group’s underlying performance.

1n determining whether an item should be presented as exceptional, we consider items which are material either because of their size or their nature, and
those which are non-recurring. For an item to be considered as exceptional, it must initially meet at least one of the following criteria:

> itis a one-off material item;

> ithas been directly incurred as the result of either an acquisition, integration or other major restructuring programme;

> ithas been previously classified as an exceptional item, and 2s such consistent accounting treatment is being applied; or

> itis unusualin nature, e.g. outside the normal course of business.

If an item meets at least one of the criteria, we then exercise judgement as to whether the item should be classified as exceptional.

For the tax and cash impact of exceptional items see note 11 and 32, respectively.

1010 019

Operating expense fm £m
Litigation and damages {16.4) (5.0
Acguisition and integration (2.1) 0.7
Other (0.7} 0.9)
Pension related - (15.2)
(19.2} (2L.8)

Litigation and damages
Litigation includes legal fees of £5.6m (2019: £5.0m) related to the actions between ABS Global, Inc. and certain affiliates {ABS} and inguran, LLC and
certain affiliates (aka Sexing Technologies ('ST")} and £10.8m {2019: £nif} for damages and costs related to patent infringement.

In July 2014, ABS launched a legal action against ST in the US District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin and initiated anti-trust proceedings which
ultimately enabled the taunch of ABS's IntelliGen sexing technology in the US market (ABS ). In June 2017, ST filed proceedings against ABS in the same
District Court, where ST alleged that ABS infringed seven patents and asserted trade secret and breach of contract claims (ABS II'). The ABS | and ABS I
proceedings in the periods before the year ended 30 June 2020 are more fully described in the Notes to the Financial Statements in previous Annual
Reports.

Materiol litigation activities during the year ended 30 June 2020

In relation to ABS I, a hearing proceeded in September 2019, and on § September a jury held that ABS IntelliGen technology infringed US patents 8,206.987
{the “987 patent’), 7,311,476 [the "476 patent’) and 7,611,309 (the "309 patent’), and alsc tound that ST was not in material breach of the 2012 Semen Serting
Agreement, The infringement of the '987 patent confirms ABS' existing obligation from ABS | to pay a royalty of $1.25 for each straw of sexed semen
produced in the US and the jury later held that ABS should pay a royalty of 52.60 per straw for infringament of the ‘476 and '309 patents for 3,295,355 straws
soid by ABS up to 30 June 2018. This royalty is retrospective, as ABS had reengineered the IntelliGen technology by incorporating a non-infringing
microfiuidic chip known as ‘$SC(B) prior to the hearing. ST confirmed in court that the SSC{B} chip did not infringe the 476 or ‘309 patents. ABS has sought
judgments as 2 matter of law (JMOL} in relation to the invalidity of the *987, ‘476 and '309 patents, JMOLs in relation to the non-infringement of the '309 and
'476 patents, and a reduction in damages awarded by the jury. Once the court has decided on the JMOLS, the parties will consider their options for appeal.

0On 29 January 2020, 5T filed a rew US complaint against ABS (‘ABS III'). ST allege infringement of the '987 patent through: (i} the sale, lease or transfer of the
IntelliGen technology to third parties; (i) the im portation of sexed semen straws made outside the US using the InteliGen technology; and {iii) the use of
the intelliGen technology to produce IVF products. ABS has prepared and filed a response to the ABS Il complaint, including a motion to dismiss, on the
basis that all these issues were fully resolved in either the ABS | or ABS il litigations. The parties await the court’s decision.

On March 10, 2020, the USPTO issued patent 10,583,439 (the "439 patent ), and subsequently ST asked the court for permission to file a supplemental
complaint in ABS Il asserting infringement of the ‘439 patent. ABS believes that ST's.claim for infringement falls short and has filed an opposition to ST's
request. .

On April 15,2020, ST filed 2 new complaint (‘ABS IV'), asserting the same claim of infringement of the 439 patent alleged in its supplemental complaint and
then moved to consolidate the ABS Iv and ABS 111 litigation, ABS has opposed this action and has filed a motion for summary dismissal.

On 23 June 2020, the USPTO issued patent 10,689,210 {the ‘210 patent'), and on 6 July 2020, ST sought a second supplement of ABS 1l by adding a claim of
'210 patent infringement. ABS has opposed this action, The parties await the court’s decision, and in the meantime, ABS is considering its options for
responding to ST's assertion of the '439 and '210 patents.

A provision of £10,5m has been recognised in the year ended 30 June 2020 in respect of the royalty per straw for infringement of the '476 and '309 patents
claimed by ST through ABS 11

Indian Litigation: in September 2019, ST also fited parallel patent infringement proceedings against ABS in India alleging infringement of the Indian patent
240790 ('790 patent’). The '790 patent is the equivalent of the US '476 patent relating to microfluidic chips. ABS had already sought the revocation of the
"790 patent in April 2017 and filed a response and counterclaim seeking the revocation of the ‘790 patent. This matter is next before the Indian Courts on

8 October 2020 to consider the timetable and the application for a preliminary injunction. All microfluidic chips used by ABS in India are the non-infringing
SSC(B) chips.
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7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS CONTINUED
Acquisitions and integration
During the year, £2. 1m (2019: £0.7m} of expenses were incurred in relation to potential acguisitions that were not completed.

Other
included within 'Qther’ are £0.8m (2019: £1.5m} of expenses which relate to the costs of entering into our strategic porcine ¢ollaboration in China. Included
within the 2019 batance is an insurance receipt of E3.6m from a legacy enviranmental claim.

Pension related

In the prioryear, the High Court handed down judgment in the Lloyds Bank pensions case, requiring pension schemes to equalise Guaranteed Minirmyum
Pensions ((GMPS'). Genus's legacy pension schemes are affected by this ruling, resulting in an aggregate past service charge of £16.1m, partially offset by a
settlement gain of £0.9m {net of fees). :

8. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating costs comprise:!

2020 2018
£m Em
Cost of sales excluding net IAS 41 valuation movement on biologicat assets and amortisation of multiplier contract
intangible assets {236.3) {204.8)
Net 1AS 41 valuation movement on biological assets 158 (14.7)
Amortisation of multiplier contract intangible assets (0.3) {0.3)
Cost of gonds sold {220.8) {2198
Cost of sales (excluding amortisation of acquired intangibles) (103.5) 1.1
Amortisation of customer relationship intangible assets (5.3) (6.5)
Cost of sales {108.8) 104.2)
Research and Development expenditure (65.3) "(54.9)
Amortisation and impairment of technology, software and licences and patents (6.1} 6.0
Research and Development costs {11.4) (60.9)
Administrative expenses {excluding exceptional items) {76.1) (68.0)
Share-based payment expense - (5.8) (3.0)
Amortisation of software, licences and patents (1.7} ¢Sy
Exceptional items within administrative expenses (19.2} - {21.8)
Total administrative expenses {102,8} {94.9)
Total operating costs (503.8} {479.8)
Profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting): :
2020 2019
£m tm
Net foreign exchange losses 0.9 Q04
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 12.1 1086
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 10.9 2.0
Loss on disposal of fixed assets and right-of-use assets 37 -
Loss/(profit} on digposal of intangible fixed assets 1.2 0.1)
Rental expense for shore-term leases T 12 -
Employee costs (See note 9} 175.5 154.1
Impairment of inventory 1.2 -
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense . 871.3 838
Auditor’s remuneration is as follows:
2010 019
. £m &m
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s Annual Report and Financial Statements 0.4 03
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 0.5 . 05
Total audit fees 0.9 08
Tax compliance services _ ) 0.1 0.1
Transaction support services : 0.2 -
Totalnon-audit fees 0.3 01
Total fees to the Group’s auditor 1.2 09

Fees payable to other auditors of Group companies R - -

Non-audit tax services principéuy comprise tax compliance support services and transaction support. These services fall within the non-audit services
policy approved by the Company's AuditCommittee. .
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9. EMPLOYEE COSTS
This note shows the total employment costs and the average number of people employed by segment during the year.
Employee costs, including Directors’ remuneration, amounted to:
2020 2019
im £m
Wages and salaries (including bonuses and sales commission) 154.3 136.6
Social security costs 15.1 13.3
Contributions to defined contribution pension plans 4.6 44
Share-based payment expense (excluding National Insurance) 4.8 27
178.8 157.0
The employee costs above include £3.3m (2019 £2.9m) which has been capitalised into intangible assets as part of the development of GenusOne
{see note 15).
The average monthly number of employees and full-time equivatent employees, including Directors, was as follows:
Number of employees Full-time squivalent
) (restateg)y (restated)t
1020 2019 2020 018
Number Numbey Mumber Number
Genus PIC 537 535 518 505
Genus ABS 2,078 1973 1,991 1,884
Research and Development 346 329 325 258
Central 142 127 135 122
3,103 2,964 2,969 2,80%
Included in the totals above:
UK 843 818 759 753

The Directors' Remuneration Report sets out details of the Directors' remuneration, pensions and share options.

1 nthe prior year, certain employees ware incarrectly allocated as Ganus PIC employees but should have been classilied as Genus ABS empioyees. This has been corrected in the prior period numbersto

conform with the current year presentation. There is no change 1o the overall employee numbers reported.

10. NET FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs mainly arise from interest due on bank loans, pension scheme liabilities, amortisation of debt issue costs, unwinding of discount on put

options and the results of hedging transactions used to manage foreign exchange and Interest rate movernents.

Accounting policy

We recognise interest income and interest expense in the income statement, as they accrue, based on the effective interest rate method.

Interest income includes income on cash and cash equivalents and income on other financial assets. Finance costs include interest costs in relation to
financial liabilities, This includes interest on (ease liabilities which represents the unwind of the discount rate applied to lease liabilities.

2020 2019

fm im

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (2.9 2.3
Amortisation of debt issue costs (0.4) 0.4)
Other interest payable (0.1) -
Unwinding of discount put options (0.5} -
Net interest cost in respect of pension scheme liabilities (0.4) {0.9)
Interest onlease liabilities (1.0 (0.1
Total interest expense {5.3) 4.7)
Interest income on bank deposits 0.3 02
Net settlement income on derivative financial instruments. - Q6
Total interest income 0.3 0.8
Net finance costs (5.0} 39
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11. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION

This note explains how our Group tax charge arises. The deferred tax section of the note also provides information on our expected future tax charges
and sets out the tax assets and liabilities heid across the Group, together with our view on whether or not we expect to be able to make use of them

in the future.

Accounting policies

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax, We recognise tax in the income statement, unless:
> it relates to items we have recognised directly in equity, in which case we recognise it in equity, or

> it arises as 2 fair value adjustment in a business combination.

we provide for current tax, including UK corparation tax and foreign tax, at the amounts we expect to pay (or recover), using the tax rates and the laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, together with any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxis tax we expect to pay or recover due to differences between the carrying amounts of cur assets and liabilities in oyr Financial Statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in calculating our taxable profit. We account for deferred tax using the balance sheet liability method.

We generally recognise deferced tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets to the extent that we will probably have taxable

profits to utilise deductible temporary differences against. We do not recognise these assets and liabilities if the temporary difference arises from:

> ourinitial recognition of goodwill; or '

> ourinitial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction (other than a business combination) that affects neither our taxable profit nor our
accounting profit.

We recognise deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences arising on our investments in subsidiaries, and interests in joint ventures and
associates, except where we can control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that it will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

We calculate deferred tax at the tax rates we expect to apply in the period when we settle the liability of realise the asset. We charge or credit deferred taxin the
income statement, except when it relates to items we have charged or credited directly to equity, inwhich case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Income tax expense
2020 2019
£m £m
Current tax expense
Current period 13.8 126
Adjustment fos prior periods (r.1) 0.9)
Totai current tax expense in the Group Income Statement 127 117
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2.6} (77
Adjustment for priar periods 0.5 (0.8)
Total deferred tax credit in the Group Income Statement (2.1} 8.9
Total income tax expense excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 10.6 32
Share of income tax of equity accounted investees (see note 18) 2.3 14
Total income tax expense in the Group iIncome Statement 129 46
Reccnciliation of effective tax rate
2020 2020 2019 0.9
% £m % £m
Profit before tax 51.5 9.9
Add back share of income tax of equity accounted investees 1.3 14
Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 53.8 11.3
Income tax at UK corporation tax of 19.0% (2019: 19.09%) 15.0 10.2 19.0 22
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 6.1 3.3 52.3 59
Non-deductible expenses . 3.2 1.7 143 16
Tax exempt income and incentives (4.4) {2.4) (43.3) (4.9)
Change in tax rate : (2.8) {1.5) (3.5 {0.4)
Movernents in recognition of tax losses L) 0.5 6.2 01
Change in unrecognised temporary differences (0.4) (o.z) (1.8 0.3
Tax overprovided in prior periods (0.6) (0.3) (14.9) (1 %]
Change in provisions 1.5 0.8 115 13
Tax on undistributed reserves 1.5 0.8 09 [+D]

Totalincome tax expense in the Group Income Statement 24.0 129 407 46
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11. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
The tax rate for the year depends an our mix of profits by country and our ability to recognise deferred tax assets in respect of losses in some of our smaller
territorées, Tax is calculated using prevailing tax legislation, refiefs and existing interpretations and practice.

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legistation to implement the OECD's
BEPS recommendations and by European Commission initiatives including state aid investigations.

in October 2017, the Eurcpean Commission announced that it would be conducting a State Aid investigation into the Group Financing Partial Exemption
{'Finco exemption”) contained within the UK's controlted foreign company {'CFC’) legislation. Genus, in common with many other UK companies has taken
advantage of this financing structure to support intra-Group lending to the Group's subsidiaries in the USA. The Commission concluded in April 2019 that
the exemption contravened EU {aw and constituted partiai state aid to the extent that the specific people functions ('SPFs'} most relevant to managing the
tinancing activities were based in the UK. The UK Government, as well as a number of affected UK tax payers including Genus, have appealed the EU
Commission's conclusions and court hearings for these appeals/annulment requests are currently pending.

in the light of the European Commission judgment, we have undertaken a review of our historic Finca structures, to establish the extent to which the SPFs
in relation to the economic ownership of the assets and the Key Entrepreneurial Risk Taking functions {KERTS') of the related foreign finance companies
were carried out in the UK. This review has identified some activities performed by UK personnel, including the involvement of the Group Tax & Treasury
function in the designing and setting up of the appropriate funding structures before presenting them to the foreign board of directors. On this basis, we are
of the opinion that the KERT functions relating to the Finco structures could be regarded as split between the foreign board of directors (on account of the
active decision making to lend made by them in board meetings of the CFC) and the UK Group functions (for diligence and groundwork in relation to the
design and construction of the arrangement, and the setection and approval of the funding structure).

We have benchrmarked the value of the functions performed in the UK based on the reasanable third-party comparable returns of banks and portfolio
managers for the three key activities performed by the UK (diligence and groundwork in constructing the arrangement, selection of the investment and
0Ngoing Management) to identify the returns attributable to the activities carried out in the UK and have arrived at a total arm's length retura in the range
of 14.8%-22.8% for the UK, with consequently, the remaining 77.2%-85. 2% being attributable to the Fincos. The total value of tax relief claimed in previous
years under the Finco structure was £4.3m. Accordingly, based on our benchmarking study a contingent tax liability of between £0.6m and £1m exists
depending on the future results of the various 2ppeals and challenges to the European Commission’s judgment. The Company made a provision of £1m for
this uncertain tax position in the prior year and we believe this provision remains adequate based on the additional work we have performed subsequently
on the SPF and KERT analysis,

The tax credit attributable to exceptional items is £4.5m (2019: credit of £3.9m).

Income tax recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changes in Equity

020 019

£m im

Financial instruments 0.1 04
Foreign exchange differences on long-termintra-Group currency loans and balances - 0.3}
Actuarial movernent on retirement benefit obligations 0.8 3.2
Foreign exchange differences on translation of biological assets, intangible assets and leases (1.5) (2.6)
(0.6) (5.7)

Income tax recognised directly to the Statement of Changes in Equity

Share-based payment expense 1.1 -
11 -

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Atthe balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses which were available for offset against future profits, with a potential tax benefit of £13.6m
{2019: £14.4m). We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of £3.9m (2019: £2.9m) of these benefits, as we expect these losses to be offset against
future profits of the relevant jurisdictions in the near term, We have not recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining £9.7m (2019:£11.5m),
due to uncertainty about the availability of future taxable profits in the relevant jurisdictions.

At 30 June 2020, the expiry dates of deferred tax assets in respect of losses available for the carry forward were as follows:

Expiring within
1-10years 11-20 years Unlimited Total
£m £m £m &m
Losses for which a deferred tax asset is recognised 0.1 0.2 3.6 3.9
Losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised : 0.2 -~ 9.5 9.7

0.3 0.2 13.1 136




{(Page 121 of 189)

120 Genus plc/ Annual Report 2020
NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2020

11. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
At 30 June 2019, the expiry dates of deferred tax assets in respect of losses available for the carry forward were as follows:

Explring within
i-10ye¥s Li-20ywars unlimited Total
£m Em Em £m
Losses for which a deferred tax asset is recognised - 0.2 27 29
Losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 0.2 01 11.2 115
0.2 0.3 139 144

The gross value of losses for which deferred tax assets are recognised is £17.9m (2019: £16.7m). The gross value of losses for which deferred tax assets are
not recognised is £33.3m (2019; £37.9m).

We have not recognised deferred tax liabilities totalling £2.1m (2019: £2.3m} for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain overseas subsidiaries. This is because we can control the timing and reversal of these differences and it is probable that the

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
We have offset deferred tax assets and liabilities above, to the extent that they arise in the same tax jurisdiction,

The analysis of deferred tax balances is set out below:

fresustedy

2020 2018

£m ftm
Deferred tax assets {3.7) {3.5)
Deferred tax liabilities 5.5 66.7
61.8 632

1 Seenote 2 lor detalls on prlor period restatement.

UK deferred tax assets ang liabilities are stated at 199, which is the UK headline rate of tax effective from L April 2017. The previously planned rate

reduction to 17% was cancelled in the Budget on 11 March 2020, with the continuation of the 19% rate being substantively enacted on 17 March 2020.

Movement in net deferred tax liabilities during the year

Changesin Priar year
{restated)’ tax rate adjustments
Az at Recognised recognisedin  recognisedin Foreign Asat
1July inincome income income Recognised exchange 3¢ June
101% 1t t t tat 1] in equity Transfers difference 2010
£m £m £m £Em £m £m £&m £m
Property, plant and equipment 4.5 {0.5) {0.8) 1.9 - - 0.1 5.2
Intangible assets 107 {1.6) {0.1) (0.2) 0.1 - (0.1) 8.8
Biological assets 66.6 4.2 (0.3) 2.6 13 - - T4.4
Retirement benefit obligations (4.4) L4 0.2 - (0.7} - - (3.5)
Share-based payment expense 2.7) 0.2 (0.4) (0.1) (o.n - - @)
Short-term timing differences {8.7) (5.1) 0.2 {2.4) - 0.6 {0.1) {15.5)
Tax loss carry-forwards (2.8) 0.3 (0.3) (1.3) - 0.2 - {3.9)
63.2 {1.1) {1.5) 0.5 - 0.8 {0.1) 61.8
Changesin Prior yea:
{restated)' tax rate adjustments (restated)t
As at Recognised  recognisedin  recognised in Forelgn Asat
1July ininceme income Income Recognised exchange 30 June
2018 stalement staterment staternent In equity Acquisitions difference 2019
£m £€m £m £m £m Em £m im
Property, plant and equipment 4.9 0.5 (N M - - - 0.2 4.5
Intangible assets 130 (1.5} 02 0.2 - (LY 03 107
Biological assets 65.4 (3.2 0.1) - 30 15 - 66.6
'Retirement benefit obligations [(:X¢] {14 - - 2l - 0.n {4.4)
Share-based payment expense (3.4} 0.2 - - 0.5 - - {7
Short-term timing differences 6.5 - (0.6 0.2 0.9) {0.8) - {0.1) )]
Tax loss carry-forwards (2.2 (0.6) 0.1 (0.1 - - - (2.8)
65.2 (78 {o.1) {0.8) 58 04 03 632

1L Seenote 2 fordetails on prioe period restatement.
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Basic earnings per share is the profit generated for the financial year attributable to equity shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares

in issue during the year.

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

020 019
{pence) {pence)
Basic earnings per share 62.4 12.4

The calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the Company from continuing
operations of £40.5m (2019: £7.8m) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 64,908,000 (2019: 63,141,000}, which i calculated

as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinarj shares (basic}

1030

019

000s 0003
Issued ordinary shares at the start of the year 65,055 61,542
Effect of own shares held (168} {405)
Share placement - 1697
Sharas issued on exercise of stock options 21 6
Shares issved in relation to Employee Benefit Trust - 301
Weighted average number of ardinary shares in year 64,908 63,141
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations
2020 w19
. {pence} {pence)
Diluted earnings pershare 61.9 119

The caleulation of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the Company from continuing
operations of £40.5m (2019; £7.8m) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, after adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive

ordinary shares, of 65,427,000 (2013: 65,304,000}, which is calculated as fallows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares {diluted)

1020

019

0003 00035
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {basic) 64,908 63,141
Dilutive effect of share awards and options 519 %3
Impact of share placement - 1,400
Wreighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 65,427 65,304
. A 2020 019
Adjusted earnings per share from continuing operations {pence} (pence)
Adjusted earnings per share 85.4 732
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 84.7 707
Adjusted earnings per share is calculated on profit before the net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets, amortisation of acquired intangible
assets, share-based payment expense and exceptional items, after charging taxation asscciated with those profits, of £55.4m (2019: £46.2m), which
is calculated as follows: .
2020 2018
£m Em
Profit before tax from continuing operations 51.5 939
Add/{deduct):
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets {15.8) 7
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 8.5 9.5
Share-based payment expense 5.8 30
Exceptional items {see note 7) 19.2 218
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biotogical assets in joint ventures 0.1 Ll
Tax on joint ventures and associates 23 14
Attributable to non-controlling interest {0.6) (0.9
Adjusted profit before tax 7.0 610
Adjusted tax charge (15.6} (14.3)
Adjusted profit after tax 55.4 46.2
Effective tax rate on adjusted profit 22.0% 243%
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2020 2010

Profit Tax 2020

£m £m %

Total income tax expense in the Group Income Statement 53.8 12.9 24.0

Net 1AS 4l valuation movemnent on biological assets (15.8) 41) 9.7

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 8.5 1.8 21.2

Share-based payment expense 5.8 1.1 19.0

Exceptional items (see note 7) 19.2 4.5 23.4

Net 1A5 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets in joint ventures 0.1 - -

Attributable to non-controlling intevest (0.6) - -

Adjusted profit before tax 71.0 15.6 22.0
w19 019

Profit Tax 019

£m £m 1Y

Totalincome tax expense in the Group Income Statement 11.3 48 a0.7

Net 1AS 41 valuation mavement on biclogical assets 147 33 224

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 9.5 21 221

Share-based payment expense 3.0 05 16,7

Exceptional items {see note 7} 28 39 179

et IAS 41 valuation mavement on biclogical assets in joint ventures 11 04 364

Attributable to non-controlling interest (0.4 - -

Adjusted profit before tax 61.0 14.8 24.3

13. DIVIDENDS
Dividends are one type of shareholder return, historiczlly paid to our shareholders in late November/early December and late March.

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holdersin the year

2020 2019
£m £m
Final dividend

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of 18.8 pence per share 12.2 -
Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 of 17.9 pence per share - 110

Interirn dividend
Interim dividend of 9.4 pence per share 6.1 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of 8.9 pence per share - 58
. 18.3 168

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of 19.7 pence per share for 2020, This is subject to shareholders' approval at the Aanual General Meeting and
we have therefore not included it as a liability in these financial statements.

14, GOODWILL

Accounting policies

When we acquire a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the goodwill arising is the excess of the acquisition cost, excluding transaction costs, over ous
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. identifiable assets include intangible assets which
could be sold separately, or which arise from legal rights, regardless of whether those rights are separable.

We state goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, We allocate goodwill to cash-generating units {'CGUs’), which are the smallest
idéntifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. We do rot
amortise goodwill but we do test it annually for impairment.

1AS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' requires us to treat the following as assets and liabilities of the acquired entity, cather than of the
acquiring entity:

> goodwill arising on acquisition of a foreign operation; and

> anyfairvalue adjustments we make on acquisition to the carrying amounts of the acquiree’s assets and liabilities.

We therefore express them in the foreign operation’s functional currency and retranslate them at the balance sheet date.
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14. GOODWILL CONTINUED

Impairment

we review the carrying amounts of our tangible and intangible assets at each balance sheet date, 1o determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any indication exists, we estimate the assei's recoverable amount.

For goodwill, and tangibte and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, we estimate the recoverable amount at each balance sheet date.

The recoverable amoury is the greater of their net selling price and value inuse. In assessing value in use, we discount the estimated future cash flows to
their present vafue, using a pre-tax discount rate, which is derived from the Group's weighted average cost of capital (WACC’). For some countries we add
a premium to this rate, to reflect the risk attributable to that country. If the asset does not generate largely independent cash inflows, we determine the
recoverable amount for the CGU that the asset belongs to.

We recognise an impairment loss in the income statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

When we recognise an impairment loss in respect of a CGU, we first allocate it to reduce the cardying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then apply any remaining foss to reduce the carrying amount of the unit’s other assets on a pro rata basis.

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each operating segment are as follows: :
Genus PIC Genus ABS Total

£m tm £m
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2018 708 312 1020
Acquisitions - 11 11
Effect of movernents in exchange rates 22 10 32
Balance at 30 June 2019 730 333 106.3
Effect of movaments in exchange rates 1.1 {1.8) {0.7)
Balance at 30 June 2020 T4l 31.5 105.6
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at § July 2018, 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2020 - - -
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2020 4.1 3a1.s 105.6
At 30 June 2019 . ' 730 333 106.3

To test impairment, we allocate goodwill to our CGUs which are in line with our operating segments. These are the lowesi level within the Group at which
we monitor goodwill for internal maragement purposes.

We test goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that poodwill might be impaired. We determine the recoverable
amount of our CGUs by using value in use calculations, The key assumptions for these calculations relate to discount rates, growth rates, expetted changes ,
to selling prices, cost saving devived from the IntelliGen technologies, and changes in product mix

We have estimated the pre-tax discount rate using the Group's WACC. We risk-adjusted the discount rate for risks specific to each market, adding between
nil and 24% to the WACC as appropriate. The pre-tax discount rate of 1196 (2019: 139%) we applied to our cash flow projections equates to a post-tax rate of
9.39% (2019: 8.796). Our estirnates of changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and our expectations of future changes in the
market.

The annyal impairment test is performed on 31 May, There have been no additional indicators of impairment identified after this date that would require
the impairment test to be reperformed . it is based on cash flows derived from aur most recent financial and strategic plans approved by management,
over the next five years. A growth rate of 2.5% {2019: 2.5%) has been used to extrapolate cash flows beyond this period. Short-term profitability and growth
rates are based on past experience, current trading conditions and our expeciations of future changes in the macket,
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14. GOODWILL CONTINUED

The Genus PIC ang Genus ABS CGUs are deemed to be significant. The individual country assumptions used to determine vatue in use for these CGUs are:

Risk premium used to adjust

discountrate Short-term growth rates [CAGR} Long-term growth rates
2020 019 2020 019 2020 2015
Genus PIC nil-24% nil-10% nil-47% 6-299% 2.5% 2.5%
Genus ABS nil-24% nil-10%  (796}-44% 9-19% 2.5% 2.5%
Weighted ge risk adjusted ighted average short-term

discount rate growth rates (CAGR)

1020 2019 1020 019
Genus PIC 9% 1096 13% 13%
Genus ABS 9% 10% 23% 14%

The rates towards the higher end of the range above represent those which are applied to our smaller entities and those in emerging markets and hence

appear high relative to others.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management has performed the following sensitivity analysis:

> changing of the key assumptions with other variables held constant;
> simultaneously changing the key assumptions; and

» incorporating the potential impact of the principal risks and uncertainties outlined on pages 44 to 46, in particular the impacts of biosecurity, market
down trns, continuity of supply, increased competition and the impact of the global COVID-19 pandemic taking inta account the likely degree of

available mitigating actions.

Management has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes in any one of the key assumptions that would cause the carrying amounts of

goodwill to exceed the value inuse of PIC and ABS,

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Our Group Balance Sheet contains significant intangible assets, including acquired technology, customer relationships and our IntelliGen development

project.

Accounting policies

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it is prebable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow

to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets that we have acquired in a business combination since 1 April 2005 are identified and recognised separately from goodwill, where they
meet the definition of an intangible asset and we can reliably measure their fair values. Their cost is their fair value at the acquisition date,

After their initial recognition, we report these intangible assets at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. This is the same

basis as for intangible assets acquired separately.

The estimated useful lives for intangible assets are as follows:

> Porcine and bovine genetics technology 20 years

> Multiplier contracts 15 years

> Custorner relationships 1010 i7 years

> IntelliGen 10 years

> Patents and licences term of agreement (4 years)
> Software 2to 10years
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Intangible assets acquired separately

We carry intangible assets acquired othar than through a business combination at cost tess accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss, We charge
amortisation on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and review the useful life and amortisation method at the end of each financial year,
accounting for the effect of any changes in estimate on a prospective basis.

Brand, Separataly
Porcine multiplier identifivd
andbovine  contractsand acquired Patents,
genetics customer intangible Assets under. licences and
Technology  relationships assets Software  esnatruction IntelliGen other Total
£m £m | im £m Em £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2018 517 80.5 1322 120 34 222 39 1737
Additions - - - 14 8.8 LG 05 1L7
Acquisitions - 18 18 - - -~ - 18
Transfers - - - 12 {L.2) - - -
Disposals - - - {0.1} - ~ 0.1) ©.2)
Effect of movements in exchange rates L3 8 41 02 - 08 01 52
Balance at 30 June 2019 530 85.1 1381 147 110 240 44 192.2
Additions - - - 0.1 8.9 1.8 - 10.8
Disposals - - - (0.6} - {1.9) - {1.6)
Translers - - - 13.6 {13.6) - - -
Effect of movements in exchange rates (1.0 o8 (0.2} 0.1 - 0.6 - 0.5
Balance at 30 June 2020 52.0 85.9 1379 219 6.3 254 4.4 2019
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2018 nr 537 8i4 5.3 - 25 1.8 850
impairment - - - 1.2 - - - 1.2
Disposals - - - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Amartisation for the year 27 68 9.5 1.0 - 21 11 137
Effect of movements in exchange rates 04 13 7 0.2 - 0.4 - 23
Balance at 30 June 2019 308 618 926 116 - 5.0 29 1z1
Impairment - - - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Disposals ~ - - - - {0.4} - [0.4)
Amortisation for the year 2.9 5.6 8.5 1.6 - 2.3 1.0 134
£ffect of movements in exchange rates {0.5) 0.8 0.3 0.1 - = - 0.4
- Balance at 30 June 2020 332 68.1 101.4 135 - 6.9 39 125.7
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2020 18.8 177 36.5 144 6.3 18.5 0.5 76.2
At30 June 2019 S222 233 45.5 31 110 190 1.5 80.1
At 39 June 2018 U0 26.8 50.8 27 34 197 21 my

Included within the Software class of assets is £11.5m and included in assets in the course of construction is £5.7m that relate to the ongoing development
costs of GenusOne, our single global enterprise system.
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group applies quantitative genetics and biotechnology to animal breeding. We use these techniques to identify and select animals with the genes
responsible for superior milk and meat, high health and performance traits. we sell breeding animals and semen to customers, who use them to produce
offspring which yieid greater production efficiency and milk and meat quality, for the global dairy and meat supply chain. We recognise that accounting for
biological assetsis an area which includes key sources of estimation uncertainty. These are outlined in note 4 and sensitivities are provided below.

Accounting policies

Biologico! assets and inventaries

In bovine, we use research and development to identify genetically superior bulls in a number of breeds, primarily the Holstein dairy breed. Each selected
bull has its performance measured against its peers, by using genomic evaluations and progeny testing of its daughters’ performance, We cotlect and
freeze semen from the best bulls, to satisfy our customers' demand. Farmers use semen from dairy breeds to breed replacement milking stock. They use
the semen we sell from beef breeds in either specialist beef breeding herds, for multiplying breeding bulls for use in natural service, or on dairy cows to
produce animals to be reared for meat.

Our research and development also enables us to produce and select our own genetically superior females, from which we will breed future bulls.

We hold our bovine biological assets for long-terrm internal use and classify them as pon-current assets. We transfer bull semen to inventory atits fair value
at the point of harvest, which becomes its deemed cost under IAS 2, We state our inventories at the lower of this deemed cost and net realisable value.

Sorting semen is a production process rather than a biological process. As a result, we transfer semen inventory into sexed semen production at its fair
valye at the point of harvest, less the cost to sell, and it becomes a component of the production process. We carry sexed semen in finished goods at
production cost.

In porcine, we maintain and develop a centra| breeding stock (the ‘nucleus herd'), to provide genetically superior animals, These genetics help make
farmers and food processors more profitable, by increasing their output of consistently high-quality products, which yield higher value. So we can
capitalise on aur intellectual property, we outsource the vast majority of our pig production to our global multiplier network, We alse sell the oftspring or
sermien we obtain frorn animals in thé nucleus herd to customers for use i commercial farming,

Pig sales generally occur in one of two ways: ‘upfront’ and 'royalty”. Under upfront sales, we receive the full fair value of the znimal at the point we transfer it
to the customer. Under royalty sales, the pig is regarded as comprising two separately identifiable components: its carcass and its genetic potential. We
receive the initial consideration, which is approximately the animal's carcass vatue, at the point we transfer the pig to the customer. We retain our interest in
the pig's genetic potential and receive royalties for the customer’s use of this genetic potential.

The breeding animal biological assets we own, and our retained interest in the biological assets we have sold under royalty contracts, are recognised and
measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. We recognise changes in fair value in the income statement, within operating profit for the periog.

We classify the porcine biological assets we are using as breeding animals as non-current assets and carry them at fair value. The porcine biological assets
we are holding for resale, which are the offspring of the breeding herd, are carried at fair value and classified as current assets.

Determination of fair values - biologico! assets

IAS 4L ‘Agriculture’ requires us to show the carrying value of biclogical assets in the Group Balance Sheet. We determine this carrying value according to

1AS 41's provisions and show the net valuation movement in the income statement. There are important differences in how we value our bovine and porcine
assets, a5 explained below.

Boving - we base the fair value of all bulls, on the net cash flows we expect to receive from selling their semen, discounted at a current risk adjusted
market-determined rate. The significant assumptions determining the fair values are the expected future demand for semen, the estimated biclogical
value, and the marketabie life of bulls. The biological value is the estimated value at the point of praduction, We adjust the fair value of the bovine herd and
semen inventory where a third-party earns a royalty from semen sales from a particular bull. Females are valued by reference to market prices and
published independent genetic evaluations. The net cashflows include any expected impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Parcine - the fair value of porcine biological assets includes the animals we own entirely and our retained interest in the genetics of animals we have scld
under royalty arrangements. The fair value of animals we own is calculated using the animals average live weights, plus a premium where we believe that
their genetics make them saleable. We base the five weight value and the genetic premium on recent transaction prices we have achieved. The significant
assumptions in determining fair values are the breeding animals’ expected life, the percentage of production animals that are saleable as breeding animals
and the expected sales prices. For our retained interest in the genetics of animals sold under royalty contracts, we base the initial fair value on the fair
values we achieved in recent direct sales of similar animals, less the amount we received upfrontfor the carcass element. We then remeasure the fair value
of our retained initerest at each reporting date, The significant assumption in determining the fair value of the retained interest is the animals’ expected life.
The assumptions used include any expected impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

We value the pigs in our pure line herds, which are the repository of our proprietary genetics, as a single unit of account. We do this using a discounted cash
flow model, applied to the herds’ future outputs at current prices. The significant assumptions we make are the number of future generations attributable
to the current herds, the fair value prices we achieve on sales, the animals’ expected useful lifespan and productivity, and the risk adjusted discount rate.

Non-recognition of porcine multiplier contracts where the Group does not retain a contractual interest

To manage commercial risk, a very large part of our porcine business model involves selling pigs to farmers ['multipliers’} who produce piglets on farms we
neither manage nor control. We have the option, but not the obligation, to buy the offspring at slaughter market value plus a premium. Because the
offspring have superior genetics, we can thern sell them to other farmers at a prémium.

We do not recognise the right to purchase offspring on the Group Balance Sheet, as we enter into the contracts and continue to hold them for the purpose
of receiving non-financial itermns {the offspring), in accordance with our expected purchase requirements. This means the option is autside the scope of {FRS
9. We do not recognise the offspring as biclogical assets under IAS 41, as we da net own or control them.
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED

(restated)’ {restated)’
Bovine Porcine Total
Fair value of blological assets Em im £m
Balance at 30 June 2018 (as previously reported} 1040 2388 s
Prior period adjustment (see note 2} - {20.5) {20.5)
Balance at 30 June 2018 (restated") 1040 2183 N3
Non-current biological assets 104.0 1813 285.3
Current biological assets - 310 310
Balance at 30 June 2018 [restated’) 104.0 2183 3223
in¢reases due to purchiases 92 1475 12687
Decreases attributable to sales - (191.5) {191.5)
Decrease due to harvest ' (25.3) {22.2) (47.5)
Changes in fair value less estimated sale costs 12 97.2 104.4
Effect of movements in exchange rates 36 8.2 12.8
Balance at 30 June 2019 (restated") 98.7 2285 3272
Non-current biological assets 98.7 188.4 2871
Current biologicaf assets - 401 40.1
Balance at 30 June 2019 (restated?) 98.7 2285 3272
Increases due to purchases 11.5 118.7 136.2
Decreases attributable to sales - (217.3) (217.3)
Decrease due 10 harvest (24.5) {22.7) (47.2)
Changes in fair value less estimated sale costs 135 130.6 144.1
Eflectof movements in exchangerates 2.0 4.9 6.9
Balance at 30 June 2020 107.2 2.7 349.9
Non-current biological assets 107.2 202.9 310.1
Current biological assets - 39.8 39.8
Balance at 30 June 2020 107.2 242.7 349.9

1 Seenate 2 lor details of prior perod restatement.

Bovine biological assets include £5.5m (2019: £3.9m) representing the fair value of bulls owned by third parties but managed by the Group, net of expected
future payments to such third parties, which are therefore treated as assets held under finance leases.

There were no movements in the carrying value of the bovine biclogical assets in respect of sales or other changes during the year.
A risk adjusted rate of 8 8% (2019 8.896) has been used to discount future net cash flows from the sale of bull semen.

Decreases due to harvest represent the semen extracted from the biological assets. Inventories of such semen are shown as biglogical agset harvestin
note 20.

In porcine, included in increases due to purchases is the aggregate increase arising during the year on nitial recognition of biclogical assets in respect of
multiplier purchases, other than parent gilts, of £46.3m (2019: £36.3m).

Decreases attributable to sales guring the year of £217.3m {2019; £151.5m) include £68.1m (2019: £71.4m} in respect of the reduction in fair value of the
retained interest in the genetics of animals, other than parent gilts, transferred under royalty contracts.

Also included is £101.6m {2019: £85.4m) relating to the fair value of the retained interest in the genetics in respect of animals, other than parent gilts, sold to
customers under royalkty contractsin the year,

Total revenue in the year, including parent gilts, includes £205.8m (2019: £179.6m) in respect of these contracts, comprising £69.8m (2019; £57.6m) on initial
transfer of animals and semen to customers and £136.0m (2019: £122.0m) in respect of royalties received.

A risk adjusted rate of 9.3% (2019: 11.0%) has been used to discount future net cash flows from the expected output of the pure line porcine herds. The
number of future generations which have been taken into account is seven (2019: seven) and their estimated useful lifespan is 1.4 years (2019: 1.4 years).
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16, BIOLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED

Year ended 30 June 2020
Bovine Percine Total
£m £m im
Net IAS 41 valuation movemnent on biological assetst
Changes in fair value of biological assets 13.5 1305 1241
Inventory transferred to cost of sales at fair value {10.9) (22.7) (33.6)
Biological assets transferred to cost of sales at fair value - (95.1) (95.1)
26 12.8 15.4
Fair value movement in rejated financial derivative - 0.4 04
26 13.2 15.8
Year ended 30 June 20145
Bavine Porcine Tetal
£Em £im Em
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets!
Changes in fair value of biological assets 1.2 97.2 1044
Inventory transferred to cost of sales at fair value {20.0) (22.2} (42.2)
Biological assets transferred to cost of sales at fair value - (712} (772
(12.8) 2.2 (15.0)
Fair value movement in related financial derivative - 03 03
(12.8) (1.9} (14.7)

1 This represents the diflerance between operating proflt prepared under IAS41 and operating profit prepared under historlcal costaccounting, which losms part of the recencilistion Yo adjusted

operatingprofit.

Fair vaiue measurement

All of the biological assets inputs fall under Level 3 of the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13. Significant increases/(decreases) in any of these inputs in isolation
would result in a significantly lower or higher fair value measurement.

Unobservable inputs and key sources of estimation uncertainty

2020 2019  Sensitivity
Bovine
Risk adjusted discount rate? 8.8% 8.7% 1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would resultin
approximately a £3.2m (2019; £2.9m) reduction in value.
Value at point of production! 36.2% 37.59% 1percentage point decrease in the rate would result in approximately
o a £4.8m {2019: £4.2m) reduction in value.

Percentage of new dairy FY2168% FY2049% I percentage remained at FY20 ievel of 36% (2019: 48%) there would
bulls to be produced FY1178% FY2161% be adecreaseinvalue of approximately £12.4m (2019:€4.4m).
internally in future years* FY23 81% FY2272%

F¥24 and thereafter 83% FY23 and thereafter 79%

Age profile of Holstein bulls
generating future sales

Age profile of US beefon
dairy bulls generating
future sales*

Long-term dairy volume

growth rate

Short-term dairy volume

growth rate

Porcine

Risk adjusted discount rate
. —upfrontprices

Risk adjusted discount rate

- pure ling herd*

Proportion of anirnals that
go to breeding sales!

FYZl -avpage3.9yrs
FY22 - avgage3.9yrs
FY13-avgage3.9yrs
FY24 and thereafter -
avpgage 3.8 yrs

FY21 - avp age 5.0 yrs
FY22 ~avgage4.8yrs
FY23 -avgaged.8yrs
FY24 and thereafter -
© avgaged.Byrs
20%

4.8%

83.8%

8.25%

Gilts - 6.8%
Boars - 9.0%

FY20 - avg age 4.0yrs
FY21-avgage3syrs
FY22-avgage3.9yrs
FY23 and thereafter -

avgage38yrs
FY20 - avg age 5.1yrs
FY21-avgage 5.6 yrs
FY22-avgage5.2yrs

FY23 and thereafter -
avgage5.3yrs

1.49%

4.4%

8.8%

11%

Gilts - 4.5%

Boars- 12.0%

If age profile remains at FY20 average age of 4.0 years (2019: 4.1 years},
there would be an increase in value of approximately £2.4m
(2019: £4.3m). ]

If age profile remains at FY20 average age of 5.2 years (2019: 4.2 years),
there would be a decrease in value of approximately £1.4m
(2019: £1.9m).

1 percentage point decrease in the growth rate would resultin
approximately 3 £0.2m {2019: £0.2m) reduction in value.
1 percentage point decrease in the growth rate would resuit in
approximately a EL.7m (2019: £1.6m) reduction in value.

1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would resultin
approximately a £0.3m {2019: £0.3m}) reduction in value.

1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would resuitin
approximately a £3.1m {2019: £3.1m) reduction in value. Any additional
increase in the percentage would lead to a linear impact:

1 percent point increase in the go to breeding sales would resultin
approximately £8.8m (2019: £8.1m) increase in value.

1 Keysources of estimation uncectainty.
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16. BIQLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED

Additionai information 2020 2018
Bovine

Quantities at period end

Number of bulls in production 808 644
Number of bulls under development {including calves) 652 982
Total number of bulls 1,460 1626
Number of doses of semen valued in inventory 12.4m 108m
Amounts during the year -

Fair value of agricultural produce - semen harvested during the period £24.5m £253m
Porcine

Quantities at period end

Number of pigs {own farms) 93,316 97468
Number of pigs, excluding parent gilts, despatched on a royalty basis and valued at fair value 89,337 804992
Amounts during the year

Fair value of agricultural produce - semen harvested during the period £22.Tm £22.2m

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
We make significant investments in aur property, plant and equipment. All assets are depreciated over their useful economic lives.

Accounting policies
Westate property, plant and equipment at cost, together with any directly attributable acquisition expenses, or at their iatest valuation, less depreciation
and any impairment l0sses. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, we account for them separately.

We charge depreciation to the income staterment on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of each partof an asset. The estimated useful fives

are as follows:

> Freehold buildings 10to 40 years

> lLeasehold buildings over the term of the lease
> Plant and equipment 3to20years

> Motor vehicles 3toSyears

We do not depreciate land or assets under construction.

Right-of-use assets :
Right-of-use assets are measured initially at cost based on the value of the associated lease liability, adjusted for any payments made before inception,
initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition,
we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the term of the lease or, if shorter, the useful
economic life of the leased asset. The lease term shall include the period of an extension option where itis reasonably certain that the option wil! be
exerciséd. Where the lease contains a purchase option the asset is written off over the useful life of the asset when it is reasonably certain that the purchase
option will be exercised.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

Plant, motor Total Plant, motor Total
Ltandand  wvehiclesand  Assetsunder owned Landand  vehiclesand right-of-use
buildings squipment  construction assets buildings squipment assots Total
im £m £m £m £m £m £m m

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 July 2018 56.5 78.1 4.0 1386 - - - 1386
Additions 10 10.1 10.0 211 - - - 211
Transfers 35 6.0 {9.5) - - - - -
Disposals {L.6) 6.0} (0.1} (1 - - - n
Effect of movements in exchange rates 27 31 0.3 6.1 - - - 6.1
Balance at 30 June 2019 62.1 9.3 47 158.1 - - - 158.1 |
Recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - 19.7 6.9 26,6 26.6
Transfers on adoption of IFRS 16 - 12.2) - 12.2) - 122 12.2 -
Additions 0.4 9.4 14.8 24.6 1.9 1.2 9.1 33.7
Transfers 6.6 47 (11.3) - - - - -
Qisposals {1.6} (5.4} - ro - 2.1} {2.1) (9.1}
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0.4 - - 0.4 0.3 o4 o7 11
Balance at 30 June 2020 67.9 87.8 8.2 163.9 21.% 4.0 45.9 209.8
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2018 18.1 436 - 617 - - - 61.7
Depreciation for the year 30 2.6 - 126 - - - 126
Disposals {1.5} @7 - (6.2) - - - (52
Effect of movements in exchange rates 1.2 2.8 - 40 - - - 40
Balance at 30 June 2019 20.8 51.3 - 721 - - - T72.1
Transfers on the adoption of IFRS 16 - (4.8) - @.8) - 4.8 4.8 -
Depreciation for the year 38 9.3 - 13.1 4.4 6.5 10.9 24.0
Disposals (0.7} (2.1 - (3.4} - (1.5) {1.5) 4.9)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0.4 - - 0.4 - 0.3 0.3 0.7
Balance at 30 June 2020 243 53.1 - 774 4.4 10.1 14.5 91.9
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2020 43.6 347 8.2 86.5 17.5 139 314 1119
At 30 June 2019 41.3 400 47 86.0 - - - 860

18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
We hold Interests in several joint ventures and associates where we have significant influence.

Accounting pelicies
Joint ventures are entities over whose activities we have joint control, under a contractual agreement. The Group Financial Statements include the Group's
share of profit or loss arising from joint ventures.

Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies. The Group Financial
Statements inciude the Group's share of the total recognised income and expense of associates on an equity accounted basis, from the date that significant
influence commences yntil the date it ceases. When our share of losses exceeds our interest in an associate, we reduce the carrying amount te nil and stop
recognising further losses, except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal of constructive obligations or made payments on an asscciate’s behall.

Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures or associates are initially recognised in the Group Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint ventures and associates. Related party transactions with the
Group's joint ventures and assaciates primarily comprise the sale of products and services. As each arrangement is a separate legal entity and control
rights are substantially equal with the other parties, no significant judgements are required.

The Group's share of profit after tax in its equity accounted investees for the year was £8.9m (2019: £5.1m).
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I8, EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
The carrying value of the investments is reconciled as follows:

2020 019
£m £m
Balanceat i July 236 159
Share of post-tax retained profits of joint ventures and associates 8.9 51
Additions 2.2 -
Disposal proceeds {3.8) -
Dividends received from Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suinos Lida (Brazil) (2.2) {zn
Dividends received from HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH (Germany) {0.3) -
Loan repayment 1.2) on
Effect of other movements including exchange rates (4.5} 20
Balance at 30 June 227 236

During the year, we invested £2.2m in 2 new associate Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd and disposed of its entire holding of Xianyang
Yongxiang Agriculture Technolagy Co., Ltd receiving a return of loan capital and equity totalling £5.0m.

During the prior year, under the subscription agreement with Aviscenter Mallevang A/S (‘'Mellevang), Genus purchased 43% of the Danish porcine genetics
company and obtained economic control of its elite genetics. Under this agreement, the majority shareholders have a call option to purchase the entire
shares held by Genus, after a three-year period, for 3 consideration which is capped at Genus's share of total retained profits during the period of
ownership. Under the same agreement, Genus is also not liable for any losses made by Mellevang in the same three-year period and can sell its entire
shareholding for USD L. Mellevang is treated as an associate but as a result of this call option, Genus will receive no economic benefit from the net assets of
the entity other than its expected share of retained interest, and therefore has restricted the net assets to £0.2m.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint ventures and associates to transfer funds to the parent, other than those imposed by the
Companies Act 2006 or equivalent government rules within the joint venture’s jurisdiction.

Related party transactions with joint ventures and associates

Transaction valus Balance gutstanding
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m Em Em £m
Sale of goads and services to joint ventures and associates {1.2) - - -
Purchase of goods and services from joint ventures and associates 3.1 20 {1.6) 26

All outstanding balances with joint ventures and associates are priced on an arm’s length basis and are to be settled in cash within six months of the
teporting date. None of the balances are secured.

Summary financial information for equily accounted investees, adjusted for the Group's percentage ownership, is shown below:

Joint ventures and associates - year ended 30 June 2020

Cash and cash Current Non-current Biological Total Current Total Met
equivatent assets assets H T assels tinbllities labilities assats
Netassets Ownership Em £m im £m £m m €m Em
Agroceres - PIC Genética de
Suings Lida (Brazit) 49% 2.9 6.1 8.1 3.5 20.6 {2.4) (2.4) 18.2
HY-CO Hybridschweine-
Cooperations GmbH
(Germany) 50% - 0.2 - - 0.2 (0.1} {0.1) 0.1
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig
Breeding Co. Ltd. (China)’ 49% 2.0 1.2 0.3 (0.1} 3.4 {0.3} {C.3) 31
Chitale Genus ABS (India}
Private Limited (India) 50% - 0.4 1.1 - 1.5 - {0.4) 1.1
Avlscenter Mallevang A/S? 49% - 0.2 - - 0.2 - - 0.2
4.9 8.1 9.5 34 25.9 (2.8) (3.2 2.7

1 (lassified as an iate, all other are classified as joint ventyres,
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Joint ventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS {India) Private Limited, which has a March year end.

Metias 42

valuation

movement on
bialogicat Operating Profit
Revenue assats Expenses profit Taxation aRer tax
Income statement Ownership £m im £m £m £m Em
Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) 49% 28.1 - (18.9) 9.2 (2.3} 6.9
HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH (Germany) 50% 0.9 - 0.7 0.2 - 0.2

Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Technology Co,, Ltd.

{China)’ 49% 1.4 - {0.7) 0.7 - 07
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd. (China)* 49% 2.6 {0.1) {1.6) 0.9 - 0.9
Chitale Genus ABS {india) Private Limited (India} 50% .3 - (0.3} - - -
Avlscenter Mallevang A/S! 4%% €2 - - 0.2 - 0.2

33.5 {0.1) {22.2) n.z2 [2.3) 8.9
1 Classified as an assaciate, sll other investrnents are ctassified as joint ventures.
Joint ventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited, which has a March year end.
Joint ventures and associates - year ended 30 June 2019
Cash andcash Current Non-cuwrrent Blological Tatal Lwrent Tota! Net
equivalent assets assels assets assets llablitles Irabitities assets
Netassets Ownership £m £Em £m &m £ Em im £€m
Agroceres - PIC Genética de

Suinos Ltda (Brazil) 49% 22 6.5 81 36 208 (2.8) (2.8} 184
HY-CO Hybridschweine-

Cooperations GmbH

(Germany} 50% - 0.2 01 - 03 0.1} 0.1} 0.2
Xianyang Yongxiang

Agriculture Technology Co., :

Ltd. {Chinap 49% 0.2 15 37 (0.2) 57 {L4) (1,4} 43
Chitale Genus ABS (india)

Private Limited (India) 50% - 0.3 0.8 - 11 - - 1.1
Aviscenter Mallevang A/S! 49% - - - - - - - -

24 9.3 127 35 219 4.3 (4.3) 236

NeliAS41

valuation

movementon
blotogical Operating Puolit
Revenaue assets Expenses profit Tanation afertax
Income statement Ownership £m £m £m £m fm £m
Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) 49% 251 1.2 (18.1) 58 {1.5) 43
HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmipH (Germany) 50% 13 - (1.3) - - -

Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Technology Co., Ltd.

(China)* 49% 31 0.1 2.5 07 0.1 08
Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited (India) 5090 0.3 - {0.3) - - -
Aviscenter Mallevang A/S! 49% - - - - - -

298 {L1) (22.2) 6.5 (1.4 5.1

L Classified s an associate, all other investments are dassified as jolnt ventures.

Jointventures and associates have a December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS {India) Private Limited, which has a March yearend,
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19. OTHER INVESTMENTS
We hold a number of unlisted and listed investments, mainly comprising our strategic investment in Caribou Biosciences, Inc. and sharesin listed entity
National Milk Records ple ('NMR').

Accounting policies
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCT) comptise equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the Group
has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recagnise as FYOC!. The Group considers this classification relevant as these are strategic investments.

Financial assets at FYOC! are adjusted to the fair value of the asset at the balance sheet date with any gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and held as part of other reserves. On disposal any gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and the cumulative gains or losses are
transferred from other reserves to retained earnings.

Atinitial recognition, the Group measures 8 financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not atfair value through income statement,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
income statement are expensed in the income statement.

Other investments may include equity investments (where the Group does not have control, joint control or significant influence in the investee}, short-term
deposits with banks and other investments with original maturities of more than three months. Any dividends received are recognised in the income
statement.

. 2020 2019

Inyestmants carried st fair value tm Em
Unlisted equity shares -~ Caribou Biostiences, Inc. 37 37
Unlisted equity shares - Other 14 11
Listed equity shares - NMR 18 26
6.9 74

We hold a strategic ngn-controliing interest of 5% in Caribou Biosciences, Inc. which is measured at fair value and the valuation basis is Level 3
classification. The fair value has been calculated using the subject company transaction method with equity adjustment, and the key input into the
valuation is the equity adjustment of 10%. The equity adjustment has been determined with reference to the performance of comparable public
companies. A 19 movement in the equity adjustment would resultin a change in the Group's investment of £0.3m.,

NMR ordinary shares were acquired as part of the NMR pension agreement, and are measured at fair value. The valuation basis is Level 1 classification
where fair value techniques are quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Other unlisted equity investments primarily consist of strategic non-controlling interest in a herd management software company, which is measured at fair
value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value techniques use inputs which have a significant effect on the recarded fair value and
are not based on observable market data.

20. INVENTORIES
Qur inventory primarily consists of bovine semen, raw materials and ancillary products,

Accounting policies

Inventory {excleding biological assets’ harvest) is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average
costs and comprises direct materials and, where appropriate, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the Inventories
1o their present location and condition.

Forour biolagical assets accounting policies, see note 16,

2020 2019

£m im

Biological agsets’ harvest classed a8 inventories 20.3 19.0
Raw materials and consumables . 0.7 [+R:]
Goods held for resale : 16.4 16.2

374 36.0
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Cur trade and other receivables mainly consist of amounts owed to us by customers and amounts we pay to our suppliers in advance.

Accounting policies
We state trade and other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment losses.

2020 2019
£m £m
Trade receivables 83.7 854
Less expected credit [0ss allowance (3.4) (26)
Trade receivables net of impairment 80.3 828
GOther debtors 6.3 5.1
Prepayments 6.6 53
Accrued income (note 24) 5.1 29
Other taxes and social security 15 19
Current trade and other receivables 100.8 98.0
Non-current other receivables 1.8 -
102.6 98,0

Trade receivables
The average credit pesiod our customers take on the saies of goods is 53 days {2019: 62 days). We do not charge interest on receivables for the first 30 days

from the date of the invoice.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal tg lifetime expected credit losses {‘ECL). The expected credit
losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the general economic conditions of the industry and country in which the debtor operates
and an assessment of both the current and as the forecast direction of conditions 3! the reporting date. The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, such as when the debtor bas been
placed under liguidation ar has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. .

The Group recognises ECLs with reference to the following matrix, in accordance with the simplified appreach permitted in [FRS 9. There has been no
change in the estimation techniques during the current reporting period. A component of the calculation is the risk premium of the countries in which our
customers operate. The risk premiums are updated on each reporting date to reflect changes in the global economy. The changes in the global economy
incorporate the uncertainty caused by the COVID-18 pandemic. :

MNerthAmerica  Latin America EMEA Asia

2020 1.6% 6.3% 2.6% 12.2%

2019 L5% 5.0% 2.3% 5.0%

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables in accordance with the simplified approach set out
inIFRS 9.

2010 2019

£m £m

Balance at the start of the year 2.6 44

Change inloss allowance due to new trade and other receivables originated net of those derecognised due to settlement 2.5 17

Amaurts written off s uncollectable {0.3) 2

Impairment losses reversed (1.3) (1.4)

Effect of movements in exchange rates (0.1) 0.1

Balance atthe end of the year 34 26

The aging of trade receivables is presented below:
‘ Trade receivables netof

Fradereceivables impairmant
1020 2019 2020 2019
Days past due £m £m . £m £m
Notyetdue 65.4 616 62.9 616
0-30days ‘ 8.7 14 8.3 114
31-90days 5.9 6.7 5.5 763
91-180 days i 1.5 28 1.5 23
Over 180 days 2.2 29 1.1 12
B3.7 854 80.3 828

No customer represents more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables {2019: nil).
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and ather receivables approximates their fair value.

Receivables denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprise £34.7m denominated in US Dollars {2019: £31.4m), £13.2m denominated in Euros
{2019: £12.3m}) and £32.1m denominated in other currencies (2019: £34.3m).
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22. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
We hold cash and bank depoesits which have a maturity of three months or less, 1o enable us to meet cur short-term liquidity requirements.

Accounting policies .
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances. Bank overdratts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of our cash management and are
included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings less than one year.

2020 2019
im £m
Cash at bank and in hand 41.3 305

The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value. Included within bank balances above is £nil {2019: £nil) which was subject to certain
local restrictions, principally in China.

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings of the counterparty where the account or deposit is
placed.

2626 2009
Counterpartiss with external credit ratings £m £m
AtoAA- 310 240
BES- to BBB 5.1 36
B-to BB+ 5.2 29
41.3 305

23, TRADE AND OTHER PAVABLES
Qur trade and other payables mainly consist of amounts we owe to our suppliers that have been invoiced or are accrued. They also include taxes and socia!
security amounts due in relation to our role as an employer,

Accounting policies
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value,

2020 2019

Em £&m

Trade payabies 18.5 245
Other payables : 4.9 39
Accrued expenses 57.2 454
Deferred income (note 24) 8.2 %9
Other taxes and social security 6.2 10
Current trade and other payables 95.0 17
Deferred income (note z4) 3.3 -
Non-current trade and ather payables 33 -

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 21 days (2049: 31 days).

Payables denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprise £39.1m denominated in US Dollars (2019: £32.8m), £11.1m denominated in Euros

{2019 £11.3m) and £27.6m denominated in other currencies (2019. £22.4m).

The carrying values of these liabilities are a reasonatie approximation of their fair values.

24. CONTRACT BALANCES

Accounting policy

Acontract asset is recognised when the Graup's right to consideration is canditional Gn something other than the passage of time, for example the
completion of future performance obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer. In some instances, the Group receives payments from
customers based on a billing schedule, as established in the contract, which may not match with the pattern of performance uader the contract.

Where payment is received ahead of performance a contract fiability will be created and where performance obligations are satisfied ahead of billing then a
contract asset will be recognised.

1020 019
£m im
Lontract assets - accrued income [note 21) 5.1 29
Current contract liabilities (8.2) (6.9)
Non-current contract liabilities (3.3) -

Contract liabilities - deferred income (note 23) (11.5) (6.9}
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24. CONTRACT BALANCES CONTINUED

Contract Contract

assets liabilities

£m £m

Balance at 1 July 2018 . 50 63
Increases as a result of performance in advance of billing 229 -
Transfers to receivables during the year (24.1) -
Increases as a result of billing ahead of performance - (33.3)
Decreases as a result of revenue recognised in the year - 327
Effect of mavements in exchange rates - -
Balance at 30 June 2019 25 6.5}
Increases as a result of perforrmance in advance of billing 1.3 =
Transfers to receivabtes during the year (25.1) -
Increases as a result of billing ahead of performance - (82.0)
Decreases as a result of revenue recognised in the year - 7.1
Effect of movements in exchange rates - 03
Balance at 30 June 2020 5.1 (11.5)

In some cases, the Group receives payments from customers based on a billing schedule, as established in our contracts. The contract assets relate to
revenue recognised for performance in advance of scheduled billing and have increased as the Group has provided more services ahead of the agreed
payment schedules for certain contracts. The contract liability relates to payments received in advance of performance under contract and varies based on
performance under these contracts.

The transaction price allocated to partially unsatisfied performance obligations at 30 June 2020 is £6.8m (2019: £8.4m}. it is expected that the Group will
recognise this revenue over the next five years.

25. PROVISIONS
A provision is a liability recorded in the Group Balance Sheet, where there is uncertainty over the timing or amount that wilt be paid, and is therefore
estimated. The main provisions we hold refate to litigation damages, legal provisions, customer claims and share forfeiture,

Accounting policies
We recognise a provisian in the balance sheet when an event results in the Group having a current legat or constructive obligation, and itis probable that
we will have to settle the obligation through an outflow of economic benefits. If the effect is material, we discount pravisions to their present value.

Cantingent
5T deferred Share Other

litigation  consideration forfeiture provisions Total

£m T E£m im £im £m

Balance at 1 July 2018 - 40 2.2 11 73

Additional provision in the year - 09 - 17 26
Utilisation of provisicn - 0.4) 0.2 {0.3) (0.9
Release of provision - - - {0.2) (0.2)
Balance at 30 June 201% - 45 20 2.3 88
Additional provision in the year 10.2 - 0.3 2.5 1.0
Utilisation of provision - - - (1.6} (1.6)
Release of provision - - - {0.2) (0.2)
Reclassified to deferred consideration* - (4.5) - - (4.5)
Effect of movement in exchange rates 0.3 - - - 0.3
Balance at 30 June 2020 10.5 - 2.3 30 15.8

1 Contingent deferred consideration has been reclassified to be disclosed within deferred consideration, as the balances ai¢ recorded atfak vatue and not estimated.

2020 2019

£m £m

Current 4.0 31

Non-current 11.8 57

158 &8

ST litigation relates specifically to our litigation only with Sexing Technologies, as described innote 7.

The share forfeiture pravision of £2.3m relates to potential ¢laims that could be made by untraced members over the next two years, retating to the resale
proceeds of shares that were identified during the prior year as being forfeited.

Cther provisions mainly refate to legal provisions (excluding ST litigation} and customers’ claims. The timing and cash flows associated with the majority of
legal claims are expected to be less thanone year. However, for some legal claims the timing of cash flows may be long terem in nature and are disclosed
as such.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This note details our treasury management and financial risk management objectives and policies, a5 well as the Group's exposure and sensitivity to credit,
liquidity, interest and foreign exchange rate risk, and the policies in place to monitar and manage these risks.

Financial risk management abjectives

The Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates our access to domestic and international financial markets, and
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the Group’s operations, through internat risk reports that analyse exposures by degree and magnitude
of risks. These risks include market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit rish, hiquidity risk and cash flow interest
raterisk.

We seek to minimise the effects of these risks by hedging them using derivative financial instruments. Our use of financial derivatives is governed by
policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate rish, credit risk, the use of financial
derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. The Board of Directars regularly reviews our compliance with
policies and exposure limits. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative
purposes,

Key financial risks and exposures are monitored through a monthly report to the Board of Directors, together with an annuzl Board review of corparate
treasury matters.

Financiaf risk

The principal financial risks our activities expose us 1o are the risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and commaodity prices.
Weuse derivative financial instruments to manage our exposure Lo interest rate, foreign currenty and commaodity price risks, including:

> forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the sale of goods and purchase of supplies in foreign currencies;

> interest rate swaps, to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and

> forward commodity contracts, to hedge commodity price risk,

Accounting policies

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities, in respect of financial instruments are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
instrument's contractual provisions.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that provides a residual interest in the Group’s assets
after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or pther financial assets. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabitities and equity instruments are set out below.

Put option arrangements over non-controtling interest

The potential cash payments related to put optionsissued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are accounted for as financial liabilities.
The amount that may become payabie under the option on exercise is initially recognised at present value within financial iabilities, with a corresponding
charge directly to equity. The charge to equity is recagnised separately as written put options over non-controlling interest, adjacent to nan-controlling
interest in the net assets of consotlidated subsidiaries.

Such optians are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order t0 accrete the liability up to the amount
payable under the option at the date at which it first becomes exerCisable. The charge arising is recorded as a financing cost. If the option expires
unexercised, the liability is derecognised. with a coresponding adjustment to equity.

Oerivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each
reporting date. The resuiting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement immediately uniess the derivative is designated and effective as 3 hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Aderivative with & positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability.
Derivatives are not offset in the financiai statements unless the Group has both a {egally enforceable right and intention to offset. A derivative is presented
as 3 non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrurnent is more than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled
within 12 months, Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

The fair vaiue of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date, takinginto
account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The fair values of forward exchange contracts and forward commodity contracts are their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, which is the
present value of the quoted forward price.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Hedging activities

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and commodity risk in fair value
hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in forgign operations.

At the ingeption of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk

management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,

the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash Flows of the hedged item attributable to the

hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationship meets all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

> thereis an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

> theeffect of credit risk does not gominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship; and

> the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the
quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses te hedge that quantity of hedged item.

Ifa hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management objective for that
designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship {i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it
meets the qualifying criteria again.

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of a forward contract [i.e. including the forward elements) as the hedging instrument for all of its
hedging relationships involving forward contracts.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the time value of the optian. The changes in the fair value
of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumuiated in the cost of hedging reserve. If the hedged item
is transaction-related, the time value is reclassified to the Income Statement when the hedged item affects the Income Statement. If the hedged item is
time-period related, then the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is reclassified to the income statement on a rational basis - the Group
applies straight-line amortisation. Those reclassified amounts are recognised in the income statement in the same line as the hedged item. If the hedged
item is a non-financial itemn, then the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is removed directly from equity and included in the initial carrying
amount of the recognised non-financial item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in cost of hedging reserve will not
be recovered in the future, that amgunt is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited to the cumulative change
in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income
Staterment, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item,

Amounts previously recognised in Gther comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement in the periods when
the hedged item affects the income statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in
the recagnition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are removed from equity and in¢luded in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This
transfer does not affect other comprehensive income. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging
reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accaunting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebatancing,
if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for
prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in ather comprehensive income and accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains in equity and
is reclassified to the income statement when the forecast transaction occurs, When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumutated in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified immediately to the Income Statement.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed
notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group ta mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt held
and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting
the future cash flows using the curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is based on the
cutstanding balances at the end of the financial year.

As the critical terms of the interest rate swap contracts and their carresponding hedged items are the same, the Group performs a qualitative assessment
of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the value of the corresponding hedged items will systematically
change in opposite direction in response to movemnents in the underlying interest rates. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge
relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Group's own credit risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these hedging relationships.

Net investment hedges -

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for simitarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the foreign currency forward contracts
relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accurmulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line
itern. :

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to the Income Staternent on the
disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation. : :

We only apply net investment hedge accounting in the Group Financial Statements.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Capital risk management

The Group manages Its ¢apital to ensure that Group entities can continue as going concerns, while maximising the return to shareholders by optimising

our debt and equity balance. The Group’s capital structure consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in aote 27. cash and cash equivalents,

and equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent, comprising issued capital. reserves and retained earnings, as disclosed in note 31,

Gearing ratio

The Group keeps its capital structure under review and monitors it monthly to ensure the gearing ratio remains below 60%. The Group is not subject to

externally imposed capital requirements. The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

020 2019

tm fm

Debt (see note 27) 1439 1101
Lash and cash equivalents (see note 22) (41.3) {30.5)
Net debt {see note 32) 162.6 79.6
Equity* 507.8 4871
Net debt to equity ratio 20% 16%

L Seenote 2 for details of prior period restatement,

Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings, including tease obligations as detailed in note 27.

Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to equity holders of the Parent.

Categories of financial instruments

We have categorised financia! instruments held at valuation into a three-level fair value hierarchy, based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation
technique in accordance with IFRS 13. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1}
and the lowest priority to unobsesvable inputs (Level 3j. if the inputs used to measure fair value fail within different levels of the hierarchy, we base the
category level on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument in its entirety. We have estimated the fair
valyes of the Group's outstanding interest rate swaps by calculating the present value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates,
representing Level 2 fair value measurements as defined by IFRS 13.

2020 Carrying value 2019 Carrying value
Level L Levalz Lavel Total ievel | Level2 Cevel3 Total
£m £m Em £m im £m £&m £m

Financial assets
Other investments 1.8 - 5.1 6.9 26 - 48 74
Trade receivables and other debtors,

excluding prepayments ang accrued

income {see note 23) - 89.0 - 89.0 - 838 - a8s8
Cash and cash equivalents - 41.3 - 41.3 - 305 - 305
Derivative instruments in non-designated

hedge accounting relationships - 1.2 - 1.2 - 09 - 09
Derivative instruments in designated hedge

accounting relationships - - - - - 06 - (11

1.8 1315 5.1 138.4 26 1218 48 1251

Financial liabilities
Trade 2nd other payables, excluding other

taxes and social security (see note 23) - (92.2) - {92.2) - {80.7) - (80.7)
Loans and overdrafts (see note 27) - {112.8) - {112.8) - {104.0) - (104.0)
Leasing obligations (see note 28} - {31.1} - (31.1) - 6.1) - {6.1)
Derivative instruments innon-designated

hedge accounting relationships - {0.3) - {0.3) - {0.6) - 0.6)
Derivative instruments in designated hedge

accounting relationships - {0.2) - {0.2) - 0.8 - 0.6)
Put option oves non-controlling interest - (6.1) - {6.1) - {5.5) - (5.5}
Deferred consideration (see note 38) - {5.1) (3.6} (8.7) - 6.2) - 6.2)

- {247.8) 3.6) (251.4) - {2037) - (203.7)

There have been no transfers between levels during the year.
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26, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
Foreign currency risk management
We undertake transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary labilities at the reporting date were as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m Em im £m
US Dollar (including leases) (76.2) {83.3) 1.2 116
Eura {5.5) (L5 - 0.5
Chinese Yuan Renminbi - - 0.2 12

Foreign currency income statement sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to movements in the US Dollar, Euro, Brazilian Real, Mexican Peso and Chinese Yuan Renminbi exchange rates,

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% and 20% increase and decrease in Sterling against these currencies. 109 is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management and represents our assessment of a significant change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10%
or 209 change in foreign cuirency rates. It includes external loans, as well as loans to foreign operations within the Group where the loan is denominated in
a currency other than the lender or borrower's currency. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit when Sterling weakens against the relevant
currency. A strengthening of Sterling against the relevant currency would produce an equal but opposite reduction in profit, and the balances below would

be negative.
209 currency movemaent 109 currency mevement

2020 w08 2020 W19
£m £m £m £m
Euro 2.2 22 1.1 11
USs Dollar 1.5 38 0.8 19
Brazllian Real 2.2 16 1.1 0.8
Mexican Peso 2.8 26 14 13
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 4.3 04 2.2 0.2

Russian Rouble 1.0 06 0.5 0.3
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The Group's policy is to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts, to cover specific foreign currency payments and receipts. The following table details
the forward fereign currency contracts outstanding as at the year end:

Average sxchange rate Contract value Fairvalue

Foreign 2020 18 2020 2018
2020 2019 currancy £m im £m 'm

Qutstanding contracts
Buy DKK 8.34 - DKK 4.3 - 0.1 -
SellCAD r 171 CAD - 02 - -
Sell CNY 8.95 88 CNY 2.0 13 - -
Buy AUD 1.83 187 AUD 11 12 - -
Buy RON - 548 RON - 03 - -
Sell CLP - 879.4 CLP - - - -
Sell BRL 6.36 - BRL 0.1 - - -
Buy BRL - 49 BRL - 02 - -
Seil PHP 62,85 6535 PHP - - - -
SallRUB §6.97 8165 RUB 0.1 06 - -
Buy EUR 0.98 i13 EUR 5.7 39 - -
Sell PLN 4.96 479 PLN 0.8 o7 - -
Buy MXN 28.21 24.86 MXN 0.1 04 0.1 -
Selluso 1.23 127 usb 2.0 16 - -
Buy EUR/Sell CHF 1.06 113 CHF 0.3 03 - -
Buy EUR/Sell CAD - 1.51 CAD - 0.2 - -
Buy EUR/Sell BRL 5.88 - BRL 0.2 - ~ -
Buy USD/Sell COP - 3,253 cop - M3 ~ -
Buy USD/5ell BRL $.22 3.88 BRL 3.3 17 0.1 -
Buy USD/Sell CLP 798.13 - CLe 0.3 - - -
Buy CLF/SellUSD - 686.2 CLp - 0.2 - -
Buy ARS/Sell USO - 45.83 ARS - 0.3 - -
Buy USD/Sell CNY 71.09 691 CNY 1.8 08 - -
Buy PHP/Sell USD 49.96 5267 PHP 39 34 - i3]
Buy USD/fSell CAR 1.36 133 CAD 3.1 08 - -
Buy MXN/Sell USD - 1925 MXN - 0.2 - -
Buy USD/Sell MXN 22.14 - MXN 0.1 - - -
Buy USD/Sell EUR 1.12 114 EUR 0.3 08 - -
Buy USD/Sell RUB 69.92 64.99 RUB 0.9 0.2 - -
Buy USD/Sell INR 76.33 69.65 INR 4.0 24 - -
Buy USD/Sell ZAR 17.28 1480 ZAR 0.3 0.2 - -
0._3 41

Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, as Group entities borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. We manage this risk centrally, by

maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, using interest rate swaps. We regularly review our hedging activities, to align
with our interest rate views and defined risk appetite, thereby ensuring we apply optimal hedging strategies to minimise the adverse impact of fluctuations

ininterest expense through different interest rate cycles.
The Group's exposures 1o interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

We have determined the sensitivity analyses below, based on the Group's exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments,
at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, we prepared the analysis assuming the liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was ouistanding

for the whole year. A 1.0 percentage peint increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management and isour
assessment of a significant change in interest rates.

If intacest rates had been 1.0 percentage point higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit would have decreased o
increased by £0.7m (2019: decrease/increase by £0.1m). This impact is smaller than would otherwise be the case, due to our fixed rate hedging.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts, calcufated on agreed
notional principal amounts. These contracts enable us to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the cash flow exposures on the variable rate debt
we hold. We determine the fairvalue of interest rate swaps at the reporting date by discounting the future cash flows, using the yield curves at the reporting
date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. This faurvalue is disclosed on the following page. The average interest rate is based on the outstandang

balances at the end of the financial year.
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26, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
Cash flow hedges
The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding, as at the reporting date:

Average contract
fixed interest rate Notional principal armount Fair value
w20 2019 2020 2019 029 2019
Outstanding receive floating pay fixed contracts % % £m £m £m £m
USD interest rate swaps
Less than one year 1.22 110 36.3 354 - 01
Onetofive years - 1.22 - 355 - 04
36.3 709 - 05
GBP interest rate swaps
One to five years 1.61 107 25.0 250 0.2) 0.2}

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis, The corresponding floating rate on the interest rate swaps is three-month LIBOR. We settle the difference
between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Interest rate swap contracts that exchange floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated as cash flow hedges, 1o reduce
our cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur
simultaneously and we recognise the amount deferred in equity in the income statement, over the period that the floating rate interest payments

on debt affect the income statement.

Itis anticipated that LIBOR will cease to exist after December 2021 and the Group will transition to a similar but more robust alternative. All of the existing
interest rate swaps expire before 31 December 2021 and as such there is no assumed impact from LIBOR reform in assessing whether these swaps continue
to meet the documented hedging criteria.

Commodity hedges
The Group hedges both feed and slaughter exposures using Chicago Mercantile Exchange lean hog, corn and soybean meal cammodity futures contracts.

Average price Notional printipal amount Fairvalue
2020 2018 2020 2019 1020 2019
Commodity hedge uss uss Em £m £m (1,
Open commaodity contracts as at June 2019
Lean hog 0.58 074 4.7 60 0.9 -
Corn 3.82 4,06 (2.0} (4.0) (@.1) 03
Soybean meal 300 314 (2.1) (2.8) - 01
0.6 (0.8 0.8 04

Netinvestment hedges
The Group policy is to hedge no mare than 709 of its wholly owned subsidiaries The Group has designated EUR 7.5m of Pig Improvement Company Espafa,
5.A, as a hedged item using EUR 7.5m of the revolving credit facility as a net investment hedge.

The table below shows a reconciliation of the gains or loss deferred in equity:

2020 2019

£m fm
toss at the start of the year {0.4) 0.3)
Effective losses recognised in equity in period (0.1) 0.1
Balance carried forward in equity as effective losses (0.5) (0.4

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the Group. We have a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties. We regularly monitor our expasure and the credit ratings of our counterparties, and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amengst approved counterparties. Credit exposure on financial instruments is controlled by counterparty limits that the Board
reviews and approves annually.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. We carry out ongoing credit evaluation
of the financial condition of accounts receivable.

Liquidity risk management

- The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for managing liquidity risk. We manage this risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities,

by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows; and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
Liguidity and interest risk tables
For non-derivative financial liabilities, see notes 27, 28 and 38.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities, excluding trade payables and other
creditors which are short term and as disclosed in note 23 have an average credit period of 21 days (2019: 31 days). We have drawn up the table based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities, using the earliest date on which we can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

Waighted
average
eRective tessthan 2 months-
interast rate 1 month 1-3months 1 ysar 1-Syears 5+ years Total
% o £m im £m &m Em
2020
Loans and borrowings 0.92 9.8 0.2 0.2 106.5 - 116.7
Lease liabilities 3.00 - 2.8 8.4 19.7 39 348
Deferred consideration - - 45 2.9 1.2 - 8.7
Variable interest rate instruments 1,53 9.8 16 115 1274 39 160.2
2019
Loans and borrowings 275 0.2 3l 50 1139 - 122.2
Lease lizbilities 401 - 06 16 39 - 6.1
Deferred consideration - - 1.2 08 42 - &2
Variable interest rate instruments 296 0.2 4.9 66 122.8 - 1345

The following table details the Group's expected maturity for other non-derivative financial assets, excluding trade receivables and other debtors, We have
drawn up this table based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the assets, including interest we will earn on them, except where we expect the
cash flow to occur in a different period.

Weighted
average
effective Lass than 3 months-
interest rate imonth 1-3manths lyear 1-Syaary Seyears Total
% £m £m £m Em £m £m
2020 .
Variable interest rate instruments 1.10 41.3 - - - - 41.3
2019
Variable interest rate instruments 1.04 305 - - - - 305

The Group has financing facilities with a total unused amount of £125.4m (2019: £125.6m) at the balance sheet date. We expect to meet our other
cbligations from operating cash llows and the proceeds of maturing financial assets. We expect to reduce the debt to equity ratio, as borrowings decrease
through repayment from operating cash flows.

The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. We have drawn up the table based on the undiscounted net
cash outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross outflows onderivatives that require gross settlement, When
the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, we have determined the amount disclosed by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates,
asillustrated by the yield curves at the reporting date.

Lessthan 3menthste
1month 1-3Imonths Lyear 1-Syears 5+ ygars Total
£m tm &m m £m im
2020
Foreign exchange contracts 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Commodity swaps 0.3 0.5 - _ _ 0.8
Interest rate swaps - 0.1 0.1 - - 0.2
2019
fForeign exchange contracts 01 - - - - 0.1
Commodity swaps 0.4 S0l {0.1) - - 04
Interest rate swaps (0.1 0.2) 0.4) - - on

Commodity swaps and interest rate swaps are always settled on a net basis. Foreign exchange contracts can be settled on a net or gross basis; the netcash
flows presented in the table above reflect an infiow of £70.3m and cutflow of £70.1m (2019: inflow of £44.0m and outflow of £43.9m).
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7. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
The Group's borrowing for funding and liquidity purposes comes from a range of committed bank facilities.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

We initialty recognise interest-bearing loans and borrowings at their fair value, less attributable transaction costs. After this initial recognition, we state
them at amortised cost and recognise any difference between the cost and redemption value in the income statement over the borrowings’ expected life,
on an effective interest rate basis. The carrying values of these liabilities are a reasonabie approximation of their fair values.

2020 2019
£m Em
Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 103.6 01.5
Obligations under leases (see note 28) 211 339
1247 105.8
Current liabilities .
Unsecured bank loans and overdraits 9.2 2.1
Obligations under leases (see note 28) 10.0 22
18.2 4.3
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1439 110k
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:
2020 030 019
Currency interest rate £m £m
Revolving credit facility and overdraft GBP 1.19% 286 PLTs
Revolving credit facility, term loan and overdralt uso 14% 68.5 77.2
Revolving credit facility and overdraft EUR 0.9% 6.8 -
Obligations under leases usD 3.0% 1 6.1
Other unsecured bank borrowings Other 0.7% 89 18
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1439 110.1

The above revolving credit facilities are unsecured. Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risks is shown in nate 26.

2020 20t5

Loans and borrowings (excluding leases) comprisa amaunts falling due: £m km
tn one year or less or on demand 9.5 25
In more than one year but not more than two years . 103.6 -
In more than two years but not more than five years ‘ - 102.2
1131 047

Less: unamaortised issue costs {0.3) 0.7
112.8 104.0

Current liabilities (9.2) (2.1)
Non-current liabilities 103.6 109

At the balance sheet date, the Group's credit facilities comprised a £95m multi-currency revolving credit facility {{RCF') and a USD165m RCF, £47m of the
Group's credit facilities expire in February 2021, with the remaining facilities expiring in February 2022.

- A new credit facility agreement with a syndicate of eight banks was signed post year end on 24 August 2020. The new facility consists of a £150m multi-
currency RCF, 3 USDL25m RCF and a USD20m bond and guarantee facility. The term of the new facility is for three years with an option to extend the
maturity date before the first and second anniversaries of the signing date for a further year. The facility also includes an uncommitted £100m accordion
option which can be requested on a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group'’s business development plans.

As part of its interest rate strategy, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge floating LIBOR rates. As a result, bank loan and overdrafts
include borrowings of USS45m (£36.3m} fixed at 1.22% and GBP £20m fixed at 1.08%, excluding applicable bank margin.

28, OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
A lease is acommitment to make a payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Accounting policies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise as an expense any payments made in respect of short-term leases {those with a term of less than 12 months)

and leases for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise aliability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, and a corresponding right-of-use assetis
tecognised and depreciated over the term of the lease (see note 17).
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28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES CONTINUED

Lease liabilities are measured at the present valye of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-léase components. Future lease

payments inciude fixed payments, in substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, (ess any (ease incentives

receivable. Lease liabilities also take into account amounts payable under residual value guarantees and payments to exercise options to the extent that it
. is reasonably certain that such payments will be made. The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be measured,

at an incremental borrowing rate.

We remeasure the lease liability (and make a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset} whenever: -

> The lease term has changed or there is 2 change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

> Thelease payments change due to changes in anindex or rate or a change in expected paymentunder a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate {unfess the lease payments change is dug fo
achange in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

» Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is rerneasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The change in the lease liabilities are as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m

Balance at the start of the year 6.1 35
Recognised on the adopticn of IFRS 16 26.6 -
Leases entered into during the year 9.1 39
Payments made {12.1) [2.0)
Interest 1.0 0.5
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0.4 0.2
Balance at the end of the year . 311 61
At 30 June 2020, the Group is committed 1o £Q.1m for short-term leases.
The maturity of the obligations under leases are as follows

020 2019

£m £m
FY20 - 22
fY2i 10.9 19
Fy22 78 14
Fy23 52 0.6
FY24 32 -
F¥25 1.6 -
FY26 1.2 -
Fya? 1.2 -
After FY27 0.9 -
' 311 6.1

Presented as :
Current 10.¢ 22
Non-current 21.1 39

311 6.1

Lease obligations denominated in currencies other than Sterfing comprise £18.0m denominated in US Dollars (2043: £6.tmj, £3.3m denominated in Euras
(2019: £mil) and £2.6m denominated in other currencies (2019: £nil).
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29, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a number of defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes covering many of its employees. The principal funds are the
Milk Pension Fund ('MPF’) and the Dalgety Pension Fund ['DPF} in the UK, which are defined benefit schemes. The assets of these funds are held separately
from the Group's assets, are administered by trustees and managed professionally.

Accounting policies

Defined contribution pension schemes

A number of our employees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to the income statement as they become
payable under the scheme rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amount we have paid as either accruals or prepayments
inthe balance sheet. The schemes’ assets are held separately from the Group's assets.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for some of its employees. These schemes are closed to new members and to further accrual. We
calculate our netobligation separately for each scheme, by estimating the amaunt of future benefit that employees have earned, in return for their service
to date. We discount that benefit to determine its present value and deduct the fair value of the plan’s assets (at bid price). The liability discount rate we use
is the market yield at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds, with terms to maturity approximating our pension liabilities. Qualified
actuaries perform the calculations, using the projected unit method.

We recognise actuarial gains and losses in equity in the period in which they occur, through the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. Actuarial gains
and (osses include the difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets and experience gains and losses on scheme liabilities.

Genus and the other participating employers are jointly and severally liable for the MPF's abligations. We account for our section of the scheme and our
share of any orphan assets and liabilities, and provide for any amounts we believe we will have to pay under our joint and several Liability. The joint and
several liability also means we have a contingent liability for the scheme’s obligations that we have not accaunted for.

Under the joint and several liability, we initiatly recognise any changes in our share of orphan assets and liabilities in the income statement. Akter this initial
recognition, any actuarial gains and losses on the orphan assets and liabilities are recognised directly in equity through the Group Statement of Changes in
Equity, in the period in which they occur.

During the year, the DPF defined benefit pension scheme purchased annuities in order to hedge longevity risk for pensioners within the scheme. As
permitted by IAS 19, the Group has opted to recognise the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the cost of the policy as an actuarial loss
in other comprehensive intome.

We measure the fair value our qualifying insurance policy assets to be the deemed present value of the related ebligation.
Retirement benefit obligations

The financial positions of the defined benefit schemes, as recorded in accordance with 1AS 19 and IFRIC 14, are aggregated for disclosure purposes. The
fiability split by principal scheme is set cut below.

2020 W19

£m Em

The Milk Pension Fund - Genys’s share 7.5 14.1
The Dalgety Pension Fund - _
National Pig Development Pension Fund 0.7 08
Post-retirement healthcare 0.6 06
Other unfunded schemes 9.3 87
Overall net pension liability 18.1 242

Overall, we expect to pay £8.0m (2020: £8.4m} in contributions to defined benefit plans in the 2021 financial year.

The defined benefit plans are administered by trustee boards that are legally separated from the Group. The trustee board of each pension fund consists of
representatives who are employees, former employees or are independent from the Company. The boards of the pension funds are required by law to act
inthe best interest of the plan participants and are responsible for setting certain policies, such as investment and contribution pohcnes and for the
governance of the fund.

The defined benefit pension schemes expose the Group to actuarial risks such as greater than expected longevity of members, lower than expected return
on investments and higher than expected inflation, which may increase the plans’ liabilities or reduce the value of their assets.

UK pensions are regulated by The Pensions Regulator, a non-departmental public body established under the Pensions Act 2004 and sponsored by the
Departenent for Work and Pensions, operating within a legat regulatory framework set by the UK Parliament. The Pensians Regulator has statutory
objectives set outin legislation, which include promoting and improving understanding of the good administration of work-based pensions, protecting
member benefits and regulating occupational defined benefit and contribution schemes. The Pensions Regulator’s statutory objectives and regulatory
powers are described on its website at thepensionsregulator.gov.uk.

All defined benelit schemes are registered as an occupational pension plan with HM Revenue & Customs and are subject to UK legislation and oversight
from The Pensions Regulator. UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently and valued at least every three years. Separate valuations

- are required for each scheme. Within 15 months of each valuation date, the plan trustees and the Group must agree any contributions required to ensure
that the plan is fully funded over time, on a suitably prudent measure. -

-Funding plans are individually agreed with the respective trustees for each of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, taking into account local
regulatory requirements.



(Page 148

of

189)

. - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 147

29, RETIREMENY BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

In the prior year, the High Court issued a judgment in a claim involving Lioyds Banking Group's defined benefit pension schemes. This judgement concluded
the schemes should be amended in order to equalise pension benefits for men and women in relation to guaranteed minimum pension benefits. The
issues determined by the judgment have reduced the value of the assets in the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes by £16.1m. This increase was
reflected in the results as a past service cost in the prioryear.

The Milk Pension Fund (‘"MPF’)

The MPF was previously operated by the Milk Marketing Board and was also open to staff working for Milk Marque Ltd (the principal employer, now known
as Community Faods Group Limited), National Mitk Records plc, First Milk Ltd, hauliers associated te First Milk Ltd, Dairy Farmers of Britain Ltd (which went
into receivership in June 2009) and Mitk Link Ltd.

We have accounted for our section of the scheme and our share of any orphan assets and liabilities, which tagether represent approximately 86% of the
MPF (2019: 86%). Although the MPF is managed on a sectionalised basis, it is a ‘last man standing scheme', which means that all participating employers are
jointly and severally liable for all of the fund's liabilities. With effect from 30 June 2013, Genus's remaining active members ceased accruing benefits in the
fund and became deferred pensioners.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the MPF was at 31 March 2018 and was carried aut by qualified actuaries. The valuation has been agreed by
the trustees.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2018 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed interest gilt yields by 1.6% per annum untii 31 March 2030, then by 0.5% per annum thereafter:

> Consumer Price Index {'CPI') price inflation is expected to be 0.9% per annum lower than Retail Price Index ('RPI') price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in futurein line with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum and maximum
INCTeases.

At 31 March 2018, the market value of the fund's assets was £454m. This represented approximately 95% of the value of the uninsured liabilities, which were
£480m at that date.

The deficit in the fund as a whole, by reference ta the 31 March 2018 valuation, was £26m (of which Genus's notional share was £22my}. This shortfall is being
addressed by additional contributions from the participating employers. Under the trustee prepared schegule of contributions, Genus is required to make
deficit repair contributions of £6.0m per annum commencing 1 April 2018, and rising thereafter by 3.4% per annum until 30 September 2021, in additionto
funding the scheme's operating expenses.

The disclosures required under IAS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate caleulations carried out as at 31 March 2018 and
updated to 30 June 2020.

Genus has assessed its additional pension liability under IFRIC 14 by reference to this schedule of contributions, resulting in an amount of £22.6m {2019:
£26.7m) being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Dalgety Pension Fund {'DPF’)
The most recent actvarial valuation of the DPF was at 31 March 2018 and was carried out by qualified actuaries.

The principal actuarial assumptians adopted in the 2018 valuation were that:
investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed interest giit yields by 1.6% perannum until 31 March 2018, then equal the gilt yield per annum
thereafter;

> CPlpriceinflation is expected to be 0.7% per annum lower than RP! price inflation; and

» pensions in payment and pensions in defermentwould increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to varigus minimum and maximum ;
incroases.

The marketvalue of the available assets at 31 March 2018 was £32.9m. The value of those assets represented approximately 109% of the value of the
uninsured liabilities, which were £30.2m at 31 March 2018. Under the funding agreerment, the Company will not have to make deficit repair contributions.

The disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been caiculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as at 31 March 2048 and
updated to 30 June 2020.

As at 30 June 2020 the DPF, which includes a £22.5m separate reserve held against future unknown liabilities materialising, was in an overall net pension
asset position of £8.7m. However, the Company does not have the unilateral right to this surplus and therefore in line with IFRIC 14 the recognition of this
asset is restricted,

in August 2019, the Trustees purchased an additional bulk buy-in annuity policy with Legal and General in respect of the remaining defeired and pensioner
members, at a cost of £38m, This refiected a £15m premium over an estimated (AS 18 liability of £23m, reducing the restriction on the recagnition of assets.

The primary bulk annuity policy was secured with an insurance company i July 1998, which matcked the benefit entitlement of almost all of the fund's
current and deferred pension liabilities at that time, The value of the policy and related liabilities at 30 June 2020 was £591m (2019: £727m). We do not have
any legal rights to any surplus relating to these bulk annuity policies.



(Page 149

of 189)

148 Genus plc / Annual Report 2020 | . ) !

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2020

29.RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

National Pig Development Company Pension Fund (‘NPD')

The Group operates a closed defined benefit scheme for a small number of former employees of the National Pig Deveiopment Company Limited. The total
market value of scheme assets and liabilities at 20 June 2020, under the provisions of IAS 19, were £6.1m (2019: £5.7m}) and £6.8m {2019: £6.5m), respectively.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the MPF was at 30 June 2017 and was carried out by qualified actuaries. The valuation has been agreed by
the trustees.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2017 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing agsets would exceed fixed interest gilt yields by 1.7% per annum;

> CPI price inflation is expected 1G be 1.09% per annum tower than RPI price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future in line with CP1price inflation, subject to various minimum and maximum
increases.

The market value of the available assets at 30 June 2017 was £5.2m. The value of those assets represented approximately 78% of the value of the uninsured
liabilities, which were £6.7m at 30 June 2017. Under the trustee prepared schedule of contributions, Genus is required to make deficit repair contributions of
£250k per annum commencing 1 July 2017,

The disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as at 30 June 2017 and
updated to 30 June 2020.

Other unfunded schemes
When the Group acquired Sygen laternational plc in 2005, it also acquired three unfunded defined benefit schemes and an unfunded retirement health
benefit plan, which it now operates for the benefit of the previous Group's senicr employees and executives.

Unfunded defined benefits schemes

The scheme tiabilities for the three unfunded defined benefit schemes amounted to £8.4m {2019: £7.9m}, based on IAS 19's methods and assumptions. This
amount is included within pension liabilities in the Group Balance Sheet. It also operates several unfunded defined benefits which amounted to £0.9m
{2013: £0.8m). Interest on pension sthemne liabilities amounted to £0.2m (2019: £0.2m). The disclosures required under IAS 19 have been calculated by an
independent actuary, using the principal assumptions used to calculate the scheme liabilities as for the defined benefit schemes.

Post-retirernent healthcore
The scheme liabilities for the unfunded retirement health benefit plan amounted to £0.6m (2019: £0.6m), based on 1AS 19's methods and assurmnptions. This
amountis included within retirement benefit obligations in the Group Balance Sheet. interest on plan liabilities amounted to £nil (2019: £nil).

The principal assumptions used to calculate the plan liabilities were that the discount rate would be 1.65% (2019: 2.35%) and that the long-term rate of
medical expense inflation would be 6.8 (2019: 7.2%).

The 2019 comparative figures have been restated to include in the aggregated disctosures the assets and related liabilities of the bulk annuity policies. The
deficit recognised in 2019 has not been impacted.

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes

(Restated)

2020 2019

£m im

Present value of funded obligations (includes Genus's 86% share of MPF (2019: 8694)) 1,159.5 1,170.3

Present value of unfunded obligatians 9.8 9.2

Total present value of obligations 1,169.3 1,179.5

Fair value of plan assets (includes Genus's 86% share of MPF (2019: 86%)} {1,182.5) (L2011)

Restricted recognition of asset (DPF) 8.7 S 191

Recognition of additional liability (MPF) 22,6 26.7
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations ’ 18.1 242 -

Each of the defined benefit schemes manages risks through a variety of methods and strategies, including equity protection, ie limit the downside risk of

falls in equity markets, as well as inflation and interest rate hedging. By funding its defined benefits schemes, the Group is exposed to the risk that the cost

of meeting its obligations is higher than anticipated. This could occur for several reasons, for example:

> Investment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in assel values are not matched by similar falls in the value
of the schemes' liabilities.

> The level of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resulting in higher payments from the schemes.

> Scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare. Members may also exercise (or not exercise) optionsin a
way that leads ta increases in the schemes' liabilities, for example through early retirement or commutation of pension for césh.

> Legislative changes could alsc lead to an increase in the schemes' liabilities.
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29, RETIREMENTY BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The fair value of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting pericd for each category is as follows:
[restated}
Lavell Level2 Laveld 2020 Level 1 Level2 Level 3 2019
im £m im £m £m £m tm £&m
Equities - 50.6 - 50.6 - 607 - 60.7
Diversified growth funds 0.2 91.5 - 917 114 111.1 - 1225
Liability driven investments - 145.4 - 145.4 - i39.1 - 139.1
Gilts and corporate bonds - 115.5 - 1155 - 1058 - 1058
Cash 1.6 74 - 9.0 06 48 - 54
Property ’ 3.3 - 33.6 36.9 23 - 385 40.8
Direct lending - 2.8 143 17.6 - - - -
Bulk annuity policy - - 7146 T14.6 - - 126.8 1268
Other 1.2 - - 1.2 - - - -
6.3 413.2 763.0 1,1825 143 4215 765.3 1,201.1

Naote:

Level 1: valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments.

Level 2: valued using techniques based on information that can be obtained from observable market data.
Level 3. vatued using techniques incorporating information other than observable market data.

For the property a2ssets only given in the table above amounting to £33.6m. Due 10 the unprecedented market situation related to COVID-19, valuation of
the property is requiring significant judgement and is subject to significant uncertainty at the Balance Sheet date. Consequently, a higher degree of caution

should be attached to the valuation of those assets than would normally be the case.

Mavement in the liability for defined berrefit obligotions

{restated)

2010 019

£m £m

Liability for defined benefit obligations at the start of the year {including the bulk annuity policy (DPFR 1,179.5 1,004.7
Benefits paid by the plans (58.1} 65.0)
Current service costs and interest 27.1 08
Actuarial gains recognised on fund liabilities arising from changes in demographic assumptions {23.0) (21.4)
Actuarial losses recognised on fund liabilitias arising from changes in financial assumptions 85.4 96.9
Actuarial {gains)/losses recognised on fund liabilities arising from experience (other) {41.5) 333
Gains on curtailments and settlements) - 6.0
Fast service cost - 16.1
Exchange rate adjustment {0.1} 0.1
Liability for defined benefit obligations at the end of year 1,169.3 1,179.5

Movement in pian assets

(restared)

2020 019

im £m

Fairvalue of plan assets at the start of the year {including the bulk annuity policy (DPF)) 1,201.1 1,129.3
Administration expenses {0.5) 0.9
Gains on curtailments and settlements - {4.9)
. Contributions paid into the plans 8.4 76
Benefits paid by the plans (58.1) (65.0)
Interest inCome on plan assets 273 318
Actuarial gains recognised in equity 4.3 103.1
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,182.5 1,201.1
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29, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
Summary of movements in Group deficit during the year

2020 2018
£m Em
Deficit in schemes at the start of the year (24.2) {33.9)
Administration expenses {0.5) 0.%)
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisation - {16.1)
Exceptional gain on settlement : - L1
Contributions paid into the plans 8.4 16
Net pension finance cost (0.4) {0.9)
Actuarial losses recognised during the year {16.8) (5.4)
Movernent in restriction of assets 10.4 {10.1)
Release of additional liability : 4.7 345
Exchange rate adjustment 0.1 0.1
Deficit in schemes at the end of the year {18.1) {24.2)
Armounts recognised in the Group income Statement
{Restated}
2020 2019
£m im
Administrative expenses 0.5 09
Interest obligation 211 308
Interest income on plan assets (21.3) (318)
Interest on additional liability 0.6 L7
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisation - 16.1
Exceptional gains on settlement and past service : - (L1)
0.9 168
The expense is recagnised in the following line items in the Group Income Statement
2020 2018
Em £m
Administrative expenses 0.5 09
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisation . - 161
Exceptional gains on settlement and past service - {L1)
Net finance charge 04 09
0.8 16.8
Actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2020 2018
im £m
Cumulative loss at the start of the year 61.9 80.8
Actuarial losses recognised during the year 16.6 5.4
Movement in restriction of assets {10.4) 101
Release of additional liability {a.7) (34.5)
Exchange rate adjustment (0.1) 0.1
Cumulative loss at the end of the year ] 63.3 6L9
Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions {expressed as weighted averages) are:
2020 2019
Discount rate 1.65% 2.35%
Consumer Price Index 2.10% 2.15%
Retail Price Index . 2.80% 3.15%

The mortality assumptions used are consistent with those recommended by the schemes’ actuaries and refiect the latest available tables, adjusted for the
experience of the scheme where appropriate. For 2020, the mortality tables used are 37% of the SZNA tables, with birth year and 2019 CMI projections with
asmoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0, subject to a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% for males and females and 2019, the mortality tables used are $7%
of the S2NA tables, with birth year and 2017 CMI projections with a smoothing parameter of Sk= 7.5, subject to a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% for
males and females.
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29, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes

The fallowing table shows the assumgptions used far all schemes and illustrates the life expectancy of an average member retiring at age 65 at the balance
sheet date and a member reaching age 65 in 20 years’ time.

2020 2018
. Years Years
Retiring at balance sheet date at age 65 Male 22.0 224
Female 24.3 M7
Retiring 3t age 65 in 20 years' time ' Male 23.3 238
. Female 25.8 6.2
Duration of benefit obligations

2020 213
Yaars Years
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations 13.9 137

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations,
exciuding defined benefit obligations backed by purchased annuities 17.1 174

Sensitivity analysis :

Measurement of the Group's defined benefit abligation is sensitive to changes in certain key assumptions, The sensitivity analysis below shows how &
reasanably possible increase or decrease in a particular assumption would, in isolation, result in an increase or decrease in the presentvalue of the defined
benefit obligation as at 30 June 2020. We have included additional sensitivity analysis, which excludes the value of our defined benefit obligations backed
by purchased annuities, as the asset value is the deemed present value of obligations, with no movement to the overall scheme deficits. Given recent
market volatility due to the impact of COVID-19, we have increased the sensitivity analysis from 0.25% to 0.509%.

Discount rate Rate of Inflation Life sxpectancy
Decreaze Increase [}
by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 1 year by Kyear
£m im im im £m £m
Increase/(decrease) in present value of defined obligation 932 (89.9) {63.6) 718 (47.7) 417
Excluding purchased annuity obligations
Increasef(decrease) in present value of defined obligation 362 (34.9) {24.7) 279 (18.5) . 185

The sensitivity analysis may not bie representative of an actual change in the defined benefit abligation, as it is unlikely that changes in assurnptions would
occur in isolation from one another.

The sensitivities assume the funds' assets remain unchanged. However, in practice changes in interest rates and inflation will also affect the value of the
funds’ assets. The funds' investment strategy is to hold matching assets with values that move in line with the liabilities of the fund; ta protect against
changes in interest rates and inflation

This sensitivity analysis has been prepared vsing the same method adopted when adjusting results of the latest funding valuation to the Balance Sheet
date. This is the same approach adopted in previous periads.

The history of experience adjustment is as follows:

i &y 4 d d!

2020 2018 2018 2017 T s

£m £m Em £m £m

Present vaiue of the defined benefit obligation 1,169.3 1,179.5 1,0047 1,141.2 1,058.8
Fair value of plan assets (L,182.5) (1,201.1) (1,129.3) (1,i26.4) (1,037.0)
Restrict recognition of asset and recognition of additional liability 3.3 458 68.5 6.1 217
Deficitin the plans 18.1 242 33s 409 44.5
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities {%) . 1.8 48 27 23 18

Experience adjustments arising on plan assets (96} 1.6 25 10 28 0.5
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
we have a number of share plans used to award shaces to Directors and senior management as part of thelr remuneration. Te record the cost of these, 2
charge is recognised over the vesting period in the Group Income Statement, based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant.

Accounting policies

We recognise the fair value of share awards and options granted as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity. We measure the fair
value atthe grant date and spread it over the vesting period of each option. We use a binomial valuation model to measure the fair value of options and a
Black-Scholes valuation model to measure the fair value of share awards. We adjust the amount we recognise as an expense, to reflect the estimated
performance against non-market related conditians and the number of share awards and options that actually vest at the end of the vesting period.

The Group recognised a total share.based payment expense of £5.8m {2019: £3.0m), including National Insurance contributions of £1.0m {2019: €0.3m).

Share awards

There were 770,690 conditional share awards outstanding at 30 June 2020. These conditional shares were awarded to Executive Directers and senior
management under the 2014 Performance Share Plan on 20 Novernber 2014, 14 September 2015, 14 September 2016, 13 September 2017, 8 October 2018,

11 September 2019 and 7 April 2020, In accordance with the plan's terms, participants have received a conditional annual award of shares or nil cost option
awards which will normally vest after three years, with the proportion of the award vesting depending on growth in the Group's adjusted earnings per share.
Further details of the plan's performance conditions are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

During the year ended 30 June 2020

> 228,247 awards wefe granted on 11 September 2019, with an aggregate fair value of £6,380,000. The fair value of services received in return for share
awards granted is based on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using a Black-5choles valuation medel. At the date of grant, the fair value
of a share awarded was £27.91, hased on an expected dividend yield of 1.16%.

> 22,435awards were granted on 7 April 2020, with an aggregate fair value of £686,000. The fair value of services received in return for share awards
granted is based on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using a Black-Scholes valuation model. At the date of grant, the lalrvalue ofa
share awarded was £30.58, based on an expected dividend yield of 0.9%.

_ Number of Number of
awards awards
2020 Coz09
Outstanding at the start of year . 933,772 980,421
Exercised during the year (203,438) (190,812)
Forfeited during the year (210,326} * (181,651)
Granted during the year 250,682 325814
Qutstanding at 30 June 770,690 933,772
Exercisable at 30 June 14,694 36,359

Bonus and restricted stock share awards

in addition to the outstanding share awards above, there were 84,061 bonus and restricted stock share awards outstanding at 30 June 2020. The bonus
shares were awarded to Executive Directors and senior management as part of the compulsory deferred bonus, and restricted stock share awards were
granted to senior management in connection with recruitment. In accordance with the awards’ terms, participants have received a conditional annual
bonus award of shares or nil cost option awards, which will normally vest between one and three years, after award, providing the participant is employed
by the Group at that time.

inthe year ended 30 June 2020, 20,738 bonus share awards were granted on 11 September 2019, with an aggregate fair value of £587,000.

Number of Number of

awards awards

2020 2018

Outstanding at the start of year 138,633 128,843
Exercised during the year (32,269} {50,909)
Forfeited during the year (42,041) (6,239
Granted during the year 20,738 66,938
Outstandingat30 June - T oBa0e1 13863
Exercisable at 30 June - 1833

Share options

On 12 August 2004, the Group established a share option programme that entitles key management and other senior employees to purchase shares in the
Company. Further grants on similar terms were offered to these employee groups 25 setout below. The terms and conditions of the grants are as set out
below. All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares and meet the criteria for being treated as equity settied.

Employees entttled Grant date Number ofinstruments  Vesting conditions Option exercise price Contractual life of options
2004 Company share plan 10 September 2010 7,760 Exercisable 729.83p 10years
2004 Company share pian 9 September 2011 21,581 Exercisable 977.83p 10years
2004 Company share plan 7 September 2052 17,655 Exercisable 1,334.00p 10years
2004 Company share plan 26 September 2013 20,135 Exercisable 1,413.00p 10 years

Total share options 67,131




(Page 154 of 189)

W

. . FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 153

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED
Share options
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

weighted Weighted
average Numberof avarage Numberof
axercise price apticns exercise price options
2020 2020 2019 019
Qutstanding at the start of year 1,137 120,688 1,121p 145,828
Share appreciation rights effected during the year 1,184p {16,491) 1,128p (10,248)
Exercised during the year 1,021p {37,066) 987p {14,892)
Outstanding at 30 June 1,173p 67,131 1.137p 120.688
Exercisable at 30 June 1,173p 67,131 1137 120,688

The options at 30 June 2020 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.0 years (2019: 2.6 years). No share options were granted during the year
(2019: nil). The weighted average share price at the date of exercise during the year was £31.34p (2019: £25.21p).

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital is the number of shares in issue at their par value. A number of shares were issued in the year, in relation the employee share
schemes.

Accounting policies
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the amounts of the proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs.

Own shares

We include the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group-sponsored Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust [QUEST') in the Group Financial
Statements. In particular, the trust's purchases of the Company's shares are deducted from shareholders' funds until they vest unconditionally with
employees.

Share capital

2020 2018 2020 2019
Wumber Number £m £€m
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10 pence 65,091,625 65,054,559 6.5 &5
There is no authorised share capital limit.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends, as declared from time to time.
The movementin share capital for the period was as follows:
2020 2019 2020 019
Humber Number £m Em
Issued under the Executive Share Option Plan 37,066 14,892 - -
Issued to Employee Benelit Trust - 400,000 - -
Issued at share placement - 3,697,200 - 0.3
37,066 3,512,092 - 03
Shares issved under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at option prices as follows;
2020 2020 2019 019
Numbaer Price Number Prlce
Executive Share Option Plan - - 776.00p 3,932 776.00p
6,097 654.50p 2,106 654.50p
9,213 729.83p 1915 729.83p
7,175 977.83p 1,463 977830
- 6,209  1334,00p 3685 1334.00p
8,372 1413.00p 1,791 1413.00p

37,066 14,892
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31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES CONTINUED

Reserve for own shares

The Company's shares are held by a QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to facilitate the operation of our long-term incentive scheme for -
senior management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders’ funds for the consideration the trust paid for the Company’s
shares, which had not vested unconditionally at the Balance Sheet date. The number and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit

Trust and the QUEST were;
2020 018 2020 2018
Number Number £m £m
Sharses allocated but not vested 75,184 313,125 2.6 8.3
Unallocated shares 92,334 92,334 a3 24
167,518 405,459 59 107

The shares have a nominal value of £16,752 {2019: £40,546).

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from translating the financial statements of our foreign operations.

The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings of £6.8m (2019: £6.7m) as a hedge against the translation exposure on the Group’s net
investment in overseas companies, Where the hedge is fully effective at hedging the variability in the net assets of such companies caused by changes in
exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incorne and accurnulated in the
hedging and translation reserves. The ineffective part of any change in value caused by changes in exchange rates is recognised in the Consolidated Income
Statement.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair vatue of cash flow hedging instruments, net of taxation.

Hedging ond transiation reserves
Hedging Translation

resarve reierve

[{.] £m

Balance at 30 June 2018 20 205
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations - 19.8
Gain recognised on netinvestment hedges - 1.6}
Gain recognised on cash flow hedges - interest swaps (22 -
Income tax related to net gains/{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 04 (2.9}
Balance at 30 June 2019 0.2 35.8
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations - 4.8
Gain recognised on net investment hedges - {0.1)
Gain recognised on cash flow hedges - interest swaps (0.4) -
Income tax related to net gains/{lcsses) recognised in cther comprehensive income - (1.4}

Balance at 30 June 2020 (0.2) 29.5
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32. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2020 2019
£m Em
Profit for the year 40.9 67
Adjustrent for:
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets [15.8) 147
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 8.5 9.5
Share-based payment expense 58 30
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates {8.9) (5.
Finance costs (net) 5.0 39
Income tax expense 10.6 3.2
Exceptional items 19.2 2L8
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations €5.3 57.7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 24.0 126
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 3.7 -
Loss/(profit) on disposal of intangible assets 1.2 {0.1)
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 5.1 54
Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 99.3 756
Cash impact of exceptional items (5.8 (1.3)
Other movements in biological assets and harvested produce (2.9 (5.5)
(Decrease)/increase in provisions and release in deferred consigeration {2.2} LS
Additional pension contributions in excess of pension charge (7.9} 6.1
Other {0.9) {4.1)
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 79.6 535
Decrease/{increase) in inventories 01 (3.2
Increase in receivables (8.8} (6.6
Increase in payables 120 47
Cash generated by operations B82.9 48.4
Interest received 0.3 0.2
Interest and other finance costs paid (3.4} (3.2
Interest on leased assets (1.0} {0.1)
Cash flow from derivative financial instruments 0.5 06
Income taxes paid (13.5) (12.5)
Net cash from operatinﬁ activities 65.8 334
Analysis of net debt
Total changes in liabilities due to financing activities are as follows:
. Adoption of Other
AL duly IFRS 16 At July Net Foreign nan-cash At 30 June
019 {eases 2018 cash flows exchange movements 2010
Em Em £m £m £m £m Em
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 22) 305 - 305 12.0 {1.2) - 41.3
Interest-bearing loans - current (see note 27) (2.1) - (2.1) (6.6} {0.1) (0.4) (9.2)
Lease liabilities — current {see note 28) 2.2 (7.5) (X4 111 {0.1) (11.3) {10.0}
(4.3) (7.5) {11.8) 4.5 (0.2) {1L.7) {19.2)
Interest-bearing loans - non-current (see note 27) (101.9} - (101.9) 0.4 (2.1} - {103.6)
Lease liabilities - non-current (see note 28} (39) {19.1) (23.0) - (0.3) 2.2 (21.1)
(105.8) (19.1) (124.9) 0.4 (2.4) 2.2 (124.7)
Total debt financing {110.1) (26.6) (136.7) 4.9 (2.6} (9.5) (143.9)
Net debt (19.6) (266} {106.2) 169 {3.8) {s.5) {102.6)

Included within non-cash mavements is £9.5m in relation to new leases and unwinding of debt issue costs.
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33. OPERATING LEASES

Accounting policies

For short-term leases (those with a term of less than 12 months) and low-value items we charge the rentais payable to the income statement on 2
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangible asset (e.g. software licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire:

2020 2019

£m £m

Inless than one year 0.8 9.2
Between one and five years 0.8 182
Inmere than five years - 53
1.6 327

The reduction in future minimum lease payments relates to the adoption of IFRS 16 (see note 3}.

34, CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
AL 30 June 2020, outstanding contracted capital expenditure amounted to £13.2m and related to the purchase of property, plantand equipment
(2019: £2.2m).

35. CONTINGENCIES AND BANK GUARANTEES
Contingent liabitities are potential future cash outflows, where the likelihood of payments is considered more than remote but is not considered probable
or cannot be measured reliably. Assessing the amount of liabitities that are not probable is highly judgemental.

The retirement benefit abligations referred to in note 29 include obligations relating to the MPF defined benefit scheme. Genus, together with other
participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme’s obligations. Genus has accounted for its section and its share of any orphan assets
and liabilities, collectively representing approximately 863% (2019: 86%) of the MPF. As a result of the joint and several liability, Genus has a contingent
liability for the scheme's obligations that it bas not accounted for. The total deficit of the MPF from the most recent triennial valuation can be found
innote 29.

The Group has widespread global operations and is consequently a defendant in many legal, tax and customs proceedings incidental to those operations.
in addition, there are contingent liabilities arising in the normal course of business in respect of indemnities, warranties and guarantees. These contingent
liabilities are not considered to be unusual in the context of the normal operating activities of the Group. Provisions have been recognised in accordance
with the Group accounting policies where required. None of these claims are expected to resuitin a material gain or loss to the Group.

As described in note 7, the Group is involved inongoing litigation proceedings and investigations with ST that are at various legal stages. The Group makes
2 provision for amounts to the extent where an outflow of economic benefit is probable and can be reliably estimated. However, there are specific claims
identified in the litigation which the Group cansiders the outcome of the claim is not probable and will not result in the outfow of economic benefit.

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legislation to implement the OECD's
8EPS recommendations and by European Commission initiatives including state aid investigations. Further information can be found in note 11.

At 30 June 2020, we had entered into bank guarantees totalling £5.9m (2019: £4.0m).

36. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

In accordance with IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. Key management personnel comprise the Directors and the other members of the Executive
Management Committee. ’

2020 2019

£m £m

Salaries and short-term employee benefits : T.2 54
Post-employment benefits ' 03 03
Share-based payment expense 2.0 1.3
9.5 70

Directors
Further details of Directors' compensation are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Other transactions with key management personnel
Other than remuneration, there were no transactions with key management personnel.
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37. GRQUP ENTITIES
In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a list of subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates as at 30 June 2020 is set out below.
All subsidiary undertakings are subsidiary undertakings of their immediate parent undertaking(s), unless otherwise indicated.
NATURE OF BUSINESS
Bovine
™ of share
<apitalfvoting
rights held by
Country of Directfindirect Group
Name of undertaking Registerad address incorporation Groupinterest Share class companies
ABSArgentina S.A. A. Castellanos 11689, {3080) Esperanza, Sante Fe, Argentina Argentina Direct ARSI Ordinary 1009
ABS Chile Limitada Avenida del Parque #4161 office 4601, Huechuraba, Chile Direct CLP1 Common 10096
Santiago, Chile ’ Stock
ABS Genetics South Africa (Pty) Ltd Prestige Park Block B, Unit No 5B, Pastorale Street, Scuth africa Indirect ZAR1 Ordinary 100%
Durbanvilie industrial Park, Durbanvilte, 7550, South Africa
ABS Global {Canada) Inc. 1525 Floradale Road, Elmira ON N3B 22 L, Canada Canada Indirect CAD1 Ordinary 1009
ABS Global, Inc, 1525 River Road, De Forest Wi 53532, United States United States Indirect usDo.ol 10096
Common
ABS Ixalia S0 Via Bastida nr. 6, loc. Cavatigozzi, 26020, Cremona, Italy itatly Indirecy €1Quota 100%
ABS México, S.A.deCV. Kansas No. 2028, Quintas Campestre, 31214, Chihuahua, Mexico Direct MXN10Class 1 1009
Chih., Mexico MXN10Class 2
ABS Polska 5p. z 0.0. Szafirowa 22A, 82-300 Gronowo Gorne, Poland Poland indirect PLN1,000 100%
Ordinary
ABS Progen ireland Limited Suite 6, Rineanna House, Shannon free Zone, Co. Clare, Ireland Indirect €1.25Ordinary 1009
Ireland
Bovec SASU 69 Chemin des Molieres, 692190, Lentilly, France France tndirect €10 Ordinary 1009
Chitale Gerus ABS (india} Private  Amar Neptune, Office No.4G6, off Baner Road, 5. No.6/1/1, india tndirect  INR1QG Ordinary 5096*
Limited Village Baner, Tai. Haveli, Pune, Pune, Maharashtra, India
De Novo Genetics LLC 1286 Orlole Drive, New Albin 1A 52160, Untied States United States Indirect  No Par Value LLC 51%
Units
Genus ABS Colombia SAS Avenida Carrera 70, No. 105 - 51, Bogota, Colombia Colombia Indirect COPID,000 1009%
Ordinary
Genus Australia Pty Ltd 15 Scholar drive, Bundoora VIC 3063, Australia Australia indirect No Parvalue 100%
Ordinary
Genus [Beijing) International B1608, Lucky Tower, E2stS 3rd Ring Road, Chaoyang District, China Indirect No ParValue 1009
TradeCo., Lid, Beijing, 100027, China Common Stock
Genus Breeding India Private Amar Neptune, Ofiice N0.406, off Baner Road, S. No.§/1/1, India Indirect INR1 Ordinary 100%
Limiled Village Baner, Tal. Haveli, Pune, Pune, Maharashtra, India
Genus Breeding Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingsioke, Hampshire, United Kingdom Direct £1 Crdinary 100%
{01192037)* RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
‘Genus Uksaine’ LLC Pidlisna str,, 1, KYWW 03164, Ukraine Ukraing Indirect No Parvalue 100%
Comman Stock
tnimex Genetics Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, United Kingdom indirect £1 Ordinary 1009
{01315335)* RG21 402, United Kingdom
In Vitro Brasil México, S.A.deC¥.  Plaza Comercial Punto Cotorines, Boulevard Independencia Mexico Indirect MXN1 Ordinary 9%%
#746, Interior 6, CP. 27140, Cidade Torreon - Estado, Coahuila,
Mexico .
LLC Genus ABS Rus Zheleznodorozhnaya Street, House 51, Letter Zh, Premises 2, Russia Indirect RUBI Ordinary 100%
300062, Tula, Russian Faederation
Pecplan ABS Imp. e Exp. Ltda. Rod. BR 050 Km 196 + 150metros, Zona Rural, Deita, Brazil Indirect BRLY Ordinary 100%
MG - 38108-000, Brazil :
St Jacobs Animal Breeding Corp. 1525 River Road, De Forest Wi 53532, United States United States Indirect No ParValue 1009
Common
Zitery S.A Maximo Tajes 7189, Uruguay Uruguay Indirect UYUO.54 100%
Previsicnal
Certified
Registered
' " UYU1.00

Registered
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37.GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

Nature of business
Porcine
% of share
caphalfvating
rights held by
Countryof Direct/indirect Group
Name of undertaking Registered address incorperation Group interest Shareclass companies
Agroceres PIC Genética de Suinos  Rua L JN,n® 1411, Sala 16 - Jardim Novo, Rio Claro/SP - CEP, Brazil Indirect  BRL1 Ordinary 49%'
Luda 13.502-741, Brazil
Agroceres PIC Suinos Lida Rua 1 JN, n® 1411, Sala 17 - Jardim Novo, Rio Claro/SP - CEF, Brazi! Indivect  BRL1 Ordinary 499!
13.502-741, Brazif
Aviscenter Mollevang A/S Mallevej 3, 6670 Holsted, Denmark Denmark Indirect  DKK 1 Ordinary 49%*
Genus Biotechnology (Shanghai)  Office 1106, Ramada Plaza, 509 Caobao Road, Xuhui District, China Indirect No Par Value 100%
co.LTD Shanghai, 200233, China Common Stock
HY-CO Hybridschweine- Tegelberg 19 - 21, 24576 Bad Bramstedt, Germany Germany Indirect No Par Value 509
Cooperations GmbH Common Stock
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Jintang Village, Jinding Town, Zhidan County, Yan An China ndirect  CNYL Crdinary 499!
Breeding Co. Ltd Municipality, Shaanxi Province, China
PIC {Zhangjiagang) Pig Office 1210, International Finance Tower, 20 Jingang Road, China indirect  USDI Ordinary 1009
fmprovement Co., Ltd. Zhangjiagang Bonded Zone, Zhangjiagang City, Jiangsu
Province, China
PIC Andina Spa Avenlda del Parque #4161 office #6091, Huechuraba, Santiago, Chile Indirect USDES.449 100%
Chile Ordinary
PIC Canada Ltg. Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, 1900-520, 3rd Avenue, SW., Canada Indirect  CADL Ordinary 100%
Calgary, Alberta T2P OR3, Canada
PIC france SA 69 Chemin des Molieres, 69210, Lentilly, France France indirect €17 Ordinary 100%
PIC Genetics Designated Activity  Riverside One, Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Oublin 2, Ireland Ireland Indirect  €1.27 Oudinary 100%
Company €127
Redeemable
preference
shares
PIC Genetics ELC 79 Narodnyy Boutevard, 308000, Belgorod, Russian Russia Indirect  RUBIL Ordinary 100%
) Federation
PIG Datendienst GmbH Ratsteich 31, 24837 Schleswig, Germany Germany Indirect No Par Value 509!
Common Stock
Pig Improvement Company de Wenceslao de 12 Barquera No.7, Col. villas del Sur, Mexico Indirect Neo ParValue 100%
México, 5. de R4 deCV. 76040 Querelaro, Queretaro, Mexico Common Stock
PIG improvement Company Jathostrae 11a, D-30163 Hannover, Germany Germany Indirect No Par Value 100%
Deutschland GmbH Common Stock
Pig Improvement Company C/Pau Vila, 22 2° puerta 6, 08174 Sant Cugat det Valles, Spain Indirect €25 Ordinary 100%
Espafa, S.A, Barcelona, Spain
Pig Improvement Company UK Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect  £0.10 Qrdinary 100%
Limited (00716304) RG2I 4DZ, United Kingdom
PIC Italia S.ri, Strada dei Loggi 22, 06135, Ponte San Giovanni, Perugia, ltaly Italy Indirect €1 Ordinary B5%
- PIC Philippines, tnc. Unit 2101/2102, 21st Floor Jollibee Plaza, F. Ortigas, Jr. Rd., Philippines Indirect PHP100 100%
Ortigas Center, Pasig City, 1605, Philippines - Ordinary
PICUSA, Inc, 100 BlueGrass Commons Bivd, Suite 2200, Hendersonville, United States Indirect  USD1 Ordinary 100%
TN 37075 United States
RenOvAte Biosciences, Inc. 3500 South Dupont Highway, Dover, Delaware 19901, United States Direct USD0.001 Series 20%*
United States Seed Preferred
Reprodutores PIC, Lda Av. Eng. Duarte Pacheo, Amoreiras, Tofre 2 - 1494, Portugal ndirect No Par Value 100%
1070-102 Lisboa, Portugal Common Stock
Shaanxi PIC pig Improvement Co., 12405, 21st floor, Yun tian Building, 12 Feng Cheng Second China Indirect No Par Value 1009
Ltd. Streel, Xian Economic Development District, Xian City, Commeon Stock
Shaanxi Province, China
Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Qiacjiaguan Village, Jianjun Town Yongshou County, China Indirect No Par Value 49%"
Technolegy Co., Ltd. Xianyang Shaanxi Province, China Common Stock
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Nature of business
Other
% of share
capitaljvating
rights heldby
Country of Direct/indirect Group
Mame of undertaking Registered Address Incorparation  Groap i Sh. ! c i
Accounting & Managerial Services  Kansas No. 2028, Quintas Campestre, 31214, Chihuahua, Mexico Indirect MXNL Class 1 96%
S.deRL.deCV. Chih,, Mexico
ABSinternational, Inc. 1525 River Road, De Forest W1 53532, United States United States Indirect  USD1 Ordinary 100%
ABS Pecplan Ltda. Rod. BR 05G Km 196 + 150metros, Zona Rural, Delta, Brazil Direct  BRL1Ordinary 100%
MG - 38108-000, Braril
Agence Spillers N V. Place Saint-Lambert 14, 1200 Woluwe-Saint-Lamberl, Belgium Indirect No Par value 100%
Belgium Common Stock
Brazilian Holdings Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indfirect £1Ordinary 1009
(D0479048) RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Brazilian Properties Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstcke, Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Ordinary 100%
RG214DZ, United Kingdom
Busby Participacdes Lida. Av. Leopolding de Oliveira, 4.113, Sala 303, Centro, Brazil Indirect  BRLL Ordinary 100%
CEP: 38010-000, UBERABA-MG
Cannavarro Participagdes Ltda. Av. Leopoldino de Oliveira, 4.113, Sala 303, Centro, Brazil Indirect  BRL} Ordinary 100%
CEP: 38010-000, UBERABA-MG )
Dalco Exportadora Lida. Av. Leopoldino de Oliveira, 4113 - 5ala 303, Uberaba, Brazil Indirect  BRLL Ordinary 100%
Minas Gerais, CEP 38010-000, Brazil
Dalgety Pension Trust Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Elmira ABC Ltd. 1525 Floradale Read, Elrmdra ONN3B 221 Canada Canada Indirect NPV Class A" 100%
special shares
NPy Class 8"
special shares
NPV Commaen
shares
Fyfield (SM) Limited (01026475} Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 402, United Kingdorn
Fyfield Dormant Malrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%:
RG214DZ, United Kingdom
Fyfield Holland B.v. Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, Netherlands Indirect NLGIOO 100%
RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom Ordinary
Fyfield Ireland Limited One Spencer Dock, North wWall Quay, Dublin 1, lreland Ireland Indirect €1.25'A" 100%
Ordinary
€1.25°8"
Ordinary
Genus Investments Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Ordinary 100%
{02028517)° RG21 402, United Kingdom
Genus Quest Trustees Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK DBirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Genus Trustees Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingsicke, Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Ordinary 1008
RG21 402, United Kingdom
GIL Finance 5.3.r. 121 Avenue de ia Faiencerie, L - [511, Luxembourg Luxembourg Indirect  USDI Qrdinary 100%
PIC (UK} Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RGZ1 4DZ, United Kingdom '
PiC Do Brasil Empreendimentos e Rua 1 JN, no. 1411, Sala 13, Jardim Novo, Rio Claro, Brazil Indirect BRLO.OL 100%
Participagdes Ltda. Estado De Sao Paulo, CEP 13.502.741, Brazil Ordinary
PIC Fyfietd Limited (00019738)° Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
_ RG214DZ, United Kingdom
PIC Servicios Agropecuarios, 5.A.  Wenceslao de la Barquera No.7, Col. villas del Sur, Mexico Indirect MXN1,000 1009
deCV. 76040 Queretaro, Queretaro, Mexico Ordinary
Pig Improvement Company Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
Overseas Limited (00716304)% RG214DZ, United Kingdom
Pigtales Limited (01809650)° Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire; UK Indirect €1 0Ordinary 100%
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

NATURE OF BUSINESS
Other

% of share
capltalfveting
tights held by
Country of Directfindirect Group
Name of undertaking Registered Address incorporati Group i sh I i
Premium Genetics (UK) Limited Alpha Building, London Road, Nantwich, Stapefey, UK indirect  FO.10Ordinary 100%
(08461779 Cheshire, CWS 7JW, United Kingdom
Premium Genetics Limited Suite 6, Rineanna House, Shannon Free Zone, Co. Clare, Ireland Wxfirect  €1.27 Ordinary 100%
Ireland
Promar International Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Ordinary 100%
(03004562 RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Skogluno Participagdes Ltda. Av. Leopoldine de Oliveira, 4.113, Sala 393, Centro, Brazil Indirect  BRLL Ordinary 100%
CEF: 38010-000, UBERABA-MG
Spillers Limited (00024021)* Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect  £0.25Qrdinary 100%
RG21 4DZ, United Kingdomn £1 Preference
Spillers Overseas Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, LK Indirect  £0.25Ordinary 100%
RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Sygen, Inc. 100 BlueGrass Commaons Blvd, Suite 2200, Hendersonville, United States Indirect  USD1 Commeon 100%
TN 37075 United States
Sygen Internaticnal Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, United Kingdom Direct  £0.10 Crdinary 1009%
(03215874)? RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Sygen Investimentos {tda. Av. LeopoMine de Oliveira, 4113 - Sala 303, Uberaba, Brazil Indirect BRLO.E3 100%
Minas Gerais, CEP 38010-000, Brazil Ordinary
Usicafé SA c/o Cabinet Mayor, avocats, Rue Jean-Gabriel Eynard 6, Switzerland Indirect CHF1,000 100%
1205 Gendve Ordinary

1 Associated undectakings including Joint venture Interests.
3 UK subsidiaries taking 2 4

ge of the audit pti

within section 4794 of the Companies Act 2008,

38. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred consideration on the balance sheet when a business combination contains a contractval clause that defers a portion of the
purchase price. When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding
adjustrments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional infarmation obtained duting the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date} about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

Subsequent contingent consideration fair value remeasurements that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments are recognised in the

income statement.

Contingent deferred consideration is measured at fair value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value techniques use inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded fafr value that are not based on observable market data.

Contingent
deferved Deferrad
ideration id. i Tatal
m £m m

Balance at 1 July 2018 - 19.3 19.3
Additional provision in the year - 6.2 6.2
Payment of consideration - {19.3) (19.3)
Balance at 30 June 2019 - 6.2 6.2
Reclassified from provisions {see note 25) 4.5 - 45
Payment of consideration (0.6} {1.1) 1.7)
Release of unutilised contingent consideration (0.4} - 0.4)
Effectof movementin exchange rates 0.1 - 0.1
Balance at 30 June 2020 3.6 5.1 8.7
Current 2.8 4.7 15
Non-current 0.8 0.4 1.2
Balance at 30 June 2020 36 5.1 BT
Current A - 20 20
Non-current - 4.2 42
Balance at 30 june 2019 - 6.2 6.2
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38. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION CONTINUED
The balance at 30 June 2020 relates 1o the following transactions:

Contingent
deferred Doferred

Fiscal year of iderati i Tatal

trangaction £m £m im

De Novo Genetics LLC i 2017 - 0.8 0.8
Hermitage Genetics DAC 2017 2.8 - 2.8
Avlscenter Mellevang A/S 2018 - 4.3 4.3
Dairy LLC (n/a Bovisync) 2019 0.4 - 0.4
Progenex S.L. 2019 04 - 0.4
Balance at 30 June 2020 36 5.1 8.7

Hermitage Genetics DAC
The contingent deferred consideration is based ori fees paid to the seller and the earning of PIC ~ Hermitage LP during the period 1 July 2018 and

30 June 2020
39, NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
020 w019
£m &m
Non-controlling interest 4.6 4.2
Put option over non-controlling interest at inception (5.6) (5.5)
Total non-controlling interest {1.0} {L.3)

Summarised financizl information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has a material non-controlling interest is set out below before
intra-Group eliminations,

beNove
Genstics LLC  PIC Italia 5.r.l 2020
&m im om
Revenue 3.7 4.1 T.8
Expenses {3.1) (3.2} 6.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year 0.6 0.9 ’ 1.5
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company 0.3 0.8 1.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to the nop-controlling interest . 0.3 0.1 0.4
Bivlogical assets . 149 - 14.9
Current assets 1.3 1.2 2.5
Other non-current assets 0.8 0.9 1.7
Current liabitities {8.8) {0.6) {9.4)
Net assets - 8.2 1.5 9.7
Equity attributable to owners of the Company {3.8) {1.3} {5.1}
Non-controlling interest 4.4 0.2 4.6
No dividends were paid to non-controlling interests (2019: Enil).
: De Novo
Genetics LLC PIC lalia S.rl 019
£ £m £m
Revenue 2.1 29 5.0
Expenses (4.6 (2.1) &1
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year (2.5} 0.8 17
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to owners of the Company (1.3) o7 06
Total comprehensive {loss)/income attributable ta the non-controlling interest w2 0.1 (1.1
Biological assets ' 116 - 116
Current assets . 12 08 20
Other non-current assets 08 14 22
Current liabilities . ’ 6.1) o {&.8)
Net assets A 15 T
Equity attributable to owners of the Company . (2.5 L3y 4.8)

Non-controllinginterest ) 40 0.2 42
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‘40, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Bomag, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLC, are well-recognised breeders in the industry, and are related parties to the Group as these entities are under the control
of relatives of Nate Zwald, our ABS Oairy COO.

We transact with Bomaz, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLC as part of our bull product development effort, under a variety of contracts and agreements. Payments
in 2020 amounted to £1.5m {2019: £1.3m). As at 30 June 2020, the batance owing to these entities was Enil, all amounts were settied in cash.

These related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

41, POST BALANCF SHEET EVENTS

A new credit facility agreement with a syndicate of eight banks was signed post year end on 24 August 2020. The new facility consists of 2 £150m multi-
currency RCF, a USDI25m RCF and a USD20m bond and guarantee facility. The US Dollar bond is being used to provide security in refation to damages
ctaimed under the ABS |l litigation relating to the ‘987 patent royalties (up to 5 June 2020}, the '476 and '309 patent royalties {up to 8 June 2020) and
includes accrued interest and is subject 1o the outcome of any appeal.

The term of the new credit facility is for three years with an option to extend the maturity date before the first and second anniversaries of the signing date
for a further year. The facility alse includes an uncommitted £100m accordion option which can be requested on a maximum of three occasions over the
lifetime of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans,
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2020
2020 w19
Hoip im Em
Non-current assets
Intangible assets c3 . 183 113
Property, plant and equipment Ca 1.3 0.s
Investments in subsidiaries c5 116.2 109.3
Cther investiments Ccé 1.8 26
Dertivative financial asset Cls - 04
Deferred tax asset [o:] 1.4 -
139.0 124.1
Current assets
Other receivabies c7 444.7 4437
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0 2.0
445.7 4457
Current liabilities
Current payables o] {224.1) {216.7)
Provisions Cil {2.0} -
(226.1} (216.7}
Net current assets 219.6 225.0
Total assets less current liabilities 358.6 3531
Non-current liabilities
Non-current payables €10 (105.8) (102.1)
Provisions cl1 (0.4) {2.0)
{106.2) {104.1}
Net assets 252.4 249.0
Equity
Called up share capital Ccle 6.5 6.5
Share premium account 179.1 179.0
Own shares {0.1) 0.1}
Retained earnings 67.1 634
Hedging reserve {0.2), 0.2
Total equity 252.4 249.0

The Company recognised profit for the year of £17.1m (2019: £16 8m profit).

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 September 2020.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.

STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN
Chiel Executive Chief Financial Officer

Company number: 02972325
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Share

Called up premium Cwn Retained Hedging Total

share capital account shares earnings reserve equity

m Em £m £m T £m £m

Balance at 1 July 2018 6.2 1128 0.1) 62T 20 1836
Actuazrial loss on retirement benefits obligations - - - (2.3 - (22
Movemnent on pension asset recognition restriction - - - 26 - 26
Other comprehensive incame for the year - - - 04 - 04
Total profit for the financial year - - - 16.8 - 16.8
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - 17.2 - 17.2
Shares issued 03 66.2 - - - £6.5
Dividends - - - (16.8) - (16.8)
Share-based payment expense, net of tax - - - 03 - 03
Fair value of mavement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - {1L8) (L.8)
Balance at 30 June 2019 6.5 179.0 {Q.0) 63.4 02 249.0
Actuarial gain on retirement benefits obligations - - - 0.5 - 0.5
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction - - - (0.4} - (0.4)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Total profit for the financial year - - - 17.1 - 171
Total comprehensive intome for the financiat year - - - 17.2 - 17.2
Shares issued - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Dividends paid - - - (18.3) - (18.3)
Share-based payment expense, net of tax - - - 4.8 - 4.8
Fair value of movement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - (0.4} (0.4)
Balance at 30 June 2020 6.5 179.1 {0.1) 67.1 (0.2) 252.4

For information on dividends see note 13, cash flow hedges see note 26 and share-based payment expense see note 30.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2020

C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Parent Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'
{‘FRS 10L') and the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’), FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a ‘qualifying entity’ as defined in the standard, which
addresses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual financial statements of qualifying entities that ctherwise apply
the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of EU-adopted IFRSs.

The Company Financia| Statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets
and financial liabilities and in accordance with the Act, The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as set outin note 1 of the
Consotidated Financial Statements of Genus pic. The accounting policies set out below and stated in the relevant notes have been applied consistently to
all periods presented in these Financial Statements.

The Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under FRS 101 in relation to share-based payments, business combinations,
financial instruments, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash fiow statement, standards issued not yet
effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions. Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Genus ple.

As permitted by section 408 of the Act, the Company has not presented its own income statement in this Annual Report. '
The functional currency of the Company is Sterling.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Preparing Company Financial Statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Company Financial Statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision aflects only
that period, of in the period of the revision and future periads, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Management have not identified ant critical accounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty.

Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’
The Company has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach with the value of the right-of-use asset being equal to the lease liability at the
date of adoptian. ’

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets ang lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets (those with a purchase price of less than
GBP 4,000), and lease payments associated with those assets will be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis. The Company has made use of the
practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. When the contracts are modified on or after
1 July 2019, they are reassessed to determine if it contains a lease as defined by IFRS 16. The Company has not elected to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where
the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangible asset.

In addition, the Company will utilise the following practical expedients, permitted by IFRS 16:

> theright-of.use asset for each lease has been measured as the presentvalue of the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid o accrued lease payments
prior to application; ’

> for leases where the remaining term was less than 12 months at 1 July 2019 the Company has elected to treat these as short term;

for leases that were previously classified as an operating lease under IAS 17 ‘Leases’ the lease liability on 1 July 2019 was calculated as the present value

of the remaining lease payments using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019,

for existing leases that incurred initial direct costs, these were excluded from the measurement of the right-of-use asset as at 1 July 2019;

the use of hindsight for existing leases has been applied in determining options to extend ¢+ terminate the lease;

has not elecied to separate lease components from non-lease compenents; and

has elected to apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics,

¥

vV VY VvYy

Impact on the Company's Balance Sheet

1July 2018
priorto
adoptionof  Recognised on 1 July 3019
IFRS 16 adoptlonof  post adoption
{at reported) {FRS 16 ol IFRS 16
Erm Em £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1.1 10 21
Current liabilities
Obligations under Leases - {0.1) .

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under Leases - 0.9 0.9
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€1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED
The following table shows a reconciliation between the operating lease obligations reported at 30 June 2019 and the amount recognised on adoption of
IFRS 16 using the weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 1.65% at the date of adoption,

Em

Operating lease commitments (as at 30 June 2019) 34
Leases classified as tow value or short term -
" Software licences outside the scope of IFRS 16 23
Operating lease commitments to be capitalised under IFRS 16 11
impact of discounting ©.1)
Obligations under Leases (1 July 2019) . L0

Significant accounting policies applied in the current reporting period that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole
This section sets out our significant accounting policies that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy is generally
applicable to a specific note to the Financial Statements, the policy has been described in that note.

Other income and deferred income

In the pricr year, the Company entered inte a strategic collaboration with Beijing Capital Agribusiness (BCA) under which 8CAwill establish and fund a
collaboration specific entity { BCA Future Bio-Tech’) which will use Genus’ intellectual property and know-how to pursue the PRRSv resfstance regulatory
and development wark in China. Genus will receive consideration alter meeting certain milestones in the development programme.

Each milestone is considered to be either a separate performance obligation, or a set of groups of separate performance obligations, under this agreement
and are unbundled in the cantractual arrangement as if they are distinct from one another.

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestone payments, and upon completion of those performance obligations recognise
the fair value of amounts earned in other income. Some performance obligations, such as the transker of know-how, are recognised at a point in time where
others, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over time. We recognise any received but unearned consideration as deferred income.

We wil! apply the same accounting policy to any cther comparable agreements.

Pensions

A number of our employees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to profit and loss as they become payable
under the schemes' rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amounts actually paid as either accruals or prepayments in the
balance sheet. The schemes' assets are held separately from those of the Company.

Certain former employees of the Company are members of ane of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, details of which are given in note 28 to the
Group Financial Statements. The schemes are all multi-empioyer defined benefit schemes, whose assets and lizbilities are held independently from the’
Group but within theie sponsored Group company.

Taxation
We provide for current tax, including UK corporation tax and fareign tax, at the amounts we expect to pay or recover, using the tax rates and the laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies
We record transactions in foreign currencies at the rate ruling at the transaction date. We retranslate monetary assets and liabilities denominated inforeign
currencies at the prevailing rate of exchange at the balance sheet. All differences are taken to the income statement.

Own shares
The Company has adopted FRS 101, which requires us to recognise the assets and liabilities associated with the Company’s investment in its own sharesin
the Company's Financlal Statements, where there is de facto control of the assets and liabilities.

The Company's own shares held by a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust remzin deducted fram shareholders' funds until they vest unconditienally
with employees.

Employee share schemes -
The Company's Executive Directors and Chief Operating Officers receive part of their remuneration in the form of share awards, which vest upon meeting
performance criteria over a three-year period.

We measure the cost of these awards by reference to the shares’ fair value at the award date, At the end of each financial reporting period, we estimate the
extent to which the performance criteria will be met at the end of three years and record an appropriate charge in the profit and loss account, together with
a corresponding credit to profit and loss reserves. Changes in estimates of the number of shares vesting may result in charges or credits to the profit and
loss account in subsequent periods.

Share-based payments
We have implemented the generally accepted accounting principle for accounting for share-based payments with subsidiary undertakings under FRS 101,
whereby the Company has granted rights to its shares to employees of its subsidiary undertakings under an equity-settled asrangement, and the
. subsidiaries have not reimbursed the Company for these rights. Under this arrangement, the Company treats the share-based payment recognised in
the subsidiary's Financial Statements as a cost of investment in the subsidiary and credits equity with an equal amount. ’
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C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED
Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Our activities expose us primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

We use interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk. We also use forward foreign currency contracts, implemented through a medium-term US Doltar
cross currency borrowing and related interest rate swap, to hedge exposure to translation risk associated with US Dollar net assets of subsidiaries. Forward
foreign currency contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting in the Parent Cornpany Financial Statements, as the hedged item is notin its balance sheet.

Our use of financial derivative instruments is governed by the Group’s policies, which are approved by the Board of Directors. The nokes to the Group
Financial Statements include information about the Group's financial risks and their management, and its use of financial instruments and theirimpact
on the Group's risk profile, performance and financial condition.

The fair value of the US Dollar and interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would receive of pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet
date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date, which is the present value of the quoted forward price.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited to the cumulative change
in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge, The gain orloss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immaediately in the Income
Statement, and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income staternent in the periods when
the hedged iter affects the income statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or 3 non-financiat liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumuiated in equity are removed from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
This transfer does not affect other comprehensive income. Furthermore, if the Company expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash
flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the income Statement.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting oniy when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after
rebalancing, if applicable). Thisincludes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is
accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains
in equity and is reclassified to the income statement when the forecast transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified immediately to the Income Statement.

Under interest rate swap tontracts, the Company agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts cafculated on
agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Company to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate
debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. The fair vatue of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by
discounting the future cash flows using the curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherentin the contract. The average interest rate is based

on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year.

As the critical terms of the intecest rate swap contracts and their correspanding hedged items are the same, the Campany performs a qualitative
assessment of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the value of the corresponding hedged items will
systematically change in opposite direction [n response to movements in the underlying interest rates. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these
hedge relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Company's own credit risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is

not reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attrlbutable ta the change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these
hedging relationships.

C2.EMPLOYEES
Staff costs including Directars’ remuneration during the year amaunted to:

2020 2019

£m £m

Wages and salaries 15 56
Sociaf security costs 1.1 07
Pension costs . 0.2 0.1
Share-based payment expense 1.8 06
10.6 70

The employee costs above are inclusive of £0.3m (2019: £0.2m) which has been capitalised into intangibte assets as part of the development of GenusOne
(see note C3}.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out details of the Directors’ remuneration, pensions and share options.

The average monthly number of emplayees including Directors during the year was as follows:
2020 2019
Humber Nouriber

Administration 40 34
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2020

CA.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Accounting policies

Patents, licences and software are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation, The amortisation period is determined by reference to
expected useful life, which is reviewed at least annually. Amartisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
life. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

See note 15 for useful ecenomic life. We do not amorlise assets under construction.
Patentsand Assatunder

Software licences  construction Total
£m £m £m m

Cost
Balznce at 1 July 2019 L7 37 101 15.5
Additions - - 8.6 8.6
Transfers 12,7 - (x2.7) -
Balance at 30 June 2020 14,4 3.7 6.0 24.1
Amortisation
Balance at 1 July 2019 13 29 - 4.2
Amortisation for the year 0.8 0.8 - 16
Balance at 30 June 2020 21 3T - 5.8
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2020 12.3 - 6.0 18.3
At30 June 2019 0.4 1X:] 10.1 113

Assets under construction primarily relate to the ongoing develop ment of GenusOne, a unified enterprise-wide business system.

C4. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Accounting policies

We state property, plant and equipment at cost, together with any incidental acquisition expenses, or at their |atest valuation, less depreciation and any
provision for impairment. We calculate depreciation on a straight-line basis, 1o write the assets down to their estimated residuat values over their estimated
uselul lives. The rates of annual depreciation on tangible fixed assets are as follows:

> Leaseholdimprovements  period of lease
» Leased buildings period of lease
>  Equipment 3to 20 years

We review the carrying value of fixed assets for impairment, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured initially at cost based on the value of the associated lease liability, adjusted for any payments made before inception,
initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of the lease. Subseguent to initial recognition,
we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the term of the lease ov, if shorter, the useful
economic life (UEL) of the leased asset. The lease term shallinclude the period of an extension gption where it is reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised. Whera the fease contains a purchase option the asset is written-off over the useful life of the asset when itis reasonably certain that the purchase
option will be exercised.

Leasshold Owned Leasad
improvements Equipment assets buildings Total
£m £m £m £m . Em

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2019 0.5 X 11 - 11
Recognised en adoption of IFRS 16 - - - 1.0 10
Balance at 30 June 2020 0.5 0.6 1.1 1.0 2
Depreciation ’
Balance at 1 Juty 2019 0.2 V) 06 - 0.6
Depreciation for the year_ - 0.1 0.1, 0.1 0.2
Balance at 30 June 2020 0.2 0.5 0.7 0.1 0.8
Carrying amounts
At 30-June 2020 0.3 0.1 0.4 0.9 1.3
At30June 2019 0.3 02 05 - © 05
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CS5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Accounting policies
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an investment may
not be recoverable. If any such indication of impairment exists, then we estimate the recoverable amount, If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the value of the investment, it is considered to be impaired and we write it down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Sharesin
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
Balance at 1 july 2019 - 3025
Additions 6.9
Balance at 30 June 2020 305.4
Provision for impairment
Balance at 1 July 2019 193.2
Provided during the year -
Balance at 30 June 2020 193.2
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2020 ’ 116.2
At 30 June 2019 109.3

Additions relate to increasing our investment in ABS Argentina S.A_, ABS Pecplan Ltda. and Genus Investments Limited.

The Company considers the relationship between its market capitalisation and the carrying value of its investments, among other factors, when reviewing
forindicators of impairment. As at 30 June 2020, the net investment in four of the companies subsidiary undertakings exceeded the companies share of the
net assets. Each of these subsidiaries are denominated in Latin American currencies all of which have seen significant weakening against Sterting during the
year end 30 June 2020. For each of these undertakings the recoverable value has been estimated using the Board approved Strategic Plan. There were no
indicators of impairment for the companies other subsidiary undertakings.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and expected trading performance.

Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Group. The pre-tax
discount rates are derived from the Group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital { WACC’), which has been calculated using the capital asset pricing

maodel, the inputs of which include a country risk-freerate, equity risk premium, Group size premium and a risk adjustment (beta). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 2.5%.

As a result of this analysis, the Company has not recognised any additional impairment charge during the year.

Principal subsidiary undertakings
The Company’s principal subsidiaries and their main activities are given in note 36 to the Group Financial Statements.

C6. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Accounting policies
Listed equity investments are stated at fair value,

2020 2019
£m £m
Listed investment 1.8 26
C7. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Accounting policies
We state other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment losses.
2010 2018
Nate £m £m
Amounts due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 440.7 438.3
Corporation tax recoverable - 0.9
Other taxes and social security . - 0.3
Prepayments . 2.2 ’ L6
Deferred taxation [of: T 0.6 1.5
Derivative financial asset Ci5 1.2 <Ll
4447 4437

At the Balance Sheet date, the amounts owed by Group undertakings were £440.7m (2019: £438.3m). The carrying amount of these assets approximates
their fair value. There are impaired receivable balances of £nil (2019: £nil) as the Company does not expect any credit losses on amounts owed by Group

.undertakings due to the centralised management of these balances. Of the amounts owed by Group undertakings, £324,.5m (2019: £320.9m} is interest-

bearing and any interest charged is at current market rates.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2020

C8. DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred taxation in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the Balance Sheet date, where transactions or
events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in future or 2 right to pay less tax in future have occuired at the Balance Sheet date.

We anly recognise deferred taxation assets if we consider it more likely than not that we will have suitable profits from which we can deduct the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences, Timing differences are differences arising between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in
the Financial Statements, and which are capable of reversing in one or more subsequent periods.

We only recognise deferred taxation in respect of the future remittance of retained earmings of overseas subsidiaries to the extent that, at the balance sheet
date, dividends have been accrued as receivable.

We measure deferred taxation on a non-discounted basis, 2t the tax rates we expect to apply in the periods in which we expect the timing differences to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

2020 2019
£m £m
Deferred tax asset due within one year 0.6 L5
Deferred tax asset due alter more than one year 1.4 -
2.0 15
The movements in deferred taxation are as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
At the start of the year 1.5 15
Recognised in the income statement 0.1 -
Recognised in equity 0.4 -
At the end of the year 2.0 15
The amounts provided are as follows:
2020 2019
£m im
Share-based payment expense 1.2 09
Other timing differences 07 03
Losses 0.1 0.3
2.0 L5

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses available for offset against future profits, with a potential tax benefit of £0.1m (2019: £0.3m).
We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of this benefit, as we expect these losses to be offset against future profits of the UK tax group in the
near term.

€9. CURRENT PAYABLES
Accounting policies
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

2020 2019

} Note £m £m

8ank loans and overdrafts Cl12 9.2 21
Corporation tax payable . 0.3 -
Trade payables 0.7 20
Other payables . 0.2 0.3
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 2007 2082
Accruals 3.2 3l
Deferred income . 0.3 -
Obligations under leases C13 0.1 -
Derivative financial habilities - C15 0.4 10
2249.1 216.7

tncluded within amounts owed to Group undertakings are amounts of £185.8m (2019: £192.4m) which are unsecured, repayable on demand and any
interest charged is at current market rates.

There are no outstanding contributions due to defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of the emplayees (2019: £nil).
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C10. NON-CURRENT PAYABLES

2020 019

Note im fm

Bank loans and overdrafts Cl2 103.8 1019

Obligations under leases . Cl3 0.8 -

Derivative financial liabilities Cc1s 0.1 02
Deferred income 1.1 -

105.8 102.1

C11. PROVISIONS

2020 2012

£m im

Provisions due within one year 2.0 -

Provisions after more than one year 04 20

2.4 20

The provisions primarily consist of 2 share forfeiture provision of £2.3m which relates to potential claims that could be made by untraced members over the
next years, relating to the resale proceeds of shares that were identified during the prior years as being forfeited {see note 25),

C12.LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Accounting policies

we initially state debt at the amount of the net proceeds, after deducting issue costs. The carrying amount is increased by the finance cost in respect of the
accounting period and reduced by payments made in the pericd.

We charge the finance costs of debit to the profit and loss account over the debt term, at a constant rate on the carrying value of the debt to which they relate.

2020 19
£m £m
Loans and borrowings comprise amounts falling due:
in one year or less or on demand 9.5 25
{n more than one year but not more than two years 103.8 -
In more than two years but not more than five years - 102.2
113.3 1047
" Less: unamortised issue costs {0.3) 07)
113.0 104.0
Amounts falling due within one year {9.2) (2.1)
Amounts falling due after more than one year 103.8 101.9

At the balance sheet date, the Company's credit facilities comprised a £35m multi-currency revolving credit facility (RCF’) and a USDLESm RCF. £45m of the
Company’s credit facilities expire in February 2021, with the remaining facilities expiring in February 2022,

A new credit facility agreement with a syndicate of eight banks was signed post year end on 24 August 2020. The new facility consists of a £150m multi-
currency RCF, a USD125m RCF and a USD20m bond and guarantee facility. The term of the new facility is for three years with an option to extend the
maturity date before the first and second anniversaries of the signing date for a further year. The facility also includes an uncommitted £100m accordian
option which can be requested on a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans.

As part of its interest rate strategy, the Company has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge floating LIBOR rates. As a result, bank loan and overdrafts
include borrowings of US545m (£36.3m) fixed at 1. 22% and £20m fixed at 1.08%, excluding applicable bank margin.

Terms and debt repayment schedule
The terms and conditions of cutstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:

2010 2019

Currency Interest rate £m tm

RCF and gverdraft : GBP 1.1% 287 25.0
RCF, term loan and overdraft usD 1.4% 8.6 712
RCF and overdraft EUR 0.9% 6.8 -
Other unsecured bank borrowings Qther 0.7% 8.9 18
Total interest-bearing liabilities , 113.0 104.0

The above RCFs are unsecured.
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NOTES TO THé PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2020

€13. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
A lease is a commitment to make a payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Accounting policies
In accordance with (FRS 16, we recognise as an expense any payments madein respect of short-term leases (those with a term of less than 12 months) and
for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise a liability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, 2 corresponding right-of-use asset is recognised
and depreciated aver the term of the lease (see note C4).

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-lease components. Future lease
payments include fixed payments, in substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are based on anindex or a rate, less any lease incentives
receivable. Lease liabilities also take into account amounts payable under resigual value guarantees and payments to exercise options to the extent that it
is reasonably certain that such payments will be made. The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be measured,

at an incremental borrowing rate. '

We remeasure the lease liability (and make a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

> Thelease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

> The lease paymenis change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
lease ligbility is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a
change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The company did not make any such adjustrents during the periods presented.

The change in the lease liabilities are as follows:
2020

£m
Balance at the start of the year -
Recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16 1.0
Payrnents made (0.1)
Balance at the end of the year 0.9

In accordance with the reduced disclosure exemptions included in FRS 101 a maturity analysis has not been presented. The maturity analysis of the Group's
lease obligations is included in note 27 to the Group Financial Statements.

C14. OPERATING LEASES

Accounting policies

For short-term leases (those with a term of less than 12 months) and low-value items we charge the rentals payable to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the |ease term.

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 18 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangible assets (e.g. software
licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating ieases which expire:

2020 2019
Em m
In less than one year 0.8 09
Between one and five years 0.8 pA
In more than five years - 04
1.6 34
The reduction in future minimum lease payments relates to the adoption of IFRS 16 (see note C1).
Operating lease rentals chargedin the year:
020 2019
im £m
Other B X § 09

C15. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Additional disclosures on financial instruments can be found in note 26.
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C16. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
2020 019 2020 2008
Humber Number £m tm
tssued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10 pence 65,091,625 65,054,559 6.5 6.5
There is no authorised share capital limit.
The hotders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends, as declared from time to time.
The movement in share capital for the period was as follows:
2020 2019 2020 019
Number Nymber ftm &m
tssued under the Executive Share Option Plan 37,066 14,892 - -
Issued to Employee Benefit Trust - 400,000 - -
Issued at share placement - 3,097,200 - 0.3
37,066 3,512,092 - 03
Shares issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at option prices as follows:
2020 2019
Humber Price Nymber Piice
Executive Share Option Plan - 776.00p 3,932 T76.00p
6,097 654.50p 2,106 654.50p
9,213 729.83p 1,915 729.83p
7,175 9771.83p 1463 977.83p
6,209 1334.00p 3685  1334.00p
8,372 1413.00p 1,791 1413.00p
37,066 14,892

Reserve for own shares

The Campany's shares are heid by a QUEST, which is an emplovee benefit trust established to facilitate the operation of our long-term incentive scheme for
senior management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders' funds for the consideration the trust paid for the Company's
shares, which had not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet date. The number and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit

Trust and the QUEST were:
1020 2019 2020 0.5
Humber Number im fm
Shares allocated but not vested 75,184 313,125 2.6 B3
Unallecated shares 92,334 92,334 3.3 24
167,518 405,459 59 107

The shares have a nominal value of £18,752 (2019: £40,546}.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments net of taxation - see

note 26.

C17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company is exempt under FRS 101 from disclasing transactions with other members of the Group.

C18. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2020, cutstanding contracted capital expenditure amounted to £nil {2019: £nil).
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C19. PENSIONS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

The NMR pension assigned to Genus plc under the Flexible Apportionment Agreement, recorded an actuarial gain of £0.5m which has increased the asset
restriction made in the previous years. As the Company doesnot have unilateral right to this surplus. as required in accordance with IFRIC 14 it is restricted
to £nil. For additional information on the MPF pension scheme, of which NMR was one of the participating employers, please see note 29.

Theretirement benefit obligations referred to in note 29 to the Group Financial Statements include obligations relating to the MPF defined benefit scheme.
Genus, together with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme’s obligations. Genus has accounted forits section and its
share of any orphan assets and liabilities, collectively representing approximately 86% (2019: B6%) of the MPF. As a result of the joint and several liability,
Genus has a contingent liabifity for the scheme’s obligations that it has not accounted for. The total deficit of the MPF scheme from the most recent triennial
valuation can be found in note 29. :

Certain UK subsidiaries, which are detailed in note 37 to the Group Financial Statements, will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section
4794 of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 30 June 2020, The Company has assessed the probability ofloss under the guarantee as remote.

At 30 June 2020, the Company had entered into bank guarantees totalling £nif (2019: £nil).

€20. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Anew credit facility agreement with a syndicate of gight banks was signed post year end on 24 August 2020. The new facility consists of 2 £150m multi-
currency RCF, a USD125m RCF and a USD20m bond and guarantee facility. The term of the new facility is for three years with an option to extend the
maturity date before the first and second anniversaries of the signing date for a further year. The facility also includes an uncommitted £100m accordion
option which can be requested on a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group’s business development plans.



(Page 176

of 189)

. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 175

FIVE-YEAR RECORD - CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The information included in the five-year record below is in accordance with IFRS as adopted for use in the Eyropean Union.

2020 2019 018 007 2016

Financial results im £m im im £m
Revenue fram continuing operations 551.4 488.5 470.3 4591 388.3
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations! 65.3 511 517 55.1 49.3
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates' 16.0 649 63.1 60.1 54.3
Adjusted profit befare tax! 7L.0 610 58.5 56.4 497
Basic adjusted earnings per share! 85.4p 73.2p 759p 6%4p 60.7p
Diluted adjusted earnings per share! 84.7p 70.7p 749p 68.4p 60.1p
Operating profit from continuing operations 471.6 87 8.2 382 58.6
Profit before tax from continuing operations 51.5 99 18 407 60.9
Profit after tax from continuing operations 40.9 6.7 416 343 50.3
Basic earnings per share 62.4p 12.4p 69.7p 538p 8t.lp
Diluted earnings per share 61.9p 11.9p 68.7p 53.0p 80.3p
Net assets 507.8 4871 403.9 4021 3681
Netdebt 102.6 719.6 108.5 1116 89.7

L Adjusted operating profit, adjusted prolit belore tax and adjusted basic and diluted garnings per share are befare nat IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets, amor tisation of acquired

intangible assets, share-based payment expense, exceptional items and other gains and losses.
2 Restatedseenotel. .

3 Aspreviously reported. The results of FYL6 and FY17 have not been restated for the prior periad adjustment outlined In note 2 as Itwould be Impracticabla to do so. Consequently, the net assets of

these periods are not directly comparable tothose in the subsequent years,
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (‘APMs’) GLOSSARY

The Group tracks a number of APMs in managing its business, which are not
defined or specified under the requirements of IFRS because they exclude
amounts that are included in, or include amounts that are excluded from,
the most directly comparable measure caiculated and presented in
accordance with IFRS, or are calculated using financial measures that are
notcalculated in accordance with IFRS.

The Group believes that these APMs, which are not considered to be 3
substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stakeholders with
additional helpful information on the performance of the business. These
APMs are consistent with how the business performance is planned and
reported within the internal management reparting to the Board and
executive leadership team, Some of these APMs are also used for the
purpose of setting remuneration targets.

Alternative Performance
Measures

Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS measure (where applicable)

These APMs should be viewed as supplemental to, but not as a substitute
for, measures presented in the consolidated financial informaticon relating
to the Group, which are prepared in accordance with IFRS. The Group
believes that these APMs are useful indicators of its performance. However,
they may not be comparable to similarly-titled measures reported by other
companies due to differences in the way they are calculated. The key

APMs that the Group uses include:

Reasans why we believe the
APM3 are usaful

Income statement measures

Adjusted operating profit
exc Vs

excludes WV and associate results.

Closest equivolent IFRS megsure: Operating profit!

See reconciliation on page 180.

Adjusted operating profit is operating profit with the net IAS a1 valuation
movement on biotogical assets, amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
share-based payment expense and exceptional items added back and

Allows the comparability of underlying
financial performance by excluding the
impacts of exceptionaliterns and is a
performance indicator against which
short-term and long-term incentive
outcomes for our senior executives are
measured:
> netlAS 4] valuation movements on
hiological assets - these movements
can be materially volatile and deo not
directly correlate to the underlying
trading performance in the period.

Adjusted operating profit
inc Vs
See reconciliation on page 180,

Including adjusted operating profit from JV and associate results.

Furthermore, the movement is
non-cash related and many
assumgptions usad in the valuation
model are based on projections
rather than current trading;

> amortisation of acquired intangible

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs exc gene editing
costs

gene editing costs.

See reconciliation on page 180.

Including adjusted operating profit from JV and associate results but excluding

assets - excluding this improves the
comparability between acquired and
organically grown operations, as the
latter cannot recognise internally
generated intangible assets.
Adjusting for amortisation provides a

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs exc impact of IFRS
16 adoption

Excludes the impact of IFRS 16 on adoption.

See reconciliation on page 180.

more consistent basis for comparison
between the two;

> share based payments - this expense
is considered to be relatively volatite
and not Fully reflective of the current

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs after tax N .
See reconciliation on page 180.

Adjusted operating profit including JV less adjusted effective tax.

period trading, as the performance
criteria are based on EPS
performance over a three-year period
and include estimates of future
performance; and

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs exc impact of adoption less adjusted effective tax.
IFRS 16 adoption after tax '

See reconciliation on page 180.

‘Adjusted operating profit before tax, excluding the impact of IFRS 16 on >

exceptional items - these are items
which due to either their size or their
nature are excluded to improve the
understanding of the Group's
underlying performance.

Adjusted profit inc JVs
before tax
See reconciliation on page 180.

Adjusted operating profit including JVs less net finance costs.

Adjusted profitinc JVs
after tax
See reconciliation on page 180.

Adjusted profitincluding 1vs before tax less adjusted effective tax.




{Page 178 of

189)

Alternative Performance
Measures

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

PPN

Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS e (where app

177

Reasons why we belisve the
APMs are useful

Adjusted effective tax rate

Total income tax charge for the Group excluding the tax impact of adjusting
items divided by the adjusted operating profit.

Closest equivalent IFRS meosure: Effective tox rate

See reconciliation on page 181

Provides an underlying tax rate to allow
comparability of underlying financiat
performance by excluding the impacts of
net IAS 41 valuation movement on
biological assets, amortisation of
acquired intangible assets, share-based
payment expense and exceptional items.

Adjusted basic earnings
per share

Adjusted profit after tax profit divided by the
weighted basic average number of shares.

Closest equivolent IFRS meosure: Earnings per shore

See calculation on page 181.

Adjusted diluted earnings
pershare

Underiying attributable profit divided by the diluted weighted basic average
number of shares.

Closest equivalent IFRS meoasure: Diluted earnings per share

See calculation on page 181.

On a per share basis, this allows the
comparability of underlying financial
performance by excluding the impacts of
adjusting items,

Adjusted earnings cover

Adjusted earnings per share divided by the expected dividend for the year.

See calculation on page 181.

The Board dividend policy targets the
adjusted earning cover to be between 2.5
- 3times.

Adjusted EBITDA -
calculated in accordance
with the definitions used in
our financing facilities

This is adjusted operating profit, adding back cash received from aur joint
ventures, depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation of the
historical cost of biological assets, operational amortisation (i.e. excluding
amortisation on acquired intangibles) and deducting the amount attributable
to minority interest. -

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit!

See reconciliation on page 181.

This APM is presented because it is used
incalculating our ratio of net debt ta
EBITDA and our interest cover which we
report to our banks to ensure compliance
with our bank covenants.

Adjusted operating margin

Adjusted operating profit (including JV) divided by revenue.

Adjusted operating margin
{exc JV)

Adjusted operating profit.

Allows for the comparability of
underlying financial performance by
excluding the impacts of exceptional
items.

Constant currency basis

The Group reports certain financial measures, on bath a reported and
constant cufrency basis and retranslates the current year's results at the
average actual exchange rates used in the previous financial year.

The Group's business operates in
multiple worldwide countries and its
trading results are translated back into
the Group's functional currency of
Sterling. This measure eliminates the
effects of exchange rate fluctuations
when comparing year-on-year reported
results.
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Alternative Peyformance
Measures

Calculation methodalogy and closest equivalent IFRS measure (where applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Balance sheet measures

Net debt

Net debt is grass debt, made up of unsecured bank loans and overdrafts and
obligations under finance leases, with a deduction for cash and cash
equivalents.

See reconciliation on page 182.

This allows the Group to maonitor its
levels of debt.

Net debt exc the impact of
IFRS 16

Net debt less the impact of adopting IFRS 16 leases over 1AS 17.

See reconciliation on page 182.

This allows a cormparative to prior year.

Net debt - calculated in
accerdance with the
definitions used in our
financing facilities

Net debt excluding the impact of adopting (FRS 16 and adging back
guarantees and deferred purchase arrangements.

See reconciliation on page 182.

This is a key metric that we report to our
banks to ensure compliance with cur
bank covenants,

Cash flow measures

Cash conversion

Cash generated by operations as a percentage of adjusted operating profit
exclugding Jvs,

See calculation on page 182.

This is used to measure how much
operating cash flow we are generating
and how efficient we are at converting
our operating profit into cash.

Cash conversion exc the
impactof adopting IFRS 16

Cash generated by operations as a percentage of adjusted operating profit
excluding joint ventures excluding the impact of adopting IFRS 16.

See calculation on page 182.

This allows a comparative to the
prior year,

Free cash flow

Cash generated by the Group before debt repayments, acquisitions and
investments, dividends and proceeds from share issues.

Ciosest IFRS measure: Net cash flow from operating activities

See reconciliation on page 182,

Shows the cash retained by the Group in
the year.

Other measures

Interest cover

The ratio of adjusted net finance costs, calculated in accordance with the
definitions used in our financing facilities, is net finance costs with 3 deduction
for pension interest, interest from adopting IFRS 16, unwinding of discount on
put options and amortisation of refinancing fees, to Adjusted EBITDA.

Closest equivalent IFRSS components for the ratio: The equivalent IFRS
components are finonce costs, finance income and operoting profit

See caleulation and reconciliation on page 183.

This APM is used to understand our
ability to meet our interest payments
and is also a key metric that we report to
our banks to ensure compliance with our
bank covenants.

Ratio of net debt to
adjusted EBITDA

The ratio of net debt, calculated in accordance with the definitions used in our
financing facilities, is gross debt, made up of unsecured bank loans and
overdrafts and obligations under finance leases, with a deduction for cash and
cash equivalents and adding back amounts related to guarantees and deferred
purchase arrangements, to EBITDA.

Closest equivalent IFRSs components for the ratio: The equivalent IFRS
components are gross debt, cash and cash equivalents ond operating profit.

See calculation on page 183.

This APM is used as a measurement of
our leverage and is also a key metric that
we report to our banks to ensure
compliance with our bank covenarnts.

Return on adjusted
invested capital

The Group’s return on adjusted invested capital is measured on the basis of
adjusted operating profitincluding JV's after tax, which is operating profit with
the pre-tax share of profits from JV's and associates, net 1a5 4l valuation
movement on biological assets, amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
share-based payment expense and exceptional items added back, net of
amounts attributable to non-controlling interest and tax.

This APM is used to measure our ability to
efficiently invest our capital and gives us
a sense of how well we are using our
resources to generate returns.
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Reasans why we believe the
Calculation methodolegy and ¢lesest equivalent IFRS measure (where applicable) APMs ara useful

Return on adjusted capital
invested [continued)

The adjusted operating profit including joint ventures after tax is divided by
adjusted invested capital, which is the equity attributable to owners of the
Company adding back net debt, pension liability net of related deferred tax and
deducting biological assets (less historical cost) and goodwill, net of related
deferred tax.

Closest equivalent IFRSs components for the ratio:
Return on invested capital

See calcutatlon and reconciliation on page 183 and 184.

Return on adjusted
invested capital exc the
impact of IFRS 16 adoption

Excludes the impactof FRS 16 on adoption. This allows a comparative to the
prior year.

See reconciliation on page 183.

I Operating profit is not defined per IFRS. 1t IS presented in the Group Income Statement and Is shown as profic before tax, finance income/costs and share of pos profitof joint and

associates retained.
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THE TABLES BELOW RECONCILE THE CLOSEST EQUMVALENT IFRS MEASURE TO THE APM OR OUTLINE THE CALCULATION OF THE APM

INCOME STATEMENT MEASURES

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT EXC JVs

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT iNC JVs

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT INC J¥s AND EXC GENE EDITING COSTS

2028 2019
£m £m Em Em  Reference
Operating profit 47.6 8.7 Group Income Statement
Add back: .
NetIAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets (15.8) 147 Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 85 95 Group Income Statement
Share-hased payment expense 58 30 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items 192 218 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 65.3 57.7 Group Income Statement
Less: amounts attributable to non-controlting interest {0.6) {04)
Operating profit from joint ventures and associates 89 5.1 Group Income Statement
Tax on joint ventures and associates 23 l4 Note 11 - Income tax expense
Net (AS 41 valuation movement 0.1 1.1 Note 18 - Equity accounted
investees
Adjusted operating profit from JV's 113 76
Adjusted operating profitinc JVs 76.0 64.9
Gene editing costs 5.2 7.3 Note5 - Segmental information
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs and exc gene editing costs 81.2 122
ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT INC JVs EXC IMPACT OF IFRS 16 ADQPTION
2020 2019
Em Em  Relerence
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 76.0 64.9 SeeAPM
Deduct:
Finance costs onimpact of IFRS 16 adoption 0.7 - Note 1- Reporting entity
Adjusted profitinc Jvs excimpact of IFRS 16 adoption 75.3 64.9
ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT INC JVs AFTER TAX
1010 2019
m £m Relerence
Adjusted operating profitinc Jv 76.0 64.9 See APM
Adjusted tax (16.7) (15.8) Ateffective tax rate -see note 12
Adjusted operating profitine JV after tax §9.3 49.1
ADJUSTED QPERATING PROFIT INC JVs EXC IMPACT OF IFRS 16 ADOPTION AFTER TAX
’ 2020 019
£m Em  Relerence
Adjusted operating profitinc JV exc impact of IFRS 16
adoption 153 64.9 See APM
. Adjusted tax (16.6) (15.8) Ateffective tax rate - see note 12
Adjusted operating profitinc JV exc impact of IFRS 16
adoption after tax 58.7 49.1
ADJUSTED PROFIT INC J¥s BEFORE TAX
ADJUSTED PROFIT INC JVSAFTER TAX
’ 2020 2019
£m £m Reference
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 76.0 64.9 See APM
Less net finance costs (5.0) [3.9) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Adjusted profit inc jvs before tax 71.0 61.0
Adjusted tax (15.6) (14.8) Note 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax 55.4 46.2
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ADJUSTED EFFECTIVE TAX £M/RATE

2020 2009
£m % £m % Reference
Adjusted effective tax Em/rate 15.6 2.0 148 24.3 Note 12 - Earnings per share
Exceptional items (4.5) {23.4) (2.9 (17.9)
Share-hased payment expense (L1} (19.04 (0.5} {16.7)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets {1.8) (212 (2.3) (22.1)
NetIAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets 4.7 297 (3.3) (224)
Net1aS 41 valuation movement on biological assets in Jvs - - (0.4) (36.4)
_ Note 1] - Taxation and deferred
Effective tax Em/rate 12.5 24.0 4.6 40.7 taxation
ADJUSTED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
020 2019 Reference
Adjusted profit after tax {Em) 55.4 46.2 See APM
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (m) 64.908 63.141 Note 6 - Earnings per share
Adjusted Earnings per share {pence) 85.4 73.2
ADJUSTED DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
2010 2019 Reference

Adjusted profitinc JVs after tax (Em) 55.4 46.2 See APM
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares [m}) 65.427 65.304 Note 6 - Earnings pershare
Adjusted earnings per share (pence) 847 70.7
ADJUSTED EARNINGS COVER

2020 2018

pence times pence times Reference

Adjusted earnings per share 85.4 73.2 See APM
Dividend for the year 29.1 217 Note 13 - Dividends
Adjusted earnings cover 2.8 . 2.6
ADJUSTED EBITDA - AS CALCULATED UNDER CUR FINANCING FACILITIES

2020 2019

£m Em T £Em Reference
Qperating profit 41.6 8.7 GroupIncome Statement
Add back:
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets (15.8) 147 Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 85 9.5 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 58 30 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items 192 258 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc Vs 65.3 517 Group Income Statement
Adjust for:
Cash received from JVs (dividend and loan repayment) 3.7 34 Group Statement of Cash Flows
Depreciation: property, plant and equipment owned assets 131 126 Note 17 - Property, plant and
* equipment

‘Depreciation: historical costof biological assets 110 94 See Financial Review
Amortisation and impairment (excluding separately identifiable
acquired intangible assets) 5.1 5.4 Note 15 - Intangible assets
Less amounts attributable to non-controlling interest [0.6) ©.4) Group Income Statement

Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing facilities 97.6 88.1
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BALANCE SHEET MEASURES
NET DEBT
NET DEBT EXC IMPACT OF IFRS 16 ADOPTION

NET DEBT AS CALCULATED UNDER OUR FINANCING FACILITIES

2020 2010
£m £m Reference
Unsecured bank loans and overdralts 1128 104.0 Group Balance Sheet
Obligations under finance leases 31 6.1 Group Balance Sheet
Total debt financing 1439 1101 Note 32 - Notes to the cash flow
statement
Deduct:
Cash and cash equivalents (4L.3) (30.5} Group Balance Sheet
Net debt 102.6 79.6
Deduct:-
Impactof RS 16 adoption (24.7) - No direct reference
Net debt-exc impact of IFRS 16 adoption T1.9 79.6
Add back:- Guarantees 59 4.0 Note 35 - Contingencies and bank
guaramees
Deferred purchase arrangements 02 13 No direct reference
Net debt - as calculated under our financing facilities 84.0 84.9
CASH FLOW MEASURES
CASH CONVERSION
2020 2019
£fm tm £m €m Reference
Cash generated by operations 82.9 43.4 Note 32 - Notesto the cash flow
statement
QOperating profit 416 8.7 Group Income Statement
Add back:
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biological assets (15.8) 14.7 Group income Statement
Amortisaticon of acquired intangible assets 85 a5 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 58 30 Group Income Statement
Exceptional itemns 19.2 218 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 65.3 57.7 Group Income Statement
Cash conversion (96) 12T% 84%
CASH CONVERSION EXC IMPACT OF IFRS 16 ADQPTION
2020 2019
£m im £m £m  Reference
Cash generated by operations 829 484 Note 32 - Notes to the cash flow
statement
Deduct Impact of IFRS 16 adoption {1.6) - Note | - Reporting entity
Cash generated by operations excimpact of {FRS 16
adoption 75.3 48.4
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 65.3 51.7 Group Income Statement
Cash Conversion exc impact of IFRS 16 adoption (%) 115% B4%
FREE CASH FLOW
2028 w019
£m £m m £m Relefence
Note 32 - Notes to cash flow
Cash generated by operations 829 438.4 statement
Interest and tax paid {17.1) {15.0) Note 32 - Notes to cash flow
statement
Capital expenditure {354) {28.3) Group Statement of Cash flows
Cash received from JV (dividends and loan repayment) 37 34 Group Statement of Cash flows
Other 11 15 Group Statement of Cash flows
Free cash flow 35.2 10.0
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INTEREST COVER
2020 2019
£m Times £m Times Reference
Finance costs 53 47 Group Incorme Statement
Finance income {0.3} ©.8) Group Income Statement
Netfinance costs 50 3.8 Note 10 - Net finance costs
Deduct:
Pension interest (0.4) ©9) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Additional interest from adopting IFRS 16 (0.7} - Note 10 - Net finance costs
Unwinding discount on put options (0.5) - Note 10 - Net finance costs
Amortisation of refinancing fees (0.49) 04) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Adjusted net finance costs 3.0 2.6
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under cur financing
facilities 7.6 88.1 See APM
Interest cover 32 34
RATIO OF NET DEBT TO ADJUSTED EBITDA
2020 2019
£m Times m Times Relerence
Net debt - as calculated under our financing facilities 84.0 B4.9 See APM
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 976 88.1 See APM
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA 0.9 1
RETURN ON ADJUSTED INVESTED CAPITAL
2020 019
. m % £m % Reference
Adjusted operating profitinc JVs after tax 59.3 49.1 " See APM
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 508.8 488.4 Group Balance Sheet
Add back:
Netdebt 1026 96 Note 32 - Notes to the cash flow
statement
Pension lability 18.1 242 Group Balance Sheet
Related deferred tax 3.9 {4.4) Note 11 - Taxation and deferred
Taxation
Deduct:
Biological assets - carrying value (370.2) {346.2) See Financial Review
Biologicat assets - historic cost 57.5 58.2 See Financial Review
Goodwill (105.6) {106.3) Group Balance Sheet
Related delerred tax 74.4 66.6 Note 11 - Taxation and deferred
. Taxation
Adjusted invested capital 282.1 260.1 .
Return on adjusted invested capital 21.0% 18.9%
RETURN ON ADJUSTED INVESTED CAPITAL EXC IMPACT OF IFRS 16 ADOPTION
2010 1019
£m L3 £€m % Reference
Adjusted operating prefitinc JVs exc impact of IFRS 16
adoption after tax 58.7 491
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 508.8 4884 Group Balance Sheet
Add back:
Net debt {excluding IFRS 16 leases) 77.9 796
Pension liability 18.1 242 Group Balance Sheet
Related deferred tax {3.5) [4.9) Note 11 - Taxation and deferred
taxation
Deduct: |
Biological assets - Carrying value (37102 (346.2) See financial review
Biological assets - historic cost 515 58.2 See financial review
Goodwill (105.5) (106.3) Group Balance Sheet
Relsted deferred tax T4.4 66.6 Note 11 - Taxation and deferred
taxation
Adjusted invested capital 257.4 260.1
Return on adjusted invested capital exc impact of IFRS 16
22.8% 18.9%

adoption
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RETURN ON ADJUSTED INVESTED CAPITAL

2020 2019
£m % Em % Reference
Return on adjusted invested capital 21.0% 18.9% see APM
Adjusted operating profitinc JVs after tax 593 49.1 - No direct reference in the
Financial Statements
Taxrate 16.7 22.0% 158 24.3% Note 12 - Earnings pershare
Adjusted operating profitincluding JV's 16.0 649 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit attributable to non-controliing interest 06 04 Group Income Statement
Pre-tax share of profits from JV's exc net 1AS 41 valuation
movement (11.3) (7.6} Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc Jvs 63.3 577 Group Income Staterment
Fair value movement on biglogical assets 158 {147} Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (8.5) (9.5} Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense {5.8) (3.0 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items {19.2) (21.8) Group Income Statement
Share of post-tax profit of Jv's ag 51 Group Income Statement
Finance costs {5.0) (39} Group Income Statement
Profit before tax 515 99 Group Income Statement
Tax - {10.6) (3.2 Group Income Statement
Profit 40.9 6.7 Group Income Staternent
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 508.8 488.4 Group Balance Sheet
Return on invested capital 8.0% 1.4%
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AGM - Annual General Meeting.

Artificial insemination (‘Al’) - Using semen collected from

a bull or boar to impregnate a cow or sow when in estrus, Artificial
insemination allows a genetically superior male to be used to mate
with many more females than would be possible with natural mating.
ASF - African Swine Fever.

Biosecurity - The precautions taken to reduce the chance of transmitting
disease agents from one livestock operation 1o anather,

Boar - Amale pig.

BRD - Bovine Respiratary Disease, a complex, bacterial and viral infection
that cavses lung disease in cattie (particularly calves) and is often fatal.

CPI - Consumer Price Index.

CRISPR-Cas 9 - Technology which accurately targets and cuts DNAto
produce precise and controllable changesto the genome.

CSR - Corporate Social Respensibility.
DSBP - Deferred Share Bonus Plan.

EPS - Earnings per share.

Farrow - When a sow gives birth to piglets.
GELT - Genus Executive Leadership Team.

Gender skew - The ability to influence the proportion of offspring being
of a particular sex.

Genetic gain - The change of the genetic make up of a particular animal
population in response to having selected parents that excelled genetically
forimportant traits.

Genetic lag - The amount of time required to disseminate genetic gain
from a nucleus herd to the commercial customer,

Genetic nucleus - A specialised pig herd, where Genus PIC keeps.its pure
lines, Pigs are penetically tested at the nucleus to select the best animals to
produce the next generation.

Genomic bull - A bull which has been assessed through genomic testing.
This typicalty refers to bulls which have not been progeny-tested.,

Genomically tested - An animal that has been DNA profiled.

Genomics - The study of the genome, which is the DNA sequence of an
animal's chromosomes.

Gilt - Ayoung female pig, which has not yet given birth,
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GMS - ABS's Genetic Management System, which creates a genetic solution
tailored to each individual dairy producer to obtain improved herd
genetics.

Grandparent - The relationship of a breeding pig to the generation
of terminal market pigs. A grandparent produces parents, who in turn
produce the commercial generation of terminal pigs.

Greup - Genus plc and its subsidiary companies.

In vitre fertilisation {IVF’) - The fertilisation of an oocyte with semen
(outside an animal} in a laboratory for transfer into a surrogate.

Index/indices - Aformula incorporating economically important traits for
ranking the genetic potential of animals as parents of the next generation.

Integrated pork producer - Producers of pork typically involved in raising
animals to slaughter weight all the way through to packaged and/or
branded pork products.

IntelliGen - The technology platform used to process sexed bovine semen
for ABS and third-party custormers and commercialised by ABS globally as
Sexcel.

IP ~ intellectual property.

IPR - Inter Partes Review before the US Patent and Trademarks OFice.

IVB - In Vitro Brasil 5.A.

JV - Joint venture.

Line - Myltipte animals that have been mated together in a closed breeding
population. Pure lines can have their origing in one founding breed orin
severa breeds.

Market pig equivalents {*MPE’) - Relers to a standardised measure of our
customers’ production of slaughter animais that contain our genetics with
genes from each of the sow and boar counting for half of the animal.
Multiplier - A producer whose farm contains grandparent sows. The farm
crosses together two lines of grandparents, multiplying the number of
genetically improved parents that are available for sale.

NuEra - The ABS beef breeding programme and index designed to drive
the customer's genetic improvement and deliver 1otal system profitability
for the beef supply chain, i

PQA - Pork Quality Assurance.

Progeny tested - Elite animals whose genetic value as a parent has been
tested and validated through the performance of their offspring.
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PRRSv - Porcine Reproductive and Respiratory Syndrome Virus.
PSP - Performance Share Plan,

PTAB - Patent Trail and Appeal Board before the U3 Patent and
Trademarks Office.

R&D - Research and development.

RMS - ABS's Reproductive Management System, which is a systematic
approach to maximising pregnancy production ang its contribution to hevd
profitability.

RPI - Retail Frice Index.

RWD - ABS's Real World Data System of abserved performance data from
many dairy herds.

Sexcel - The ABS brand of sexed bovine genetics produced using
IntelliGen.

Sire - The male parent of an animal.

Sire line - The male line selected for traits desirable for the market.
Sow - Afemale pig which has given birth at least once,

Straw - A narrow tube used to package frozen bull semen.

Stud - Locations where bulls or boars are housed and their semen
collected, evaluated, diluted into multiple doses/straws and packaged,

ready for shipping to farms.

Terminal boars - The male pig that is used tc mate with a parent female to
produce a terminal pig.

Trait - A measurable characteristic that may be a target for genetic
selection. ’

TransitionRight - Genus ABS's patent-pending genetic selection tool to
help prevent multiple post calving metabaolic disarders that occur during
transition. '

Unit - A straw of frozen bull semen or tube/bag of fresh boar semen sold to
acustomer,
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